STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
05/19/2020 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA*

AGENDA

No members of the public will be allowed in the BOCC Chambers due to concerns for public safety
resulting from the COVID-19 emergency and pursuant to the Governor of Nevada’s Declaration of
Emergency Directive 006 Section 1 which suspends the requirement in NRS 241.023(1)(b) that there be

a physical location designated for meetings of public bodies where members of the public are permitted
to attend and participate.

Further, due to the Governor’s mandated steps to protect against the spread of COVID-19, the Storey
County Board of County Commissioners are hosting a teleconference meeting this month. Members

of the public who wish to attend the meeting remotely, may do so by accessing the following meeting
on Zoom.com. Public comment may be made by communication through zoom.

*Join Zoom Meeting;: https://zoom.us/j/597519448 Meeting ID: 597 519 448

Dial by your location

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

+1 253 215 8782 US

+1 301 715 8592 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
Meeting I1D: 597 519 448
Find your local number: https:/ /zoom.us/u/adi9WjdtNr

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969.

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY

JAY CARMONA
VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County




Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.
All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member
of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed,
and acted upon separately during this meeting. Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the
agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for
consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the
time allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 9:30 A.M.
Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring
with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey
County Sheriff’s Office Employee Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will begin at
9:30 a.m.

2 CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for May 19, 2020

5 DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Meeting Minutes for April 9, 2020

6. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $1,180,411.14

I[I  For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. Bergelectric - Helix JV II - Contractor/3182 Lionshead Ave ~ Carlsbad, CA

Il For possible action, approval of the update to Storey County Administrative
Policies and Procedures 610 - Emergency Conditions/ Disaster Leave, 503 -
Overtime Compensation.

IV For possible action, approval of Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to the
Unsecured Tax Roll

. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of modification and extension of 2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees’
Association/Nevada Association of Police and Sheriff’s Officers (NAPSO).

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Regarding Resolution No. 20-570 Granting the Historic Fourth Ward School Museum, a non-
profit entity, a sum not to exceed $120,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Historic
Fourth Ward School Museum, a County-owned building and for the purpose of preserving
the Fourth Ward School Building and for promoting the history of the Comstock and Storey
County.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Regarding Resolution No. 20-571 Granting the Community Chest, Inc. the sum of $259,500.00
for specific purpose of funding health and human services programs.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Regarding Resolution No. 20-572 Granting the St. Mary’s Art Center, a non-profit entity, a
sum not to exceed $100,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the St. Mary’s Art Center, a
County-owned building and supporting arts and culture through education and cultural
offerings.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Regarding Resolution No. 20-573 Granting the Storey County Senior Citizens Center the sum
of $386,240.00 for the purpose of maintain the Storey County Senior Center and for providing
programs and services to seniors to promote independent and healthy lifestyles.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Regarding Resolution No. 20-574 Granting the Mark Twain Community Center a sum not to
exceed $25,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Mark Twain Community Center and for
community outreach and improvement.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Regarding Resolution No. 20-575 Granting Liberty Engine Company No. 1 Inc. a sum not to
exceed $10,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Comstock Fireman’s Museum and its
historic contents.




16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Regarding Resolution No. 20-576 Granting the Storey County Jeep Posse the sum of
$10,000.00 for the purpose of renovating the historic Ice House on Toll Road in Virginia City,
Nevada and for providing assistance to sick and injured persons in the community in need of
such financial assistance.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Bill No. 120, Ordinance 20-309, providing for
whistleblower protections as required by AB 274 of the 2019 Legislative Session.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Enter into Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and Storey County School District for
the use and maintenance of Miner’s Park Baseball Field, amendment to water meter at
Virginia City High School, and termination of existing Land Plot Lease Agreement between
the parties for use and maintenance of Mine’s Park Baseball Field.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Amendments to Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and the Nevada Commission
for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway (Railway) regarding fund creation and
management, budgeting, accounting, processing, and related staffing practices and
responsibilities to manage funds of the Railway by Storey County, and other properly related
matters.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2020-2021 Storey County Final Budget for submission to
the Department of Taxation.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2020-2021 474 Fire District Final Budget for submission
to the Department of Taxation.

RECESS TO RECONVNE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER/SEWER BOARD
DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2020-2021 Water/Sewer Final Budget for submission to
the Department of Taxation.




25. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS
26.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of business license second readings:
A. Dispatch Health - Professional /85 Kirkman Ave ~ Reno, NV
B. Global Industrial Systems Inc. - Out of County /3403 Ridgecrest Dr. ~ Reno,
NV
C. GNOVA Ventures LLC - Out of County/3403 Ridgecrest Dr. ~ Reno, NV
D. Mitchell Labs - Out of County /7707 Bequette Ave./Pico Rivera, CA
27.  PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
28. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

[tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family / parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:




(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 05/13/2020; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By M&f h.0 A,
Vanessa Stephens Clerk/Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/19/20 (9:30 a.m.) Estimate of time required: 20 min.
Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ | Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

('S

5

6.

. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of

conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will
begin at 9:30 a.m.

. Recommended motion. No action

. Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: County Manager Telephone: 775.847.0968
. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing bargaining agreements between the

Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Association and the Storey County Board of
County Commissioners, the bargaining agreements are proposed to be modified as
tentatively agreed between the parties.

Supporting materials: Provided at meeting. The meeting will occur by Zoom teleconference.

Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: n/a Fund: Comptroller

. Legal review required:

District Attorney

. Reviewed byv:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
(@ County Manager Other agency review:

. Board action:
[ ] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/19/2020 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

ik

. Title: Approval of minutes for April 9, 2020

2

. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney

8. Revie by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ ] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No. 5



STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING
THURSDAY, APRIL 9, 2020 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JAY CARMONA
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL via zoom: Chairman McBride, Vice Chairman Carmona, Commissioner Gilman,
County Manager Austin Osborne, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Clerk-Treasurer
Vanessa Stephens, Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis, Community Relations Director
Lara Mather, Administrative Officer Jen Chapman, Tami Cooper-Migan, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro,
Interim Recorder Marney Hansen-Martinez, Communications Director Dave Ballard, Senior
Planner Kathy Canfield

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 9, 2020.
County Manager Austin Osborne requested item #6 be continued to June 2, 2020, and item #4 be
moved after item#13.

Public Comment: None

Motion: | move to approve the Agenda for April 9, 2020, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

5. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment):
Chairman McBride:

e Storey County is still holding strong. Please keep social distancing as directed by the
Governor, and hand washing. Check on your neighbors. The more we stay home, the faster we
will get through this pandemic.

1




6. DISCUSSION ONLY/NO ACTION: Switch Presentation to Virginia City Silver Circuits FIRST
Robotics.
Continued to June 2, 2020.

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2020-012 is a request to operate a two-
room bed and breakfast inn within an existing residence in the R1 - Residential Zone. The property
owners will occupy the residence, and two bedrooms, along with common rooms, will be available
for guests. Parking for the inn will be provided onsite. The subject property is located at 120 N
Howard, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-023-06.

Kathy Canfield, Senior Planner, reviewed applicants’ request for a two-room bed and breakfast,
including 4 on-site parking spaces. Neighbors contacted are in support of the project. Two conditions
were added by the Planning Commission - applicant is okay with both conditions. Staff recommends
approval; the Planning Commission voted 6 to 0 in favor of the project.

Applicant Michele Buchman present on the phone to answer questions.

Chairman McBride thanked Ms. Buchman for attending via audio. There are a few bed and breakfast
facilities in Virginia City and they are most always successful. In a residential area, the concern is
always the quality of life for neighbors. In the past, there have been property owners who leased out
property for weekends without permits or permission, who had loud music and property damage.
With this Special Use Permit, you will be held to a higher standard than with a general business
license. Keep in mind neighbors and not obstructing access to properties. We wish you success with
your bed and breakfast.

Ms. Buchman thanked the Commissioners. It is the intention to run a legitimate, licensed, safe bed
and breakfast and we are working closely with owners of the other B & B’s in town.

Public Comment: None

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:
This approval is for Special Use Permit 2020-012 to operate a two-room bed and breakfast inn
within an existing residence in the R1- Residential zone. The property owners will occupy the
residence and two bedrooms, along with common rooms, will be available for guests. Parking
for the inn will be provided onsite. The subject property is located at 120 N. Howard, Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-023-06.

The proposed project complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of
the county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted, or
under consideration pursuant to official notice by the county.

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will be
compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses, or will
perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the surrounding land uses,
community, and neighborhood.




The proposed project will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent
property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements,
public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general
welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the
implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any
other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to an
official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide
growth and development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose no
undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by the
county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the county.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Ophir
Neighborhood Area Specific Plan portion of Virginia City in which the subject property is
located. A discussion supporting this finding is provided in Section 2.D of this staff report and
the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
of Storey County Code Section 17.03, 17.12 General Provisions, and 17.16 R1 Residential.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Jay Carmona,
move to approve Special Use Permit 2020-012, operation of a two-room bed and breakfast inn within
an existing residence in the R1 - residential zone. The property owners will occupy the residence and
two bedrooms with common rooms, will be available for guests. Parking for the inn will be provided
onsite. The subject property is located at 120 N. Howard, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and
having Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-023-06, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Parcel Map 2020-013 is proposed to create two parcels from
one previously consolidated parcel. Originally, the land in question was two individual parcels of
land. The two original parcels were consolidated into one legal lot of record in 2013. This Parcel map
will divide the consolidated parcel into two individual parcels, returning the land to two parcels. The
property is located at 140 South Q Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and having
Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-257-08.

Ms. Canfield explained this item is to create two parcels from a previously consolidated parcel at 140
South Q Street. Each parcel will more than meet than minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet. The
northern parcel has a residence; an application has been submitted for a new residence on the
southern parcel. Notice was sent to adjacent property owners with no response. Staff recommends
approval; Planning Commission voted 6-0 for approval.

Public Comment: None




Ms. Canfield read the findings of fact:
This approval is for Parcel Map 2020-013 to create two parcels from one previously
consolidated parcel. Originally, the land in question was two individual parcels of land. The
two original parcels were consolidated into one legal lot of record in 2013. This Parcel map
will divide the consolidated parcel into two individual parcels, returning the land to two
parcels. The property is located at 140 South Q Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-257-08.

The Parcel Map complies with NRS 278.461 through 278.469 relating to the division of land
into four or less parcels.

The Parcel Map complies with all Federal, Nevada State, and County regulations pertaining to
Parcel Maps and allowed land uses.

The Parcel Map will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting
properties or the surrounding vicinity.

The conditions under this Parcel Map do not conflict with the minimum requirements in
Storey County Code Chapters 17.16 R1 Residential Zones or any other Federal, Nevada State,
or County regulations.

The Parcel Map conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Silver Star
Neighborhood Area Specific Plan area of Virginia City in which the subject property is located.
A discussion supporting this finding for the special use permit is provided in Section 2.C of
this staff report.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the
Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Jay Carmona,
move to approve Parcel Map 2020-013 to create two parcels from one previously consolidated

parcel. Originally, the land in question was two individual parcels of land. The two original parcels
were consolidated into one legal lot of record in 2013. This Parcel map will divide the consolidated
parcel into two individual parcels, returning the land to two parcels. The property is located at 140
South Q Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and having Assessor’s Parcel Number 001-257-
08, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Bill 115, Ordinance 20-304, text amendments
to Storey County Code Title 17 Administrative Provisions to clarify and modify language, and align
to NRS noticing requirements in section 17.03.050, 17.03.060, 17.03.070 and 17.03.080.

Ms. Canfield said Items 9, 10, 11, and 12 are proposed amendments to Title 17. There have been 13
public hearings at Planning Commission meetings since 2018. In that time, most topics have been
covered. There are applicants waiting for some of the changes.

This Bill 115, clarifies and modifies language to match Nevada Revised Statutes. Staff and the
Planning Commission recommend approval of the changes to 17.03.




Public Comment: None

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, [, Jay
Carmona, move to approve the first reading of Bill 115, Ordinance 20-304, text amendments to Storey
County Code Title 17 Administrative Provisions to clarify and modify language, and align to NRS
noticing requirements in section 17.03.050, 17.03.060, 17.03.070 and 17.03.080,

Ms. Canfield read the title: Ordinance 20-304, Bill No. 115, an Ordinance amending Storey County
Code Title 17 Administrative Provisions to clarify and modify language, and align to NRS noticing
requirements in section 17.03.050, 17.03.060, 17.03.070 and 17.03.080,

Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Bill 116, Ordinance 20-305, text
amendments to Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning adding, modifying, clarifying, elaborating upon,
and consolidating land use and other terms and definitions in Chapter 17.10 Definitions and as those
terms and definitions apply to and within all regulatory zones and all other provisions in the zoning
ordinance. Terms include Animal Boarding and Grooming, Beekeeping, Crisis Care Facility,
Equestrian Establishments, Veterinary Services and Wild Animal Keeping,.

Ms. Canfield explained this is the definition chapter of the Zoning Code. This item consolidates and
clarifies topics that have been questioned. New definitions and clarifications have been added for
Animal Boarding and Grooming, Beekeeping, Crisis Care Facility, Equestrian Establishments,
Veterinary Services and Wild Animal Keeping.

Language was also added to the definition of recreational vehicle parks. The definition of veterinary
services has been clarified.

Staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval.
Public Comment: None

Ms. Canfield read the title: Bill 116, Ordinance 20-305, an ordinance amending Storey County Code
Title 17 Zoning adding, modifying, clarifying, elaborating upon, and consolidating land use and
other terms and definitions in Chapter 17.10 Definitions, and as those terms and definitions

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, [, Jay
Carmona, move to approve the first reading of Bill 116, Ordinance 20-305 text amendments to Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning adding, modifying, clarifying, elaborating upon, and consolidating land
use and other terms and definitions in Chapter 17.10 Definitions, and as those terms and definitions
apply to and within all regulatory zones and all other provisions in the zoning ordinance. Terms
include Animal Boarding and Grooming, Beekeeping, Crisis Care Facility, Equestrian Establishments,
Veterinary Services and Wild Animal Keeping, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)




11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Bill 117, Ordinance 20-306 Text
amendments to Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning Chapter 17.12 General Provisions adding,
modifying and clarifying provision within the chapter including home enterprises, height of
buildings and structures, accessory buildings and shipping containers, accessory dwellings,
Comstock Historic District standards, setback encroachments, perimeter fencing, public utility uses,
minimum lot area, off-street parking, open storage, general provisions for all zones including crisis
care and wireless communications facilities, and property located within mapped FEMA floodplain.

Ms. Canfield said the proposed amendments are to home enterprises - making it more realistic for
uses; communication facility heights in the industrial/commercial have been clarified at 75 feet;, and
accessory building and shipping containers language has been modified and streamlined. There
were discussions about the usage of shipping containers - what they can/cannot be used for.
Language regarding plumbing in shipping containers has been taken out. Accessory dwelling
requirements have been revised, including the size requirement. Requirements regarding
replacement of the boardwalk when needed, and where the boardwalk stops and ends, have been
revised. Additional language and uses were reviewed and modified. Language was added stating
property within a mapped FEMA floodplain requires a permit.

The Planning Commission reviewed these amendments and recommended approval. Staff also
recommends approval.

Mr. Osborne commented that the goal was to de-regulate, clarify, and make it easier. One item was
“mother-in-law quarters”, which have been limited to 1,000 feet. There was discussion on whether to
reduce or eliminate that requirement. If there were two large homes on one parcel, what would
happen if the property sold. The current 1,000 sq. foot limitation maintains the purpose of “mother-
in-law quarters”. The problem is there could be a great idea for a bigger house which the code does
not allow - sometimes creating friction. This is up to the Board.

Commissioner Gilman feels that a cap of 1,000 (sq. feet) is not in the best interests of good planning,
and is happy this is being looked at. He does not have a suggestion of what the answer is.

Mr. Osborne clarified the Planning Commission would like to remove the 1,000 sq. foot limit. Is
Commissioner Gilman okay with that?

Commissioner Gilman said he absolutely agrees.

Chairman McBride commented he is not opposed to removing the cap but is not in favor of having
two - 2,000 square foot houses on a parcel that should have only one. This has to be looked at.
Removing the prohibition of having plumbing in a storage container means someone could set up a
house. Is this correct?

Ms. Canfield: This would be similar to what an accessory structure could do already -like a garage or
a shop building and you wanted a sink in the building. Currently, you could not do this in a
shipping container, which is not considered an accessory dwelling. This is discussed in a different
section.




Chairman McBride: If you take the prohibition off plumbing, you’re going to have people living in
storage containers - this is not the direction we want to go.

Mr. Osborne: These are valid concerns, whether it’s a tool shed or a shipping container, or whatever.
One purpose of this amendment is to reduce conflicts between the zoning ordinance and building
codes. This proposal is to treat all accessory buildings the same and to make sure they don’t become
accessory dwellings with a full bathroom and kitchen. This is with the exception that there are zones
that would not allow shipping containers at all.

Commissioner Gilman said it is his understanding that shipping containers can be converted into
workspaces, or accessory facility, and in the interests of health, have a bathroom or sink. There is
language that would preclude conversion to residential use. This can be controlled within the
county.

Mr. Osborne: That is correct.

Public Comment:

Clay Mitchell, Gold Hill resident: Compliments staff and the Planning Commission for their efforts
in streamlining these regulations - making sure it’s in line with all other regulations. His one concern
is supporting affordability and access to housing - including the deed restriction for mother-in-law
units in some zones. He would like to see the possibility of opening accessory dwellings, in the right
situation, to be used as a rental to support housing affordability.

Ms. Canfield read the title: Bill No. 117, Ordinance 20-306 an ordinance amending Storey County
Title 17 Zoning Chapter 17.12 General Provisions adding, modifying and clarifying provisions within
the chapter including home enterprises, height of buildings and structures, accessory buildings and
shipping containers, accessory dwellings, Comstock Historic District standards, setback
encroachments, perimeter fencing, public utility uses, minimum lot area, off-street parking, open
storage, general provisions for all zones including crisis care and wireless communications facilities,
and property located within mapped FEMA floodplain.

In response to concerns regarding the language for plumbing in shipping containers, Ms. Canfield
suggested leaving the current language which states “must not include plumbing fixtures”. This may
be something for discussion in the future.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, I, Jay
Carmona, move to approve the first reading of Bill 117, Ordinance 20-306 Text amendments to Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning Chapter 17.12 General Provisions adding, modifying and clarifying
provisions within the chapter including home enterprises, height of buildings and structures,
accessory buildings and shipping containers, accessory dwellings, Comstock Historic District
standards, setback encroachments, perimeter fencing, public utility uses, minimum lot area, off-street
parking, open storage, general provisions for all zones including crisis care and wireless
communications facilities, and property located within mapped FEMA floodplain, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Bill 118, Ordinance 20-307, text
amendments to Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning Districts CR Commercial-Residential; C
Commercial; R1 Single-Family, R2 Multi-Family Residential; E Estate; F Forestry; A Agriculture; I1
Light Industrial and 12 Heavy Industrial; NR Natural Resources and SPR Special Planning Review
zones. Additions, modifications, elimination, and clarification including the listed land uses
minimum floor area, setbacks, minimum parcel area, distances between buildings and home
enterprises are proposed.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution No. 20-568 to reduce on a day-to-day prorated
basis the total rent/lease of all “non-essential” commercial tenants of properties owned by Storey
County effective the day of Governor Sisolak’s Directive 003 (March 20, 2020) to remain closed, and
for the rent reduction to remain effective until “non-essential” businesses may reopen to the public
per the Governor, but not to exceed 60 calendar days from Directive 003.

Mr. Osborne explained the Governor’s Directive of March 20t, recommending commercial property
landowners give breaks to tenants during the 30 to 60 day closure of non-essential businesses. The
County is “landlord” for two locations - the Old Corner Bar and Divide Fitness. Per the Governor’s
directive, it is recommended to forgive rent for both tenants on a pro rata basis, depending on how
long the closure lasts, but no longer than 60 calendar days from the directive.

Commissioner Gilman said he is in favor of this and feels it is appropriate since, as a government
entity, (the County) is going to require businesses to close and they will not be creating revenue.

Vice Chairman Carmona applauds any property owner who foregoes rent. An option in this case
would be to allow these tenants a 12-month period to pay the back rent. There are a lot of merchants
in the same “lurch”. If they (Old Corner Bar and Divide Fitness) are unable to make payments after
12 months, the period could be extended.

Commissioner Gilman commented the difference here is independent landlords who have the choice
of leaving rent in place or doing an eviction - which can’t be done now. In this case, the landlord is
Storey County - the government entity of Storey County is requiring these businesses to close and
requiring payment of rents is over-exerting power. He is not comfortable in Storey County collecting
rents when (the County) has joined other governments in forcing these closures.

Vice Chairman Carmona understands this position. This is taxpayer’s money - other businesses are
suffering and would enjoy having rent forgiven as well.

Chairman McBride said it is incumbent on landlords to work with tenants. He feels charging
someone rent when they are closed by government, would be punitive.

Public Comment: None

Motion, I, Lance Gilman, motion to approve Resolution 20-568, to reduce on a day-to-day prorated

basis, the total rent lease of all non-essential and commercial rent from properties owned by Storey

County, effective the day of Governor Sisolak’s Directive 003, March 20, 2020, to remain closed, and
for the rent reduction remain effective until non-essential businesses may re-open to the public per

the Governor, but not to exceed 60 days from March 20, 2020. This action is exclusive to the Old

8




Corner Bar and Divide Fitness commercial tenants of Storey County, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2, Nay=1))

4. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Lara Mather, Community Relations Coordinator:

e The Senior Center is doing drive-through meals; “meals on wheels”- meal boxes are available
for every senior citizen and will be delivered to their home. Contact the Senior Center.

* Seniors who are uncomfortable leaving their homes can call the Senior Center who will do
their shopping.

e Mark Twain Community Center is doing food outreach for the community. Time cards are
made up for people to pick up their food boxes.

» St. Mary’s Art Center is conducting an art project for children. Comstock children (all ages)
are encouraged to create one to two pieces of artwork sharing their experiences, feelings about
every they are going through at this time. St. Mary’s is working with the Cemetery
Association and volunteers - any artwork that is done on textile/cloth will be put together in a
quilt to be displayed at a later time. Additional information on St. Mary’s webpage and
facebook page.

Joe Curtis, Emergency Management Director:

» As of today, there are 18 active cases in the Quad County. Carson City - 10; Douglas County -
5; Lyon County - 3. Nine recovered.

¢ The County is in good shape with personal protective equipment (PPE). The Fire Department
has the stock of all of these items.

e The Tesla warehouse has started receiving ventilators and PPE. The National Guard is
patrolling that facility.

» Incidents of people trying to steal masks have been reported. Make sure to keep yours
protected.

¢ Quad County health group are receiving flu test kits and will set up areas for testing. Further
information will be provided.

Commissioner Gilman thanked Mr. Curtis for all he is doing in this situation.

Austin Osborne, County Manager:
» Reinforces what has been said about the Storey County team - and is so grateful to work in a
county like this where the team all come to the plate to keep us moving forward.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First Reading of Bill 118, Ordinance 20-307, text
amendments to Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning Districts CR Commercial-Residential; C
Commercial; R1 Single-Family, R2 Multi-Family Residential; E Estate; F Forestry; A Agriculture; I1
Light Industrial and 12 Heavy Industrial; NR Natural Resources and SPR Special Planning Review
zones. Additions, modifications, elimination, and clarification including the listed land uses
minimum floor area, setbacks, minimum parcel area, distances between buildings and home
enterprises are proposed.

Senior Planner Kathy Canfield requested this item be continued to June 2, 2020. This will allow for
discussion of this item at the May 21, 2020 Planning Commission meeting.

9




Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, make a motion to move item #12 to the June 2"d meeting, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

14. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Tami Migan, owner of the Corner Bar: Thank you Chairman McBride, Commissioner Gilman, and
Mr. Osborne for assistance on Item #13.

15. ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA
The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 11:13 AM

Respectfully submitted,

By: .!‘ 'l / Uw 6

Vanessa Stephens Clerk+Treasurer

10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/19/2020 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

(3]

6.

1. For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $1,180,411.14

. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

. Prepared by: V Stephens

Department: Clerk/Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

. Supporting materials: Attached

Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: NA Fund: NA ~ NA__ Comptroller

. Legal review required:

~NA_ District Attorney

. Revie by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller
_ County Manager Other agency review:
. Board action:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[] Approved
[ ] Denied

—_——

Agenda Item No. ‘OI



Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 4/13/2020-4/26/2020

Packet: PRPKT00708 - 2020-05-01 Payroll SL
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type ~ Count ~ Amount
Regular Checks 3 3,182.12
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 157 328,776.32
Total 160 331,958.44

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date

4/29/2020 3:49:04 PM Page 8 of 8



Check Register

Packet: APPKT01886 - 2020-05-08 AP Payments cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
404671 PORTER GROUP LLC 05/08/2020 EFT 0.00 6,000.00 10103
100135 ALSCO INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 245.88 99234
403651 ARC HEALTH AND WELLNESS 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 210.00 99235
99663 AT&T MOBILITY Il LLC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 125.94 99236
405786 B & B Collision Incorporated 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 5,168.00 99237
405805 Blevins, Robert 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 250.00 99238
404181 Board of Comissioners 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 148,630.49 99239
100422 BOB BARKER COMPANY INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 93.01 99240
405388 Boyer, Bryce 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 150.00 99241
100476 BURTON'S FIRE INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 595.04 99242
99763 CANYON GENERAL IMPROVEMENT | 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 52.50 99243
404734 CARSON CITY TOWING 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 2,000.00 99244
405831 Carson Now LLC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 250.00 99245
404216 CARSON VALLEY OIL CO INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 697.98 99246
99720 CASELLE INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 202.00 99247
100597 CASHMAN EQUIPMENT CORP 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 363.53 99248
405519 Cigna Health and Life Insurance Conm 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 23,999.87 99249
405357 City of Carson 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 467.88 99250
100505 CITY OF CARSON TREASURER 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 30.00 99251
405134 CMC TIRE INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 5,205.40 99252
404809 COARD PSYCHOLOGICAL 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 1,000.00 99253
404868 COMPLETE DOCUM MNGMNT SOL  05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 6,510.00 99254
403990 COMSTOCK CEMETERY FOUNDAT  05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 60.00 99255
99652 COMSTOCK CHRONICLE (VC) 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 70.13 99256
404466 DAIOHS USA INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 764.00 99257
405833 Dalton, Lacy J 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 250.00 99258
405699 Digital Technology Solutions, Inc 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 250.00 99259
403722 DPBH-ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 8,327.01 99260
404124 DRIVELINE SERVICE INC REN 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 1,121.65 99261
404547 ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 4,994.08 99262
**Void** 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 0.00 99263
405484 Evident 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 117.00 99264
403835 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS, INC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 67.68 99265
403216 FARR WEST ENGINEERING 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 25,563.04 99266
404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 242,55 99267
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 1,982.56 99268
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 265.38 99269
404640 GLADDING, EDWARD A. 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 1,525.50 99270
101899 GRAINGER 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 80.45 99271
103470 GREAT BASIN TERMITE & PES 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 135.00 99272
405784 Greene, Jeanne 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 3,970.00 99273
404778 HAT, LTD 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 2,728.32 99274
102983 HD SUPPLY FACIL MAINT LTD 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 74.24 99275
403040 HENRY SCHEIN 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 1,412.91 99276
403105 HOSE & FITTINGS ETC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 112.76 99277
102564 HYDRAULIC INDUSTRIAL SERV 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 204.03 99278
405743 Ing Consulting, Inc. 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 880.00 99279
100978 INTERSTATE OIL CO 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 896.49 99280
405726 iT1 Consulting, LLC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 3,552.08 99281
403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 1,758.89 99282
403692 JAMSAB REALTY CORP 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 12,375.00 99283
405517 Lakes Crossing Center-State of Neva 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 700.00 99284
404091 LEWIS, DEBORAH PRINCE 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 300.00 99285
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 05/08/2020 Regular 0.00 2,300.00 99286

5/8/2020 8:27:13 AM Page 1 of 4



Check Register

Vendor Number
102751
404363
405832
404136
403629
405498
101228
101226
101226
403317
101969
404940
403632
101269
101362
405825
102782
103220
405127
404746
404556
405592
404853
403874
103032
403329
404398
402937
404863
103063
10026
103241
101210
405081
101630

101632
405804
403480
403384
404195
101717
101726
101745
405475
404871
101229
404615
102311
403225
405112
403728
101845
405574
103080
404258
103237
404709

Vendor Name

LYON CO COMPTROLLER

MA LABORATORIES INC

Marsh, Katelyn

MCELLISTREM, JOSEPH E

MIGAN, TAMARA

National Elevator Inspection Service
NEV ADMIN BLDG & GROUNDS
NEV COMPTROLLER

NEV COMPTROLLER

NEV DEPT PUBLIC SAFETY

NEV HUMAN RESOURCES

NEV HUMAN RESOURCES, LV
NEVADA BLUE LTD (RNO)
NEVADA LEGAL SERVICE INC
Nextel of California

NTC, a Limited Liabiltiy Co.

OFFICE DEPOT INC

ON THE SIDE GRAPHICS & SIGNS, LL!
O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
OUTFRONT MEDIA LLC

Outside Television, Inc.

PEAS & CARROTS CHILD CARE
POULIN, CHRIS

POWERPLAN

PROTECTION DEVICES INC

RAD STRATEGIES INC

RAY MORGAN CO INC (CA)
REFUSE, INC

RESERVE ACCOQUNT

RUPPCO INC

SBC GLOBAL SERVICES IN LD

SBC GLOBAL SERVICES INC
SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC
SIERRA PACIFIC POWER CO
'.Void‘*

SIERRA PEST CONTROL INC
Silvercreek Tire LLC

SLICK INDUSTRIES LLC DBA
SMITHS FOOD & DRUG CENTER
SOUTHERN GLAZERS WINE & S

ST CO SCHOOL DISTRICT

ST CO SENIOR CENTER(VC)

ST CO WATER SYSTEM

Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc
STAR2STAR COMMUNICATIONS, LL(
State of Nevada

THE ANTOS AGENCY
THORNDAL,ARMSTRONG, DELK,
TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

UNITED SITE SERVICES OF NEVADA
US POSTOFFICE (VC)

Washoe County Forensic Science Dix
WATERS SEPTIC TANK SV DBA
WELCH, JOSEPH

WESTERN ENVIRONMENTAL LAB
ZACH LYON CREATIVE, INC

Payment Date
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020
05/08/2020

Payment Type

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Discount Amount

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Payment Amount

4,305.00
251.04
500.00

4,200.00

49.97

1,107.80

4,401.49

4,071.00
246.00

1,247.80

8,601.92

1,999.25
100.00
755.00
167.69
450.00

15.99
100.00
256.65

1,172.50
655.97
350.00
100.00

75.00
52.88
464.85
8,200.00
17.11
660.43
300.00
184.00
318.57
153.19
456.00
11,493.52
0.00
55.00
72.09
57.00
633.19
1,265.10
134,927.88

5,099.09

3,597.64
160.55

2,455.37

30.00
346.25
320.00
414.82

14,225.57
978.39
200.00
198.00
740.00
400.00
168.05
3,000.00

Packet: APPKT01886-2020-05-08 AP Payments cw

Number
99287
99288
99289
99290
99291
99292
99293
99294
99295
99296
99297
99298
99299
99300
99301
99302
99303
99304
99305
99306
99307
99308
99309
99310
99311
99312
99313
99314
99315
99316
99317
99318
99319
99320
99321
99322
99323
99324
99325
99326
99327
99328
99329
99330
99331
99332
99333
99334
99335
99336
99337
99338
99339
99340
99341
99342
99343
99344

5/8/2020 8:27:13 AM

Page 2 of 4



A
.¢heck Register Packet: APPKT01886-2020-05-08 AP Payments cw

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount Number
404295 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD 05/08/2020 Bank Draft 0.00 §,172.15 DFT0000517
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 200 109 0.00 500,152.88
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 2 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 22 1 0.00 8,172.15
EFT's 1 1 0.00 6,000.00
223 113 0.00 514,325.03

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date

5/8/2020 8:27:13 AM Page 3 of 4



heck Register Packet: APPKT01886-2020-05-08 AP Payments cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 5/2020 ) f)}i,BZS.O%
514,325.03

5/8/2020 8:27:13 AM Page 4 of 4



Check Register

Packet: APPKT01854 - 2020-05-01 PR Payment SL

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405456 Public Employees Retirement 04/29/2020 EFT 0.00 86,403.69
300007 USAA 529 College Savings Plans 04/29/2020 EFT 0.00 50.00
300003 AFLAC 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 1,217.08 99218
300008 AFSCME Union 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 593.40 99219
405610 California State Dishursement Unit  05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 291.69 99220
405519 Cigna Health and Life Insurance Con 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 130,790.19 99221
**Void** 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 0.00 99222
300001 Colonial Life & Accident 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 103.38 99223
404704 DVM INSURANCE AGENCY 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 64.65 99224
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 1,355.66 99225
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 730.71 99226
300011 Nevada State Treasurer 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 4.00 99227
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEN 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 46.66 99228
300010 State Collection & Disbursement Un 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 197.70 99229
300006 Storey Co Fire Fighters Assoc 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 1,250.00 99230
404639 VOYA RETIREMENT INS 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 7,942.50 99231
300005 Washington National Ins 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 518.99 99232
300002 Western Insurance Specialties 05/01/2020 Regular 0.00 375.27 99233

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 31 15 0.00 145,481.88
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 1 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 4 2 0.00 86,453.69

35 18 0.00 231,935.57

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairma iSsi
n Commissioner Commissioner
Comptroller
Date
Treasurer
Date

4/30/2020 10:25:20 AM Page 1 of 2



Check Register Packet: APPKT01854-2020-05-01 PR Payment SL

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 4/2020 86,453.69
999 Pooled Cash Account 5/2020 o 145,481.88

231,935.57

4/30/2020 10:25:20 AM Page 2 of 2



Check Register

Packet: APPKT01855 - 2020-05-01 PERs 715 SL

By Check Number

fendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
lank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
05456 Public Employees Retirement 05/01/2020 EFT 0.00 35,658.11 10102

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 2 1 0.00 35,658.11

2 1 0.00 35,658.11

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date

4/30/2020 11:29:34 AM Page 1 of 2



Che;;k Register Packet: APPKT01855-2020-05-01 PERs 715 SL

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 5/2020 3565811
35,658.11

4/30/2020 11:29:34 AM Page 2 of 2



1 jo 1 abed

Wd 62:€£€:P 020Z/62/v

‘hm.hwn.c.n L9°£82°01 000 00°0 000 L9°L8LOT
£9°£8L'01 L9°£8L°01 000 00°0 000 L9°L8L°0T

000tL'T

00°0L

00'Sve

00°s¢

00'Sy

00°06€

L9°TLT'8
£9°(8L'0T L9°£8L°0T 000 000 000 £9°£8L°0T
L9°L8L0T L9°LBLOT 000 000 000 19°L8L°0T

unowy 1sig
uawAhed 19N unoasiqg Xe| Suyddiys junowy

0Z0Z/10/S0 - 0Z0Z/10/S0 @buey 33eg JuawAied
- abuey ajeq buiisod

awepn Jopuap Ag
1oday A103SIH Jopudp

:|eyo) yoday (1) :stopuap

:siopudp Ajuno) Aasois- T w0l (1) isiopuap

suj-aJi4
suj-siadid
SUI-DLDOA
SUl-1MS
SUl-IIMm
sul-spy
s3JueInsu|
0z0Z/1/sS

awepN Junony
ajeq uawAed

000-9056Z-052

000-90S6Z-T€Z
000-90562-0€C
000-90562-0ET
000-90562-060
000-9056¢7-020
000-90562-100 £9°£8L'0T 000 000 suonN@UIUO) YSH
£150000L4Q 0z0Z/1/S SUOIINQUIUO) YSH ZSBOTOOANI
21a4 s3quiay Hueg wmdQ - bZySOY
siopuap Ajuno) Aa103§ - T 1195 JOPUBA
JaquinN Junoddy wunowy adld syun uopduasaq way)
RPqunp juawied 60T 21eQ 1504 uonduasag Jaqunp ajqeAed




Check Register

Packet: APPKT01852 - 2020-04-28 PERS H. Gallagher
Retirement cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEN 04/28/2020 Regular 0.00 55,746.32 99217

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks . 1 1 0.00 55,746.32
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 0 oo0 000

1 1 0.00 55,746.32

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
Comptroller Date
Treasurer Date

4/28/2020 10:25:43 AM

Page 1 of 2



Check Register Packet: APPKT01852-2020-04-28 PERS H. Gallagher Retirement cw
/

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 4/2020 ~ 55746.32
55,746.32

4/28/2020 10:25:43 AM Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05-19-2020 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) [ move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Ashley Mead
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally approved

on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next Commissioner’s
meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
__ District Attorney

g ‘ Department Name: Community Development

Other agency revicw:

. Reviewed by:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
o el

Agenda [tem No. \O IE



Storey County Community Bevelopment

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

May 10, 2020

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office

Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email
Fr: Ashley Mead
Please add the following item(s) to the May 19, 2020 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:
A. Bergelectric-Helix JV II — Contractor / 3182 Lionshead Ave ~ Carlsbad, CA
Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office

Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Storey County Administrative Policies and
Procedures 610 — Emergency Conditions/Disaster Leave, 503 — Overtime Compensation.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff an in conformance with the Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures, I (Commissioner) motion to approve the
amendments to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures 610 Emergency
Conditions/Disaster Leave and 503 Overtime Compensation.

3. Prepared by: Jen Chapman
Department: Administration/Human Resources Telephone: (775) 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement and manage the personnel program on a consistent basis. These
policies and procedures require that review and necessary updates occur every five ycars or
otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosure, Storey County Administrative Policy 610 & 503

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government
Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
__District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

-

e ﬁ'}l;,__ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— r—
[ S —

Agenda Item No. [ Tﬂ_



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 503
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08

REVISED: 4-05-11/01-02-
18/05-19-2020

AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: AO

SUBJECT: Overtime Compensation

1. PURPOSE: Provide Guidelines for Eligible for Overtime

2. POLICY:

2.1 Non-Exempt Employees

a. Except as provide below, employees in positions designated as “non-exempt” will be
eligible for overtime compensation as follows:

1.

Employees whose normal work schedule is 8 hours a day will receive overtime
compensation for hours worked in excess of 8 hours in a day and in excess of 40
hours in a week.

Employees whose alternative normal work schedule is between 8 and 10 hours in
a day will receive overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of 10 hours
in a day and in excess of 40 hours in a week.

Employees who request and are approved for a variable workday or variable 80-
hour work period (peace officers and/or line firefighters only) as provided in NRS
281.100 will receive overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of the bi-
weekly work period as allowed under Section 207(k) of the FLSA.

Employees whose hours are established by collective bargaining agreement will
receive overtime accordingly, but not in violation of the NRS or Fair Labor

Standards Act.

b. Per NRS 281.100 and the Section 207(k) of the Fair Labor Standards Act, employees
working as firefighters, peace officers, jailers/corrections officers, or sheriff’s deputies
with a formalized policy or agreement with the employer, may work longer
workweeks or workdays.

1.

Employers of peace officers, jailers/corrections officers, or sheriff’s deputies
may establish in-writing a work period of 171 hours within a 28-day period.

Employers of firefighters may establish in-writing a work period of 212 hours
within a 28-day period.

For peace officers, jailers/corrections officers, sheriff’s deputies, and firefighters,
these work periods must be established as regularly occurring and by an
affirmative statement by the employer that such a work period is established.

If the biweekly work period for peace officers, jailers/corrections officers,
sheriff’s deputies, or firefighters is not established, these employees are subject
to overtime compensation after 40 hours worked in a 7 day week per NRS
281.100 and the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Page 1 of 4



All overtime hours must be specifically authorized in advance by the department head.
Overtime will be compensated at 1.5 times the employee’s regular rate of pay. An
employee’s regular rate includes all payments made by the employer to the employee.
Examples of payments to be included in calculating the regular rate are on-call pay,
shift differential, hazard duty pay, and longevity pay. Paid overtime will be included in
the same paycheck covering the pay period in which the overtime was earned unless
the correct overtime amount cannot be determined until after the regular pay period.

. Employees, not including line firefighters, who earn overtime may, with the approval

of the department head or supervisor, subject to approval by the Administrative
Officer and/or Personnel Director, elect to receive compensatory time (“‘comp-time”)
off in lieu of overtime pay. Requests for compensatory time off in lieu of overtime
must be made in-writing and, once approved, will be placed in the employee’s payroll
file. Compensatory time will be earned at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) hours off
for each overtime hour worked. Non-peace officer employees who elect compensatory
time off may accrue up to 60 hours in a calendar year. Peace officer employees may
accrue up to 240 hours in a calendar year.

When an employee has exceeded the maximum number of hours specified, the excess
hours will be paid out to the employee as overtime pay. Notice to the department head
or supervisor of request to use compensatory time off, the use of compensatory time
off, and limitations thereof will be the same as that specified for annual leave in Policy
602 Annual Leave. At any time, the employer may pay an employee for compensatory
time earned and not used, or schedule use at its discretion.

Time paid but not worked, such as sick leave, holidays, and annual leave, does count
toward hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime hours.

Firefighters and peace officers may receive overtime pay in accordance with Section
207(k) of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Refer to the applicable collective bargaining
agreement or applicable provisions in this policy for special overtime requirements.

CAUTION: Paramedics serving in the dual capacity of paramedic/firefighter must
meet certain requirements to be covered by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)
207(k) overtime exemption. To qualify, the paramedic/firefighter must:

e Be employed by an organized fire department or fire protection district;
e Be trained in fire suppression and protection;
e Have the legal authority and responsibility to engage in fire suppression, to
include the prevention, control and extinguishing of fires, and;
e Perform activities which are required for the prevention, control or
extinguishment of fires.
Absent these requirements, a paramedic must be paid overtime subject to the rules for
non-exempt employees as outlined above.

2.2 Exempt Employees

Generally, exempt employees are hired with the understanding that they are responsible for
accomplishing the duties required for their assigned position. It is the employer’s policy to
comply with all aspects of the FLSA including salary-basis requirements. Therefore, making any
deductions from the salaries of exempt employees which are not allowed by law is by policy
prohibited.

Consistent with the FLSA and NRS 28 1employees in exempt positions are not required to be
paid for overtime worked. Subject to certain exceptions set forth in the regulations, an exempt

Page 2 of 4



employee will be paid the full salary for any work week in which the employee performs any
work, regardless of the number of days or hours worked. Exempt employees will not need to be
paid for any work week in which they perform no work, unless the employee is on approved paid
leave.

a. Itis expected that in order for exempt employees to complete their assigned work from
time to time, it will be necessary that they work beyond the normal work days and
business hours (usually 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday) of the employer.
If, however, an exempt employee is working well beyond a 40 hour work week on a
regular recurring basis, the Personnel Director/Administrative Officer may examine
staffing levels and the employee’s work habits and procedures.

b. Employers that have a bona fide annual and sick leave policy may deduct a partial days’
absence from an employee’s accrued leave, but not from the employee’s pay or salary.
Accordingly, if the employee does not have accrued leave and still works part of a day,
the employee must be paid their full salary. However, if an employee does not have
accrued leave or does not qualify to usc Icave and is absent for a full day then the
employer can deduct from the employee’s pay or salary for that full day.

c. Deductions will also be made to offset amounts employees receive as jury or witness
fees, or for military pay; or for unpaid disciplinary suspensions of one or more full days
imposcd in good faith for workplace conduct rule infractions. The employer will pro rate
an employee’s salary based upon the days worked during the initial and terminal pay
period of employment.

d. Exempt employees are generally expected to be available to perform their job duties
during normal business hours (usually 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday).
It is expected that in order for exempt employees to complete their assigned work from
time to time, it will be necessary that they work beyond the normal work days and
business hours of the employer. If, however, an exempt employee is working well
beyond a 40-hour workweek on a regular recurring basis, the employer may examine
staffing levels and the employee’s work habits and procedures.

e. Exempt employees who have completed an extraordinary work assignment and/or spent
substantially more time than a typical workweek to accomplish the job, may be
recognized at the sole discretion of the County Manager with:

¢ Up to 20 hours/days of time off without using accrued annual or sick
leave. The time off granted under this provision does not constitute
compensation and, thus, has no cash value.

¢ Additional compensation (e.g., flat sum, bonus payment, straight-time
hourly amount, time and one-half, or any other basis). Such additional
compensation will not void their otherwise exempt status as spccifically
provided under the FLSA.

f. Exempt employees may be eligible for overtime pay under the conditions provided for in
Policy 610, D7 Emergency or Disaster Arca Declaration.

2.3 “Safe Harbor”

The Personnel Director/Administrative Officer will classify employees as exempt or non-exempt
in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act and NRS. If an employee feels s/he is
improperly classified, s/he should request a review of the position classification from Personnel
Director and/or Administrative Officer. An investigation will be conducted on a timely basis and

Page 3 of 4



employer will act to correct any errors as soon as practicable. The employer will not make
improper deductions of pay from any employee, regardless of exempt or non-exempt status.
Improper deductions should be reported to the Comptroller and the Personnel
Director/Administrative Officer. The complaint will be investigated and employer will act to
reimburse the employee as required by the FLSA if an error is found. The employer will
continuously make a good faith commitment to comply with all provisions of the FLSA and
NRS and intends this policy of correction to satisfy the “safe harbor” provisions of the FLSA
regulations, as amended effective August 23, 2004.

If a non-cxempt employee feels s/he has been improperly paid for overtime under the FLSA or

state law, it is the responsibility of the employee to seek correction by reporting any error to the
department head. An investigation will be conducted on a timely basis and employer will act to
correct any errors as soon as practicable.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 4 of 4



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER __503

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-10-08
REVISED: 4-05-11/01-02-

18/05-19-2020

AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: ___AQA

SUBJECT: Overtime Compensation

1. PURPOSE: Provide Guidelines for Eligible for Overtime

i POLICY:

2.1 Non-Exempt Employees

a. Except as provide below, employees in positions designated as “non-exempt” will be
eligible for overtime compensation as follows:

Employees whose normal work schedule is 8 hours a day will receive overtime
compensation for hours worked in excess of 8 hours in a day and in excess of 40
hours in a week.

Employees whose alternative normal work schedule is between 8 and 10 hours in
a day will receive overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of 10 hours
in a day and in excess of 40 hours in a week.

Employees who request and are approved for a variable workday or variable 80-
hour work period (peace officers and/or line firefighters only) as provided in NRS
281.100 will receive overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of the bi-
weekly work period as allowed under Scetion 207(k) of the FLSA.

Employees whose hours are established by collective bargaining agreement will
receive overtime accordingly, but not in violation of the NRS or Fair Labor
Standards Act.

b. Per NRS 281.100 and the Scction 207(k) of the Fair Labor Standards Act, cmployecs
working as firefighters, peace officers, jailers/corrections officers, or sheriff's deputies
with a formalized policy or agreement with the employer, may work longer
workweeks or workdays.

8

Employers of peace officers, jailers/corrections officers, or sheriff’s deputies
may establish in-writing a work period of 171 hours within a 28-day period.

Employers of firefighters may establish in-writing a work period of 212 hours
within a 28-day period.

For peace officers, jailers/corrections officers, sheriff’s deputies, and firefighters,
these work periods must be established as regularly occurring and by an
affirmative statement by the employer that such a work period is established.

If the biweekly work period for peace officers, jailers/corrections officers,
sheriff’s deputies, or firefighters is not established, these employees are subject
to overtime compensation after 40 hours worked in a 7 day week per NRS
281.100 and the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Page 1 of 4



¢. All overtime hours must be specifically authorized in advance by the department head.
Overtime will be compensated at 1.5 times the employee’s regular rate of pay. An
employee’s regular rate includes all payments made by the employer to the employee.
Examples of payments to be included in calculating the regular rate are on-call pay,
shift differential, hazard duty pay, and longevity pay. Paid overtime will be included in
the samc paycheck covering the pay period in which the overtime was earned unless
the correct overtime amount cannot be determined until after the regular pay period.

d. Employees, not including linc firefighters, who eam overtime may, with the approval
of the department head or supervisor, subject to approval by the Administrative
Officer and/or Personnel Director, elect to receive compensatory time (“comp-time™)
off in lieu of overtime pay. Requests for compensatory time off in lieu of overtime
must be made in-writing and, once approved, will be placed in the employee’s payroll
file. Compensatory time will be eamed at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) hours off
for each overtime hour worked. Non-peace officer employees who elect compensatory
time off may accruc up to 60 hours in a calendar year. Peace officer employees may
accrue up to 240 hours in a calendar year.

¢. When an employee has cxceeded the maximum number of hours specificd, the cxcess
hours will be paid out to the employee as overtime pay. Notice to the department head
or supervisor of request Lo use compensatory time off, the use of compensatory time
off, and limitations thereof will be the same as that specified for annual leave in Policy
602 Annual Leave. At any time, the employer may pay an employee for compensatory
time earned and not used, or schedule use at its discretion.

. Time paid but not worked, such as sick leave, holidays, and annual leave, does count
toward hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime hours.

g. Firefighters and peace officers may receive overtime pay in accordance with Section
207(k) of the Fair Labor Standards Act. Refer to the applicable collective bargaining
agreement or applicable provisions in this policy for special overtime requirements.

CAUTION: Paramedics serving in the dual capacity of paramedic/firefighter must
meet certain requirements to be covered by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FL.SA)
207(k) overtime exemption, ‘To qualify, the paramedic/fircfighter must:
« Be cmployed by an organized fire department or fire protection district;
» Be trained in fire suppression and protection;
« Have the legal authority and responsibility to engage in fire suppression, to
include the prevention, control and extinguishing of fires, and;
e Perform activities which are required for the prevention, control or
extinguishment of fires.
Absent these requirements, a paramedic must be paid overtime subject to the rules for
non-exempt cmployees as outlined above.
2.2 Exempt Employees
Generally, exempt employees are hired with the understanding that they are responsible for
accomplishing the duties required for their assigned position. It is the employer’s policy to
comply with all aspects of the FLSA including salary-basis requirements. Therefore, making any
deductions from the salaries of exempt employees which are not allowed by law is by policy
prohibited.
Consistent with the FLSA and NRS 28 lemployees in exempt positions are not required to be
paid for overtime worked. Subject to certain exceptions set forth in the regulations, an exempt

Page 2 of 4



employee will be paid the full salary for any work week in which the employee performs any
work, regardless of the number of days or hours worked. Exempt employees will not need to be
paid for any work week in which they perform no work, unless the employec is on approved paid
leave.

a. It is expected that in order for exempt employees to complete their assigned work from
time to time, it will be necessary that they work beyond the normal work days and
business hours (usually 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday) of the employer.
If, however, an exempt employee is working well beyond a 40 hour work week on a
regular recurring basis, the Personnel Director/Administrative Officer may examine
staffing levels and the employee’s work habits and procedures.

b. Employers that have a bona fide annual and sick leave policy may deduct a partial days’
absence from an employee’s accrued leave, but not from the employee’s pay or salary.
Accordingly, if the employee does not have accrued leave and still works part of a day,
the employee must be paid their full salary. However, if an employee does not have
accrued leave or does not qualify to use leave and is absent for a full day then the
employer can deduct from the employee's pay or salary for that full day.

¢. Deductions will also be made to offset amounts employees receive as jury or witness
fees, or for military pay; or for unpaid disciplinary suspensions of onc or more full days
imposed in good faith for workplace conduct rule infractions. The employer will pro rate
an employee’s salary based upon the days worked during the initial and terminal pay
period of employment.

d. Exempt employees are generally expected to be available to perform their job duties
during normal business hours (usually 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday).
It is expected that in order for exempt employces to complete their assigned work from
time to time, it will be necessary that they work beyond the normal work days and
business hours of the employer. If, however, an exempt employee is working well
beyond a 40-hour workweek on a regular recurring basis, the employer may examine
staffing levels and the employee's work habits and procedures.

e. Exempt employees who have completed an extraordinary work assignment and/or spent
substantially more time than a typical workwecek to accomplish the job, may be
recognized at the sole discretion of the County Manager with:

e Up to 20 hours/days of time of without using accrued annual or sick
leave. The time off granted under this provision does not constitute
compensation and, thus, has no cash value.

o Additional compensation (e.g., flat sum, bonus payment, straight-time
hourly amount, time and one-half, or any other basis). Such additional
compensation will not void their otherwise exempt status as specifically
provided under the FLSA.

o f. Excmpt employees may be eligible for overtime pay under the conditions provided for Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", No bullets or numbering
in Policy 610, D7 Emergency or Disaster Area Declaration.
23 “Safe Harbor”

The Personnel Director/ Administrative Officer will classify employees as exempt or non-exempt
in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act and NRS. If an employee feels s/he is
improperly classified, s/he should request a review of the position classification from Personnel
Director and/or Administrative Officer. An investigation will be conducted on a timely basis and

Page 3 of 4



employer will act to correct any errors as soon as practicable. The employer will not make
improper deductions of pay from any employee, regardless of exempt or non-exempt status.
Improper deductions should be reported to the Comptroller and the Personnel
Director/Administrative Officer. The complaint will be investigated and employer will act to
reimburse the employee as required by the FLSA if an error is found. The employer will
continuously make a good faith commitment to comply with all provisions of the FLSA and
NRS and intends this policy of correction to satisfy the “safe harbor™ provisions of the FLSA
regulations, as amended effective August 23, 2004.

If a non-exempt employee fecls s/he has been improperly paid for overtime under the FLSA or
state law, it is the responsibility of the employee to seek correction by reporting any error to the
department head. An investigation will be conducted on a timely basis and employer will act to
correct any errors as soon as practicable.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 4 of 4



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 610

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  11-18-08
REVISED: 01-02-18/ 05-19-20
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: AO

SUBJECT: Emergency Conditions/Disaster Leave

PURPOSE: To establish a policy for employee leave time in the event of emergency
conditions, including but not limited to dangerous weather or road conditions,
natural disaster and power outages.

POLICY: Effective retroactively to 01/01/2020

A. Emergency Volunteer Service

An employee who is a participant in any volunteer emergency service
(e.g., fire protection, ambulance service, or search and rescue) shall not
schedule him/herself for on-call duty during work hours. In the event an
employee is required to respond to an emergency during normal working
hours, s/he shall remain in full employment status and shall receive total
regular compensation while performing the volunteer service for the
period that s/he would have been working for the employer.

B. Emergency Road Conditions

1.

Any employee who is unable to report to work due to road closures or
hazardous road conditions caused by ice, snow, floodwaters, washouts,
or slides shall not receive regular salary. Employees are advised to use
their best judgment in making a decision of whether or not to report to
work under such conditions. Should an employee decide to remain at
his/her residence, all reasonable attempts should be made to notify
his/her immediate supervisor. Any employee wishing to receive
payment for time missed due to hazardous road conditions may do so
by using either accrued annual leave or accrued compensatory leave
time.

Any non-exempt employee who reports to work late due to road
closures or hazardous road conditions will be compensated only for the
actual hours worked. In the cvent the employec wishes to receive a full
day’s pay, s’he may use annual leave or accrued compensatory leave
time to complete the normal work period.

Any employee who elects not to report to work due to hazardous road
conditions or reports to work late under such conditions shall not be
subject to discipline. In the event the supervisor is in doubt of the
employee’s reasoning, the final decision shall be made by the
employer on the basis of documentation or confirmation of the

Page 1 of 3



hazardous conditions by either a law enforcement agency or the
appropriate public works agency having jurisdiction over the roadways
in question.

C. Emergency Closure Due to Weather Conditions

L

In the event the County Manager authorizes the closure of county offices, or
a portion thereof, due to weather or related conditions, employees who are
unable to report to work due to such official closure will be paid for the days
work at their regular rate of pay.

This policy section does not apply to employees in public works roads, water,
sewer; communications; information technology; and sheriff deputies,
corrections officers, and other sheriff peace officers. Employees in non-
exempt positions in public works, roads, water, sewer; communications;
information technology; and corrections (but not line sheriff employees) who
are regularly scheduled and required to report to work during an emergency
closure will be awarded comparable time off at the rate of 1 hour for each
hour of emergency closure pay received by those employees not required to
report to work during the incident.

D. Emergency or Disaster Area Declaration

L

“Emergency Declaration” is defined as a declaration made by the Board of
County Commissioners in response to an emergency.

“Emergency” means any man-made or natural event or circumstance causing
or threatening loss of life, injury to person or property, human suffering or
financial loss to the extent that extraordinary measures must be taken to
protect the public health, safety, and welfare. Such events include, but are not
limited to fire, explosion, flood, severe weather, drought, carthquake,
volcanic activity, spills of oil or other hazardous substances, disease, blight,
infestation, disruption of utility or transportation service, civil disturbance,
riot, sabotage and war. An emergency can exist without an official
declaration of a state of emergency.

“Disaster Area” is defined as a designated area affected by an event declared
to be a disaster by a state or federal governmental agency duly authorized to
make such designation. Employees who are unable to report to work due to
a disaster may use accrued annual leave or compensatory leave time as
compensation for scheduled time not worked.

In the event the county or a portion thereof closes due to a health, welfare, or
safety issues, and such closure is authorized by the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, employees who are unable to report to work due to such
official closure will be paid up to 5 work days per incident at their regular
rate of pay.

This policy section does not apply to employees in classified positions in
public works roads, water, sewer; communications; information technology;
and sheriff deputies, corrections officers, and other sheriff peace officers.
Employees in non-exempt positions in public works, roads, water, sewer;

Page 2 of 3



communications; and information technology and corrections (but not line
sheriff employees) who are regularly scheduled and required to report to
work during an emergency closure will be awarded comparable time off at
the rate of 1 hour for each hour of emergency closure pay received by those
employees not required to report to work during the incident.

6. Employees shall make every effort to report to work as soon as is reasonable
under such conditions provided the employer’s operation is open and
functioning. An employee who has made such an effort, yet fails to report to
work under such declared “disaster” conditions, shall not be subject to
discipline. Employees shall make every effort to report their circumstances to
their immediate supervisor.

7.  Asdirected by the Emergency Manager and Comptroller, exempt employees
who report to work during an emergency declaration, wherein FEMA is
responsible for reimbursing salary costs, shall account for all hours worked.
Exempt employees will be eligible for overtime at the employee’s regular
rate of pay for time worked over 40 in one week. The only time exempt
employees are eligible for overtime pay is during such a disaster, and the
overtime pay shall not affect their designation as exempt.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER __610

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 11-18-08
REVISED:  _ —— ——01-02-18/05-19-2 Formatted: Right -0.63"
AUTHORITY: ___ BOC

AOQ

COUNTY MANAGER:— PAW

SUBJECT: Emergency Conditions/Disaster Leave

PURPOSE: To establish a policy for employee leave time in the event of emergency

conditions, including but not imited to dangerous weather or road conditions,
natural disaster and power outages.

POLICY: Effective retroactively to 01/01/2020

A. Emergency Volunteer Service

An employee who is a participant in any volunteer emergency service
(e.g., fire protection, ambulance service, or search and rescue) shall not
schedule him/herself for on-call duty during work hours. In the event an
employee is required to respond to an emergency during normal working
hours, s/he shall remain in full employment status and shall receive total
regular compensation while performing the volunteer service for the
period that s/he would have been working for the employer.

B. Emergency Road Conditions

1. Any employee who is unable to report to work due to road closures or
hazardous road conditions caused by ice, snow, floodwaters, washouts,
or slides shall not receive regular salary. Employees are advised to use
their best judgment in making a decision of whether or not to report to

work under such conditions. Should an employee decide to remain at
his/her residence, all reasonable attempts should be made to notify
his/her immediate supervisor. Any employee wishing to receive
payment for time missed due to hazardous road conditions may do so
by using either accrued annual leave or accrued compensatory leave
time.

2. Any non-exempt employee who reports to work late due to road

closures or hazardous road conditions will be compensated only for the
actual hours worked. In the event the employee wishes to receive a full

day’s pay, s’he may use annual leave or accrued compensatory leave
time to complete the normal work period.

conditions or reports to work late under such conditions shall not be
subject to discipline. In the event the supervisor is in doubt of the
employee’s reasoning, the final decision shall be made by the

Page 1 of 3

Any employee who elects not to report to work due to hazardous road

| Formatted: indent Left: 0.13%, Hanging. 0.94"



employer on the basis of documentation or confirmation of the
hazardous conditions by cither a law enforcement agency or the
appropriate public works agency having jurisdiction over the roadways

in question,
- {Formatted: Fonc Notgold ]
[Formatted: Font NotBold
Formatted: indent: Left 1%, Hanging: 0.3, Don't keep
O ONE it
| Formatted: Font )

Formatted: Indent. ert_: 1'_Hlnqing &31'. 1:ab srups
131" Left + Not at 1.75"

-1, “Disaster Arca” is defined as a designated area affected by an cvent declared
to be a disaster by a state or federal governmental agency duly authorized to
make such designation. Employees who are unable to report to work due to
a disaster may use accrued annual leave or compensatory leave time as
compensation for scheduled time not worked.

24 In the event the county or a portion thereof closes due to a health, welfare, or
safety issues, and such closure is authorized by the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, employees who are unable to report to work due to such
official closure will be paid up to 5 work days per incident at their regular
rate of pay.

3—This policy section does not apply to employees in classified positions in [ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12t |

line firefighters:-and sheriff deputies, corrections officers, and other sherifl

Page 2 of 3



peace officers. Employees in elassified pon-exempi positions in the-public | Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12pt |
works, roads, water, sewer; communications; and information technology S e T i S sl ]
and corrections (but not line firefighters and line sheriff employees) who are { Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt |
regularly scheduled and required to report to work during an emergency

closure will be awarded comparable time off at the rate of 1 hour for each

hour of emergency closure pay received by those employees not required to

report to work during the incident.

: * | Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt |
6. Employees shall make every effort to report to work as soon as is reasonable Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent Left. 131", Tab |
under such conditions provided the employer’s operation is open and stops: 0.94", Left
functioning. An employee who has made such an effort, yet fails to report to :
work under such declared “disaster” conditions, shall not be subject to
discipline. Employees shall make every effort to report their circumstances to
their immediate supervisor.
+ | Formatted: Indent: Left: 131°, No bullets or f
t nuvrbonng ) |

{ Formatted: Font. (Defautt) Times New Roman, 12 pt

| Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left 0.94° Hanging:
0.38", Tab stops: 0.94°, Left + Not at 175" |

unplerm nmslafhls h&ﬁm» mmmmmm md m\:
overtime pay shall not affect their designation as exempt.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 11, 2020 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
Tax Roll

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten

Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4, Staff summary: Numerous corrections are required for the 2018-19 and the 2019-20 unsecured

tax bill amounts. Most of the issues are clerical errors due to a software conversion. Please
see attached for a list of corrections required.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached list of corrections.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

P— —
—_——

Agenda Item No. (0 ‘EL



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 8470961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

May 11, 2020
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: Unsecured Tax Bill Corrections

The following unsecured accounts require corrections for the 2018-19 and 2019-20 tax years.
These errors were generally clerical in nature and need to be corrected per NRS 361.765.

Original Amount. Adjusted Bill
TaxYear Account# Billed Amount Reason for Adjustment
2018-19 CMO001769- $26.64 $0.00 OUT OF COUNTRY/ NO EQUIP - BILLED IN ERROR
2019-20 CMO00527 $97.56 $0.00 OUT OF BUSINESS - BILLED IN ERROR
201920 CMO001324 $196.26 $0.00 EXEMPT PER NRS - BILLED IN ERROR*
2019-20 CMO001451 $196,265.81 $133,424.38 CORRECT FOR ABATEMENT NOT APPLIED CORRECTLY
2019-20 CMO000036 $18,810.19 $0.00 BILLED TO LESSEE AT LESSEE'S REQUEST*
2019-20 CMO01170 $1,545.76 N $0.00 EXEMPT PER NRS - BILLED IN ERROR
2019-20 CMO01744 $945.18 $0.00 REMOVING PENALTY AMOUNT ONLY - PAYMENT CROSSED IN MAIL
2019-20 CMO001829 $633.24 $478.58 CLERICAL ERROR ON ASSESSMENT*
* NEEDS REFUND

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer and/or Assessor to make the changes
and issue an amended bill or refund as necessary.

Thank You,

\ﬂqwmﬁ
Tobi Whitt
Deputy Assessor

Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/19/20 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [x |

I. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification and extension of 2017-
2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement Between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey
County Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association/Nevada Association of Police and Sheriff’s
Officers (NAPSO).

2. Recommended motion. In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the tentative
agreement between Storc.y County (Employer) and the Storey (ounly Sheriff’s Office
Employees’ Association/Nevada Association of Police and Sheriffs Officers (Union), I
[Commissioner] motion to approve the successor 2020-2023 collective bargaining agreement
between the parties.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: County Manager Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the barg,ammg agreements between Storey County

and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees’ Association NAPSO Local 9110, the
bargaining agreement is proposed to be modified as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosures: Proposed 2020-2023 CBA as amended; benefits analysis;
fiscal analysis.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: __vyes__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
(@ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_——
il

Agenda Item No. q



313 3AvAT| £
XS ; N ] #3104
%5 %01 eju soyednsaau) / (Aed aseq) aandaiaq
[uow 05T e %33 14 |00 OFO 5% 00059'E5 +%5| [Aed a1eq ) J8250 suued| €5
} RS R
_8 00£5 000575 000525 000575 00°000'T$ enuue UonESYNIeO [504) sANUSIY| Aupidly [Ea1sAug| 15
%0T- (3901 dags i voIDNP3J) PaLIED | SOJ-YON
ou
pieg jdw] pieg |dw3 pitg ‘jdw3’ P3pIAC 000051 papiroid| 00 00FS uLia) vg) 1ad sauemoje uodeam
: oosEs [ooosT 18 000085
[ A SL12/ STST 005/0091 0005L°TS 00°005°T$ 00007 15 00005 15 0000 TS 000011 seak 1ad aouemoyy wiopun
|_|Mn a0 w37 55w o0 ——
ST s1 St 1 ST 51 ST ST §1 uiw Jy 7 (Aed jo 210 aseq sawin) Aed yoegje)|
51 1 S 1 st ST S1 ST <1 §1
001$ 6E
L3
%01/007/00T| %% 3] 0015 SI$ 0095 091% %05 I 00715 LE
e [ [ w08 ot
[ seqxstf%z 0575 051§ 057% 9895 0S1§ 005§ 00 0SES (ET0Z<) airipauniaiul 1504 Aed annuadul| sg
] (051§ 0575 (54 ﬂ 3
3589 %§ B 005% 052% SLES ov0'1$ 057% 000'1$ 00 0055 (E10Z<) padueapy 1504 Aed anuadul| £F
% [ Sies [ovTs 0575 000§ 0000 15 paIvEARY 3
aseq %8 £T] 0SL$ 00ES {wias vomimy) [%p e/u 00 008'TS (wad) s jmsew Aeg annuaoui| 1€
0055 0575 [T womm % 05ES 000F 1S (3
aseq NE %L 0578 0075 {wnas vomim] |9z 057$ mm T 00'000'1% (1wad) vy Aeg annuadui| 67
S i ) %5 [%s R0 [
il 10 Iseq %E1 anoy aseq g/T [6L 15 00 (reuonippe inoy sad) Aepijoy Aqpueis| ;7
dncy sseq ey SL T.R d 9
%01/007/001 |%¥ | %S Aeg kpqusuodsay| sz
%01 3 Fed Bunov| vz
0T €% 0025 0075 0025 SLTS %5 % prelaneig Enuasagq Yus| €7
Jores = n-n i 0518 eRURIagI0 WIds| €2
%8 %S 0T 1z
s oz |
xew 052§ - ¥ +{ %1 T661> %05 T 05415 mense Aciist b | 05 [ %050 0$
%ET
Tpe alues/sal sah sak sah
0093085 |or0l5s¥S (B 110'195 |00 WKG ELS
DO/9E19SS |08 TG BES |65 LIOSS |OZSSETSS | #OSZE6PS |09 ELvIvs  |Ov909°0SS  |(B 686755 00 053'F75
0807 080% 0807 0807 0807 0807 0807 0807 0807 0807
w0 el o /o5 a S [ws/dasseeq
v v AT T 3 kg siA | sk y sk €
—_—
ozoz-L10T oroz-910z 0ToT-6107 TTOT-LTOT TTOT-0LOT TZOT-LT0T oT0T-L10T
0USEAM syeds ahN uoky pjogUIng [IE] sejinog 1424y uosie) Aaiois
EE— E— —— —— —
TEUWN[O) guwniod|  zguwnjod|  yguwnio) uWn|o)) £uwinjo) guwinjo)’ suwinjo) puwn|o)) Fuwinjo) Tuwnjo)) Tuwn|o) pnjod:




MUAYS AQ pRuluIaep e panyenads Jaq0 (ulis g ysiveds) Aeg enBupg Ledx] vomiuBoday Bnug 0lnIIsu| 1ase ) fuodeap PR JODNIITY] FTUSQ SIHUOTEIM IOIINNSU SWIEINS

EFT Afe + w3 / w3 01 350) adepeg| 111
EXGH o+ )
1TLITS 5+ w3 / w3 o1 1507 a¥epded| 601
L0T
vET1IS 1503 Ji jdwa) weq + 3 voisip| GOT
+3
EELS (1302 sahoidwa) § + 3 vorsiA] €0T
(103 3
955015 1500 Jakojdwa) wej muaqg| 1ot
B
6 £9% (1902 sakoiduwa) s - 3 vaq] 66
vLTRLTS (1503 sakojdwa) wey « 3 [Epawy
+3
mm: (1503 sakojdwal s + 3 jwpain| 56
3
= (Yiwow sad] sNOLLNBIMINDD| £6
[Sos 5 [ 3
sad weid il 20 16
00%§ 06
0007 / 0001 (k) wauag uonesnpy/ Purwes)| 68
315108 %05/ %00T|
%05/ 152 To1od %05,
000075
43 %O0E+ 3 3 3 3 |0%59+5%59+ 3 1
a+1 0% Ts1a/se 901075 O/S%0E + 3 3 i %59+5%59+ 3 g+5+3
oA
SLI4IN38| 18
o9 |
6L
¢ |
shep 7 AR [eUCSIRg| £{
aare wonwonp3| 97
sak saA sak =y r—p—pp——g— Y} Sk sa) AR SINBOLSEIN)| §7
= = IE3 Twiopa; 0 o1 1ad] are] 71
sy oy /shep s[s S s 5 sinoy I £ 5 SABD ‘aARa JuswaARaIRg| £
%09 WSL 298 SH] OFE S0 07 130 L] (73
%SE AST %5 79 AST de3 p009/iie_[Avp/o0 st 000'7$ %0S %05 %05 000%/%0V 330 51y 09 1940 "91AI3S A 0Z-ST InoAeg aneal 5| 1L
[000°E% [ wet 53¢ 514 09K 1940 SRS WA STOT [
(13 %ST Ag 0% 0% [ 0% %SE 0% 0% 230 S1y 09E 1940 '831AIS S1A OT> Inodeg saea 5| 69
_r.|... r|.=. e Joom To% 1.. o R W ]
o1 o1 o1 o1 xdde T B o1 _c" ot yiuow sad s:noy ‘aara] 15| (9
L 2]
FOL/E SU/T YL vl WITAZT-8 el (99L/EEET  |ET1/80TT vl ¥l {991 59
orkes  Int 13 €1 ¥l EEEL ]
U6 Y OT /Siye JOT/EEE 12 EL E6 L gl 09 01 €9
ou lou 1
—m 11 11 1T 11 .l a1 11 11 11
£
T \.Io:!. T UlW [ SaURA |7 Ul [ saUeA Zuiw fsauea |7 unw fsauea |10 § wiw Jealien  [saleA
& fer @ B @ & & o owzt




Sheriff Union CBA

Year 1 cost of new Pay schedule

Budgeted amounts

Prior new Pay | After new Pay Percentage

schedule schedule Difference of change
Salary 1,739,404 1,818,683 79,278 4.56%
Overtime 67,848 71,496 3,648 5.38%
Longevity 10,965 10,965 0.00%
PERS 710,040 743,733 33,693 4.75%
Medicare 26,013 27,216 1,202 4.62%
PACT 166,542 166,542 0.00%
Soc Sec 1,661 1,661 0.00%
Insurance 378,082 378,082 0.00%
Total 3,100,555 3,218,378 117,822 3.80%




202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

= ‘[ Formatted: Normal

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
AND
STOREY COUNT#Y SHERIFF’S OFFICE EMPLOYEES’

ASSOCIATION/NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF POLICE &
SHERIFE'S OFFICERS (NAPSO)

JULY 1, 2620204+ — JUNE 30,
20202023

Page 1 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is made and entered into at Virginia City. Nevada, pursuant to the provisions
of the Nevada Revised Statutes, by and between the County of Storey. Nevada, a County
government, hereinafier referred to as the Employer or County, and the Storey County Sheriff's
Office Employees’ Association/Nevada Association of Police & Sheriff’s Officers (NAPSO).
hereinalter referred to as the Union or Association.

It is the purpose of this Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the
Employer and the Union, to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustments of differences
which may arise. and to provide proper standards of wages, hours, and other conditions of
employment.

Page 2 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PREAMBLE .ccouoovivcivionsavisussimansesssssss vioisssassssns ietisssss i i isos sriss s ot s s sastostssasoressonssn 2

DEFINITIONS v inssnosmsmssassosismovmsssssmss T 4
ARTICLE 1. EFFECTIVE DATE, PARTIE

ARTICLE 2. RECOGNITION .......cooonesssrussnsssnersssssiosonssasiaiiansonsssssssssssdisivasiiasis RS
ARTICLE 3. NO-STRIKE CLAUSE ........ccccccccoieeii. ST S A S R 7
ARTICLE4. RIGHTS OF MANAGEMENT ..oy 7
ARTICLES. NON-DISCRIMINATION v 7
ARTICLE6. EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVES...........ccocsivnmmmmmussinnpsmsissss 7
ARTICLE 7. COMPENSATION PRACTICES.....conmmisenmsamminmmanmssssemsressonessansnsss 8
ARTICLE 8. OVERTIME ......ccocuummummmunnissminpmmesrstoennnssesmsnerasonsnsesssrssnsapass 12

ARTICLE 9.
ARTICLE 10.
ARTICLE 11, VACATION

ARTICLE 12, SICK LEAVE _.ooooooooooioioooooeooeoeoeoeoeeoeoeoeeoeoeee oo 16
ARTICLE 13. ‘GROUP BENEFITS INSURANCE.......cocunimiimmsmmsammmiscssesmumasms 17
ARTICLE 14: RETIREMENT ...ccvunivmsiueinmiion o sissasisomssissas ssaasons 19
ARTICLELS: UNIFORMS cmsssumunonmsssss s ms o s sas s s eensrssos 19
ARTICLE 16 LEAVESQFABSENCE .ccuvmmmesisisnissmorrismmesnsssmrontsnsosser 21
ARTICLE}7. LAYOFFPROCEDURE.........cocismmmuremntrmernesssnmssssasmasonssssssasrsaresss 22
ARTICLE 18.  CHANGE OF ASSIGNMENT AND JOB VACANCIES.

ARTICLE 19, DISCIPLINARY ACTION.........ccossviosmatataiadiuimiannis
ARTICLE 20.  GRIEVANCE/ARBITRATION PROCEDURES ..o 28
ARTICLEZ]: MISCELLAME OIS s s s i s st siasisaiaton 32
ARTICLE 22. CATASTROPHIC LEAVE ... R B S R s 34
ARTICLE23. WORK-RELATED!INJURIES....cuumumsmscosesmemmenssmmnmmonen 36
ARTICLE24. PAYROLLDEDUCTION umanssmsseniosommmmmsmmmsvenmmmnsmssrssmss 37
ARTICLE 25. -PERSONNEL PRACTICES ..cosmimuimssrmmenssvsvomamssvassssmmasronssnsne 38
ARTICLE 26. DRUG AND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE............coooiinn 38
ARTICLE 27.  SAVINGS CLAUSE ... .39
ARTICLE 28.  ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT PROCEDURE ... 39
SIONATURE PAGE ... .omsnresmmsmsssassnsnsns sesnibaetions o0 rrns s i Vv s i 40
APPENDICES A & B WAGE CHART AND DESCRIPTION ..o 41-44

Page 3 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

DEFINITIONS

Anniversary Date: The date on which the employee starts work as indicated in-writing in an offer
of employment, is reclassified or promoted to a new job classification. or a less than part-time or
regular part-time employee becomes a full-time employee. The date on which an employee is
demoted to a lower pay range. reassigned, or transferred to alternative positions where their
talents or skills maybe best utilized to their own or the organization’s benefit, or where they are
better able to perform the job in accordance with required standards, is not an Anniversary Date.

Base Rate of Pay: The amount of pay the Employee is designated to receive within the salary
range for the Employee’s job classification, excluding any additional types of pay.

Days: Shall mean Storey County working days - Monday through Friday, excluding holidays,
unless otherwise stated.

Employee: An Employee in the bargaining unit who has successfully completed his/her
probationary period or any extended probationary period and has been retained to the
employment of Storey County Sheriff's Office.

Employee's Health File: A separate confidential file which is maintained in the Human
Resources Division and which contains only health-related matters. i.e.. Workers' Compensation
information, physical examination results, etc.

Major Fraction: Fifteen (15) minute intervals of time.

Part Time Employee: Part-time employees are defined as those who work a minimum of twenty
(20) hours but less than forty (40) hours per week on a regularly recurring basis. Part-time
employees are eligible for benefits on a prorated basis.

Probationary Employee: An employee who is undergoing a working evaluation period during
which s/he is required to demonstrate his/her ability to carry out the duties of the position to
which hired.

a. The new hire probation period pursuant to this agreement is 12 months.

b. Newly hired probationary employees are employed “at-will” and are excluded
from the coverage of this agreement. They may be laid-off or discharged from
emplovment during this period for any reason with or without cause. After
successfully completing the new hire probationary period, the employee shall be
deemed to be a regular employee and subject to this agreement. and shall acquire
seniority from his/her first date of hire.

¢. A probationary employee who transfers laterally within the same classification
(e.g.., Admin. 11 in one department to Admin. IT in another department) must serve
the remainder of the new-hire probationary period assigned to him/her upon hire.

d. A regular employee who is promoted to a position in a higher classification shall
serve a “trial period” of 12 months in the new position. A probationary employee
who is promoted to a position in a higher classification shall serve a “trial period™
of 12 months in the new position and must concurrently complete the remainder

Page 4 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

of his/her new hire probation period. During the “trial period”, the regular
employee is not considered probationary: however, regular employees and
probationary employces completing the remainder of their probation period must
demonstrate satisfactory ability to carry out the duties of the position to which
promoted. Unless the promoted employee is dismissed from employment for
cause. the employee who failed the “trial period™ in the new position will be
restored to his/her previous classification or an equivalent classification if the
previously held position is unavailable.

e. Anemployee who is demoted to a lower classification is not required to serve a
“trial period™ for that position.

. Anemployee who changes from working part-time to regular full-time within the
same classification shall have his/her new hire probationary period adjusted to
credit actual hours worked over the past 12 months with Storey County in said
classification, up to a maximum of 1,040 hours (6 months). toward completion of
the new hire probation period.

Regular Rate of Pay: The Emplovee's base rate of pay plus other additional pay for which the
Employee's specific assignment may entitle him/her.

Regularly Scheduled Shift: The shift created by the department that is the same schedule for at
least 30 days.

Sheriff: The Sheriff or his/her designee.

ARTICLE 1: EFFECTIVE DATE, PARTIES

%]

This Agreement shall be in full-force and effect July 1, 202020317 through June 30, 20230, If
either party desires to make a change, the party shall notify the other party in writing of the
Article and/or Section of that Article desired to be negotiated.

Pursuant to NRS 288.150. this Agreement or any provisions herein may be automatically
reopened for negotiations upon written request by the Employer during periods of fiscal
emergency.

Notification of desire to negotiate shall be done in accordance with NRS 288,

The parties shall promptly commence negotiations. If the parties cannot reach agreement
cither party may submit the dispute to an impartial fact finder at any time for his/her findings
in accordance with NRS 288. The fact finder shall make recommendations of the unresolved
issues.

If the partics have not reached an agreement within ten (10) workdays after the fact finder's
report is submitted, all issues remaining in dispute shall be submitted to an arbitrator. The
arbitrator shall, within ten (10) work days after the final offers are submitted. accept one of
the written statements, and shall report the decision to the parties.

Page 5 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

6. The impartial fact finder and the binding arbitrator shall be from the American Arbitration
Association (AAA) and/or the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS). The
Union and the County agree Lo solicit a list of seven (7) professional neutrals with public
sector experience from the AAA or FMCS and alternately strike names from such list until
one name remains. That remaining person so sclected shall serve as the arbitrator. For the
first arbitration. the party to strike first shall be determined by lot. Thereafter. the party to
strike first shall alternate between the parties. All hearings shall be conducted according to
AAA or FMCS rules.

7. In the event that future agreements are not reached prior to July 1 of that vear. all awards
rendered by the final binding arbitrator shall be retroactive to July 1 of the year in which
negotiations commenced.

ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION

The Union is hereby recognized as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining
representative for the purpose of establishing wages. hours, and conditions of employment
pursuant to the provisions of NRS 288.010 et seq., for all Employees in the bargaining unit
covered by this Agreement. which include all full-time or part-time positions in the
following classifications:

a. Deputy Sheriff
b. Corporal
¢. Sergeant

Representatives of the Union and its affiliates will be permitted to transact Union business
on County property. provided that this does not disrupt normal work functions. In
accordance with NRS 288 the Employer may require Union business to be conducted
during non-work time. such as before work and afler work. during breaks, and/or
lunchtime. Union business may only be conducted in common areas and/or designated
Employee break areas. Designated representatives of the Union shall be allowed to reccive
telephone calls or other communiqués concerning Union business at any time during
working hours. The Union shall have the right to use the interoffice mail for Union
business. County email may be used internally to conduct Union business. but shall be
limited to all parties to this Agreement and subject to established County policies.

The Union may post notices involving Union business in the location(s) and manner(s) as
mutually agreed upon. All items to be posted on the bulletin boards are subject to review
by the Sheriff.

The Union acknowledges and agrees that the Union shall be solely responsible for the
opening, closing. and securing of County buildings used by the Union for Union meetings.
The Union acknowledges and agrees that the Union shall indemnify, defend. and hold the
Employer harmless for any damages incurred and against any claims made or actions
initiated against the Employer as a result of the Union's use of County buildings for Union
meetings.

Page 6 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 3: NO STRIKE CLAUSE

. The Union agrees not to and will not promote, sponsor, or engage in, against County any
strike. slowdown. interruption of operation, work stoppage. absence from work upon any
pretext or excuse not founded in fact, or any intentional interruption of the business of the
County, regardless of the reason for so doing. and will use all reasonable efforts to induce
all Employees covered by this Agreement to comply with this pledge.

ARTICLE 4: RIGHTS OF MANAGEMENT

I. County. Sheriff, and Commissioners retain, and do not waive in any respect, all rights
conferred upon them. jointly and severallv, by NRS Chapter 288, any and all other provisions
of the Nevada Revised Statutes. and relevant case law.

ARTICLE 5: NON-DISCRIMINATION

1. Employer and Union agree to comply with all applicable laws prohibiting discrimination
in employment including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of
1972, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, as amended, the applicable Nevada Revised Statutes on Equal Employment
Opportunity (NRS 613) and any other applicable federal. state, and local statutory
provisions.

ARTICLE 6: EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVES

I. The County recognizes and agrees to deal with representatives of the Union on all matters
within the scope of bargaining and pursuant to the provisions of NRS 288, so long as the
subject matter does not impinge upon the County’s management rights provided by NRS
288.

2 Reasonable release time for Employee representatives shall be limited to (1) attending County
meetings. including negotiations, which have a direct impact on the Union, (2) investigating,
processing or attending meetings in accordance with the provisions of the grievance-arbitration
procedures of the Agreement, or (3) meetings called by the County for information exchange
and other conditions designated by the County conceming the interpretation or application of
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

3 If such Union business or representation must be conducted during an Employee
representative's regular work shift. the County shall, upon advance approval of the Sheriff or
his/her designee, release the Employee to conduet Union affairs on County time.

4. The Sheriff shall not unreasonably withhold approval of requests for release time pursuant  to
this Article.

Page 7 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

5.

The County authorized payment as outlined above will be granted at the applicable straight
time rate, provided the time spent is a part of the Employee's scheduled workday.

ARTICLE 7:  COMPENSATION PRACTICES

L

Wages: Biweekly wages: All Employees will be paid on cach biweekly Friday. with wages
computed through the preceding Sunday.

2. Wages and Wage Adjustments: Employees will receive hourly wages and yearly

adjustments as shown in Appendix A and-Appendix—B-of this Agreement. Merit increases will
be provided as described in this Article, B

- —————————————————————————————————————————
2 Any Emplovee at steps ten (10), eleven (11). twelve (12), or thirteen (13) of the previous
collective bargaining agreement (2017-2020), shall be moved to step ten (10) of Appendices
of the 2020-2023 collective bargaining agreement, when such agreement comes into-fuh-foree
and effect.

3—Merit Increases: A merit increase of one step in the wage range for the Employee's job
class will be granted to an Employee upon completion of each year in which the Employee
receives a satisfactory evaluation score until the Employee reaches the top of the wage range.
If the Employee has not been evaluated within thirty (30) calendar days following his/her
Anniversary date, merit will be granted retroactive to the Anniversary date.

Employees who-have reachhed step ten (10) of the 2020-2023 Appendix Ac-and, arc capped
and may advance no furthert that step-will receive a five pereent {3%) increase on histher

Apivorsafe e theroatior

4.3. Promotions:

a A Deputy who is promoted to Corporal must move to the next closest step from his/her
former position, but must receive no less than a 5 percent increase in base pay. A Deputy
or Corporal who is promoted to Sergeant will move to the next closest step from his/her
former position, but must receive no less than a 10 percent increase in base pay. Ensuring
that the promoted Employee receives no less than the stated increase in base pay is
accomplished by moving him/her to the next nearest step which provides the required
increase.

b. All promotions within the Bargaining Unit shall be filled by candidates who meet the
minimum requirements of the position that are established by the Employer.

¢ Notice of promotions to vacant positions within the Bargaining Unit shall be posted on
bulletin boards within the Department for a period of not less than ten (10) working days
prior to the last date for application or the date scheduled for testing. whichever is earlier.
Notice shall contain the following information or indicate where the information may be
obtained:

Page 8 of

1 Formatted: Font: Arial-BolditalicMT

Formatted:

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.32", Hanging: 0.25", Right:
0", No bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 032"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.32", No bullets or

| numbering

)
Font: 12 pt ]

Formatted:

Not Highlight

Formatted:

Not Highlight

Formatted:

Formatted:

Not Highlight

Formatted:

Not Highlight

Formatted:

Highlight

Formatted:

)
)
Not Highlight B
)
)
)
)

List Paragraph, Space Before: 0 pt




202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

1

iil.

Title and Job Description of Position:

All eligibility requirements including education, employment, training, and
experience criteria, and whether equivalent factors will be recognized:

If there will be competitive testing and the date, time, and place of such testing;

The nature and scope of test subject matter:

Page 9 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

v.  Whether the test will consist of written, oral, and/or physical demonstration
components.

5.4.Shift Differential: An Employee shall receive Shift Differential Pay, in addition to Base Pay
on all regularly scheduled hours worked in the manner described in subsections (a) and (b)
below. Shift Differential Pay will be included in the regular rate of pay for the purposes of
calculating overtime.

a  Swing shift — One dollar fifty cents ($1.50) per hour for all hours worked on Swing

shift.
i.  Swing Shift is a scheduled regular or scheduled overtime shift which must /| Formatted: Not Highlight ]
in¢cludemeludes- the entire hour of 1900-20008 hours. Formatted: Not Highlight ]
b Graveyard shift — One dollar seventy five cents (1.75) per hour for all hours worked \[F""“'"’d: Not Highlight )
on Graveyard shift.
i.  Gravevard shift is a scheduled regular or scheduled overtime shift which must
includes the entire hour of 012400-02008 hours—{midnight-hous). _/[;uned: Not Highlight ]
Formatted: Not Highlight ]

counts as time worked for determining

chgibility pay

Formatted:

d_No shift differential pay is provided during times the employee 15 absent from work while numbering

Indent: Left: 0.57", No bullets or

taking suk or annual leave hollda\ not \\nrkud lul\l. or Ulhtl’ lc.a\u with or mlhnul ay, even

&5 Acting Pay: An Employee who is specifically assigned by the Sheriff to work in an acting /[;mmd:

Font: 12 pt

capacity in a classification with a higher wage range for a period of more than five (5)
consecutive days actually worked shall receive a five percent (5%) differential added to
his/her hourly wage for time actually worked during the remainder of the assignment.

7:6. Leave for Civic Duty:

Temporary Leave at full wages will be provided to the employee for jury duty. court
appearances, and administrative proceedings arising out of the employee's employment with
the District and for selective service examinations. An employee who is subpoenacd or
otherwise required to appear in court or at administrative proceedings arising out of his/her
employment with the County, and which appearances occur outside his/her regularly
scheduled shift, shall be paid one and one-half (1.5) his/her regular rate of pay for the time
spent at such appearances.

In accordance with NRS 6.190, a person summoned to appear for jury duty. the employer and
employee, agent or offer of the employer shall not, as a consequence of the person’s service
as a juror or prospective juror:

1. Require the person to use sick or annual leave; or

Page 10 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County
2. Require the person to work:

a.  Within 8 hours before the time at which the person is to appear to jury duty: or

bIfthe employee’s service has lasted for 4 hours or more on the day of his/her
appearance in a jury duty. including the person’s travel time to and from the
place where court is held, between 5:00 p.m. on the day of his/her appearance
for jury duty and 3:00 am. the following day.

Page 11 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

The employee shall claim any jury, witness, or other fee to which s/he may be entitled by
reason of the appearances described above and pay such fees, except travel mileage and
expense reimbursement that was not covered by the employer, to the Storey County
Treasurer within 5 working days of receipt, to be deposited by the applicable fund of the
County.

Annual leave may be taken by the employee for court appearances or administrative
proceedings, not related to employvment with the District and not related to jury duty, in
which the employee is a party or a witness.

An employee shall not receive pay from the employer for missed work time associated with
court appearances in matters to which the employee is a party or is to serve as a witness for a
party who has filed an action against an employer. The employee may, however, choose to
use his/her annual leave.

8.7 Standby Status:
a  An Employee is in standby status when s/he is:

i.  Directed to remain available for notification to work during specified hours:
ii.  Prepared to work if the need arises: and
iii.  Able to report to work within forty (40) minutes.

b An Employee is entitled to receive additional pay of $2.00 for every hour s/he is in
Standby status or $3.00 for every hour s/he is in Standby status on a Holiday.

¢ When an Employee begins the performance of his/her regular duties after receiving
notice to work, s/he ceases to be on Standby status and qualifies for straight time or
Overtime pay. whichever is applicable, for the actual time worked. Upon completion of
the work, s/he returns to Standby status for the remainder of the time s/he has been
directed to be available to work.

9.8, Field Training Officer Pay: Any Employee who is designated by the Sheriff to perform
the duties of a training officer as a Field Training Officer (FTO) shall receive an additional 5
percent of his/her base pay per hour for all hours actually spent functioning as an FTO. The
Employee is determined to be functioning as an FTO when s/he is assigned to and actively
engaged in training another employee to perform specific duties applicable to the job and is
recording the progress of that trainee for reporting to the Sheriff or his/her designee (e.g..
completion of a daily observation report). Subjeet-to-approval-of-the Persennel-DireetorTthe
Sheriff or his/her designee shall have the discretion to make the FTO assignment and to remove
someone from such assignment.

Page 10 of



202047-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Starey County

10.9. _Incentive Pay:

a  Employees will be granted incentive pay as follows:

Incentive Category (Paid Annually)

Degrees:

Master’s Degree — $1.800
Bachelor’s Degree — $1.400
Associate’s Degree —$1.000
POST Certifications:

Advanced POST (earned prior to October 29, 2013) ~$1.100
Advanced POST (earned on or after October 29, 2013) - $500
Intermediate POST (earned prior to October 29, 2013) - $600

Intermediate POST (eamed on or after October 29, 2013) —§350
Specialized Training:

$1.200 for -etther-one of the following sub-categories:
1) Firearms Instructor
2) Weaponless Defense Instructor
3) Impact Weapon / Taser Instructor
4) Drug Recognition Expert*
5) Bilingual Pay**
6) Any other specialized tramning approved by the Sheniff

*Drug Recogmition Expert and Bilingual Incentive pay shall be granted at the discretion of the
Shenff

**Fluent Spanish and American Sign Language shall be the only eligible second languages
considered for specialized training incentive pay.

Physical Fitness Test Incentive: ”_‘( Formatted Table
Annual® - $1000 00 o . - N o } __,.{Fommd, Font: Not Bold

*For Emplovees who pass the POST physical fitness test administered annually by the Storey

. Formatted: Font Not Bold

County Sherniff’s Office
L \ 2 e — FE e ——— — ——— Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"
\ Formatted: Font Not Bold

b Employees are eligible to receive incentive pay for all three (3) categories. Employees are
eligible to receive pay for only one sub-category within each category. Incentive pay shall
not be compounded for those Employees having multiple degrees. POST certifications,
or specialized training certifications.

¢ Incentive Pay for degrees. certifications, and specialized training will become effective
the first payroll period of the fiscal year, and will be paid to the ehgible Employee each
year thereafter in one lump sum during the first payroll period of the fiscal year.

d Employees who become eligible for Incentive Pay shall by December 30 provide written
notice to the Sheriff requesting Incentive Pay for the following fiscal year. An Employee
who demonstrates valid evidence that s/he will likely be ehigible for Incentive Pay by July
1 of the following fiscal year may, with approval of the ShenfT, also apply for Incentive
Pay

Page 11 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County
e——To be eligible for Incentive Pay for earning an Associate's, Bachelor’s, or Master’s
Degree, the Employee must have the school of camed degree send sealed Official
Transcripts to the Personnel Office. The transcripts must demonstrate that the Employee

Page 12 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

camed the applicable degree with a Grade Point Average (GPA) of 3.0 or higher at the + *—{Forrmﬂed: Indent: Left 0.56" }
time which the degree was granted. To be eligible for Incentive Pay, the degree must be
camed from an accredited college or university.

fe.Employees who receive Incentive Pay for Specialized Training Instructor shall perform
no less than 15 hours of qualified instruction to Sheriff’s Office Employees, including full-
time, part-time, reserve, and/or volunteer Employees, each year from the pay period that
the Incentive Pay is issued to the Employee.

1110, Specialized Training Instructor Selection. Selection for Specialized Training Instructor
incentive categories shall be selected in the following manner:

a  Notice of Specialized Training Instructor opportunities within the Bargaining Unit shall
be posted on bulletin boards within the Sheriff's Office for a period of not less than ten

(10) working days prior to the last date for application or the date scheduled for training,
whichever is earlier.

b. Notice shall contain the following information or indicate where the information may be
obtained:

i.  Title and Description of Training;

ii.  All eligibility requirements including education, employment. training, or
experience criteria, and whether equivalent factors will be recognized;

iti.  If there will be competitive testing and the date, time, and place of such test;
iv.  The nature and scope of test subject matter:

V. Whether the test will consist of written, oral, and/or physical demonstration
Cnmponcms.

end-are-re-ablete-meet or exceed POST Category | Physical Fitness Test standards each year shall 0.25" Right 0", No bullets or numbering, Tab stops:
receive an incentive of $1000.00 for that year, and that payment shall be made in the Iasl payroll Not at 107" + 107"

of the fiscal year The non-mandatory fitness test vnll be supervised by a-memberof-the-Sterey o od: Not Highlight
Ceuntythe Shenff=s, or his/her designee in urdu 0
obtain credit for the incentive, Tests will be held twice during the fiscal vear and dates determined Formatted: Not Highlight

by the Shcnff bu&—veu—n-en}y—ehg}ble—lo—gei-pmd—fev—m—pess—how ver, employees are only \{Fgmn.d: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font 12 pt
—PpP mﬁekpr-ebaﬂen
I ()sl Physical Fitness Test Incentive. Post-probationary Employees who ten j Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left 0.32", Hanging:

Formatted: Font Not Bold

- Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.32", No bullets or
numbering

Page 13 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargainin: SCSOEA/Storey County

bullets or numbering, Tab stops: 032", Left + Not at

Indent: Left: 0.32", Right: 0.08", No ’

Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Indent: Left 032"

IEER Y

List Paragraph, Indent: Left 0.32"

List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.32"

List Paragraph, Left, Indent: Left: 0.32"

Font: Not Italic, No underline, Font color:

Indent: Left: 0.32", No bullets or

-

Mo Fable I Jonpeviiy Ay Formatted:
Longevity Pay 107"+ 107
Anniversary Formatted:
Five (5} Years §2:500-00 S,
.i.sﬂ M -Mu ) "N) 2
Eifteen (15) ¥ ears $7.500.00 st
Ewenty (30) Vears $10000.00 s
Formatted:
Formatted:
pon Hire. A ented by this Agreement o
will be placed at step 1 in the salary range chart. The Sheriff may approve an applicant to be Formatted:
hired at st r if it is determined that the applicant has extensive experience comparable Formatted:
10 ti i Pri rt’a rovin anacc_l rat hirin tep, heriff must ensure that Formatted:
there are budgeted funds available and there will be no disparate impact to current employees
. Ry 3 Formatted:
in the bargaining unit.
[ Formatted:
Formatted:
Auto
Formatted:
numbering
Formatted:
ARTICLE §: OVERTIME

Space Before: 0 pt, Tab stops: Not at 1.57"

No Spacing, Justified, Indent: Left. 0.32",

S

1. Overtime pay is defined as additional compensation camned by an Employee who continues
working beyond his/her regularly scheduled shift or is required to return to duty at a
time that is more than 12 hours after notice is given. The Employee will be compensated
at time and one-half (1.5) of his/her regular base-heurty-rate of pay for those extra hours
worked.

-

A normal non-alternative work schedule shift shall consist of 8 hours per day and 3
consecutive days over a 7 day period. or 10 hours per day for 4 consecutive days in a7
day period.

Page 14 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

Upon agreement between the Employer and the Union, the parties may implement an
alternative work schedule. An alternative work schedule may consisting of three (3) days
of twelve (12) hour shifts in a seven (7) day period, followed by three (3) days of twelve
(12) hour shifts; followed by an eight (8) hour shift in a seven (7) day period. or visa-versa.
not to exceed eighty (80) hours in a fourteen (14) day period.

The assignment of the regular normal shift shall be -determined_—by- the_—Sheriff.
Consideration will be given to the preferences of stafl; however, the necessity ol delivering
adequate services to the community will take precedent. The Sheriff must provide at least
30 days of written notice to the Employee(s) prior to changing the normal regular shift.
During temporary instances. such as during community special events, disasters and
emergencies. and unusual staff shortage conditions, changes to the regular normal shift
may be made by the Sheriff, effective immediately.

Overtime shall not count toward Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) retirement
benefits as stated in Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 286.481.

Compensatory-Time (“Comp-Time”). Overtime may be compensated at the rate of one
and one-half (1.5) hours of Compensatorv-Time for each hour of Overtime worked.
Employees may not accrue more than two hundred and forty (240) hours of Compensatory-
Time per calendar -vear. Compensatory-Time balances shall be paid-out  as a check or
direct deposited payment on the first payroll period in December of each year.

All Overtime, including Compensatory-Time, must have previous authorization by the
Sheriff except when, due to an emergency, the Sheriff’s approval- cannot- be obtained and,
accordingly, the Employee’s Supervisor authorizes the necessary Overtime.

Overtime shall be filled by Bargaining Unit members. For the purposes of Overtime to- (ill
vacancies, an Overtime/Call-Back list shall be developed by the Union and- the Sherift.
The list shall consist of all Bargaining Unit members who desire to work Overtime/Call-
Back to fill vacancies in staffing. A rotation procedure will -be incorporated into the list.
The initial eligibility list will be- established -with -the Employee with the most -full -time
continuous service with the Employer. The Sheri-ff -shall reserve the right to mandate an
Employee to work Overtime when no other_—Employee is available on the rotation
eligibility list.

Paid Leave shall be considered as work-time for purposes of calculating Overtime.

ARTICLE 9: CALL-BACK PAY

L

Any Employee who is required to return to work by his/her Supervisor in accordance
with NRS 286 shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at 1.5 times the regular base
heurly—rate_of pay. Time worked in addition to the initial two (2) hours shall be
compensated at

1.5 times the regular base rate of pay for all time actually worked. An Employee shall not
be eligible for Call-Back pay when receiving Stand-By pay.

Page 15 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

2 Phone calls not requiring return to work.

a.

All off-duty calls to an Employee regarding work-related matters shall  be
authorized and considered authorized by the Sheriff or his/her designee. Refusals
for requests to return to work shall not be subject to Call-Back pay.

When an off-duty Employee receives a phone call that is work-related, lasts longer
than fifteen (15) minutes. and does not result in the Employee being required to
return to active duty. the Employee shall receive a minimum of one  hour of
overlime pay-at-a—rate—ef—t-5-pay. The fifteen (15) minute period shall be the
cumulative time of one or more phone calls within a twenty-four (24) hour period.

Phone calls subject to this section shall be documented by the Employee receiving
the call, and the Sheriff or Employee making the phone call, on a form created
and approved by the Personnel Director and/or  Comptroller’s Office (payroll).
The completed form shall include, at a minimum, the involved parties, time and
duration of phone call(s), and a summary of the content of the conversation. The
completed form shall be submitted by both Employees to the Sheriff for review
and/or approval, and to Payroll with both Employees” bi-weekly timesheets.

3. PERS contribution toward Call Back Pay shall comply with NRS 286, including NRS
286.025 for Employees who have an effective date of PERS membership before, and on
or after January 1, 2010, and shall apply the definition of an “emergency” accordingly.

ARTICLE 10: HOLIDAYS

Holidays, for the purpose of this section, shall be as follows:

a.

January | (New Year's Day)

Third Monday in January (Martin Luther King. Jr. Birthday)
Third Monday in February (Washington's Birthday)

Last Monday in May (Memorial Day)

July 4 (Independence Day)

First Monday in September (Labor Day)

Last Friday in October (Nevada Day)

November 11 (Veterans Day)

Fourth Thursday in November (Thanksgiving Day)

Friday following the fourth Thursday in November (Family Day)
December 25 (Christmas Day)

Floating holiday (Any day agreed upon by Employee and supervisor)

Page 16 of

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.57"

Formatted: Heading 1, Space Before: 0 pt, Tab stops:
1.57°, Left

J




202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

|2

6.

m. Any day that may be appointed by the Storey County Board of Commissioners as
a legal holiday and any day appointed by the Governor of the State of Nevada as a
legal holiday on which State offices are to close. Reoccurring holidays under this
subsection will be observed through the term of the current Agreement only.

Holiday Pay: Holiday pay shall be equal to the Employee's regularly scheduled shift
assignment of eight (8), ten (10). or twelve (12) hours.

Holidays Not Worked: Employees who are not required to work on a recognized
holiday shall receive Holiday Pay for the shift they normally would have worked.

Holidays Worked Regularly Scheduled Day: Employees required to work their regularly
scheduled shift on the actual holiday shall receive Holiday Pay plus an additional payment
computed at time and one-half (1 1/2) the straight time for the hours actually worked.

Holidays worked during scheduled day off: Employees required to work on a holiday
during their regularly scheduled day off shall receive Holiday Pay plus an additional
payment computed at time and one-half (1.5) the straight time for the hours actually
worked. and shall receive one actual day off with straight pay. The day off shall not be
charged against the Employee’s accrued Annual Leave. or any other accrued Leave, and
shall be taken by the Employee within twelve months (1 year) of the associated holiday
worked. The process for requesting the day off shall be the same as for Annual Leave
pursuant to Article 11(3), but not Subsection (4).

Holiday During Vacation or Sick: Should a paid holiday fall during an Employee's
Vacation or Sick Leave, the Employee will receive Holiday Pay rather than have such
day charged against Vacation or Sick Leave pay.

Holiday Pay for Part-time Employees: Part-time Employees shall receive Holiday Pay on
a prorated basis when they would normally be scheduled and available to work on the
holiday in question.

ARTICLE 11: VACATION

M~

Accrual: Eligible Employees shall cam vacation benefits at the rate of ten (10) hours of
Vacation Pay for cach calendar month or major fraction thereof. Employees who have
completed five (5) or more years of consecutive service shall earn vacation benefits at the
rate of thirteen and one-third (13.33) hours of vacation for ¢cach calendar month or major
fraction thereof. Employees who have completed 10 or more years of consecutive service
shall eam vacation benefits at the rate of sixteen and two thirds (16.67) hours of vacation
for each calendar month or major fraction thereof. Vacation credits shall accrue for each
pay period the Employee is in full pay status or major fraction thereol.

Eligibility:  An Employee is entitled to take vacation time after six (6) months service
with the County. Each Employee shall accrue vacation beginning upon completion of six

Page 17 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

(6) months of continuous employment as a regular or probationary Employee. Upon
completion of six (6) months of County service as a regular or probationary Employee,
the Employee shall receive sixty (60) hours of vacation credit.

3. Scheduling:

a  Vacation dates shall be granted and scheduled with the approval of the Sheriff or
his/her designee. Where practical, in the determination of the Sheriff, vacation
dates will be granted on a first-come, first-serve basis quarterly within the job
classification.

b. An Employee becoming ill while on Annual Leave may have leave charged to
Sick Leave upon request and upon presentation of proper documentation.

4. Pay OIT at Termination: Upon termination of employment, the County shall compensate
an Employee for all acerued vacation time (Up to a maximum of 240 hours).

ARTICLE 12: SICK LEAVE

1. Accrual: Each Employee shall cam Sick Leave with pay at the rate of ten (10) hours of
Leave for each calendar month or major fraction thereof. A maximum of nine hundred
sixty (960) hours of Sick l.eave may be accumulated.

2. Use of Sick Leave: Sick leave with pay may be granted upon approval of the Sheriff in
the event of a bona fide illness of an Employee or member of his/her immediate family
(within the second degree of consanguinity or affinity).

a. If the Sheriff has reason to believe Sick Leave is being abused, the Sheriff may
require the Employee taking Sick Leave to submit a physician's statement in
accordance with Storey County Policy 603 — Sick Leave.

b. After exhausting accumulated Sick Leave. an Employee may take accumulated
Vacation Leave if s/he needs additional time off from work. Leave without pay
may be granted by the Sherift at his/her discretion.

3—Parental Leave: The parties agree to abide by all state and/or federal laws applicable to
leave for maternity and paternity, which shall include adoption or foster care of a child ef
Fessthapsx

3. ¢6)years- wWithin 12 months of placement.

4—Bereavement Leave:

Page 18 of

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right: 0.08", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, .. + Startat: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.32" + Indent at 057",
Tab stops: 0.57", Left




202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County
4, Bereavement leave shall be granted to anv regul ll-time or regular part-time employee
who must be absent from work upon the death of and/or to attend the funeral of a family
member within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity. up to a maximum of 3 scheduled
shifts of bereavement leave per each occurrence. Such leave will not be charged to the
employee’s accumulated sick leave or other accrued leave. Bereavement leave in excess of
3 scheduled shifts may be charged to accumulated sick leave upon the approval of the Sheriff

and Administrative Officer/Personnel Director. The emplovee may use annual leave after
sick leave has been exhausted.

Page 19 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

5. Payment for Sick Leave at Termination: Upon an Employee's end of service through
PERS retirement or termination from service. other than involuntary termination, with a
total accrued hours of three hundred sixty (360) or more, the Employee shall be paid for
unused Sick Leave at the following rate:

a. 10 to 15 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 20% of their base rate of pay
for each hour. not to exceed $3.000 cash or $4,000 toward the purchase of
PERS.

b. 15 to 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 40% of their base rate of pay
for cach hour. not to exceed 4,000 cash or $5.000 toward the purchase of PERS.

¢. More than 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 60% of their base rate of
pay for cach hour. not to exceed $5.000 cash or $6.250 toward the purchase of
PERS.

ARTICLE 13: GROUP BENEFITS INSURANCE

fad

Employee eligibility for health insurance benefits shall commence 60 days after hire. and to
the first day of the next month.

The Employer agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly premiums for health
insurance (to include hospitalization, major medical, dental. and vision) for Regular Full- Time
Employees. The Emplover agrees to pay a prorated percentage of monthly premiums for health
insurance based on actual hours scheduled to be worked for Regular Part-Time Employees
working at least twenty-one (21) hours but less than thirty (30) hours per workweek.
Employees working 30 hours or more are eligible for benefits equaling that provided to regular
full-time employees. Employer agrees to pay $40.000 in Life and Accidental Death and
Dismemberment (AD&D) for the employee for the term of this Agreement.

For Employees hired before July 1. 2014, the Employer agrees to pay one hundred percent
(100%) of the monthly premiums for health insurance base plan for the Employee’s
dependents (up to age 26) and one-hundred percent (100%) for the Employce’s spouse who
is not eligible for government-sponsored (c.g.. Medicare, Medicaid. Veterans Administration)
or employer-sponsored health insurance coverage. Effective May 1, 2012 if the Employee’s
spouse is eligible for any other govermment-sponsored or employer- sponsored health
insurance coverage. the Employee may choose to cover his/her spouse on Employer’s plan
for a charge equal to fifty (50%) percent of the cost of the spouse’s coverage.

a. Each Employee shall provide on a County-provided affidavit to the Personnel office

annual certification stating whether his/her spouse is eligible for any other
government-sponsored or employer-sponsored health insurance coverage.

Page 20 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

b. In the event that the AFSCME Comstock Chapter General Employees™ Association or
the Storey County Sherdfs—Office—Emplovees—Association—NAPSOFirefighters
Association (Fire District). and/or any other collective bargaining unit recognized by
the Employer negotiates a higher level of spousal and/or dependent coverage than is
provided in this Article. or that said level of coverage is offered to any employees
excluded from coverage by collective bargaining agreement (with exception of those
subject to statutory requirements), the Union under this Agreement may negotiate this
Article.

4. For newly hired Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, spouses and dependents are not
eligible for Employer contributions toward health insurance coverage.

a. For the purposes of this Article. “newly hired” Employees shall not include: any
Employee continuously employed by Storey County er—the—Storey—County—¥ire
Pretection-Distretin any position (including but not limited to any elected, part-time,
intermittent. or seasonal positions), whose position becomes, or who moves to a
position that is or becomes, eligible for health insurance benefits: any Employee who
has had a break in service of no more than 18 months for any reason.

b. In the event that the AFSCME Comstock Chapter General Employees” Association or
the Storev County Firefighter's Association IAFF. and/or any other collective
bargaining unit recognized by the Employer negotiates a higher level of spousal and/or
dependent coverage than is provided in this Article. or that said level of coverage is
offered to any employees excluded from coverage by collective bargaining agreement
(with exception of those subject to statutory requirements), the Union under this
Agreement may negotiate this Article.

5. Emplevee—As allowed by law and without federal penalties to the employer, an emplovee
may opt out of Employer-paid health insurance coverage and accordingly may receive fifty
percent (50%) of the prcmlum thdl the Empluycr would hdu. pald for Fmplmce only base
planc.ou.rage Py e W a-4a ovided-affida 3 ployee-and

Formatted: Font Not Italic, No underline, Font color:
Auto

e ny Formatted: Font: Not Italic, No underline, Font color:
v1da,d Auto

maintain minimum ntial health covera er than cover: urch in the individual
market and Medicare, as require the Affordable Care Act.

The Employer shall offer Retirees, as defined under NRS Chapter 286. the option to continue
6—coverage as required under NRS Chapter 287. Payment shall be made by the Employer "——{_Formalted: Indent: Left: 0.31%, First line: 0" ]
regardless of the insurance provider elected by the Retiree to provide coverage: however. the
Employer's responsibility for payment shall be capped at the amount the Employer would be
required to pay il the Retiree elected coverage with the insurance provider designated under

Page 21 of




202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County
the Public Employees' Benefits Program (PEBP). Retirces not electing coverage with the
insurance provider designated under PEBP shall be responsible for the payment of any excess
difference in cost for the coverage elected. Employer contributions to retiree coveragee.

Page 22 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent Left 031" ]
b s Li 3 "
will stop at age 65 or when the Retiree becomes eligible for Medicare Part A and Part B ;:;:_";:‘1 List Rargraph tndent Laft 037 naee
7.6.1egal Liability - NRS Chapter 41 shall apply to represented employees. as appropriate.
ARTICLE 14: RETIREMENT
I Eligibility: Employees covered by this Agreement shall be included in the State of Nevada
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) providing benefits pursuant- to -NRS
Chapter 286.
2 Contributions: The Employer will pay retirement contributions for Employees covered
under this agreement as -required by NRS 286. No provision of this Article shall be
deemed to waive any provision of Chapter 286 of NRS in respect to “Early Retirement”.
ARTICLE 15: UNIFORMS
+—Jnitial Uniforms_and Duty Gear: New-Employees—covered-by-this-Agreement shall-be Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1,2 3,.. + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

; " ’ Formatted: List Paragraph, Space Before: O pt,
1 MUniferms/duty-gear—$ 1100 00 will be provided to all new hires for the purchase of required uniforms

Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,3, .. +
boots, duty gear and other required items as outlined in SCSO policy, —and for other duty gear and Startat: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 025" +
r SC licy an roved by the Shenff Jf 1

Indent at: 0.5°

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, No underline

Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Not Italic, No underline

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

contract for each emplovyee for the purch a duty fi The employe

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.5"

must provide the Sheriff a receipt or other valid documentation of the purchase and use
the subject firearm during the line of  for the duration of thi ment, and the
receipt must show that the firearm wi rchase ing the term of this agreement.
The t ¢, and model of the firearm must meet the requirements of the Sheriff for
duty officers.

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.57", Right: 0.28", Space

- . Before: 0 pt, No bullets or numbering, Tab stops:
a.  1- snowsuit, type to be determined by the Sheriff. A snowsuit will not be issued=. 0.57", Left + Notat 107"

to the Employee until after sthe submits to the Sheriff in-writing that s/he desires a

.lA. -

Formatted: Font 12 pt

Stowault, Formatted: Right: 0", Numbered + Level: 2
o - o or 1acke : Right: 07, Nu + 12+
eb. 1 - cold weather jacket Numbering Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Startat: 1 + Alignment:
d——hat Left + Aligned at: 0.57" « Indent at 0.82"
e<. 2 - badges

Page 23 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

It Body armor - The County shall provide $800 once every five vyears to the Formatted: Font 12 pt

Employee for the cost of purchasing a ballistic body armor vest that s/he will wear Formatted: Nomal, Indent: Left: 0.5, No bullets o
while on-duty. The vest shall meet National Institute of Justice (N1J)._ Level 111 numbering

standards.

The Sheriff shall establish and maintain a vest replacement schedule and shall notify the '—ﬁmn«!: Indent: Left: 0.5

Employee in writing six months prior that his/her vest will expire. The Employee shall
be fully responsible for purchasing of and being fitted for his/her vest. If the purchased
vest becomes damaged in the line of duty. except for damage caused by negligence or
misuse. the Employer will advance the Employee up to $800 for the cost of replacing
that vest with a similar type vest. Within 30 days of purchasing the vest, the Employee
shall provide the Sheriff copies of receipts. and proof that the vest meets NIJ Level 111
standards.

The vest shall be returned to the Sheriff at the time the Employee for any reason leaves "—‘[Formlttcd: Indent: Left: 0.5

employment with the Sheriff's Office and at the time that the Employee receives his/her
new replacement vest. If the Employee does not_

Page 24 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5" _]
return the vest at the time of leaving employment, the full vest allowance provided to
the Employee (cost of vest, and shipping and handling) shall be deducted from any
amount owed to the Employee by the county. If the Employee does not return the expired
or damaged vest within 30 days of receiving the replacement vest, the Employee
shall have the full advanced amount deducted from his/her paycheck in fifty percent
increments over the  next two pay periods.
The Employee shall be required to wear the purchased vest at all times while on-duty. At '-—"[ Formatted: Indent: Left 05" ]
no time may the Employee while on-duty wear a vest that is expired or that does not
otherwise meet NIJ Level I11 and other standards.
——‘ Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left 05", Right 0.28" ‘
b%m%ﬁ(%—l:er—’che—pummse olother feqmred iems. B - Space Before: 0 pt
H Formatted: Highlight J

Formatted: Numbered + Level 2 + Numbering Style:
a b, c ..+ Startat 1+ Alignment Left + Aligned at:
0.57" + Indent at: 0.82°

Formatted: Font 12 pt

Formatnd Normal, No bullets or numbering

v O ra : : Formatted: Normal
Fmphe b W2 50 -hekweampleﬂ«ﬁ-nl-%.\lmmnod Normal, Right: 0%, No bullets or

FHE SR PRI e R numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.07"
ed: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt ]
3—Uniform and Duty Gear Allowance_for Post-Probationary Emplovees: The County will '\ e R J
provide a ‘uniform allowance of $1.100 per year payable at ble at $275 per quarter payable the first l L -
pay date in July, October, January, and April to Employees who have completed one (1) Formatted: Numbered + Level 1 + Numbering Style

1,2,3, ..+ Startat 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

year of employment as a staff member with the Sheriff's Office.

ormatnd Font: 12 pt

A

2
3

Form-ttnd Normal, No bullets or numbering

Z—_With the Sheriff"s validation of a claim, the Employer shall reimburse an emplovee for _the
costs of repairing or replacing watches or prescription eye glasses/contact lenses which Faivnatied: Ust PatagraphL. Indent: Lwf: 057 Right
. - : : : : 0.08", Tab stops: 0.57", Left
arc lost or damaged while the employee is in the performance of his/her duties. provided that
there is notification by the employee to the Sheriff within 7 business days. Reimbursement Formatted: Font: 12 pt
amounts shall be limited to the actual replacement value up to $250.00 per claim for
prescription eyewear and $50.00 per claim for watches. An Employee may only make a claim
up to $300.00 during each fiscal year.-

Page 25 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining

ARTICLE 16:

1.

SCSOEA/Storey County

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

General Provisions-Unpaid Leaves: A leave of absence may be granted to an Employee
in accordance with Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 606 — Leave of Absence
Without Pay.

Investigatory Leaves: Any Employee who is required to discharge a weapon in the line of
duty may forthwith be placed on administrative leave with pay pending investigation of
the incident by the Sheriff. The Sheriff may assign the Employee to other duties where
carrying or use of a weapon is not required until completion of the investigation. If the
Sheriff determines that the weapon used was justified. the Employee shall be restored to
regular duty. If the investigation indicates that the weapon used was not justified, the
Employee may be placed on paid leave. If an administrative action is taken against the
Employee. the Sheriff shall place the Employee on paid leave pending the pre- disciplinary
hearing.

a. Any Employee charged with any criminal act may be placed on unpaid lcave
forthwith pending final disposition of the matter. If the charges are dismissed or the
Employce'sinneeenee is found not guilty at trial. the Employee shall be restored to
regular duty with back pay to the date of suspension if no administrative action is
pending. If administrative action is taken against the Emplovee, restoration of back
pay will occur following the pre- disciplinary hearing on the administrative charges.
Such restoration shall not include back pay for any period assessed as discipline.

Jury Duty: Any Employee called for jury duty shall be granted a leave of absence with pay.
The Employee shall retain any travel pay ordered by the court unless the Employee's travel
has been at County expense. but shall pay any other fees received to the County.  Such
leave shall not be charged against the Employee's vacation credit.

Family and Medical Leave: Family and medical leave for Employees shall be governed
by the provisions of the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and Storey
County Policy and Procedure Number 605 — Family and Medical Leave.

Military Leave: Any Employee who is a member of the organized U.S. Army. Navy, Air
Force, Coast Guard, Nevada National Guard, or Marine Reserves shall continue to receive
paid military lcave as prescribed by NRS 281.145, and any benefits as provided by the
Uniform Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) of 1994.

Employees may choose to use accrued annual leave before taking leave without pay. The
Employer cannot require that annual leave or other personal leave be used. Employees
returning from Military Leave are entitled to any benefits determined by seniority that they
had when their Leave began and to any benefits which would have accrued had they
remained continuously employed. This includes. for example. merit step and seniority. The
Employer shall count the years of Military Leave as if they were years of actual work to
determine the accrual rate of Annual and Sick Leave and to determine the rate of pay if the
rates are based on seniority. Employees do not eam Annual and Sick Leave while on

Page 26 of

"—{Formnted: Indent: Left: 0"

-—

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1,2, 3, .. + Startat: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
0.32" + Indent at: 0.57"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1,2,3, .. + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
0.32" + Indent at: 0.57"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style:
a b, ¢ ..+ Startat 1+ Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
0.82" + Indent at. 107"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1,2, 3, .. + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
0.32" + Indent at: 0.57"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style
1,2, 3, .. + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at.
0.32" + Indent at 0.57"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1, 2,3, ..+ Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
0.32" + Indent at: 0.57"




202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

Military Leave unless other Employees, including those outside of the bargaining unit,
are allowed to do so.

This Article recognizes that the USERRA and NRS 281.145 governing paid military
leave provide hours to the Employee equivalent to 15 working days of paid military leave
in a 12-month period beginning January 1 and ending December 31 of each year (i.e.. the
calendar year). This Article recognizes that 15 days means 15 regularly scheduled shifts
regardless of the number of hours in a regular shift. The Employer recognizes that the
applicable regulations intend to provide “hours™ equivalent to 15 “workdays™ and.
therefore, fractions of davs taken are deducted in hour increments._

For example, Emplovees working regular 10-hour shifts are entitled to an equivalent of
15 working days of paid military leave, and this equates to 150 hours of leave within a 12-
month period. Employees working regular 8-hour shifts are also entitled to an equivalent
of 15 working days of paid military lcave, and this equates to 120 hours of —leave in the
same period.

ARTICLE 17: LAYOFF PROCEDURE

2

Position to be Eliminated: If the County determines the need for a reduction in its work force
for lack of work or lack of funds, the Sheriff. County Manager and Personnel Director
(Committee) will determine the positions to be eliminated and the Employees to be laid-off
within each affected job class. Written notice of not less than thirty (30) calendar days shall
be provided to regular Employees to be laid-off.

Order of Layoff:

a. Initially the Committee shall consider Employees for layoff in the inverse order of
seniority.

b. When selecting which Employee will be laid-off, the Committee will review the
qualifications of the Employee with the least seniority in the affected job class. If the
Committee finds an Employee with less seniority has qualifications which are needed by
the SherifT’s Office and those qualifications arc cqual to or greater than those of an
Employee with greater seniority, and the documented performance of the Employee with
lesser seniority is better than that of the more senior Employee, the County may lay-off
the Employee with the higher seniority.

¢. Qualifications to be considered in determining exceptions to seniority order shall include
knowledge, skill, ability. and certificates required for job functions to be assigned to the
remaining stall, as well as previous experience in performing the essential functions and
job performance. Job performance shall be determined on the basis of the Employee's
record of job performance as documented in the Emplovee's personnel file at least forty-
five (45) calendar days prior to the date the County determines a layoft is necessary. This
shall not preclude consideration of discipline consisting of a two (2) day suspension or
more occurring within this period.

Page 27 of

«—{ Formatted: Right: 008"




| 202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOQOEA/Storey County

d. After consideration of seniority within class, qualifications, and performance, any ties

shall be broken by total seniority within the department. Time spent in other County
departments or as a County volunteer and/or reserve is specifically excluded in
computing time for purposes of determining seniority.

An Employee who was initially hired by the SherifT into a class with a lower rank than
his/her current class shall have the right to bump an Employee in such lower class if s/he
has more seniority in the lower class. Such bumping rights may be exercised subject to
the Sheriff's review of performance and qualifications outlined above.

3. Appeal Procedure:

Notice of Appeal: In the event that an Employee who has been laid-off out of seniority
order believes the decision based upon performance and/or qualification is incorrect, s/he
may request that the Union appeal the Sheriff's determination. If the Union finds there 1s
good reason to believe that the Sheriff has erred in his/her decision, it may appeal through
the process set forth in this Article. Such appeal shall be filed within five (5) working
days of delivery of the layoff notice to the Employee.

Appeal Review Committee: When an appeal is filed, the Union shall identify two (2)
persons to serve on a review commitiee at the time of the appeal. The Sheriff shall then
appoint two (2) persons to the committee. Each of the persons appointed to the appeal
committee shall be familiar with the work of the department and with the job class from
which layoff is to be made. The appeal committee shall meet within five (5) days of
delivery of the notice of appeal to the County. It shall review the basis for the Sheriff's
layoff decision and the reasons the Employee believes the decision is in error. The appeal
committee shall then determine whether the Sheriff's decision was reasonable and on that
basis either confirm or reject the Shenff's decision.

If the appeal committee cannot reach an agreement regarding the Sheriffs decision
regarding order of layoff. it shall, within three (3) days of its initial meeting. request the
participation of a federal mediator. The services of the mediator will be jointly requested
by the County and the Union on an urgent basis. The mediator shall seek to achieve a
consensus decision among the appeal commitiee members. 1f none is reached. the
mediator shall become a voting member of the appeal committee.

The determination of the appeal committee regarding the appropriate order of layofT shall
be final and binding and may not be grieved or appealed.

The fees and expenses of the mediator shall be shared equally by the Union and the
County. Each party however. shall bear the costs of its own presentation. including
preparation and post-hearing briefs and legal fees. if'any.

4. Recall Rights: Laid-off Employees will have a right to return to a vacancy in the same class
and department from which they were laid-off. Recall shall be in inverse order of layoff.

Page 28 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

a. Recall List: Employees shall remain on the recall list for one (1) year following the date
of layoff: provided, however, laid-off Employees shall be removed from the recall listif:

i. They decline appointment to a position in the same department and in a class at the
same wage range as the position from which their layoff occurred; or

ii. They fail to report for duty within fifieen (15) calendar days of mailing of notice of
recall to County employment.

b—Recall Notice: Notice of recall or available position may be made in person or by U.S.
Mail, return receipt requested. It is the responsibility of each laid off Employee to notify
the Sheriff of his/her current address.

b. . Formatted: Font 13 pt
Formatted: List Paragraph, Right. 0.08", Numbered +
ARTICLE 18: CHANGE OF ASSIGNMENT AND JOB VACANCIES Level: 2 + Numbering Style:a, b, ¢, .. + Startat 1+

Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.32" + Indent at: 0.57%,
Tab stops: 0.57", Left

1. An Employee whose regular assignment is changed shall be given thirty (30) days of notice
of the reassignment. Notice is not required when change is required to serve the publicin - an
emergency.

2. During the first week of January and July of cach year, Employees will be permitted to
notify the Sheriff of their preference for work shifts. The Sheriff will consider staff preferences
in order of seniority, but shall retain full authority to make shift assignments. Employees will
be permitted to trade shifts or days off with the proper approval of their respective supervisor.

3. For purposes of this Article, seniority is determined by the total consecutive time spent in
the current job assignment (patrol, detention, investigations). If seniority is otherwise equal,
a choice must be made on the total time spent with the Sheriff's Office second by total time
spent with the County, and third by lot. In computing time for purposes of determining
seniority, only time spent during current continuous County service will be counted. Leave
without pay over thirty (30) days is not counted. Part-time employment must be prorated to
its full-time equivalent. Time spent in other County departments or as a County volunteer
and/or reserve is specifically excluded in computing time for purposes of determining
seniority.

Page 29 of



| 202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 19.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION

2

General Policy: Discipline shall be administered or imposed on a basis of progressive
punishment. No discipline shall be imposed except for cause. All discipline shall be
accompanied by counseling which may assist the Employee in correcting past performance
deficiencies or behavior. Authorized discipline shall range from Documented Verbal
Warning up to and including Termination of employment with the County. The initial form
of discipline and punishment shall be appropriate to the seriousness of the initial offense or
condition,

FForms of Discipline:

a

Documented Verbal Warning: Whenever Employee performance or job-related behavior
falls below the acceptable level, the Employee's supervisor shall inform the Employee of
the deficiencies using Storey County Policy and Procedure Form 1001F. Documented
Verbal Warnings shall remain in the Employee’s master personnel file for twelve (12)
months, afler which it shall be removed from the Employee’s record upon the written
request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and approval of the Personnel Director.
The Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to the Employee of the action
taken.

Written Reprimand: In situations where a Documented Verbal Warning has not resulted
in correction of the condition, or where more severe initial action is warranted, the
Employee’s supervisor shall inform the Employee of the deficiencies using Storey
County Policy and Procedure Form 1001F1. A Written Reprimand shall remain in the
Employee's master personnel file for eighteen (18) months, after which the Written
Reprimand shall be removed from the Employee’s record upon the written request of
the Employee directly to the Sheriff and »alidation-approval of the Personnel Director.
The Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to the Employee of the action
taken.

Suspension: If the Written Reprimand is not effective, or in those cases where the
seriousness of the offense or condition warrants, an Employee may be Suspended without
pay by the Sheriff for a period not to exceed forty-five (45) working days. Documentation
supporting the Suspension shall remain in the Employee’s master personnel file for
twenty-four (24) months. after which the documentation shall be removed from the
Emplovee’s record upon the written request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and
vakdation-approval of the Personnel Director. The Personnel- Director will- provide
written confirmation to the Employee of the action taken.

Pay Reduction: If other forms of disciplinary or corrective action have proven ineffective,
or when the seriousness of the offense or condition warrants, the Sheriff may reduce
pay by no more than one Merit Step in the Employee’s current pay Grade. The date that
the Employee's pay reduction takes effect shall establish a new Anniversary Date.
Documentation establishing the cause for the pay reduction shall remain in the
Employee’s master personnel file for twenty-four (24) months, —afier —which the
supporting documentation shall be removed from the Employee’s record

Page 30 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

upon the written request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and validatien-approval
of the Personnel Director. The Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to
the Employee of the action taken.

e Involuntary Demotion: When other forms of disciplinary or corrective action have proven

inefTective, or when the seriousness of the offense or condition warrants, the Sheriff may
demote the Employee. Rejection on probation following promotion is not discipline.
Documentation establishing the cause for the Involuntary Demotion shall remain in the
Employee’s master personnel file for twenty-four (24) months, after  which the
supporting documentation shall be removed from the Employee’s record upon the
written request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and approval of the Personnel
Director. The Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to the Employee of
the action taken.

{  Termination: As a final disciplinary measure when other forms -of ~discipline or
corrective action have proven ineffective, or when the seriousness of the offense or
condition warrants, the Sheriff may Terminate an Employee.

¢ Suspensions of | to 3 days: Suspensions of one (1) to three (3) days may be appealed to
Level I of the Grievance Procedure (Article 20). If the Grievant is not satisfied with the
decision rendered by the Sheriff, the Grievant may within ten (10) working days of that
decision request to the Personnel Director that the Grievance is advanced to mediation.
Within ten (10) working days of the Personnel Director receiving the Grievant's request
that the matter is advance to mediation, the parties shall request a mediator through the
Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) to hear the Grievance. The parties
shall attempt to hold a mediation session within twenty (20) days after contact with the
FMCS. This- timeline shall -be extended based on the schedule of the mediator or by
mutual consent of the parties. In the event a mediated decision cannot be reached. the
Mediator shall. considering the evidence presented, issue a bench decision- that- the
parties agree to implement and which shall be final and binding.

Notice of Suspension, Involuntary Demotion, or Dismissal: All notices of Suspension,
Involuntary Demotion, or Dismissal shall be given to the Employee in-writing, specifying the
action to be taken. the grounds upon which the action is based, including specification of
standards, rules, regulations or policies violated, if applicable, and the date of action taken.
The specification of charges shall include a statement of facts constituting conduct for which
discipline is to be imposed, together with a statement of specification of standards, specific
rules, regulations, ordinances, laws, policies or performance standards, if applicable, which
the Employee is alleged to have violated. The notice shall include a statement that the
Employee has five (5) working days to meet with the Sheriff to discuss the proposed action.
The specification of charges shall be signed by the Sheriff or his/her designee. The Sheriff
shall not suspend, involuntarily demote, or dismiss an Employee without giving ten (10)
working days of notice prior to the action being taken.

a The Sheriff may serve notice upon an Employee by mail or personal service. If mailed.

notice shall be mailed to the Emplovee at his/her last known address by USPS Certified
Mail Return Receipt Requested. Receipt shall be deemed the date of first attempt of

Page 31 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

4

delivery as indicated on the Return Receipt. Should notice be returned to sender, receipt
shall be deemed to be on the third day after the date of mailing of the notice.

b. The Employee. who may be accompanied by a Union representative, shall be allowed to
meet with the Sheriff to review the charges. The Employee shall be given an opportunity
to state his/her position as to whether there are true and reasonable grounds for the
proposed action. The discipline may be postponed to allow for the consideration of
evidence the Employee produced and/or for further investigation of the Employee's
response.

Administrative Leave During Disciplinary Proceeding: In cases of contemplated Discharge or
Suspension concerning misconduct which presents possible harm to persons or property.  or
pending criminal charges which adversely and directly affect the County or substantially
disrupt County operations, the Sheriff may place an Employee on Administrative Leave, with
pay. pending an investigation prior to or during a disciplinary proceeding. or during the
review of the Employee’s response to a proposed disciplinary action. The Employee will be
notificd in-writing of the decision to place him/her on Administrative Leave. The notice will
include a statement that the Administrative Leave is not a disciplinary action.

Appeals of Disciplinary Actions: Within ten (10) days of the date that disciplinary action of
Suspension without pay of four (4) days or longer, Pay Reduction, Involuntary Demotion, or
Dismissal are implemented by the Sheriff, the Union may Appeal said disciplinary action to
Arbitration.

a  The Appeal must be submitted in-writing to the Sheriff and Personnel Director and state
the basis of the Appeal. The Union and the Sheriff shall mutually select a disinterested
third-party to serve as the Arbitrator. In the event an agreement cannot be reached to
select a neutral Arbitrator, the parties agree to solicit a list of seven (7) professional
neutrals with public sector experience from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation
Services (FMCS). and alternately strike names from such list until one (1) name remains.
That remaining person so selected shall serve as the Arbitrator. The party to strike first
shall be determined by lot. Both parties shall make every effort to mutually set forth the
issue(s) to be arbitrated in advance of the Arbitration hearing date. The fees and expenses
of the Arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Union and the County. Each party. however,
shall bear the costs of its own presentation, including preparation and post- hearing
briefs, and legal fees. if any. The Arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding upon both
parties.

Page 32 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 20. GRIEVANCE/ARBITRATION PROCEDURES
1. Definitions:

a. Grievance: A Grievance is claimed violation, misapplication. or misinterpretation
of this Agreement or rules. regulations. and policies of the Employer governing
matters within the scope of mandatory bargaining pursuant to NRS 288. Informal
discussions and attempts to resolve the matter prior to filing a formal grievance
are excluded.

b. Grievant: A grievant is an Employee or group of Employees who are covered by
the provisions of this Agreement and who believe they have been adversely affected
by an act or formal decision of the Employer occasioning the grievance. and who
file a grievance. The Union may be the grievant if an act or formal decision of the
Employer which is alleged to be a grievance directly relates to a Union activity or
privilege addressed in this Agreement.

¢. Day: Day shall mean a weekday, Monday through Friday. excluding holidays.

d. Grievance Screening Committee shall consist of any three (3) current members of
the Board of Directors of the Storey County Sheriff”s Office Employee Association.

2. Rights of Representation: With the consent of the aggrieved Employcee(s). one (1) Union
representative shall be present for any meeting, hearing, appeal. or other proceeding
between the Employer and the grievant relating to a grievance that has been filed pursuant
to this Article,

a. 1f. in the judgment of the Union. a gricvance affects a group of Employees or the
Union, the Union may initiate and file such grievance with the Personnel Director
and the processing of such grievance shall commence at Level 1. The Union may
process such a grievance through all levels of the procedure.

3. Individual Rights: Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of
any Employee having a complaint to discuss the matter with the appropriate supervisor(s).
and to have the matter resolved without the intervention of the Union, as long as the Union
has had, at the request of the Employee, the opportunity to be present  at such discussions,

4. Informal Resolution: Within fifteen (15) working days from the event giving rise to a
grievance or from the date the Employee(s) could reasonably have been expected to have
had knowledge of such event. the Employee shall orally discuss the grievance with his/her
immediate supervisor. A supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to provide a decision
to the Employee.

Page 33 of



| 202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

a.

The Unions Grievance Screening Committee shall convene within  ten  (10)
working days from the date the Supervisor provides or should provide a decision
to the Employee. The Grievance Screening Committee shall screen grievances to
determine if there is valid cause to proceed to a Formal Level Grievance.

Should the Grievance Screening Committee determine there is no valid cause to
proceed to a Formal Level Grievance, the Grievant shall still have the right to
proceed; however, they will not have the support of the Union.

5. Formal Levels:

Level I If a Grievant is not satisfied with the resolution proposed at the informal
level, s/he may. within ten (10) working days of the receipt of such decision, file a
formal written Grievance with the Shenff, describing the Grievance. the specific
section(s) of this Agreement. or County or Sheriff's Office rules. regulations,
and/or policies allegedly violated. and the remedy requested. The Sheriff may
have a meeting with the Grievant, and within ten (10) working days of receiving
the Grievance provide a written decision to the Grievant.

i If the Sheriff fails to respond within ten (10) working days of receiving the
Grievance. the Grievance. if non-monetary. shall be granted in the
Grievant's favor. If the Grievance contains a request for a monetary remedy:
the Grievance shall automatically advance to Level 1L

Level 11, If the Grievant is not satisfied with the resolution proposed at the informal
level, gr the grievance includes a request of monetary related correction, s/he may,

/{ Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Auto

within ten (10) working days of the receipt of such  decision, file a written appeal
to the Personnel Director. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written
appeal, the Personnel Director shall respond with a decision to the grievance or with
a recommendation to proceed or not proceed to Level 111

Level I11: If the Gricvant is not satisfied with the decision rendered by the Sheriff,
the Grievant may within ten (10) working days of that decision request to the
Personnel Director that the Grievance is advanced to mediation. Within ten (10)
working_davs of the Personnel Director receiving the Grievant's request that the
matter is advanced to mediation, the parties shall request a mediator through the
Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) to hear the Grievance. The
parties shall attempt to hold the mediation session within twenty (20) days after

contact with the FMCS. This timeline shall be extended based on the schedule of

the mediator or by mutual consent of the parties. If the parties cannot reach a
mediated resolution, either or both parties may request a recommendation from the
mediator. Nothing occurring in mediation may be refereed to or introduced during
Arbitration.

Level IV: In the event that the parties cannot reach a mediated resolution at Level

111, the Grievance may be submitted to Arbitration for resolution. The Grievant or
the Union shall exercise the right to Arbitration by giving the Personnel Director

Page 34 of

Formatted: Font color: Auto




202017-20220 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

written notice of intent to arbitrate within ten (10) working days from the date of
receipt of the mediator’s recommendation(s). If any question arises as to the ability
to arbitrate the grievance, and the Grievant or the Union has decided to proceed.
the following apply:

If the grievance is a claimed violation, misapplication. or misinterpretation of
this Agreement or rules, regulations, or policies as defined in Section 1(a) of
this Article not resulting in a verbal warning. written reprimand, or
suspension of 1 to 3 days. such question shall first be ruled upon by the
Arbitrator sclected to hear the dispute.

If the grievance is a claimed violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of
this Agreement or rules, regulations. or policies as defined in Section I(a) of
this Article resulting in a verbal warning, written reprimand, or suspension of
1 to 3 days. a mediator through the FMCS shall consider the evidence
presented by both parties regarding the claimed violation, misapplication, or
misinterpretation and make a recommendation that the parties will accept as
final and binding.

A decision that is final and binding for the parties to proceed or not proceed
to Arbitration.

i Within ten (10) working days after the Personnel Director receives the
written notice of intent to Arbitrate. The Employer and the Grievant. or
the Union, will attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable Arbitrator,
and to obtain a commitment from such Arbitrator to serve. If the parties
are unable to agree upon an Arbitrator, or to obtain a commitment to
serve from the agreed-upon Arbitrator within the ten (10) working day
period, a request for a list of seven (7) arbitrators may be made by
either party to the FMCS. Within five (5) working days of receipt of the
list, each party shall alternately strike names from the list, and the name
remaining shall be the Arbitrator. The party to strike first shall be
determined by a toss of the coin. The parties shall be bound by the rules
and procedures of the American Arbitration Association in the selection
of an Arbitrator.

ii. The Arbitrator shall therealier confer promptly with the parties, shall
set and hold hearings. and shall issue a written decision setting forth the
Arbitrator's findings of fact, conclusions of law, and decision within
thirty (30) working days from the date of the conclusion of all hearings
on the matter arbitrated. The Arbitrator's written decision shall be
consistent with the law and the terms of this Agreement and shall be
final and binding upon the parties. The Arbitrator's authority shall be
limited to the application and interpretation of the provisions of this
Agreement and any related rules, regulations, and policies of the
Employer. and no arbitrator shall have the power to modify, amend or
alter any terms or conditions of this Agreement.

Page 35 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

s

Arbitration Costs: The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be shared equally by the
Emplover and the Union. Each party shall bear the costs of its own presentation
including. but not limited to, witness fees and expenses, preparation, pre- and post-
hearing briefs, and legal fees, if any.

If a court reporter is requested by either party, the requesting party shall pay the costs of
the reporter. If the record is transcribed, the requesting party will pay the transcription
costs unless the parties mutually agree to share the cost. Any party desiring a copy of the
transcription will pay the costs for the copy. If the Arbitrator requires a reporter and
transcript. the parties will share the cost equally.

Jurisdiction of the Arbitrator: The arbitrator shall decide all substantive and procedural
issues. Upon request of either party, and in the discretion of the Arbitrator, the merits of a
grievance and the substantive and procedural issues arising in connection with the
grievance shall be consolidated for hearing. The decision of the Arbitrator may be enforced
in any court of competent jurisdiction.

General Provisions:

a. Ifthe Grievant fails to carry his/her grievance forward to the next level within the
prescribed time period. the grievance shall be considered settled based upon the
decision rendered at the most recent step utilized.

b. The Grievant may be represented by a person of his/her choice at any level of this
procedure.

c. Nothing contained herein shall preclude an Employee. with or without
representation, from bringing a matter not addressed herein through the chain of
command to the Personnel Director.

d. Proof of service shall be accomplished by Certified Mail or personal service
evidenced by a notarized affidavit of service.

10. Exceptions to Time Limits: The time limits set forth in this Article shall be strictly

observed, unless extended by written agreement of the Union and the Employer or
otherwise excused for just cause.

a. A Grievance alleging errors in wages which are ongoing shall be deemed
continuing and all subsequent errors shall relate back to and be incorporated
within the Grievance alleging the errors in the first instance.

b. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any grievance filed prior to
expiration may be processed through the grievance procedure to resolution.

11. Proof of service shall be accomplished by certified mail or personal service.

Page 36 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 21: MISCELLANEOUS

(5%

Safety: The County shall make every reasonable effort to provide all safety equipment and
maintain safe conditions of employment. Employees shall be alert to unsafe practices.
equipment or conditions and report same to their immediate supervisor in writing. The
supervisor will provide an initial response to all such reports within three (3) days of receiving
the Employee's written notice. A written response will be provided within ten (10) days. The
County agrees to pay for a standard testing procedure to test for HIV/AIDS for an Employee
who. within the scope of the Employee's normal duties, has been exposed to - HIV/AIDS and
could reasonably be viewed as posing a legitimate threat. The County agrees to pay for
Hepatitis B vaccinations for all Employees covered by this Agreement who consent to the
vaccination and who make an affirmative request for the vaccination.

Communicable Disease: In the event an officer covered under this Agreement or his/her
supervisor suspects that, as a result of the course of duty. s/he has been exposed to or is the
carrier of a serious communicable disease, the deputy may be relieved of duty without the
loss of any pay or sick leave and shall be taken to a local emergency hospital for diagnosis
and treatment. [t shall be the responsibility of the supervisor to determine if or when the
deputy is permitted to leave duty for this purposc.

a The deputy shall be provided with preventive measures designed to protect the deputy
against communicable diseases. These measures  shall include, but are not limited to.
vaccines and blood tests; medical equipment such as gloves, masks. and other products;
and equipment and procedures that are intended to detect. prevent, or impede
communicable discase. Participation in any medical procedures, such as vaccination and
testing. shall be at the discretion of the deputy. The Storey County Sherifl™s office shall
not be held responsible for any consequences to the officer as a result of the deputy
having or not having received any vaccinations or test.

Personnel Files: The Employer will maintain a master personnel file on each Employee. The
Emplover shall maintain only one (1) set of files on each Employee: the Personnel Office
shall maintain said files. Any Employee has the right to review his/her master personnel file
upon request to the Personnel Office. Reasonable advance notice will be provided. This right
is limited to the individual Employee to review his/her own personnel file. However, an
Employee may. with proper release forms, permit his/her personnel file to be reviewed by a
party so authorized, upon presentation of properly executed forms to the Personnel Office.
which form shall be developed by the Personnel Office. Except as provided herein, only
those authorized persons working in the Personnel Office. the Employee's Supervisor, and
the Sheriff shall have access to an Employee's master personnel file. In addition, the Employer's
authorized attorney(s) shall have the right to access an Employee's files for  legitimate
personnel purposes related to discipline. complaints, grievances, arbitrations, and lawsuits
involving the Employee.

Rights of Peace Officers: The County expressly recognizes the provisions of NRS Chapter
289 "Rights of Peace Officers."

Page 37 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

5. Personal Property: Subject to the approval of the Sheriff, the County will pay one-half (1/2)
the cost of replacing an Employee's prescription eyeglasses/contact lenses damaged in the line
of duty to the extent not covered by insurance.

6. Participative Management Committee: A Committee of the Management and the Union, not
to exceed three (3) representatives each, shall meet semi-annually or more frequently ~ when
mutually agreed. The meetings will be held on mutually agreed dates and times for the purpose

of”

a

b.

Discussing the administration of this Agreement;
Exchanging general information of interest to the parties:

Giving the bargaining unit representatives the opportunity to share views of their
members and/or make suggestions on subjects to their members:

Review and analyze replacement and new cquipment for quality, safety and
functionality of future equipment purchases.

7. Education and Development: An Employee will be reimbursed for educational training
courses taken afler written approval from the Sheriff.

a The training must be related to the required skills or education for the Employee's

current position or to a logical career path with the Employer.

Only a bargaining unit Employee will be eligible for reimbursement for course work
after successful completion of the Employee’s probationary period. Further eligibility
may be determined by the Sheriff in accordance with the departmental training program.

No Employee will be reimbursed more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2.000.00) per
fiscal ycar. There will be no reimbursement if the cost is assumed by any other
institution, scholarship. or grant-in-aid.

Reimbursable expenses shall be restricted to tuition and course fees. While courses
shall be normally taken on the Employee's own time, exception may be granted by
the Sheriff. in which case hours from work will cause no adverse impacts to his/her
dutics and other Employees in the workplace. and which hours from work must be
deducted from camed Vacation or be recorded as an unpaid excused absence.

To obtain reimbursement, the course must be taken from a recognized and accredited
college. university, or training institution. The Employee shall provide valid evidence
that s/he completed the course with a minimum grade of “B™ ecighty percent. If the
course is of a nature that no grade is given (i.e.. pass or fail), the Employee must
provide to the Employer a certificate of completion or other valid documentation
showing satisfactory passage of the courses.

Page 38 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

£ The employee shall receive the regular rate of pay during training and education
which takes place during the employee’s regular schedule shift period and otherwise
as required by the federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

8. Shift Trades: Represented Employees may request to trade shifts in the event that it does not
interfere with the operation of the Sheriff's Office. Employees who trade shifts must occupy
the same job assignment and otherwise be qualified to perform the duties of the job assignment.

a  No obligation, financial or otherwise of any nature, shall accrue to the Employer  on
account of such shift trades. Therefore, hours worked by an Employee working a
shift as the result of a shift trade shall be excluded from any overtime calculation.
However, the regularly scheduled Emplovee shall be compensated as if s/he had
worked his/her normal schedule for the traded shifi.

b. Where Overtime is required as the result of an Employee's inability to fill a shift
trade, the Employee failing to fill a shift shall have his/her Annual Leave balance
reduced up to twelve (12) hours or up to eighteen (18) hours if Overtime payment is
required.

¢ Three-way shift trades are prohibited except under emergency conditions, as
determined by a Supervisor.

d A maximum of one hundred twenty (120) hours of shift trades per calendar year,
per Employee will be permitted. Shift trades shall not interfere with the operation,
administration, or safety of the Sheriff's Office.

¢ Nothing herein shall be construed to diminish the Employer's management rights
under NRS 288 or the Management Rights clause hereof.

ARTICLE 22: CATASTROPHIC LEAVE

I.  Definitions: Catastrophe means the Employee -is unable to perform the duties of his/her
position including a reasonable era-modified duty assignment because of a serious illness
or aeeident—_injury to the Emplovee and/or an immediate family member (within the
Iirstseeend degree of consanguinity or affinity) which is life threatening or which will
require a lengthy convalescence. Lengthy convalescence -means a period of disability that
an attending physician expects to exceed ten (10) weeks.

2 Establishing the Catastrophic Leave Account: The Sheriff's- Office may cstablish an
account for Catastrophic Leave for Sheriff's Office Employees. All Employees of the
Sheriff's Office who are eligible to use Sick Leave, whether or not the positions they
occupy are part of the bargaining unit of this Agreement, may use the Leave from the
Catastrophic Leave account and/or donate to this account. Donations to and withdrawals
from this account are restricted to Employees of the Sheriff's Office.

a  An Employee may request, in writing, that a specified number of hours of his/her

accrued Annual or Sick Leave be transferred from his/her account to the Catastrophic
Leave account.

Page 39 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

b. Sick and Annual Ieave will be transferred at the rate of one hour for one hour credit
donated —consistent with the provisions of NRS 245. Donated time will be converted
to a dollar amount based upon the donating Employee's current base hourly rate of pay.
When an Employee is given Leave, the Catastrophic Leave account will be reduced by
an amount determined by multiplying the receiving Employee's current base rate of pay
by the number of hours received.

¢ The minimum number of hours which may be transferred is eight (8)- hours. An
Employee may not transfer Sick Leave to the Catastrophic Leave account if the balance
of his/her account after the transfer is less than two hundred forty (240) hours. Leave
will be placed in a pool; however, the Employee may transfer hours to the catastrophic
leave account for use by a particular Employee who has been determined to be eligible
to receive the Leave.

d.  Any hours of Annual or Sick Leave which are transferred from any Employee's account
to the Catastrophic Leave account may not be returned or restored to that Employee.
This subsection does not prevent the Employee from receiving Leave pursuant to section
4 of this Article.

3. Request for Catastrophic Leave: An Employee who is himself/herself affected by a
catastrophe or an immediate family member (within the first degree of consanguinity)
affected by a catastrophe as defined in paragraph (1) may request to the Sheriff, in-writing.
that a specified number of hours of Leave be transferred from the Catastrophic Leave

a The request must include:

i. The Emplovee's name, title, and classification: and

ii. A physician’s statement of the limitations which prevent the Employee from
being available for work and the expected duration of the limitations.

b.  An Employee may not receive any Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account until
s/he has used all his/her accrued Annual, Sick, and other paid Leave. If an
Employee has requested leave from the Catastrophic Leave account within the
previous three (3) years. the Employee may not receive any leave from the
Catastrophic Leave account until s/he has been off work for forty (40) consecutive
hours and has used all his/her accrued Sick, Annual, and other paid Leave.

¢.__An Employee who receives Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account is entitled

to payment for that [eave at a rate no greater than his/her own rate of pay.

——The maximum number of hours that may be granted to an emplovee shall be 480 Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Font color: Text 1

hours per rolling calendar vear. Any requests for an exception to this limit must be
approved by the Sheriff and the Administrative Officer/Personnel Director.

ed

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.82", Right: 0.08", Space
Before: 9.2 pt, Add space between paragraphs of the
same style, No widow/orphan control, Don't adjust
space between Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space
between Asian text and numbers, Tab stops: 1.07", Left

Page 40 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County
4. Approval of Transferring the Catastrophic Leave: The Sheriff may approve the transfer of
a specified number of hours of Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account to the account

of any Employee who is eligible to receive such Leave.

Page 41 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

6.

a The decision of the Sheriff concerning the approval of Leave is final and is not
subject to the Grievance procedure. judicial review, or review by the Board of
County Commissioners.

Review of Status of Catastrophe: Termination of Leave: Disposition of Hours Not Used:
The Sheriff shall review the status of the limitations of the Employee and determine when
the limitations no longer exist. This determination is final and not subject to the Grievance
procedure, judicial review. or review by the Board of County Commissioners.

a  The Sheriff shall not grant any hours of Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account
after:

1. The limitations cease to exist; or

il. The Employee who is receiving the Leave resigns or his/her employment
with the County is terminated.

b. Any Leave which is received from the Catastrophic Leave account which was not
used at the time the limitations cease to exist or upon the resignation or
termination of the emplovment of the Employee must be returned to  the
Catastrophic Leave account.

Maintenance of Records on Catastrophic Leave: The Sheriff shall maintain the records
and report to the Union any information concerning the use of a Catastrophic Leave
account.

Substantiation of Limitations: The Sheriff or his/her designee may require writien
substantiation of the limitations and expected duration by a physician of his/her choosing.
The cost of such written substantiation shall be borne by the Sheriff’s Office.

ARTICLE 23: SERVICE CONNECTED DISABILITY

All eligible members shall be covered by a workers compensation program of the county’s
choice that conforms with the provisions of the Nevada Industrial Insurance Act (NRS 616) and
the Nevada Occupational Disease Act (NRS 617) and that provides for payment of industrial
accident benefits and compensation for partial and total disability arising from industrial injuries
and occupational discases.

In the event an employee is absent from work due to a service-connected disability,
approved pursuant to NRS 616 or 617, a supplemental amount from the county will be
provided which would cause the total amount received by the employee from the service-
connected disability and the county to equal his/her wages at the time of his/her disability.
The supplemental compensation will start from the first day of absence or illness. but shall
not exceed 60 calendar days for the same incident. During this period, the employee shall
not forfeit any accrued sick leave. Successful completion of'the

Page 42 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

probationary period is required in order to qualify for the supplemental compensation
from the county.

2. It is the intent of the county to pay on-the-job injured employees (as outlined in this
section) the difference between full biweekly wages and that provided pursuant to NRS
616 and 617 covering the period enumerated in Section 1 of this Article. No
supplemental benefits shall be paid until after the employee’s lost-time benefit check has
been deposited with the County Treasurer.

3. If an employee who is entitled to disability compensation has not completed his/her
probationary period, or if an employee who has received supplemental compensation for
the maximum 60 calendar days is unable to return to work, s’he may ¢lect to utilize
accrued sick leave, during which period the employee shall receive compensation from
the county as provided by NRS 281.390. If the employee is receiving no compensation
for time missed from work though the workers™ compensation program, the employee
must use leave benefits to fully account for any absence.

4. When accrued sick leave has expired. if the employee is still unable to work and the
employee is receiving compensation for time missed from work though the workers’
compensation program, s/he will be permitted to use his/her accrued annual leave as sick
leave. Subsequent to the expiration of both the employee’s sick and annual leave,
provided that the employee has so elected to use his/her annual leave as sick leave, the
employee’s compensation will be limited to that provided by NRS 617 or 617 and the
employee will be placed in a leave without pay status. However. through written
Justification to the Personnel Director, exceptions to this Article may be approved by the
county manager.

5. As a result of a licensed physician’s evaluation and prognosis. it appears that the
employee will not return to his/her regular county job within a 12-month period. the
county may require a medical separation. Medical separation appeals of employees
covered by this Agreement shall be handled in accordance with the procedures set forth
in Article 45 Grievance Procedures.

ARTICLE 24: PAYROLL DEDUCTION

1. The County shall deduct dues from the salaries of Union members and pay over to the
proper officer of the Union the money so collected on a monthly basis. All payroll
deductions for dues shall only be made in accordance with a voluntary deduction
authorization form individually executed by the Employee for whom the deduction will
be made.

2. The Union shall indemnify, defend. and hold the County harmless against any and all
claims, demands, suits, and all other forms of liability, which might arise out of or by
reason of action taken under the provisions of this Article.

3. The Union shall certify to the County. in writing, the current rate of membership dues.

The County will be notified of any change in the rate of membership dues, in writing,
thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such change.

Page 43 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 25: PERSONNEL PRACTICES

1. Date of Hire is the first day actually worked.

2. Initial Probationary Period: Probationary periods are considered a continuation of the
selection process and apply to all initial appointments. All classifications covered by this
Agreement shall undergo a probationary period of one year from the date of hire.

Time which elapses betw an _offer of t e date the emplove Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Auto
ins workin, aid leave, or tions shall considered workin
time, /[Fon-nm.d: Font color: Auto

)

Rejection During Initial Probation: The Sheriff may terminate (reject) a probationary
Employee at any time during the probationary period without the right of appeal in any
manner and without recourse to the grievance procedure of this Agreement: except when
the Employee alleges and substantiates in writing that the termination was due to
discrimination on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation,

age. disability, pregnancy. ancestrv, veteran's status, domestic partnership, genetic /[Formaﬂed: Font: Not Italic, Font coler: Auto

information. gender identity or expression, political affiliation, membership in Nevada
National Guard, or union affiliation. Grievances based on allegations of discrimination /[Furrmmd: Font color: Auto

shall be processed pursuant to Article 20 of this Agreement and filed directly at Level 2
with the Sheriff within ten (10) days of the notice of termination.

4. The Sheriff shall notify the Employee in writing that s/he is rejected during probation. No
reasons for the action are necessary.

ARTICLE 26: DRUG AND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE

1. Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace & Reasonable Suspicion Drug Testing: Employees
agree to abide by Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 206 — Drug and Alcohol-
Free Workplace.

2. Reasonable Suspicion Drug and Alcohol Testing will be conducted in accordance with
Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 206 — Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
and Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 206A — Vehicle Operators Drug and
Alcohol Policy, as appropriate.

3. Weapons / Use of Deadly Force Incident: Each Employee who accidentally discharges a
firearm while on duty or applies deadly force against a human being will be tested for
drugs and alcohol as soon as possible afler the incident.

a. An Employee who is subject to a post-accident/incident test must remain readily
available for testing. An Employee who leaves the scene before the test is
administered or who does not make him/herself readily available may be deemed
to have refused to be tested, and such refusal shall be treated as a positive test.

Page 44 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County
Further. the Employce. subject 1o a post-accident/incident test, must refrain from

consuming alcohol for eight (8) hours following the accident/incident or until the
Emplovee submits to an alcohol test, whichever comes first. An Employee who

Page 45 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

consumes alcohol within eight (8) hours following the accident/incident or before
submitting to an alcohol test, whichever comes first, shall be subject to discipline,
up to and including termination.

ARTICLE 27: SAVINGS CLAUSE

It is not the intent of either party hereto to violate any laws. rulings or regulations of any
governmental authority or agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter of this Agreement.
The parties agree that, in the event that any provision(s) of this Agreement are finally held or
determined to be illegal or void as being in contravention of such laws, rulings or regulations,
nevertheless the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless the
provision(s) so found to be void cannot be separated from the provision(s) of this Agreement
held to be legal. Upon such finding of illegality and nullity, the parties shall promptly meet to
enter into lawful negotiations concerning the substance of the provision(s) found to be illegal and
void.

ARTICLE 28: ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT PROCEDURE

This Agreement shall be deemed adopted and binding upon execution by authorized
representatives of the Union and the County. The provisions of this Agreement shall not be
altered, amended. or added to except by the mutual written agreement of the County and the
Union. Either party may request to the other to consider changes in provisions of the
Agreement; such request shall be in writing.

Page 46 of



202017-20230 Collective Bargaining

STOREY COUNTY

Marshall McBride. Chairman
Storey County Commission

Jaek—MeGuifey]ay  Carmona,
Vige-Chairman  Storey  County
Commission

Lance Gilman, Commissioner

Storev County Commission

SCSOEA/Storey County

STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
EMPLOYEES® ASSOCIATION

Eanee-Andresloe Welch. President
SCSO Employees” Association

Harry Schroeder, Vice-President
SCSO Employees™ Association

Eric Kern, Secretary SCSO

Emplovees” Association

Page 47 of

*—"| Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.06"

® "G O EPMmME =

P2+ neBE



SCSOEA/Storey County

gaining

202017-202306 Collective Bar

O T T T T O T T T |- [ ey 3 [ iy S v S A 7 1S 17 (= S - B TR R R T P

v e e SastoR DI ERrs e Lo © D @we @ | LN

Page 48 of




202017-20230 Collective Bargaining SCSOEA/Storey County

010 1B ke
B0 =

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 3.44" Right 0",
Space Before: 45 pt

i =

Approved as to from:

Anne Langer, District Attorney

Page 49 of



N ;W AN

20 — 2023 Collective amin, reement Between torey Count

Article 7 Compensation.
Wage and Step Schedule
Class &
| Year
Step | | Step2 | Step 3 | Step 4| Step 5 | Step 6 | Step 7 | Step 8 | Step 9

Deputy | 46,525 | 49,084 [ 51,783 | 54,632 57,636 60,806 64,151 (67.679|71.401(75,328
Corporal 4046] | 52.181 ii.Qil|5_&.D_72]QL2H 64,644 68,199 1L259L75307§M2
Sergeant] 53,347 | 56,281 | 59.377 |62.642| 66,088 [69.722(73,557|77,603[81,87186,374

43

-




2]

il

I
| TEN
[T
7]
[ 191
e

£nll

A

ik
TN Terr

_CEpE=

[ ;3
[12]
[14]

o] &

1181}

[ 12056
(1]

Formatted

[24]

[ sl]

[W. 4
s

32]
34

[23]

[ 5o]]
(2]
(2]
(5]
()
29
B1)
33
(5]
7]
T

-8+

Bopd | Wepd | Sepd | depd | s

A6-535

Beputy

gaddd

Corporal

AO-46}

Bergeant 53347 638t

A vtlele-1-C.

[(133]]
8]
__[ 7]
149
(1]
153
[ oa)
139]
140}
[42]
[#4]
[%6]
135
150]
(2]
54]

Formatted
Formatted

SCEOEA-&SCY




. 2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Appendix B: Steps, Grades, and Movements

General Provisions

Effective all subject
employees located at steps 10, 11, 12, and 13. will be placed intp the new step 10 of the
2020-2023 pav chart and will be capped at that step.

1.

2. The anniversary date for each emplovee will remain unchanged by the chart movements

described in this article.

5. The term “*hired” means hired into the bargaining unit subject to this agreement.

SCSOEA/Storey County { Formatted:

Font color: Text 1

Formatted:

Not Highlight

Formatted:

Not Highlight

Formatted:

Font color: Text 1

Formatted:

Not Highlight

Formatted:

Font color: Text 1

: Not Highlight

: Font color: Text 1

: Not Highlight

: Font color: Text 1

Formatted: Not Highlight
6. Fmplovees hired into the bargaining unit may advance no further than step 10 in the Formatted: Font color Text 1
(.:hart. .‘st»cn 10 in the chart is the “cap” for those employees. The !ﬂ”l)“’lllﬂ is placing the Formatted: Not Highlight
few subject emplovees at the correct steps based on the correct hire date,
Formatted: Font color: Text 1
a. Effective a t ful ' period in Jul an emplovee hire s
- > n Formatted: Not Highlight
on Januarv 13, 2017, who is currently at a step 6 in the 2017-2020 gontract will k'
T I T Tl g Ty Commented [JC1]: Please review language
Y Tepay OO T vy T Y o Croary —Gate e oV
ve their frozen a ir ent ir next iv Formatted: Not Highlight
i Formatted: Font color: Text 1
| Formatted: Font color: Text 1
| Formatted: Not Highlight
. . . . Formatted: Font color Text 1
b. Effective the first day of the first full pay period in July, an employee hired on i
EffectiveJulv—1-2020-an-employee-hired-en January 23, 2019, who is currently at a Formatted: Font color: Text 1
i will a step 2 in the 2020- Formatted: Font color: Text 1
2023 pav'chan. T'his cmp!n.\ ce is not capped _and will~ advance to step 3 at his/ her Formatted: Not Highlight
next_anniversary date, providing that they receive a satisfactory evaluation score.meve mr
PR P T T S T TR Formatted: Not Highlight
S dryH e e e Phasy o viaod tH - Cofiact
= . . . . Formatted: Font color: Text 1
¢ Eff first day of | mplovee hir n
. . : Font color: Text 1

Appendix B 2017 - 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA-SE&.

: Not Highlight

: Font color: Text 1

: Right: 0.09"

A A__A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A_A__A_J __A_A_A_A_J

: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.32°, Hanging: 0.25"J

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0", Space Before: 0

pt, Line spacing: single

./{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"



SCSOEA/Storey County

2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Formatted: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt. No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

=

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0%, Space Before: 0 pt, No
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

Formatted: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt. No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0°, Space Before: 0 pt. No
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

ﬁFormnttod: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt, No bullets or
| numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.0

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0", Space Before: 0 pt, No
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 107"

/Gmn.d: Indent: Left 0" }
Pavest2 4 Appendix B 2017 — 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA-SE.



2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

Formatted: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt
'\'{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Space Before: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt

numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0%, Space Before: 0
pt
Formatted: Normal, Right: 0", Space Before: 0 pt. No
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

)
)
)
Formatted: Normal, Right: 0", No bullets or }

-/‘[Formntcd: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt
2048 — 2019 Period '_“| Formatted: Indent: Left 0"
.\{Fomutted: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0, No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

Formatted: Normal, Indent Left 0", Space Before: 0 J

pt
Formatted: Normal, Right: 0", Space Before: 0 pt. No
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

/ Formatted: Indent: Left. 0" ]
Papes 4244 Appendix B 2017 — 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA-S¢.



2017-2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

Pagecd2—4

Appendix B 2017 — 2020 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA-SE.

Formatted: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0", Space Before: O pt,
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

’—‘( Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Space Before: 0 pt

.\‘[ Formatted: Normal, Space Before: 0 pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0%, Space Before: 0 pt,
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

» ‘\[Fomntnd: Normal, Indent: Left: 0", Space Before:
pt

Formatted: Normal, Right: 0", Space Before: 0 pt,
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

- Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0%, Right 0"

Formatted: Normal, Right 0", Space Before: 0 pt,
bullets or numbering, Tab stops: Not at 0.57"

Ne

‘/{Fomﬂed: Indent: Left: 0"




| Page 51: [1] Formatted

Christopher Parker

1/29/2020 5:03:00 PM |

Heading 1, Indent: Left: 0.16", Space Before: 0.05 pt

Page 51: [2] Formatted Table Christopher Parker 1/29/2020 5:03:00 PM I
Formatted Table

! Page 51: [3] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:20:00 AM I
Indent: Left: 0"

Page 51: [4] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:19:00 AM |
Left, Indent: Left: 0"

| Page 51: [5] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:19:00 AM J
Left

[ Page 51: [6] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:19:00 AM |
Left, Indent: Left: 0"
Pagc 51: [7] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:19:00 AM l
Left, Indent: Left: 0"
Pnge 51: [8] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AMJ
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

{ Page 51: [9] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM I
Centered

[ Page 51: [10] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"
Pﬂe 51: [11] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [12] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Indent: Left: 0"

i Page 51: [13] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Centered

 Page 51: [14] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [15] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [16] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Indent: Left: 0"
Page 51: [17] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Centered

' Page 51: [18] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

 Page 51: [19] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |

Centered
A —



l Page 51: [20] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Centered. Indent: Left: 0"

 Page 51: [21] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:21:00 AM |
Indent: Left: 0"

 Page 51: [22] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:20:00 AM |
Left, Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [23] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:20:00 AM |
Left

Page 51: [24] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Centered

! Page 51: [25] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Indent: Left: 0"

| Page 51: [26] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Centered

| Page 51: [27] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered. Indent: Left: 0"

| Page 51: [28] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM ]
Centered

' Page 51: [29] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Indent: Left: 0"

A

| Page 51: [30] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

[ Page 51: [31] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM I
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [32] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

Page 51: [33] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM I
Indent: Left: 0"

| Page 51: [34] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [35] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

 Page 51: [36] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [37] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

A

Page 51: [38] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:21:00 AM |

Indent: Left: 0"

A



Page 51: [39] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:21:00 AM I
Left, Indent: Left: 0"

LPage 51: [40] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:21:00 AM ]
Left
Page 51: [41] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM I
Centered
Page 51: [42] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM_|
Indent: Left: 0" :

' Page 51: [43] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [44] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [45] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [46] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [47] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

Page 51: [48] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [49] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered
Page 51: [50] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM I
Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [51] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [52] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

' Page 51: [53] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |
Centered

' Page 51: [54] Formatted Eric Kern 4/21/2020 11:17:00 AM |

Centered, Indent: Left: 0"

A



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
AND
STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE EMPLOYEES’

ASSOCIATION/NEVADA ASSOCIATION OF POLICE &
SHERIFF’S OFFICERS (NAPSO)

JULY 1, 2020 — JUNE 30, 2023

Page 1 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is made and entered into at Virginia City, Nevada, pursuant to the provisions
of the Nevada Revised Statutes, by and between the County of Storey, Nevada, a County
government, hereinafter referred to as the Employer or County, and the Storey County Sheriff's
Office Employees™ Association/Nevada Association of Police & Sheriff’s Officers (NAPSO),
hereinafter referred to as the Union or Association.

[t is the purpose of this Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the
Employer and the Union, to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustments of differences
which may arise. and to provide proper standards of wages, hours, and other conditions of
employment.

Page 2 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PREAMNB LB s ummsssmoesiconsusssims s i s s e s iy i s s p s sss s s o st 2
BEFINTTIINS. .. cosmumcmmanammimmmmmmemsmssims s s s s s a5 A A RS 4
ARTICLE 1. EFFECTIVE DATE. PARTIES. . umnmmmnuismmsnsssmmms 5
ARTICLE 2. RECOGNITION ...coiiccmimsommusmsmimmmramianas i imamssmamssasssnsretoramseonssss 6
ARTICLE 3. NOQO-STRIKE CLAUSE .......conmmemmnmsnmmssssssansniinmsimmmmasanmyioss i
ARTICLE 4. RIGHTS'OF MANAGEMENT ..c.uvnmmmmmmmssmssmsmmsissmesecssons 7
ARTICLE 5. NON-DISCRIMINATION ..o 7
ARTICLE 6. EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVES ...onmmummammuvsnvasssasmonns 7
ARTICLE 7. COMPENSATION PRACTICES......comvmismoncomsmmmmmmesspimsrssmsnsssssssnsas 8
ARTICLE 8. ONVERTIME.......ocomeesass et s s s 12
ARTICLE 9. CALLABACK PAY wvaammsisso vy 13
ARTICLE 10. HOLIDAYS .....cooiiiinininnensnmneisasssssesssessassssesssassasssassssssssasssasssasostases 14
ARTICLE 11: WVACATION s o s s soasasions 15
ARTICLE 12. SICK LEAVE ...cccccnmmnsmnmirnemmensismmmsmmsscsssessasonissssasssnssenssssassnsssasssisss 16
ARTICLE 13. GROUP BENEEFITS INSURANCE usousmewmsasnnmmmsmmess 1%
ARTICLE 14, RETIREMENT .onuummansmmmmasssosommso somsvassmmmosgosomesssmpsesss 19
ARTICLE 15. UNIEORMS.......coommmmnmmenmessonconspssenssss s sy s s 19
ARTICLE 16: LEAVES OF ABSENCE:...csinnunusivnnnmmrmmssmsmmsosss o 21
ARTICLE 17. LAYOFF PROCEDURE ......ccccccooiiiiiiiiiiiec i 22
ARTICLE 18. CHANGE OF ASSIGNMENT AND JOB VACANCIES.................... 24
ARTICLE 19. DISCIPLINARY ACTION. s mumssssmmoencsumnsammmmonnesssnossanmsanasas 25
ARTICLE 20. GRIEVANCE/ARBITRATION PROCEDURES ........cccooviiinnniniians 28
ARTICLE 21. MIBUCELLANEOUS .uummmmimmmmsimsiammmssssmassssssssamnavoness 32
ARTICLE 22. CATASTROPHIC LEAVE ....ccicccvsiisrinnesssessnmssnnsansessanssssssssssassssusssssss 34
ARTICLE 23. WOBK-RELATED INJURIES. o nmimasmpmmsnsssmsvsrmms 36
ARTICLE 24. PAYROLL DEDUCTION . .ccummmummsmmummvmmrmmmssrssnresssssssammrass 37
ARTICLE 25. PERSUNNEL PRACTICES..... onunimmosmm s ssemms 38
ARTICLE 26. DRUGAND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE.....c.ccscucsmuvessomsnes 38
ARTICLE 27.  SAVINGS CLAUSE ... s e s RS CTTRNEES 39
ARTICLE 28. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT PROCEDURE.........ccccccceveiinnin 39
BIGINATURE PATTE wpmyminussonssss v susinsosssss s o s sy sty i s s s 40
APPENDICES A & B WAGE CHART AND DESCRIPTION ......ccnumnssni 41-44

Page 3 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

DEFINITIONS

Anniversary Date: The date on which the employee starts work as indicated in-writing in an offer
of employment, is reclassified or promoted to a new job classification, or a less than part-time or
regular part-time employee becomes a full-time employee. The date on which an employee is
demoted to a lower pay range, reassigned. or transferred to alternative positions where their
talents or skills maybe best utilized to their own or the organization’s benefit, or where they are
better able to perform the job in accordance with required standards, is not an Anniversary Date.

Base Rate of Pay: The amount of pay the Employee is designated to receive within the salary
range for the Employee's job classification, excluding any additional types of pay.

Days: Shall mean Storey County working days - Monday through Friday. excluding holidays.
unless otherwise stated.

Employee: An Employee in the bargaining unit who has successfully completed his/her
probationary period or any extended probationary period and has been retained to the
employment of Storey County Sheriff's Office.

Employee's Health File: A separate confidential file which is maintained in the Human
Resources Division and which contains only health-related matters, i.e., Workers' Compensation
information, physical examination results, etc.

Major Fraction: Fifteen (15) minute intervals of time.

Part Time Employee: Part-time employees are defined as those who work a minimum of twenty
(20) hours but less than forty (40) hours per week on a regularly recurring basis. Part-time
employees are eligible for benefits on a prorated basis.

Probationary Employee: An employee who is undergoing a working evaluation period during
which s/he is required to demonstrate his/her ability to carry out the duties of the position to
which hired.

a. The new hire probation period pursuant to this agreement is 12 months.

b. Newly hired probationary employees are employed “at-will” and are excluded
from the coverage of this agreement. They may be laid-off or discharged from
employment during this period for any reason with or without cause. After
successfully completing the new hire probationary period, the employee shall be
deemed to be a regular employee and subject to this agreement, and shall acquire
seniority from his/her first date of hire.

c. A probationary employee who transfers laterally within the same classification
(e.g.. Admin. II in one department to Admin. Il in another department) must serve
the remainder of the new-hire probationary period assigned to him/her upon hire.

d. A regular employee who is promoted to a position in a higher classification shall
serve a “trial period” of 12 months in the new position. A probationary employee
who is promoted to a position in a higher classification shall serve a “trial period™
of 12 months in the new position and must concurrently complete the remainder

Page 4 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

of his/her new hire probation period. During the “trial period”, the regular
employee is not considered probationary: however, regular employees and
probationary employees completing the remainder of their probation period must
demonstrate satisfactory ability to carry out the duties of the position to which
promoted. Unless the promoted employee is dismissed from employment for
cause, the employee who failed the “trial period” in the new position will be
restored to his/her previous classification or an equivalent classification if the
previously held position is unavailable.

¢. Anemployee who is demoted to a lower classification is not required to serve a
“trial period™ for that position.

f.  An employee who changes from working part-time to regular full-time within the
same classification shall have his/her new hire probationary period adjusted to
credit actual hours worked over the past 12 months with Storey County in said
classification. up to a maximum of 1,040 hours (6 months), toward completion of
the new hire probation period.

Regular Rate of Pay: The Employee's base rate of pay plus other additional pay for which the
Employee's specific assignment may entitle him/her.

Regularly Scheduled Shift: The shift created by the department that is the same schedule for at
least 30 days.

Sheriff: The Sheriff or his/her designee.

ARTICLE 1: EFFECTIVE DATE, PARTIES

. This Agreement shall be in full-force and effect July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023. If either
party desires to make a change. the party shall notify the other party in writing of the Article
and/or Section of that Article desired to be negotiated.

2 Pursuant to NRS 288.150, this Agreement or any provisions herein may be automatically
reopened for negotiations upon written request by the Employer during periods of fiscal
emergency.

3. Notification of desire to negotiate shall be done in accordance with NRS 288,

4. The parties shall promptly commence negotiations. If the parties cannot reach agreement
either party may submit the dispute to an impartial fact finder at any time for his/her findings
in accordance with NRS 288. The fact finder shall make recommendations of the unresolved
issues.

5. If the parties have not reached an agreement within ten (10) workdays after the fact finder's
report is submitted. all issues remaining in dispute shall be submitted to an arbitrator. The
arbitrator shall, within ten (10) work days after the final offers are submitted, accept one of
the written statements. and shall report the decision to the parties.

Page 5 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

6. The impartial fact finder and the binding arbitrator shall be from the American Arbitration
Association (AAA) and/or the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS). The
Union and the County agree to solicit a list of seven (7) professional neutrals with public
sector experience from the AAA or FMCS and alternately strike names from such list until
one name remains. That remaining person so selected shall serve as the arbitrator. For the
first arbitration, the party to strike first shall be determined by lot. Thereafter, the party to
strike first shall alternate between the parties. All hearings shall be conducted according to
AAA or FMCS rules.

7. In the event that future égrecments are not reached prior to July | of that year. all awards
rendered by the final binding arbitrator shall be retroactive to July | of the year in which
negotiations commenced.

ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION

1.

The Union is hereby recognized as the sole and exclusive collective bargaining
representative for the purpose of establishing wages, hours, and conditions of employment
pursuant to the provisions of NRS 288.010 et seq., for all Employees in the bargaining unit
covered by this Agreement. which include all full-time or part-time positions in the
following classifications:

a. Deputy Sheriff
b. Corporal
c. Sergeant

Representatives of the Union and its affiliates will be permitted to transact Union business
on County property, provided that this does not disrupt normal work functions. In
accordance with NRS 288 the Employer may require Union business to be conducted
during non-work time, such as before work and after work, during breaks, and/or
lunchtime. Union business may only be conducted in common areas and/or designated
Employee break areas. Designated representatives of the Union shall be allowed to receive
telephone calls or other communiqués concerning Union business at any time during
working hours. The Union shall have the right to use the interoffice mail for Union
business. County email may be used internally to conduct Union business. but shall be
limited to all parties to this Agreement and subject to established County policies.

The Union may post notices involving Union business in the location(s) and manner(s) as
mutually agreed upon. All items to be posted on the bulletin boards are subject to review
by the Sheriff.

The Union acknowledges and agrees that the Union shall be solely responsible for the
opening. closing, and securing of County buildings used by the Union for Union meetings.
The Union acknowledges and agrees that the Union shall indemnify, defend. and hold the
Employer harmless for any damages incurred and against any claims made or actions
initiated against the Employer as a result of the Union's use of County buildings for Union
meetings.

Page 6 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 3: NO STRIKE CLAUSE

. The Union agrees not to and will not promote, sponsor, or engage in, against County any
strike. slowdown, interruption of operation, work stoppage. absence from work upon any
pretext or excuse not founded in fact, or any intentional interruption of the business of the
County, regardless of the reason for so doing, and will use all reasonable efforts to induce
all Employees covered by this Agreement to comply with this pledge.

ARTICLE 4: RIGHTS OF MANAGEMENT

I. County, Sheriff, and Commissioners retain, and do not waive in any respect. all rights
conferred upon them, jointly and severally, by NRS Chapter 288, any and all other provisions
of the Nevada Revised Statutes. and relevant case law.

ARTICLE 5: NON-DISCRIMINATION

I. Employer and Union agree to comply with all applicable laws prohibiting discrimination
in employment including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of
1972. the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, as amended, the applicable Nevada Revised Statutes on Equal Employment
Opportunity (NRS 613) and any other applicable federal, state, and local statutory
provisions.

ARTICLE 6: EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVES

| The County recognizes and agrees to deal with representatives of the Union on all matters
within the scope of bargaining and pursuant to the provisions of NRS 288, so long as the
subject matter does not impinge upon the County's management rights provided by NRS
288.

I~

Reasonable release time for Employee representatives shall be limited to (1) attending County
meetings, including negotiations, which have a direct impact on the Union. (2) investigating,
processing or attending meetings in accordance with the provisions of the grievance-arbitration
procedures of the Agreement. or (3) meetings called by the County for information exchange
and other conditions designated by the County concerning the interpretation or application of
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

3. If such Union business or representation must be conducted during an Employee
representative's regular work shift, the County shall, upon advance approval of the Sheriff or
his/her designee. release the Employee to conduct Union affairs on County time.

4. The Sheriff shall not unreasonably withhold approval of requests for release time pursuant  to
this Article.

Page 7 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

5. The County authorized payment as outlined above will be granted at the applicable straight
time rate. provided the time spent is a part of the Employee's scheduled workday.

ARTICLE 7: COMPENSATION PRACTICES

1. Wages: Biweekly wages: All Employees will be paid on each biweekly Friday, with wages
computed through the preceding Sunday.

2. Wages and Wage Adjustments: Employees will receive hourly wages and yearly
adjustments as shown in Appendix A of this Agreement. Merit increases will be provided as
described in this Article.

Any Employee at steps ten (10), eleven (11), twelve (12), or thirteen (13) of the previous
collective bargaining agreement (2017-2020), shall be moved to step ten (10) of Appendices
of the 2020-2023 collective bargaining agreement, when such agreement comes into effect.

Merit Increases: A merit increase of one step in the wage range for the Employee's job class
will be granted to an Employee upon completion of each year in which the Employee
receives a satisfactory evaluation score until the Employee reaches the top of the wage range. If
the Employee has not been evaluated within thirty (30) calendar days following his/her
Anniversary date, merit will be granted retroactive to the Anniversary date.

Employees who reach step ten (10) of the 2020-2023 Appendix A, are capped and may advance
no further.

3. Promotions:

a A Deputy who is promoted to Corporal must move to the next closest step from his/her
former position, but must receive no less than a 5 percent increase in base pay. A Deputy
or Corporal who is promoted to Sergeant will move to the next closest step from his/her
former position, but must receive no less than a 10 percent increase in base pay. Ensuring
that the promoted Employee receives no less than the stated increase in base pay is
accomplished by moving him/her to the next nearest step which provides the required
increase.

b. All promotions within the Bargaining Unit shall be filled by candidates who meet the
minimum requirements of the position that are established by the Employer.

¢. Notice of promotions to vacant positions within the Bargaining Unit shall be posted on
bulletin boards within the Department for a period of not less than ten (10) working days
prior to the last date for application or the date scheduled for testing, whichever is earlier.
Notice shall contain the following information or indicate where the information may be
obtained:

i.  Title and Job Description of Position;

Page 10 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County
ii.  Alleligibility requirements including education, employment, training, and
experience criteria, and whether equivalent factors will be recognized;

iii.  Ifthere will be competitive testing and the date, time, and place of such testing:

iv.  The nature and scope of test subject matter;

v.  Whether the test will consist of written, oral, and/or physical demonstration
components.

4. Shift Differential: An Employee shall receive Shift Differential Pay. in addition to Base Pay
on all regularly scheduled hours worked in the manner described in subsections (a) and (b)
below. Shift Differential Pay will be included in the regular rate of pay for the purposes of
calculating overtime.

a Swing shift — One dollar fifty cents ($1.50) per hour for all hours worked on Swing
shift.

i.  Swing Shift is a scheduled regular or scheduled overtime shift which must
include the entire hour of 1900-2000 hours.

b. Graveyard shift — One dollar seventy five cents (1.75) per hour for all hours worked
on Graveyard shift.

i.  Graveyard shift is a scheduled regular or scheduled overtime shift which must
include the entire hour of 0100-0200 hours.

¢.  Overtime worked within the shift differential period counts as time worked for determining
eligibility pay.

d. No shift differential pay is provided during times the employee is absent from work while
taking sick or annual leave. holiday not worked leave or other leave with or without pay, even
though the employee during those times may be assigned to a shift that qualifies for the
differential. No shift differential will be paid for standby hours.

5. Acting Pay: An Employee who is specifically assigned by the Sheriff to work in an acting
capacity in a classification with a higher wage range for a period of more than five (5)
consecutive days actually worked shall receive a five percent (5%) differential added to
his/her hourly wage for time actually worked during the remainder of the assignment.

6. Leave for Civic Duty:

Temporary Leave at full wages will be provided to the employee for jury duty, court
appearances, and administrative proceedings arising out of the employee's employment with
the District and for selective service examinations. An employee who is subpoenaed or
otherwise required to appear in court or at administrative proceedings arising out of his/her
employment with the County, and which appearances occur outside his/her regularly
scheduled shift, shall be paid one and one-half (1.5) his/her regular rate of pay for the time
spent at such appearances.

In accordance with NRS 6.190, a person summoned to appear for jury duty, the employer and
Page 11 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County
employee, agent or offer of the employer shall not, as a consequence of the person’s service

as a juror or prospective juror:
1. Require the person to use sick or annual leave: or
2. Require the person to work:

a.  Within 8 hours before the time at which the person is to appear to jury duty; or

If the employee’s service has lasted for 4 hours or more on the day of his/her
appearance in a jury duty, including the person’s travel time to and from the
place where court is held, between 5:00 p.m. on the day of his/her appearance
for jury duty and 3:00 a.m. the following day.

The employee shall claim any jury, witness, or other fee to which s/he may be entitled by
reason of the appearances described above and pay such fees, except travel mileage and
expense reimbursement that was not covered by the employer, to the Storey County
Treasurer within 5 working days of receipt, to be deposited by the applicable fund of the
County.

Annual leave may be taken by the employee for court appearances or administrative
proceedings, not related to employment with the District and not related to jury duty. in
which the employee is a party or a witness.

An employee shall not receive pay from the employer for missed work time associated with
court appearances in matters to which the employee is a party or is to serve as a witness for a
party who has filed an action against an employer. The employee may, however, choose to
use his/her annual leave.

7. Standby Status:
a An Employee is in standby status when s/he is:

i.  Directed to remain available for notification to work during specified hours;
ii.  Prepared to work if the need arises; and
iii.  Able to report to work within forty (40) minutes.

b. An Employee is entitled to receive additional pay of $2.00 for every hour s/he is in
Standby status or $3.00 for every hour s/he is in Standby status on a Holiday.

¢ When an Employee begins the performance of his/her regular duties after receiving
notice to work. s/he ceases to be on Standby status and qualifies for straight time or
Overtime pay, whichever is applicable, for the actual time worked. Upon completion of
the work. s/he returns to Standby status for the remainder of the time s/he has been
directed to be available to work.

8. Field Training Officer Pay: Any Employee who is designated by the Sheriff to perform the
duties of a training officer as a Field Training Officer (FTO) shall receive an additional 5
percent of his/her base pay per hour for all hours actually spent functioning as an FTO. The
Employee is determined to be functioning as an FTO when s/he is assigned to and actively
engaged in training another employee to perform specific duties applicable to the job and is
recording the progress of that trainee for reporting to the Sheriff or his/her designee (e.g..
completion of a daily observation report). The Sheriff or his/her designee shall have the
discretion to make the FTO assignment and to remove someone from such assignment.

Page 12 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

9. Incentive Pay:

a Employees will be granted incentive pay as follows:

Incentive Category (Paid Annually)

Degrees:

Master’'s Degree — $1,800
Bachelor’s Degree — $1.400
Associate’s Degree — $1.000

POST Certifications:

Advanced POST (earned prior to October 29, 2013) ~$1.100
Advanced POST (earned on or after October 29, 2013) - $500
Intermediate POST (earned prior to October 29, 2013) - $600
Intermediate POST (earned on or after October 29, 2013) —$350

Specialized Training:

$1.200 for one of the following sub-categories:
1) Firearms Instructor
2) Weaponless Defense Instructor
3) Impact Weapon / Taser Instructor
4) Drug Recognition Expert*
5) Bilingual Pay**
6) Any other specialized training approved by the Sheriff

*Drug Recognition Expert and Bilingual Incentive pay shall be granted at the discretion of the

Sheriff.
**Fluent Spanish and American Sign Language shall be the only eligible second languages
considered for specialized training incentive pay.

Physical Fitness Test Incentive:
Annual* - $1000.00

*For Employees who pass the POST physical fitness test administered annually by the Storey
County Sheriff’s Office

b. Employees are eligible to receive incentive pay for all three (3) categories. Employees
are eligible to receive pay for only one sub-category within each category. Incentive
pay shall not be compounded for those Employees having multiple degrees, POST
certifications, or specialized training certifications.

¢. Incentive Pay for degrees, certifications, and specialized training will become effective
the first payroll period of the fiscal year, and will be paid to the eligible Employee each
year thereafter in one lump sum during the first payroll period of the fiscal year.

d Emplovees who become eligible for Incentive Pay shall by December 30 provide
written notice to the Sheriff requesting Incentive Pay for the following fiscal year. An
Employee who demonstrates valid evidence that s/he will likely be eligible for
Incentive Pay by July 1 of the following fiscal year may, with approval of the Sheriff,
also apply for Incentive Pay.

Page 13 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

To be eligible for Incentive Pay for earning an Associate’s, Bachelor’s, or Master’s Degree,
the Employee must have the school of earned degree send sealed Official Transcripts to
the Personnel Office. The transcripts must demonstrate that the Employee earned the
applicable degree with a Grade Point Average (GPA) of 3.0 or higher at the time which
the degree was granted. To be eligible for Incentive Pay, the degree must be earned from
an accredited college or university.

Employees who receive Incentive Pay for Specialized Training Instructor shall perform
no less than 15 hours of qualified instruction to Sheriff's Office Employees, including full-
time. part-time, reserve, and/or volunteer Employees. each year from the pay period that
the Incentive Pay is issued to the Employee.

10. Specialized Training Instructor Selection. Selection for Specialized Training Instructor
incentive categories shall be selected in the following manner:

11

a

Notice of Specialized Training Instructor opportunities within the Bargaining Unit shall
be posted on bulletin boards within the Sheriff’s Office for a period of not less than ten
(10) working days prior to the last date for application or the date scheduled for training.
whichever is earlier.

Notice shall contain the following information or indicate where the information may be
obtained:

i.  Title and Description of Training;

ii.  Alleligibility requirements including education, employment, training, or
experience criteria, and whether equivalent factors will be recognized:

iii.  If there will be competitive testing and the date. time, and place of such test:
iv.  The nature and scope of test subject matter:

v.  Whether the test will consist of written, oral, and/or physical demonstration
components.

POST Physical Fitness Test Incentive. Post-probationary Employees who meet or exceed POST
Category | Physical Fitness Test standards each year shall receive an incentive of $1000.00 for
that year, and that payment shall be made in the last payroll of the fiscal year. The non-mandatory
fitness test will be supervised by the Sheriff or his/her designee in order to obtain credit for the
incentive. Tests will be held twice during the fiscal year and dates determined by the Sheriff,
however, employees are only eligible for one payment.

Salary and Step Upon Hire. Applicants hired into a position represented by this Agreement
will be placed at step | in the salary range chart. The Sheriff may approve an applicant to be
hired at step 2 or step 3 if it is determined that the applicant has extensive experience comparable
to the duties assigned. Prior to approving an accelerated hiring step, the Sheriff must ensure that
there are budgeted funds available and there will be no disparate impact to current employees
in the bargaining unit.

Page 14 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 8: OVERTIME

I

Overtime pay is defined as additional compensation earned by an Employee who continues
working beyond his/her regularly scheduled shift or is required to return to duty at a
time that is more than 12 hours after notice is given. The Employee will be compensated
at time and one-half (1.5) of his/her regular rate of pay for those extra hours worked.

A normal non-alternative work schedule shift shall consist of 8 hours per day and 5
consecutive days over a 7 day period, or 10 hours per day for 4 consecutive days ina 7
day period.

Upon agreement between the Employer and the Union, the parties may implement an
alternative work schedule. An alternative work schedule may consisting of three (3) days
of twelve (12) hour shifts in a seven (7) day period, followed by three (3) days of twelve
(12) hour shifts: followed by an eight (8) hour shift in a seven (7) day period, or visa-versa,
not to exceed eighty (80) hours in a fourteen (14) day period.

The assignment of the regular normal shift shall be determined by the Sheriff.
Consideration will be given to the preferences of staff: however, the necessity of delivering
adequate services to the community will take precedent. The Sheriff must provide at least
30 days of written notice to the Employee(s) prior to changing the normal regular shift.
During temporary instances, such as during community special events, disasters and
emergencies, and unusual staff shortage conditions, changes to the regular normal shift
may be made by the Sheriff, effective immediately.

Overtime shall not count toward Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) retirement
benefits as stated in Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 286.481.

Compensatory-Time (*Comp-Time™). Overtime may be compensated at the rate of one
and one-half (1.5) hours of Compensatory-Time for each hour of Overtime worked.
Employees may not accrue more than two hundred and forty (240) hours of Compensatory-
Time per calendar year. Compensatory-Time balances shall be paid-out  as a check or
direct deposited payment on the first payroll period in December of each year.

All Overtime, including Compensatory-Time, must have previous authorization by the
Sheriff except when. due to an emergency, the Sheriff’s approval cannot be obtained and,
accordingly. the Employee’s Supervisor authorizes the necessary Overtime.

Overtime shall be filled by Bargaining Unit members. For the purposes of Overtime to fill
vacancies, an Overtime/Call-Back list shall be developed by the Union and the Sheriff. The
list shall consist of all Bargaining Unit members who desire to work Overtime/Call-Back
to fill vacancies in staffing. A rotation procedure will be incorporated into the list. The
initial eligibility list will be established with the Employee with the most full time
continuous service with the Employer. The Sheriff shall reserve the right to mandate an
Employee to work Overtime when no other Employee is available on the rotation
eligibility list.

Paid Leave shall be considered as work-time for purposes of calculating Overtime.

Page 15 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 9:

CALL-BACK PAY

Any Employee who is required to return to work by his/her Supervisor in accordance
with NRS 286 shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at 1.5 times the regular rate
of pay. Time worked in addition to the initial two (2) hours shall be compensated at

1.5 times the regular base rate of pay for all time actually worked. An Employee shall not
be eligible for Call-Back pay when receiving Stand-By pay.

2 Phone calls not requiring return to work.

a.

All off-duty calls to an Employee regarding work-related matters shall be
authorized and considered authorized by the Sheriff or his/her designee. Refusals
for requests to return to work shall not be subject to Call-Back pay.

When an off-duty Employee receives a phone call that is work-related, lasts longer
than fifteen (15) minutes, and does not result in the Employee being required to
return to active duty, the Employee shall receive a minimum of one hour of
overtime pay. The fifteen (15) minute period shall be the cumulative time of one
or more phone calls within a twenty-four (24) hour period.

Phone calls subject to this section shall be documented by the Employee receiving
the call, and the Sheriff or Employee making the phone call, on a form created
and approved by the Personnel Director and/or Comptroller’s Office (payroll).
The completed form shall include. at a minimum, the involved parties, time and
duration of phone call(s), and a summary of the content of the conversation. The
completed form shall be submitted by both Employees to the Sheriff for review
and/or approval, and to Payroll with both Employees® bi-weekly timesheets.

3. PERS contribution toward Call Back Pay shall comply with NRS 286, including NRS
286.025 for Employees who have an effective date of PERS membership before, and on
or after January 1, 2010, and shall apply the definition of an “emergency” accordingly.

ARTICLE 10: HOLIDAYS
Holidays, for the purpose of this section, shall be as follows:

a.
b.

January 1 (New Year's Day)

Third Monday in January (Martin Luther King. Jr. Birthday)
Third Monday in February (Washington's Birthday)

Last Monday in May (Memorial Day)

July 4 (Independence Day)

First Monday in September (Labor Day)

Last Friday in October (Nevada Day)

November 11 (Veterans Day)

Page 16 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County
i. Fourth Thursday in November (Thanksgiving Day)

j.  Friday following the fourth Thursday in November (Family Day)
k. December 25 (Christmas Day)
l.  Floating holiday (Any day agreed upon by Employee and supervisor)

m. Any day that may be appointed by the Storey County Board of Commissioners as
a legal holiday and any day appointed by the Governor of the State of Nevada as a
legal holiday on which State offices are to close. Reoccurring holidays under this
subsection will be observed through the term of the current Agreement only.

9

Holiday Pay: Holiday pay shall be equal to the Employee's regularly scheduled shift
assignment of eight (8). ten (10). or twelve (12) hours.

3. Holidays Not Worked: Employees who are not required to work on a recognized
holiday shall receive Holiday Pay for the shift they normally would have worked.

4. Holidays Worked Regularly Scheduled Day: Employees required to work their regularly
scheduled shift on the actual holiday shall receive Holiday Pay plus an additional payment
computed at time and one-half (1 1/2) the straight time for the hours actually worked.

5. Holidays worked during scheduled day off: Employees required to work on a holiday
during their regularly scheduled day off shall receive Holiday Pay plus an additional
payment computed at time and one-half (1.5) the straight time for the hours actually
worked, and shall receive one actual day off with straight pay. The day off shall not be
charged against the Employee’s accrued Annual Leave, or any other accrued Leave, and
shall be taken by the Employee within twelve months (1 year) of the associated holiday
worked. The process for requesting the day off shall be the same as for Annual Leave
pursuant to Article 11(3). but not Subsection (4).

6. Holiday During Vacation or Sick: Should a paid holiday fall during an Employee's
Vacation or Sick Leave, the Employee will receive Holiday Pay rather than have such
day charged against Vacation or Sick Leave pay.

7. Holiday Pay for Part-time Employees: Part-time Employees shall receive Holiday Pay on
a prorated basis when they would normally be scheduled and available to work on the
holiday in question.

ARTICLE 11: VACATION

I.  Accrual: Eligible Employees shall earn vacation benefits at the rate of ten (10) hours of
Vacation Pay for each calendar month or major fraction thereof. Employees who have
completed five (5) or more years of consecutive service shall earn vacation benefits at the
rate of thirteen and one-third (13.33) hours of vacation for each calendar month or major
fraction thereof. Employees who have completed 10 or more years of consecutive service
shall earn vacation benefits at the rate of sixteen and two thirds (16.67) hours of vacation
for each calendar month or major fraction thereof. Vacation credits shall accrue for each
pay period the Employee is in full pay status or major fraction thereof.

2 Eligibility: An Employee is entitled to take vacation time after six (6) months service
Page 17 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

3

4

with the County. Each Employee shall accrue vacation beginning upon completion of six

(6) months of continuous employment as a regular or probationary Employee. Upon
completion of six (6) months of County service as a regular or probationary Employee,
the Employee shall receive sixty (60) hours of vacation credit.

Scheduling:

a Vacation dates shall be granted and scheduled with the approval of the Sheriff or
his/her designee. Where practical, in the determination of the Sheriff, vacation
dates will be granted on a first-come, first-serve basis quarterly within the job
classification.

b. An Employee becoming ill while on Annual Leave may have leave charged to
Sick Leave upon request and upon presentation of proper documentation.

Pay Off at Termination: Upon termination of employment, the County shall compensate
an Employee for all accrued vacation time (Up to a maximum of 240 hours).

ARTICLE 12: SICK LEAVE

!\J

Accrual: Each Employee shall earn Sick Leave with pay at the rate of ten (10) hours of
Leave for each calendar month or major fraction thereof. A maximum of nine hundred
sixty (960) hours of Sick Leave may be accumulated.

Use of Sick Leave: Sick leave with pay may be granted upon approval of the Sheriff in
the event of a bona fide illness of an Employee or member of his/her immediate family
(within the second degree of consanguinity or affinity).

a. If the Sheriff has reason to believe Sick Leave is being abused, the Sheriff may
require the Employee taking Sick Leave to submit a physician's statement in
accordance with Storey County Policy 603 — Sick Leave.

b. After exhausting accumulated Sick Leave, an Employee may take accumulated
Vacation Leave if s/he needs additional time off from work. Leave without pay
may be granted by the Sheriff at his/her discretion.

Parental Leave: The parties agree to abide by all state and/or federal laws applicable to
leave for maternity and paternity, which shall include adoption or foster care of a child
within 12 months of placement.

Bereavement Leave: Bereavement leave shall be granted to any regular full-time or regular
part-time employee who must be absent from work upon the death of and/or to attend the
funeral of a family member within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity, up to a
maximum of 3 scheduled shifts of bereavement leave per each occurrence. Such leave will
not be charged to the employee’s accumulated sick leave or other accrued leave.
Bereavement leave in excess of 3 scheduled shifts may be charged to accumulated sick leave
upon the approval of the Sheriff and Administrative Officer/Personnel Director. The
employee may use annual leave after sick leave has been exhausted.
Page 18 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

5. Payment for Sick Leave at Termination: Upon an Employee's end of service through
PERS retirement or termination from service, other than involuntary termination, with a
total accrued hours of three hundred sixty (360) or more, the Employee shall be paid for
unused Sick Leave at the following rate:

a. 10 to 15 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 20% of their base rate of pay
for each hour, not to exceed $3,000 cash or $4,000 toward the purchase of

PERS.

b. 15 to 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 40% of their base rate of pay
for each hour, not to exceed 4,000 cash or $5.000 toward the purchase of PERS.

¢. More than 20 years of service shall be paid at a rate of 60% of their base rate of
pay for each hour, not to exceed $5.000 cash or $6.250 toward the purchase of
PERS.

ARTICLE 13: GROUP BENEFITS INSURANCE

l.

o

Employee eligibility for health insurance benefits shall commence 60 days after hire. and to
the first day of the next month.

The Employer agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly premiums for health
insurance (to include hospitalization, major medical, dental, and vision) for Regular Full- Time
Employees. The Employer agrees to pay a prorated percentage of monthly premiums for health
insurance based on actual hours scheduled to be worked for Regular Part-Time Employees
working at least twenty-one (21) hours but less than thirty (30) hours per workweek.
Employees working 30 hours or more are eligible for benefits equaling that provided to regular
full-time employees. Employer agrees to pay $40,000 in Life and Accidental Death and
Dismemberment (AD&D) for the employee for the term of this Agreement.

For Employees hired before July 1, 2014, the Employer agrees to pay one hundred percent
(100%) of the monthly premiums for health insurance base plan for the Employee’s
dependents (up to age 26) and one-hundred percent (100%) for the Employee’s spouse who
is not eligible for government-sponsored (e.g., Medicare, Medicaid, Veterans Administration)
or employer-sponsored health insurance coverage. Effective May 1, 2012, if the Employee’s
spouse is eligible for any other government-sponsored or employer- sponsored health
insurance coverage, the Employee may choose to cover his/her spouse on Employer’s plan
for a charge equal to fifty (50%) percent of the cost of the spouse’s coverage.

a. Each Employee shall provide on a County-provided affidavit to the Personnel office
annual certification stating whether his/her spouse is eligible for any other
government-sponsored or employer-sponsored health insurance coverage.

b. In the event that the AFSCME Comstock Chapter General Employees’™ Association or
the Storey County Firefighters Association (Fire District), and/or any other collective
bargaining unit recognized by the Employer negotiates a higher level of spousal and/or
dependent coverage than is provided in this Article, or that said level of coverage is

Page 19 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

offered to any employees excluded from coverage by collective bargaining agreement
(with exception of those subject to statutory requirements), the Union under this
Agreement may negotiate this Article.

4. For newly hired Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, spouses and dependents are not
eligible for Employer contributions toward health insurance coverage.

a.

For the purposes of this Article, “newly hired” Employees shall not include: any
Employee continuously employed by Storey County in any position (including but not
limited to any elected. part-time. intermittent, or seasonal positions), whose position
becomes, or who moves to a position that is or becomes, eligible for health insurance
benefits; any Employee who has had a break in service of no more than 18 months for

any reason.

In the event that the AFSCME Comstock Chapter General Employees™ Association or
the Storey County Firefighter's Association IAFF, and/or any other collective
bargaining unit recognized by the Employer negotiates a higher level of spousal and/or
dependent coverage than is provided in this Article, or that said level of coverage is
offered to any employees excluded from coverage by collective bargaining agreement
(with exception of those subject to statutory requirements), the Union under this
Agreement may negotiate this Article.

5. As allowed by law and without federal penalties to the employer. an employee may opt out
of Employer-paid health insurance coverage and accordingly may receive fifty percent (50%)
of the premium that the Employer would have paid for Employee only base plan coverage.
Any employee opting out of health benefits coverage must complete an employer-provided
affidavit stating that the employee and his/her tax-family (e.g.. spouse and dependents) will
maintain minimum essential health coverage, other than coverage purchased in the individual
market and Medicare, as required by the Affordable Care Act.

The Employer shall offer Retirees. as defined under NRS Chapter 286, the option to continue
coverage as required under NRS Chapter 287. Payment shall be made by the Employer
regardless of the insurance provider elected by the Retiree to provide coverage: however, the
Employer's responsibility for payment shall be capped at the amount the Employer would be
required to pay if the Retiree elected coverage with the insurance provider designated under the
Public Employees' Benefits Program (PEBP). Retirees not electing coverage with the insurance
provider designated under PEBP shall be responsible for the payment of any excess difference
in cost for the coverage elected. Employer contributions to retiree coverage will stop at age 65 or
when the Retiree becomes eligible for Medicare Part A and Part B.

6. Legal Liability - NRS Chapter 41 shall apply to represented employees, as appropriate.

ARTICLE 14: RETIREMENT

1.

Eligibility: Employees covered by this Agreement shall be included in the State of Nevada
Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) providing benefits pursuant to NRS Chapter
286.

Contributions: The Employer will pay retirement contributions for Employees covered
under this agreement as required by NRS 286. No provision of this Article shall be
deemed to waive any provision of Chapter 286 of NRS in respect to “Early Retirement”.

Page 20 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County
ARTICLE 15: UNIFORMS

1. Initial Uniforms and Duty Gear: $1100.00 will be provided to all new hires for the purchase of
required uniforms, boots, duty gear and other required items as outlined in SCSO policy, and for other
duty gear and firearm as allowed by SCSO policy and as approved by the Sheriff. If the employee
fails to complete the 1-year probationary period for any reason, the $1,100 will be deducted from the
employee’s final paycheck(s), or other means of restitution will be applied.

Additionally, new hires are allowed $400.00 one-time reimbursement during the term
of this contract for each employee for the purchase of a duty firearm. The employee
must provide the Sheriff a receipt or other valid documentation of the purchase and use
the subject firecarm during the line of duty for the duration of this agreement. and the
receipt must show that the firearm was purchased during the term of this agreement.
The type. make, and model of the firearm must meet the requirements of the Sheriff for
duty officers.

The Sheriff will provide the following items at hire:

a. 1- snowsuit, type to be determined by the Sheriff. A snowsuit will not be issued to the
Employee until after s/he submits to the Sheriff in-writing that s/he desires a snowsuit.

b. 1 - cold weather jacket

c. 2 -badges

Body armor - The County shall provide $800 once every five years to the Employee
for the cost of purchasing a ballistic body armor vest that s/he will wear while on-duty.
The vest shall meet National Institute of Justice (N1J) Level I1I standards.

The Sheriff shall establish and maintain a vest replacement schedule and shall notify the
Employee in writing six months prior that his/her vest will expire. The Employee shall
be fully responsible for purchasing of and being fitted for his/her vest. If the purchased
vest becomes damaged in the line of duty, except for damage caused by negligence or
misuse. the Employer will advance the Employee up to $800 for the cost of replacing
that vest with a similar type vest. Within 30 days of purchasing the vest, the Employee
shall provide the Sheriff copies of receipts, and proof that the vest meets NIJ Level 111
standards.

The vest shall be returned to the Sheriff at the time the Employee for any reason leaves
employment with the Sheriff’s Office and at the time that the Employee receives his/her
new replacement vest. If the Employee does not return the vest at the time of leaving
employment, the full vest allowance  provided to the Employee (cost of vest. and
shipping and handling) shall be deducted from any amount owed to the Employee by the
county. If the Employee does not return the expired or damaged vest within 30 days of
receiving the replacement vest, the Employee shall have the full advanced amount
deducted from his/her paycheck in fifty percent increments over the next two pay
periods.

The Employee shall be required to wear the purchased vest at all times while on-duty. At
no time may the Employee while on-duty wear a vest that is expired or that does not

Page 21 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

I~

-
&

otherwise meet NIJ Level [l and other standards.

Uniform and Duty Gear Allowance for Post-Probation Employees: The County will provide
a uniform allowance of $1,100 per year payable at $275 per quarter payable the first pay date
in July, October, January, and April to Employees who have completed one (1) year of
employment as a staff member with the Sheriff’s Office.

With the Sheriff”s validation of a claim. the Employer shall reimburse an employee for the
costs of repairing or replacing watches or prescription eye glasses/contact lenses which
are lost or damaged while the employee is in the performance of his/her duties, provided that
there is notification by the employee to the Sheriff within 7 business days. Reimbursement
amounts shall be limited to the actual replacement value up to $250.00 per claim for
prescription eyewear and $50.00 per claim for watches. An Employee may only make a claim
up to $300.00 during each fiscal year.

Page 22 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County
ARTICLE 16: LEAVE OF ABSENCE

1. General Provisions-Unpaid Leaves: A leave of absence may be granted to an Employee
in accordance with Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 606 — Leave of Absence
Without Pay.

2. Investigatory Leaves: Any Employee who is required to discharge a weapon in the line of
duty may forthwith be placed on administrative leave with pay pending investigation of
the incident by the Sheriff. The Sheriff may assign the Employee to other duties where
carrying or use of a weapon is not required until completion of the investigation. If the
Sheriff determines that the weapon used was justified, the Employee shall be restored to
regular duty. If the investigation indicates that the weapon used was not justified, the
Employee may be placed on paid leave. If an administrative action is taken against the
Employee. the Sheriff shall place the Employee on paid leave pending the pre- disciplinary
hearing.

a. Any Employee charged with any criminal act may be placed on unpaid leave
forthwith pending final disposition of the matter. If the charges are dismissed or the
Employee is found not guilty at trial, the Employee shall be restored to regular duty
with back pay to the date of suspension if no administrative action is pending. If
administrative action is taken against the Employee, restoration of back pay will
occur following the pre- disciplinary hearing on the administrative charges. Such
restoration shall not include back pay for any period assessed as discipline.

3. Jury Duty: Any Employee called for jury duty shall be granted a leave of absence with pay.
The Employee shall retain any travel pay ordered by the court unless the Employee's travel
has been at County expense, but shall pay any other fees received to the County. Such
leave shall not be charged against the Employee's vacation credit.

4. Family and Medical Leave: Family and medical leave for Employees shall be governed
by the provisions of the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and Storey
County Policy and Procedure Number 605 — Family and Medical Leave.

5. Military Leave: Any Employee who is a member of the organized U.S. Army, Navy, Air
Force, Coast Guard, Nevada National Guard, or Marine Reserves shall continue to receive
paid military leave as prescribed by NRS 281.145, and any benefits as provided by the
Uniform Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) of 1994,
Employees may choose to use accrued annual leave before taking leave without pay. The
Employer cannot require that annual leave or other personal leave be used. Employees
returning from Military Leave are entitled to any benefits determined by seniority that they
had when their Leave began and to any benefits which would have accrued had they
remained continuously employed. This includes, for example, merit step and seniority. The
Employer shall count the years of Military Leave as if they were years of actual work to
determine the accrual rate of Annual and Sick Leave and to determine the rate of pay if the
rates are based on seniority. Employees do not earn Annual and Sick Leave while on

Page 23 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

Military Leave unless other Employees, including those outside of the bargaining unit,
are allowed to do so.

This Article recognizes that the USERRA and NRS 281.145 governing paid military
leave provide hours to the Employee equivalent to 15 working days of paid military leave
in a 12-month period beginning January | and ending December 31 of each year (i.e., the
calendar year). This Article recognizes that 15 days means 15 regularly scheduled shifts
regardless of the number of hours in a regular shift. The Employer recognizes that the
applicable regulations intend to provide “hours™ equivalent to 15 “workdays™ and.
therefore, fractions of days taken are deducted in hour increments. For example. Employees
working regular 10-hour shifts are entitled to an equivalent of 15 working days of paid
military leave, and this equates to 150 hours of leave within a 12-month period. Employees
working regular 8-hour shifts are also entitled to an equivalent of 15 working days of paid
military leave, and this equates to 120 hours of leave in the same period.

ARTICLE 17: LAYOFF PROCEDURE

I. Position to be Eliminated: If the County determines the need for a reduction in its work force
for lack of work or lack of funds, the Sheriff, County Manager and Personnel Director
(Committee) will determine the positions to be eliminated and the Employees to be laid-off
within each affected job class. Written notice of not less than thirty (30) calendar days shall
be provided to regular Employees to be laid-off.

2. Order of Layoft:

a. Initially the Committee shall consider Employees for layoff in the inverse order of
seniority.

b. When selecting which Employee will be laid-off. the Committee will review the
qualifications of the Employee with the least seniority in the affected job class. If the
Committee finds an Employee with less seniority has qualifications which are needed by
the Sheriff’s Office and those qualifications are equal to or greater than those of an
Employee with greater seniority, and the documented performance of the Employee with
lesser seniority is better than that of the more senior Employee. the County may lay-off
the Employee with the higher seniority.

¢. Qualifications to be considered in determining exceptions to seniority order shall include
knowledge. skill, ability, and certificates required for job functions to be assigned to the
remaining staff, as well as previous experience in performing the essential functions and
job performance. Job performance shall be determined on the basis of the Employee's
record of job performance as documented in the Employee's personnel file at least forty-
five (45) calendar days prior to the date the County determines a layoff is necessary. This
shall not preclude consideration of discipline consisting of a two (2) day suspension or
more occurring within this period.

Page 24 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

d. After consideration of seniority within class. qualifications, and performance, any ties

shall be broken by total seniority within the department. Time spent in other County
departments or as a County volunteer and/or reserve is specifically excluded in
computing time for purposes of determining seniority.

An Employee who was initially hired by the Sheriff into a class with a lower rank than
his/her current class shall have the right to bump an Employee in such lower class if s/he
has more seniority in the lower class. Such bumping rights may be exercised subject to
the Sheriff's review of performance and qualifications outlined above.

3. Appeal Procedure:

a.

Notice of Appeal: In the event that an Employee who has been laid-off out of seniority
order believes the decision based upon performance and/or qualification is incorrect, s/he
may request that the Union appeal the Sheriff's determination. If the Union finds there is
good reason to believe that the Sheriff has erred in his/her decision, it may appeal through
the process set forth in this Article. Such appeal shall be filed within five (5) working
days of delivery of the layoff notice to the Employee.

Appeal Review Committee: When an appeal is filed, the Union shall identify two (2)
persons (o serve on a review committee at the time of the appeal. The Sheriff shall then
appoint two (2) persons to the committee. Each of the persons appointed to the appeal
committee shall be familiar with the work of the department and with the job class from
which layoff is to be made. The appeal committee shall meet within five (5) days of
delivery of the notice of appeal to the County. It shall review the basis for the Sheriff's
layoff decision and the reasons the Employee believes the decision is in error. The appeal
committee shall then determine whether the Sheriff's decision was reasonable and on that
basis either confirm or reject the Sheriff's decision.

If the appeal committee cannot reach an agreement regarding the Sheriffs decision
regarding order of layoff, it shall, within three (3) days of its initial meeting, request the
participation of a federal mediator. The services of the mediator will be jointly requested
by the County and the Union on an urgent basis. The mediator shall seek to achieve a
consensus decision among the appeal committee members. If none is reached, the
mediator shall become a voting member of the appeal committee.

The determination of the appeal committee regarding the appropriate order of layoff shall
be final and binding and may not be grieved or appealed.

The fees and expenses of the mediator shall be shared equally by the Union and the
County. Each party however, shall bear the costs of its own presentation, including
preparation and post-hearing briefs and legal fees. ifany.

4. Recall Rights: Laid-off Employees will have a right to return to a vacancy in the same class
and department from which they were laid-off. Recall shall be in inverse order of layoff.

Page 25 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

a. Recall List: Employees shall remain on the recall list for one (1) year following the date
of layoff; provided. however, laid-off Employees shall be removed from the recall listif:

i. They decline appointment to a position in the same department and in a class at the
same wage range as the position from which their layoff occurred; or

ii. They fail to report for duty within fifteen (15) calendar days of mailing of notice of
recall to County employment.

b. Recall Notice: Notice of recall or available position may be made in person or by U.S.
Mail, return receipt requested. It is the responsibility of each laid off Employee to notify
the Sheriff of his/her current address.

ARTICLE 18: CHANGE OF ASSIGNMENT AND JOB VACANCIES

[§)

An Employee whose regular assignment is changed shall be given thirty (30) days of notice
of the reassignment. Notice is not required when change is required to serve the public in  an
emergency.

During the first week of January and July of each year, Employees will be permitted to
notify the Sheriff of their preference for work shifts. The Sheriff will consider staff preferences
in order of seniority. but shall retain full authority to make shift assignments. Employees will
be permitted to trade shifts or days off with the proper approval of their respective supervisor.

For purposes of this Article, seniority is determined by the total consecutive time spent in
the current job assignment (patrol, detention, investigations). If seniority is otherwise equal,
a choice must be made on the total time spent with the Sheriff’s Office second by total time
spent with the County. and third by lot. In computing time for purposes of determining
seniority, only time spent during current continuous County service will be counted. Leave
without pay over thirty (30) days is not counted. Part-time employment must be prorated to
its full-time equivalent. Time spent in other County departments or as a County volunteer
and/or reserve is specifically excluded in computing time for purposes of determining
seniority.

Page 26 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 19.  DISCIPLINARY ACTION

2

General Policy: Discipline shall be administered or imposed on a basis of progressive
punishment. No discipline shall be imposed except for cause. All discipline shall be
accompanied by counseling which may assist the Employee in correcting past performance
deficiencies or behavior. Authorized discipline shall range from Documented Verbal
Warning up to and including Termination of employment with the County. The initial form
of discipline and punishment shall be appropriate to the seriousness of the initial offense or
condition.

Forms of Discipline:

a  Documented Verbal Warning: Whenever Employee performance or job-related behavior
falls below the acceptable level, the Employee's supervisor shall inform the Employee of
the deficiencies using Storey County Policy and Procedure Form 1001F. Documented
Verbal Warnings shall remain in the Employee’s master personnel file for twelve (12)
months, after which it shall be removed from the Employee’s record upon the written
request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and approval of the Personnel Director.
The Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to the Employee of the action
taken.

b.  Written Reprimand: In situations where a Documented Verbal Warning has not resulted
in correction of the condition, or where more severe initial action is warranted, the
Employee’s supervisor shall inform the Employee of the deficiencies using Storey
County Policy and Procedure Form 1001FI. A Written Reprimand shall remain in the
Employee’s master personnel file for eighteen (18) months, after which the Written
Reprimand shall be removed from the Employee’s record upon the written request of
the Employee directly to the Sheriff and approval of the Personnel Director. The
Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to the Employee of the action
taken.

¢. Suspension: If the Written Reprimand is not effective, or in those cases where the
seriousness of the offense or condition warrants, an Employee may be Suspended without
pay by the Sheriff for a period not to exceed forty-five (45) working days. Documentation
supporting the Suspension shall remain in the Employee’s master personnel file for
twenty-four (24) months, after which the documentation shall be removed from the
Employee’s record upon the written request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and
approval of the Personnel Director. The Personnel Director will provide written
confirmation to the Employee of the action taken.

d Pay Reduction: If other forms of disciplinary or corrective action have proven ineffective,
or when the seriousness of the offense or condition warrants, the Sheriff may reduce
pay by no more than one Merit Step in the Employee’s current pay Grade. The date that
the Employee’s pay reduction takes effect shall establish a new Anniversary Date.
Documentation establishing the cause for the pay reduction shall remain in the
Employee’s master personnel file for twenty-four (24) months, after which the
supporting documentation shall be removed from the Employee’s record

Page 27 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

upon the written request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and approval of the
Personnel Director. The Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to the
Employee of the action taken.

o

Involuntary Demotion: When other forms of disciplinary or corrective action have proven
ineffective. or when the seriousness of the offense or condition warrants, the Sheriff may
demote the Employee. Rejection on probation following promotion is not discipline.
Documentation establishing the cause for the Involuntary Demotion shall remain in the
Employee’s master personnel file for twenty-four (24) months, after  which the
supporting documentation shall be removed from the Employee’s record upon the
written request of the Employee directly to the Sheriff and approval of the Personnel
Director. The Personnel Director will provide written confirmation to the Employee of
the action taken.

f Termination: As a final disciplinary measure when other forms of discipline or corrective
action have proven ineffective, or when the seriousness of the offense or condition
warrants, the Sheriff may Terminate an Employee.

g Suspensions of 1 to 3 days: Suspensions of one (1) to three (3) days may be appealed to
Level I of the Grievance Procedure (Article 20). If the Grievant is not satisfied with the
decision rendered by the Sheriff, the Grievant may within ten (10) working days of that
decision request to the Personnel Director that the Grievance is advanced to mediation.
Within ten (10) working days of the Personnel Director receiving the Grievant’s request
that the matter is advance to mediation, the parties shall request a mediator through the
Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) to hear the Grievance. The parties
shall attempt to hold a mediation session within twenty (20) days after contact with the
FMCS. This timeline shall be extended based on the schedule of the mediator or by
mutual consent of the parties. In the event a mediated decision cannot be reached. the
Mediator shall, considering the evidence presented. issue a bench decision that the parties
agree to implement and which shall be final and binding.

3. Notice of Suspension. Involuntary Demotion, or Dismissal: All notices of Suspension,
Involuntary Demotion, or Dismissal shall be given to the Employee in-writing, specifying the
action to be taken, the grounds upon which the action is based, including specification of
standards, rules, regulations or policies violated, if applicable, and the date of action taken.
The specification of charges shall include a statement of facts constituting conduct for which
discipline is to be imposed, together with a statement of specification of standards, specific
rules, regulations, ordinances, laws, policies or performance standards, if applicable, which
the Employee is alleged to have violated. The notice shall include a statement that the
Employee has five (5) working days to meet with the Sheriff to discuss the proposed action.
The specification of charges shall be signed by the Sheriff or his/her designee. The Sheriff
shall not suspend, involuntarily demote, or dismiss an Employee without giving ten (10)
working days of notice prior to the action being taken.

a The Sheriff may serve notice upon an Employee by mail or personal service. If mailed,

notice shall be mailed to the Employee at his/her last known address by USPS Certified
Mail Return Receipt Requested. Receipt shall be deemed the date of first attempt of

Page 28 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

4.

wh

delivery as indicated on the Return Receipt. Should notice be returned to sender. receipt
shall be deemed to be on the third day after the date of mailing of the notice.

b. The Employee. who may be accompanied by a Union representative, shall be allowed to
meet with the Sheriff to review the charges. The Employee shall be given an opportunity
to state his/her position as to whether there are true and reasonable grounds for the
proposed action. The discipline may be postponed to allow for the consideration of
evidence the Employee produced and/or for further investigation of the Employee's
response.

Administrative Leave During Disciplinary Proceeding: In cases of contemplated Discharge or
Suspension concerning misconduct which presents possible harm to persons or property, or
pending criminal charges which adversely and directly affect the County or substantially
disrupt County operations. the Sheriff may place an Employee on Administrative Leave, with
pay, pending an investigation prior to or during a disciplinary proceeding, or during the
review of the Employee’s response to a proposed disciplinary action. The Employee will be
notified in-writing of the decision to place him/her on Administrative Leave. The notice will
include a statement that the Administrative Leave is not a disciplinary action.

Appeals of Disciplinary Actions: Within ten (10) days of the date that disciplinary action of
Suspension without pay of four (4) days or longer. Pay Reduction, Involuntary Demotion, or
Dismissal are implemented by the Sheriff, the Union may Appeal said disciplinary action to
Arbitration.

a The Appeal must be submitted in-writing to the Sheriff and Personnel Director and state
the basis of the Appeal. The Union and the Sheriff shall mutually select a disinterested
third-party to serve as the Arbitrator. In the event an agreement cannot be reached to
select a neutral Arbitrator, the parties agree to solicit a list of seven (7) professional
neutrals with public sector experience from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation
Services (FMCS), and alternately strike names from such list until one (1) name remains.
That remaining person so selected shall serve as the Arbitrator. The party to strike first
shall be determined by lot. Both parties shall make every effort to mutually set forth the
issue(s) to be arbitrated in advance of the Arbitration hearing date. The fees and expenses
of the Arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Union and the County. Each party, however,
shall bear the costs of its own presentation, including preparation and post- hearing
briefs, and legal fees. if any. The Arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding upon both
parties.

Page 29 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 20. GRIEVANCE/ARBITRATION PROCEDURES

1.

5

Definitions:

a. Grievance: A Grievance is claimed violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation
of this Agreement or rules, regulations, and policies of the Employer governing
matters within the scope of mandatory bargaining pursuant to NRS 288. Informal
discussions and attempts to resolve the matter prior to filing a formal grievance
are excluded.

b. Grievant: A grievant is an Employee or group of Employees who are covered by
the provisions of this Agreement and who believe they have been adversely affected
by an act or formal decision of the Employer occasioning the grievance, and who
file a grievance. The Union may be the grievant if an act or formal decision of the
Employer which is alleged to be a grievance directly relates to a Union activity or
privilege addressed in this Agreement.

¢. Day: Day shall mean a weekday, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.

d. Grievance Screening Committee shall consist of any three (3) current members of
the Board of Directors of the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employee Association.

Rights of Representation: With the consent of the aggrieved Employee(s), one (1) Union
representative shall be present for any meeting, hearing, appeal, or other proceeding
between the Employer and the grievant relating to a grievance that has been filed pursuant
to this Article.

a. If. in the judgment of the Union, a grievance affects a group of Employees or the
Union. the Union may initiate and file such grievance with the Personnel Director
and the processing of such grievance shall commence at Level 1. The Union may
process such a grievance through all levels of the procedure.

Individual Rights: Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of
any Employee having a complaint to discuss the matter with the appropriate supervisor(s).
and to have the matter resolved without the intervention of the Union, as long as the Union
has had. at the request of the Employee, the opportunity to be present  at such discussions.

Informal Resolution: Within fifteen (15) working days from the event giving rise to a
grievance or from the date the Employee(s) could reasonably have been expected to have
had knowledge of such event, the Employee shall orally discuss the grievance with his/her
immediate supervisor. A supervisor shall have ten (10) working days to provide a decision
to the Employee.

Page 30 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

a.

The Unions Grievance Screening Committee shall convene within ten (10)
working days from the date the Supervisor provides or should provide a decision
to the Employee. The Grievance Screening Committee shall screen grievances to
determine if there is valid cause to proceed to a Formal Level Grievance.

Should the Grievance Screening Committee determine there is no valid cause to
proceed to a Formal Level Grievance, the Grievant shall still have the right to
proceed; however, they will not have the support of the Union.

5. Formal Levels:

a.

Level I: If a Grievant is not satisfied with the resolution proposed at the informal
level, s/he may, within ten (10) working days of the receipt of such decision, file a
formal written Grievance with the Sheriff. describing the Grievance, the specific
section(s) of this Agreement. or County or Sheriff’s Office rules, regulations,
and/or policies allegedly violated, and the remedy requested. The Sheriff may
have a meeting with the Grievant, and within ten (10) working days of receiving
the Grievance provide a written decision to the Grievant.

i If the Sheriff fails to respond within ten (10) working days of receiving the
Grievance, the Grievance, if non-monetary, shall be granted in the
Grievant's favor. If the Grievance contains a request for a monetary remedy:
the Grievance shall automatically advance to Level IL.

Level I1. If the Grievant is not satisfied with the resolution proposed at the informal
level. or the grievance includes a request of monetary related correction, s/he may,
within ten (10) working days of the receipt of such  decision, file a written appeal
to the Personnel Director. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written
appeal. the Personnel Director shall respond with a decision to the grievance or with
a recommendation to proceed or not proceed to Level I11.

Level H1: If the Grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered by the Sheriff,
the Grievant may within ten (10) working days of that decision request to the
Personnel Director that the Grievance is advanced to mediation. Within ten (10)
working days of the Personnel Director receiving the Grievant’s request that the
matter is advanced to mediation, the parties shall request a mediator through the
Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) to hear the Grievance. The
parties shall attempt to hold the mediation session within twenty (20) days after
contact with the FMCS. This timeline shall be extended based on the schedule of
the mediator or by mutual consent of the parties. If the parties cannot reach a
mediated resolution. either or both parties may request a recommendation from the
mediator. Nothing occurring in mediation may be refereed to or introduced during
Arbitration.

Level IV: In the event that the parties cannot reach a mediated resolution at Level

I11, the Grievance may be submitted to Arbitration for resolution. The Grievant or
the Union shall exercise the right to Arbitration by giving the Personnel Director

Page 31 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

written notice of intent to arbitrate within ten (10) working days from the date of
receipt of the mediator’s recommendation(s). If any question arises as to the ability
to arbitrate the grievance, and the Grievant or the Union has decided to proceed,
the following apply:

)

If the grievance is a claimed violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of
this Agreement or rules, regulations, or policies as defined in Section 1(a) of
this Article not resulting in a verbal warning, written reprimand. or
suspension of 1 to 3 days, such question shall first be ruled upon by the
Arbitrator selected to hear the dispute.

If the grievance is a claimed violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of
this Agreement or rules, regulations. or policies as defined in Section 1(a) of
this Article resulting in a verbal warning, written reprimand, or suspension of
| to 3 days. a mediator through the FMCS shall consider the evidence
presented by both parties regarding the claimed violation. misapplication, or
misinterpretation and make a recommendation that the parties will accept as
final and binding.

A decision that is final and binding for the parties to proceed or not proceed
to Arbitration.

i Within ten (10) working days after the Personnel Director receives the
written notice of intent to Arbitrate, The Employer and the Grievant, or
the Union, will attempt to agree upon a mutually acceptable Arbitrator.
and to obtain a commitment from such Arbitrator to serve. If the parties
are unable to agree upon an Arbitrator, or to obtain a commitment to
serve from the agreed-upon Arbitrator within the ten (10) working day
period. a request for a list of seven (7) arbitrators may be made by
either party to the FMCS. Within five (5) working days of receipt of the
list, each party shall alternately strike names from the list, and the name
remaining shall be the Arbitrator. The party to strike first shall be
determined by a toss of the coin. The parties shall be bound by the rules
and procedures of the American Arbitration Association in the selection
of an Arbitrator.

ii. The Arbitrator shall thereafter confer promptly with the parties. shall
set and hold hearings, and shall issue a written decision setting forth the
Arbitrator's findings of fact, conclusions of law, and decision within
thirty (30) working days from the date of the conclusion of all hearings
on the matter arbitrated. The Arbitrator's written decision shall be
consistent with the law and the terms of this Agreement and shall be
final and binding upon the parties. The Arbitrator's authority shall be
limited to the application and interpretation of the provisions of this
Agreement and any related rules, regulations, and policies of the
Employer, and no arbitrator shall have the power to modify, amend or
alter any terms or conditions of this Agreement.

Page 32 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

6. Arbitration Costs: The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be shared equally by the
Employer and the Union. Each party shall bear the costs of its own presentation
including. but not limited to. witness fees and expenses, preparation, pre- and post-
hearing briefs, and legal fees, if any.

7. If a court reporter is requested by either party, the requesting party shall pay the costs of
the reporter. If the record is transcribed, the requesting party will pay the transcription
costs unless the parties mutually agree to share the cost. Any party desiring a copy of the
transcription will pay the costs for the copy. If the Arbitrator requires a reporter and
transcript. the parties will share the cost equally.

8. Jurisdiction of the Arbitrator: The arbitrator shall decide all substantive and procedural
issues. Upon request of either party, and in the discretion of the Arbitrator, the merits of a
grievance and the substantive and procedural issues arising in connection with the
grievance shall be consolidated for hearing. The decision of the Arbitrator may be enforced
in any court of competent jurisdiction.

9.  General Provisions:

a. If the Grievant fails to carry his/her grievance forward to the next level within the
prescribed time period, the grievance shall be considered settled based upon the
decision rendered at the most recent step utilized.

b. The Grievant may be represented by a person of his/her choice at any level of this
procedure.

¢. Nothing contained herein shall preclude an Employee, with or without
representation, from bringing a matter not addressed herein through the chain of
command to the Personnel Director.

d. Proof of service shall be accomplished by Certified Mail or personal service
evidenced by a notarized affidavit of service.

10. Exceptions to Time Limits: The time limits set forth in this Article shall be strictly
observed. unless extended by written agreement of the Union and the Employer or
otherwise excused for just cause.

a. A Grievance alleging errors in wages which are ongoing shall be deemed
continuing and all subsequent errors shall relate back to and be incorporated

within the Grievance alleging the errors in the first instance.

b. Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any grievance filed prior to
expiration may be processed through the grievance procedure to resolution.

11. Proof of service shall be accomplished by certified mail or personal service.

Page 33 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 21: MISCELLANEOUS

)

Safety: The County shall make every reasonable effort to provide all safety equipment and
maintain safe conditions of employment. Employees shall be alert to unsafe practices,
equipment or conditions and report same to their immediate supervisor in writing. The
supervisor will provide an initial response to all such reports within three (3) days of receiving
the Employee's written notice. A written response will be provided within ten (10) days. The
County agrees to pay for a standard testing procedure to test for HIV/AIDS for an Employee
who. within the scope of the Employee's normal duties, has been exposed to  HIV/AIDS and
could reasonably be viewed as posing a legitimate threat. The County agrees to pay for
Hepatitis B vaccinations for all Employees covered by this Agreement who consent to the
vaccination and who make an affirmative request for the vaccination.

Communicable Disease: In the event an officer covered under this Agreement or his/her
supervisor suspects that, as a result of the course of duty, s’/he has been exposed to or is the
carrier of a serious communicable disease, the deputy may be relieved of duty without the
loss of any pay or sick leave and shall be taken to a local emergency hospital for diagnosis
and treatment. It shall be the responsibility of the supervisor to determine if or when the
deputy is permitted to leave duty for this purpose.

a  The deputy shall be provided with preventive measures designed to protect the deputy
against communicable diseases. These measures shall include. but are not limited to,
vaccines and blood tests: medical equipment such as gloves. masks, and other products:
and equipment and procedures that are intended to detect. prevent. or impede
communicable disease. Participation in any medical procedures, such as vaccination and
testing, shall be at the discretion of the deputy. The Storey County Sheriff’s office shall
not be held responsible for any consequences to the officer as a result of the deputy
having or not having received any vaccinations or test.

Personnel Files: The Employer will maintain a master personnel file on each Employee. The
Employer shall maintain only one (1) set of files on each Employee: the Personnel Office
shall maintain said files. Any Employee has the right to review his/her master personnel file
upon request to the Personnel Office. Reasonable advance notice will be provided. This right
is limited to the individual Employee to review his/her own personnel file. However, an
Employee may, with proper release forms, permit his/her personnel file to be reviewed by a
party so authorized, upon presentation of properly executed forms to the Personnel Office,
which form shall be developed by the Personnel Office. Except as provided herein, only
those authorized persons working in the Personnel Office, the Employee's Supervisor, and
the Sheriff shall have access to an Employee's master personnel file. In addition, the Employer's
authorized attorney(s) shall have the right to access an Employee's files for legitimate
personnel purposes related to discipline, complaints, grievances, arbitrations, and lawsuits
involving the Employee.

Rights of Peace Officers: The County expressly recognizes the provisions of NRS Chapter
289 "Rights of Peace Officers."

Page 34 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

5. Personal Property: Subject to the approval of the Sheriff, the County will pay one-half (1/2)
the cost of replacing an Employee's prescription eyeglasses/contact lenses damaged in the line
of duty to the extent not covered by insurance.

6. Participative Management Committee: A Committee of the Management and the Union, not
to exceed three (3) representatives each, shall meet semi-annually or more frequently when
mutually agreed. The meetings will be held on mutually agreed dates and times for the purpose

of:

Discussing the administration of this Agreement;
Exchanging general information of interest to the parties:

Giving the bargaining unit representatives the opportunity to share views of their
members and/or make suggestions on subjects to their members;

Review and analyze replacement and new equipment for quality, safety and
functionality of future equipment purchases.

7. Education and Development: An Employee will be reimbursed for educational training
courses taken after written approval from the Sheriff.

a

The training must be related to the required skills or education for the Employee's
current position or to a logical career path with the Employer.

Only a bargaining unit Employee will be eligible for reimbursement for course work
after successful completion of the Employee’s probationary period. Further eligibility
may be determined by the Sheriff in accordance with the departmental training program.

No Employee will be reimbursed more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2.000.00) per
fiscal year. There will be no reimbursement if the cost is assumed by any other
institution, scholarship, or grant-in-aid.

Reimbursable expenses shall be restricted to tuition and course fees. While courses
shall be normally taken on the Employee's own time, exception may be granted by
the Sheriff, in which case hours from work will cause no adverse impacts to his/her
duties and other Employees in the workplace, and which hours from work must be
deducted from earned Vacation or be recorded as an unpaid excused absence.

To obtain reimbursement. the course must be taken from a recognized and accredited
college, university. or training institution. The Employee shall provide valid evidence
that s/he completed the course with a minimum grade of “B” eighty percent. If the
course is of a nature that no grade is given (i.e., pass or fail), the Employee must
provide to the Employer a certificate of completion or other valid documentation
showing satisfactory passage of the courses.

Page 35 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

£ The employee shall receive the regular rate of pay during training and education
which takes place during the employee’s regular schedule shift period and otherwise
as required by the federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA).

8. Shift Trades: Represented Employees may request to trade shifts in the event that it does not
interfere with the operation of the Sheriff's Office. Employees who trade shifts must occupy
the same job assignment and otherwise be qualified to perform the duties of the job assignment.

a No obligation, financial or otherwise of any nature, shall accrue to the Employer  on
account of such shift trades. Therefore, hours worked by an Employee working a
shift as the result of a shift trade shall be excluded from any overtime calculation.
However, the regularly scheduled Employee shall be compensated as if s/he had
worked his/her normal schedule for the traded shift.

b. Where Overtime is required as the result of an Employee's inability to fill a shift
trade. the Employee failing to fill a shift shall have his/her Annual Leave balance
reduced up to twelve (12) hours or up to eighteen (18) hours if Overtime payment is
required.

¢. Three-way shift trades are prohibited except under emergency conditions, as
determined by a Supervisor.

d A maximum of one hundred twenty (120) hours of shift trades per calendar year,
per Employee will be permitted. Shift trades shall not interfere with the operation,
administration, or safety of the Sheriff's Office.

e Nothing herein shall be construed to diminish the Employer's management rights
under NRS 288 or the Management Rights clause hereof.

ARTICLE 22: CATASTROPHIC LEAVE

I~

Definitions: Catastrophe means the Employee is unable to perform the duties of his/her
position including a reasonable modified duty assignment because of a serious illness or
injury to the Employee and/or an immediate family member (within the First degree of
consanguinity or affinity) which is life threatening or which will require a lengthy
convalescence. Lengthy convalescence means a period of disability that an attending
physician expects to exceed ten (10) weeks.

Establishing the Catastrophic Leave Account: The Sheriff’s Office may establish an
account for Catastrophic Leave for Sheriff’s Office Employees. All Employees of the
Sheriff's Office who are eligible to use Sick Leave, whether or not the positions they
occupy are part of the bargaining unit of this Agreement. may use the Leave from the
Catastrophic Leave account and/or donate to this account. Donations to and withdrawals
from this account are restricted to Employees of the Sherift's Office.

a  An Employee may request, in writing, that a specified number of hours of his/her
accrued Annual or Sick Leave be transferred from his/her account to the Catastrophic
Leave account.

Page 36 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

b. Sick and Annual Leave will be transferred at the rate of one hour for one hour credit
donated consistent with the provisions of NRS 245. Donated time will be converted to
a dollar amount based upon the donating Employee's current base hourly rate of pay.
When an Employee is given Leave, the Catastrophic Leave account will be reduced by
an amount determined by multiplying the receiving Employee's current base rate of pay
by the number of hours received.

¢. The minimum number of hours which may be transferred is eight (8) hours. An
Employee may not transfer Sick Leave to the Catastrophic Leave account if the balance
of his/her account after the transfer is less than two hundred forty (240) hours. Leave
will be placed in a pool: however, the Employee may transfer hours to the catastrophic
leave account for use by a particular Employee who has been determined to be eligible
to receive the Leave.

d. Any hours of Annual or Sick Leave which are transferred from any Employee's account
to the Catastrophic Leave account may not be returned or restored to that Employee.
This subsection does not prevent the Employee from receiving Leave pursuant to section
4 of this Article.

3. Request for Catastrophic Leave: An Employee who is himself/herself affected by a
catastrophe or an immediate family member (within the first degree of consanguinity)
affected by a catastrophe as defined in paragraph (1) may request to the Sheriff, in-writing,
that a specified number of hours of Leave be transferred from the Catastrophic Leave
account to his/her account.

a. The request must include:
i. The Employee's name, title, and classification; and

ii. A physician’s statement of the limitations which prevent the Employee from
being available for work and the expected duration of the limitations.

b. An Employee may not receive any Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account until
s’/he has used all his/her accrued Annual. Sick. and other paid Leave. If an
Employee has requested leave from the Catastrophic Leave account within the
previous three (3) years, the Employee may not receive any leave from the
Catastrophic Leave account until s/he has been off work for forty (40) consecutive
hours and has used all his/her accrued Sick, Annual, and other paid Leave.

c. An Employee who receives Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account is entitled
to payment for that leave at a rate no greater than his/her own rate of pay.

d.  The maximum number of hours that may be granted to an employee shall be 480
hours per rolling calendar year. Any requests for an exception to this limit must be
approved by the Sheriff and the Administrative Officer/Personnel Director.

4. Approval of Transferring the Catastrophic Leave: The Sheriff may approve the transfer of
a specified number of hours of Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account to the account
of any Employee who is eligible to receive such Leave.

Page 37 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

a. The decision of the Sheriff concerning the approval of Leave is final and is not
subject to the Grievance procedure, judicial review. or review by the Board of
County Commissioners.

5. Review of Status of Catastrophe; Termination of Leave: Disposition of Hours Not Used:
The Sheriff shall review the status of the limitations of the Employee and determine when
the limitations no longer exist. This determination is final and not subject to the Grievance
procedure, judicial review, or review by the Board of County Commissioners.

a.  The Sheriff shall not grant any hours of Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account
after:

i. The limitations cease to exist; or

ii. The Employee who is receiving the Leave resigns or his/her employment
with the County is terminated.

b. Any Leave which is received from the Catastrophic Leave account which was not
used at the time the limitations cease to exist or upon the resignation or
termination of the employment of the Employee must be returned to the
Catastrophic Leave account.

6. Maintenance of Records on Catastrophic Leave: The Sheriff shall maintain the records
and report to the Union any information concerning the use of a Catastrophic Leave
account.

7. Substantiation of Limitations: The Sheriff or his/her designee may require written
substantiation of the limitations and expected duration by a physician of his/her choosing.
The cost of such written substantiation shall be borne by the Sheriff’s Office.

ARTICLE 23: SERVICE CONNECTED DISABILITY

All eligible members shall be covered by a workers compensation program of the county’s
choice that conforms with the provisions of the Nevada Industrial Insurance Act (NRS 616) and
the Nevada Occupational Disease Act (NRS 617) and that provides for payment of industrial
accident benefits and compensation for partial and total disability arising from industrial injuries
and occupational diseases.

1. In the event an employee is absent from work due to a service-connected disability,
approved pursuant to NRS 616 or 617, a supplemental amount from the county will be
provided which would cause the total amount received by the employee from the service-
connected disability and the county to equal his/her wages at the time of his/her disability.
The supplemental compensation will start from the first day of absence or illness, but shall
not exceed 60 calendar days for the same incident. During this period. the employee shall
not forfeit any accrued sick leave. Successful completion of the

Page 38 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

[

probationary period is required in order to qualify for the supplemental compensation
from the county.

It is the intent of the county to pay on-the-job injured employees (as outlined in this
section) the difference between full biweekly wages and that provided pursuant to NRS
616 and 617 covering the period enumerated in Section 1 of this Article. No
supplemental benefits shall be paid until after the employee’s lost-time benefit check has
been deposited with the County Treasurer.

If an employee who is entitled to disability compensation has not completed his/her
probationary period, or if an employee who has received supplemental compensation for
the maximum 60 calendar days is unable to return to work. s/he may elect to utilize
accrued sick leave, during which period the employee shall receive compensation from
the county as provided by NRS 281.390. If the employee is receiving no compensation
for time missed from work though the workers’ compensation program, the employee
must use leave benefits to fully account for any absence.

When accrued sick leave has expired, if the employee is still unable to work and the
employee is receiving compensation for time missed from work though the workers’
compensation program, s/he will be permitted to use his/her accrued annual leave as sick
leave. Subsequent to the expiration of both the employee’s sick and annual leave,
provided that the employee has so elected to use his/her annual leave as sick leave, the
employee’s compensation will be limited to that provided by NRS 617 or 617 and the
employee will be placed in a leave without pay status. However, through written

justification to the Personnel Director. exceptions to this Article may be approved by the

county manager.

As a result of a licensed physician’s evaluation and prognosis. it appears that the
employee will not return to his/her regular county job within a 12-month period, the
county may require a medical separation. Medical separation appeals of employees
covered by this Agreement shall be handled in accordance with the procedures set forth
in Article 45 Grievance Procedures.

ARTICLE 24: PAYROLL DEDUCTION

1.

The County shall deduct dues from the salaries of Union members and pay over to the
proper officer of the Union the money so collected on a monthly basis. All payroll
deductions for dues shall only be made in accordance with a voluntary deduction
authorization form individually executed by the Employee for whom the deduction will
be made.

The Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold the County harmless against any and all
claims, demands, suits, and all other forms of liability, which might arise out of or by
reason of action taken under the provisions of this Article.

The Union shall certify to the County, in writing, the current rate of membership dues.

The County will be notified of any change in the rate of membership dues, in writing,
thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such change.

Page 39 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

ARTICLE 25: PERSONNEL PRACTICES

[

Date of Hire is the first day actually worked.

Initial Probationary Period: Probationary periods are considered a continuation of the
selection process and apply to all initial appointments. All classifications covered by this
Agreement shall undergo a probationary period of one year from the date of hire.

a  Time which elapses between an offer of employment and the date the employee
begins working, unpaid leave, or other separations shall not be considered working
time.

Rejection During Initial Probation: The Sheriff may terminate (reject) a probationary
Employee at any time during the probationary period without the right of appeal in any
manner and without recourse to the grievance procedure of this Agreement; except when
the Employee alleges and substantiates in writing that the termination was due to
discrimination on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation,
age, disability. pregnancy, ancestry, veteran's status, domestic partnership, genetic
information, gender identity or expression, political affiliation, membership in Nevada
National Guard, or union affiliation. Grievances based on allegations of discrimination
shall be processed pursuant to Article 20 of this Agreement and filed directly at Level 2
with the Sheriff within ten (10) days of the notice of termination.

The Sheriff shall notify the Employee in writing that s/he is rejected during probation. No
reasons for the action are necessary.

ARTICLE 26: DRUG AND ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE

.

(R

Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace & Reasonable Suspicion Drug Testing: Employees
agree to abide by Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 206 — Drug and Alcohol-
Free Workplace.

Reasonable Suspicion Drug and Alcohol Testing will be conducted in accordance with
Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 206 — Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
and Storey County Policy and Procedure Number 206A — Vehicle Operators Drug and
Alcohol Policy. as appropriate.

Weapons / Use of Deadly Force Incident: Each Employee who accidentally discharges a
firearm while on duty or applies deadly force against a human being will be tested for
drugs and alcohol as soon as possible after the incident.

a. An Employee who is subject to a post-accident/incident test must remain readily
available for testing. An Employee who leaves the scene before the test is
administered or who does not make him/herself readily available may be deemed
to have refused to be tested, and such refusal shall be treated as a positive test.
Further. the Employee. subject to a post-accident/incident test, must refrain from
consuming alcohol for eight (8) hours following the accident/incident or until the

Employee submits to an alcohol test, whichever comes first. An Employee who
Page 40 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

consumes alcohol within eight (8) hours following the accident/incident or before
submitting to an alcohol test, whichever comes first, shall be subject to discipline,
up to and including termination.

ARTICLE 27: SAVINGS CLAUSE

It is not the intent of either party hereto to violate any laws, rulings or regulations of any
governmental authority or agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter of this Agreement.
The parties agree that, in the event that any provision(s) of this Agreement are finally held or
determined to be illegal or void as being in contravention of such laws, rulings or regulations,
nevertheless the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless the
provision(s) so found to be void cannot be separated from the provision(s) of this Agreement
held to be legal. Upon such finding of illegality and nullity, the parties shall promptly meet to
enter into lawful negotiations concerning the substance of the provision(s) found to be illegal and
void.

ARTICLE 28: ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT PROCEDURE

This Agreement shall be deemed adopted and binding upon execution by authorized
representatives of the Union and the County. The provisions of this Agreement shall not be
altered, amended. or added to except by the mutual written agreement of the County and the
Union. Either party may request to the other to consider changes in provisions of the
Agreement; such request shall be in writing.

Page 41 of 42



2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

STOREY COUNTY STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION

Marshall McBride, Chairman fouWeich,. President

Storey County Commission SCSO Employees’ Association
Jay Carmona, Vice-Chairman Harry Schroeder., Vice-President
Storey County Commission SCSO Employees’ Association
Lance Gilman, Commissioner Eric Kern, Secretary SCSO
Storey County Commission Employees’ Association

Wesley Coons, Treasurer SCSO
Employees™ Association

Approved as to from:

Anne Langer, District Attorney

Page 42 of 42



APPENDIX A: WAGE AND STEP SCHEDULE
(2020 — 2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement Between SCSOEA & Storey County)

Article 7 Compensation.

Wage and Step Schedule

Class &
Year

Merit Steps General

Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Step 5

Step 6

Step 7

Step 8

Step 9

Step 10

Deputy

46,525

49,084

51,783

54,632

57,636

60,806 (64,151

67,679

71,401

75,328

Corporal

49461

52,181

55,051

58,079

61,274

64.644 68,199

71,950

75,907

80,082

Sergeant

53,347

56,281

59,377

62,642

66,088

69,722 (73,557

77,603

81,871

86.374

Page 43

(2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement Between SCSOEA & SC)




2020-2023 Collective Bargaining Agreement SCSOEA/Storey County

Appendix B: Steps, Grades, and Movements

General Provisions

l.

wn

6.

Effective the first day of the first full pay period in July, all subject employees located at
steps 10, 11, 12, and 13, will be placed into the new step 10 of the 2020-2023 pay chart
and will be capped at that step.

The anniversary date for each employee will remain unchanged by the chart movements
described in this article.

This agreement becomes effective July 1, 2020, at 12:01 a.m. Employees who have
anniversary dates on July | of the 2020-2023 contract will be placed into their next merit
step. Wage chart adjustments described in this agreement become effective on the first
full pay period of July 2020.

There is one pay chart in this agreement, and it is contained in Appendix A.
The term “hired” means hired into the bargaining unit subject to this agreement.

Employees hired into the bargaining unit may advance no further than step 10 in the
chart. Step 10 in the chart is the “cap™ for those employees. The following is placing the
few subject employees at the correct steps based on the correct hire date.

a. Effective the first day of the first full pay period in July, an employee hired on
January 13, 2017, who is currently at a step 6 in the 2017-2020 contract will have
their pay frozen at their current annual base rate until their next anniversary date,
at which point they will be placed at step 5 in the 2020-2023 contract, providing that they
receive a satisfactory evaluation score.

b. Effective the first day of the first full pay period in July, an employee hired on
January 23, 2019, who is currently at a step 3 in the 2017-2020 pay chart will be
placed at step 2 in the 2020-2023 pay chart. This employee is not capped and will
advance to step 3 at his/ her next anniversary date, providing that they receive a
satisfactory evaluation score.

¢. Effective the first day of the first full pay period in July, an employee hired on
January 23, 2019, who is currently at a step 4 in the 2017-2020 contract will have
their pay frozen at their current annual base rate until their next anniversary date,
at which point they will be placed at step 3 in the 2020-2023 contract, providing that they
receive a satisfactory evaluation score.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ |

1.

[

Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 20- granting the Historic Fourth
Ward School Museum, a non-profit entity, a sum not to exceed $120,000.00 for the purpose of
preserving the Historic Fourth Ward School Museum, a County-owned building and for the
purpose of preserving the Fourth Ward School Building and for promoting the history of the
Comstock and Storey County.

Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 20-570granting the Historic Fourth
Ward School Museum, a sum not to exceed $120,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the
Historic Fourth Ward School Museum, a County-owned building and supporting history

Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of the
grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The proposed
Resolution meets the requirements of the statute.

Supporting materials: Resolution No. 20-

Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Community Relations
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[ 1] Approved []
[] Continued

[] Denied
Agenda Item No. \(O



RESOLUTION NO. 0 -570

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD
SCHOOL FOUNDATION for the purpose of preserving the
Fourth Ward School Building and for promoting the history of the
Comstock and Storey County.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and.,
WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for educational purposes if

the sole or primary purpose of the organization is to (1) provide athletic, cultural or social
activities for children, (2) provide displays or performances of the visual or performing arts to
members of the general public, or (3) provide instruction and disseminate information on

subjects beneficial to the community; and.

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes or

for educational purposes must also meet the requirements that:



(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(¢) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of
any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;

(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e¢) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization. See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL FOUNDATION is a Nevada
domestic non-profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which qualifies as a charitable
and/or educational organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL FOUNDATION desires to
obtain a grant from Storey County in the amount of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($120,000.00) for the purpose of preserving the Fourth Ward School Building, a

County-owned building, and for promoting the history of the Comstock and Storey County; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the HISTORIC FOURTH WARD SCHOOL FOUNDATION does provide

cultural or social activities for children, does provide displays of visual arts to members of the



general public and does provide instruction and information on subjects beneficial to the

community, and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget:

NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to the Historic
Fourth Ward School Foundation a sum not to exceed ONE HUNDRED TWENTY THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($120,000.00) to be expended for the specific purpose of preserving the Fourth Ward

School Building and for promoting the history of the Comstock and Storey County.

ADOPTED this 19th day of MAY, 2020.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required | |

1.

3.
4.

5

%

8.

9.

Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 20-  granting the Community
Chest, Inc. the sum of $259,500.00 for the specific purpose of funding health and human
services programs.

Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 20-5 1 granting the Storey County
Senior Citizens Center the sum of $259,500.00 for the specific purpose of funding health and
human services programs.

Prepared by: [ara Mather
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986

Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of the
grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The proposed
Resolution meets the requirements of the statute.

Supporting materials. Resolution No. 20-

Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Community Relations
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[] Approved
[] Denied

,_”_.
[ —

Agenda Item No. | \



RESOLUTION NO. 20- &,/ |

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to COMMUNITY CHEST INC. for
the purpose of funding health and human services programs.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;



(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.

See NRS 372.3261(5): and,

WHEREAS, COMMUNITY CHEST INC. is a Nevada domestic non-profit corporation
operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable organization

authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, COMMUNITY CHEST INC. desires to obtain a grant from Storey County
in the amount of TWO HUNDRED FIFY NINE THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS

($259.500.00) for the purpose of funding health and human services programs; and.

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose: and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget:



NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to COMMUNITY
CHEST INC. a sum not to exceed TWO HUNDRED FIFY NINE THOUSAND, FIVE
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($259.500.00) for the specific purpose of funding health and human
services programs.

ADOPTED this 19TH day of MAY, 2020

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE. Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No 0 < ggranting the St. Mary’s Art
Center, a non-profit entity, a sum not to exceed $100,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the
St. Mary’s Art Center, a County-owned building and supporting arts and culture through
education and cultural offerings.

2. Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 35 <72 granting the St. Mary’s
Art Center Inc. a sum not to exceed $100,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the St. Mary’s
Art Center, a County-owned building and supporting arts and culture through education and
cultural offerings.

3. Prepared by: Lara Mather
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute.

3. 5. Supporting materials: Grant Application of St. Mary’s Art Center Inc.;
Resolution No. : NRS 244.1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

[ S —]

Agenda Item No. \(_;



RESOLUTION NO. ) 5712

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to ST. MARY’S ART CENTER for
the purpose of preserving the St. Mary’s Art Center, a county owned
building, and supporting arts and culture through education and
cultural offerings.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant money
to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be expended

for an authorized purpose: and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the board
of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions imposed

upon the expenditure of the granted moneys: and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services that
are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is operating in

this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes must

also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity:

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(¢) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;



(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(¢) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by the
organization in this State in furtherance of the religious. charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
NRS 372.3261(5): and,

WHEREAS, the ST. MARY’'S ART CENTER is a Nevada domestic non-profit
corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable organization

authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose: and.

WHEREAS. ST. MARY’S ART CENTER desires to obtain a grant from Storey County
in the amount of ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000.00) for the purpose of
preserving the St. Mary’s Art Center, a county owned building, and supporting arts and culture

through education and cultural offerings: and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public purpose;

and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget;



NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to ST. MARY'S ART
CENTER a sum not to exceed ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000.00) for the
specific purposes of preserving the St. Mary’s Art Center, and supporting arts and culture through

education and cultural offerings.
ADOPTED this 19th day of MAY, 2020.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 205)%granting the Storey County
Senior Citizens Center the sum of $386,240.00 for the purpose of maintaining the Storey
County Senior Center and for providing programs and services to seniors to promote
independent and healthy lifestyles.

2. Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 20-5)%ranting the Storey County
Senior Citizens Center the sum of $386,240.00 for the purpose of maintaining the Storey
County Senior Center and for providing programs and services to seniors to promote
independent and healthy lifestyles.

3. Prepared by: Lara Mather
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986

4, Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute.

3. 5.Supporting materials: Grant Application of Storey County Senior Citizens Center;
Resolution No. 20- : NRS 244.1505 NRS 372.3261

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[] Denied

| Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No. | 2)



RESOLUTION NO.20- ©57%

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to the STOREY COUNTY SENIOR
CITIZEN'S CENTER for the purpose of maintaining the Storey
County Senior Center, a county owned building, while providing
programs and services to seniors to promote independent and
healthy lifestyles.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys: and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;



(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.

See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CITIZEN'S CENTER is a Nevada
domestic non-profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a

charitable organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and,

WHEREAS, STOREY COUNTY SENIOR CITIZEN'S CENTER desires to obtain a
grant from Storey County in the amount of THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY SIX THOUSAND
TWO HUNDRED FORTY DOLLARS ($386,240.00) for the purpose of maintaining the Storey
County Senior Center, a county owned building, while providing programs and services to

seniors to promote independent and healthy lifestyles: and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and.

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget:



NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to STOREY
COUNTY SENIOR CITIZEN'S CENTER a sum not to THREE HUNDRED EIGHTY SIX
THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FORTY DOLLARS ($386,240.00) for the specific purpose of
maintaining the Storey County Senior Center, while providing programs and services to seniors

to promote independent and healthy lifestyles.

ADOPTED this 19th day of MAY, 2020.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required [ ]

L

(%]

Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 20-5 Mgranting the Mark
Twain Community Center a sum not to exceed $25,000.00 for the purpose of preserving
the Mark Twain Community Center and for community outreach and improvement.

Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 205 4granting the Mark Twain
Community Center a sum not to exceed $25,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the Mark
Twain Community Center and for community outreach and improvement.

Prepared by: [ara Mather

Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986
Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must

be made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose
of the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute.

Supporting materials: Resolution No. 20-

Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Community Relations
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:

[ ] Approved [ 1] Approved with Modifications
[ ] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |4



RESOLUTION NO. 20- 74

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY
CENTER for the purpose of maintaining the Mark Twain
Community Center, a county owned building while providing
community outreach and enhancement.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant

money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose; and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys: and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;



(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(¢) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, the MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CENTER is a Nevada domestic non-
profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable

organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and.

WHEREAS, MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CENTER desires to obtain a grant from
Storey County in the amount of TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25.000.00) for the
purpose of maintaining the Mark Twain Community Center, a county owned building, while

providing community outreach and enhancement ; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget:



NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to MARK TWAIN
COMMUNITY CENTER a sum not to exceed TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS
($25.,000.00) for the specific purpose preserving the Mark Twain Community Center and for

community outreach and enhancement.

ADOPTED this 19th day of MAY, 2020.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting Date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 20+57granting Liberty Engine
Company No. 1 Inc. a sum not to exceed $10,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the
Comstock Firemen’s Museum. and its historic contents.

[

Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 205 7granting the Liberty Engine
Company No. 1 Inc., a sum not to exceed $10,000.00 for the purpose of preserving the
Comstock Fireman’s Museum and its historic contents.

3. Prepared by: Lara Mather

4. Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986
5. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be

made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute.

=2

. Supporting materials: Resolution No. 20-

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
KL  District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Community Relations
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved

[
[] Denied [

| Approved with Modifications
| Continued

Agenda Item No. |~



RESOLUTION NO. 20- 7 |5

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY
NO 1 INC. for the purpose of preserving the Comstock Firemen's
Museum, county owned building while protecting, preserving and
displaying the original fire-fighting equipment of Virginia City and
Storey County.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose: and

WHEREAS, a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys; and.

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity:

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(¢) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation;



(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and.

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.
See NRS 372.3261(5); and,

WHEREAS, LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO 1 INC. is a Nevada domestic non-
profit corporation operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise qualifies as a charitable

organization authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose; and.,

WHEREAS, LIBERTY ENGINE COMPANY NO 1 INC. desires to obtain a grant from
Storey County in the amount of TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) for the purpose of
preserving the Comstock Firemen's Museum, a county owned building while protecting,
preserving and displaying the original fire-fighting equipment of Virginia City and Storey

County.; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County has previously

appropriated funds for the requested grant by approval of the County budget:
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to LIBERTY ENGINE

COMPANY NO 1 INC. a sum not to exceed TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) for



the specific purpose preserving the Comstock Firemen’s Museum and for the purpose of
protecting, preserving and displaying the original fire-fighting equipment of Virginia City and

Storey County.
ADOPTED this 19th day of MAY, 2020.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALIL McBRIDE, Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda | X ] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 20- &7](p granting the Storey
County Jeep Posse the sum of $10.000.00 for the purpose of renovating the historic Ice House
on Toll Road in Virginia City Nevada and for providing financial assistance to sick and injured
persons in the community in need of such financial assistance

2

Recommended motion: | move to approve Resolution 20- %571 granting the Storey County
Jeep Posse the sum of $10,000.00 for the purpose of renovating the historic Ice House on Toll
Road in Virginia city, Nevada and for the purpose of providing financial assistance to sick and
injured persons in need of such financial assistance.

(e

. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Under NRS 244.1505 a grant of money to a non-profit organization must be
made by resolution of the Board of County Commissioners which specifies the purpose of
the grant and any conditions imposed on the expenditure of the granted money. The
proposed Resolution meets the requirements of the statute

3. 5. Supporting materials: Resolution No.20- 55 J(p .

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

KL  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

O

. Board action:
[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modifications
[ ] Denied [] Continued
Agenda Item No. \b



RESOLUTION NO. 20-

RESOLUTION Authorizing Grant of Money to Storey County Jeep Posse for the
Purpose of Pursuing Charitable Endeavors.

WHEREAS, NRS 244.1505 authorizes a Board of County Commissioners to grant
money to a nonprofit organization created for religious, charitable or educational purposes to be

expended for an authorized purpose: and

WHEREAS., a grant to a non-profit organization must be made by a resolution of the
board of county commissioners which must specify the purpose of the grant and any conditions

imposed upon the expenditure of the granted moneys: and,

WHEREAS, an organization qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes if the
sole or primary purpose of the organization is to advance a public purpose or provide services
that are otherwise required to be provided by a local government and the organization is

operating in this state, See NRS 372.3261; and,

WHEREAS, an organization that qualifies as an organization for charitable purposes

must also meet the requirements that:

(a) No part of the net earnings of any such organization inures to the benefit of a private
shareholder, individual or entity;

(b) The business of the organization is not conducted for profit;

(c) No substantial part of the business of the organization is devoted to the advocacy of

any political principle or the defeat or passage of any state or federal legislation:



(d) The organization does not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf
of or in opposition to any candidate for public office; and,

(e) Any property sold to the organization for which an exemption is claimed is used by
the organization in this State in furtherance of the religious, charitable or educational

purposes of the organization.

NRS 372.2361(5); and,

WHEREAS, the Storey County Jeep Posse is a Nevada corporation for public benefit
operating in the State of Nevada which otherwise appears to qualify as a charitable organization

authorized to receive grants from the County for a public purpose: and,

WHEREAS, Storey County Jeep Posse desires to obtain a grant from Storey County in
the amount of ten thousand dollars ($10.000.00) for the purposes of restoring the historic ice
house building which is available for public and charitable events and for providing financial
assistance to sick or injured persons in need of financial assistance in the Virginia City Gold Hill

communities; and,

WHEREAS, the use of the money for the purposes identified does serve a public

purpose; and,
NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS;

1. The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County does hereby grant to the Storey
County Jeep Posse the sum of TEN THOUSAND dollars ($10.000.00) for the specific

purpose of restoring the historic ice house building and for providing financial assistance



to sick and injured persons in need of financial assistance within the communities of
Virginia City and Gold Hill.
ADOPTED this dayof , 2020.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:

MARSHALL McBRIDE. Chairman

ATTEST:

VANESSA STEPHENS
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 19, 2019 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1 Title: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Bill No. 120,
Ordinance 20-309, providing for whistleblower protections as required by AB 274 of the
2019 Legislative Session

o

Recommended motion: | (Commissioner) move to approve the first
reading of Bill No. 120, Ordinance 20 — 309 establishing greater whistleblower protections

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4. Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
5. Staff summary: In the past, the provision of protections to whistleblowers by counties

beyond those protections provided by state statutes was addressed to the discretion of each
county. Storey County has not provided for county-mandated whistle blower protections.
In 2019, the Nevada Legislature, enacted AB 274, which became law upon approval of the
Governor. Section 3 of this Act mandated that local governments enact, by ordinance,
procedures that provide at least the same amount of protection to local government officers
and employees against reprisal and retaliation for the disclosure of improper governmental
action as is provided in NRS 281.611 to 281.671, inclusive for state officers and
employees. The proposed ordinance is intended to comply with the statutory requirement.

6. Supporting materials: Bill No. 120, Ordinance 20-309; AB 274 as enrolled.

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

|1



9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.



Summary- An ordinance enacting procedures to provide protection to Storey County officers
and employees against reprisal and retaliation for disclosure of improper
governmental action and other matters properly related thereto.

Bill No. 120
ORDINANCE NO. 20 - 309
TITLE:

AN ORDINANCE ENACTING PROCEDURES TO
PROVIDE PROTECTION TO OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES OF STOREY COUNTY AGAINST
REPRISALS AND RETALIATION FOR THE
DISCLOSURE OF IMPROPER GOVERNMENTAL
ACTION AND PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS
PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

Recital

Whereas, the Nevada Legislature by AB 274 of the 80th legislative session
required that local governments enact, by ordinance, procedures that
provide at least the same amount of protection to local government
officers and employees against reprisal and retaliation for the
disclosure of improper governmental action as is provided in NRS
281.611 to 281.671, inclusive for state officers and employees.

NOW THEREFORE DOES THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
STOREY COUNTY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

There is hereby added to Title 2 of the Storey County Code a new chapter
consisting of sections 1- 7 as hereafter set forth.

SECTION 1. Definitions

As used in sections 2 - 7, inclusive, unless the context otherwise requires

the following terms have the definitions set forth below:



1. “Improper governmental action” means any action taken by a County
governmental officer or employee in the performance of the officer's or employee's
official duties, whether or not the action is within the scope of employment of the
officer or employee, which is:

(a) In violation of any state law or regulation;

(b) In violation of an ordinance of Storey County;

(¢) An abuse of authority;

(d) Of substantial and specific danger to the public health or safety; or
(e) A gross waste of public money.

2. “County” means Storey County.

3. “County employee” means any person who performs public duties under
the direction and control of a County officer for compensation paid by or through
the County.

4. “County officer” means a person elected or appointed to a position with
the County that involves the exercise of a County power, trust or duty, including:

(a) Actions taken in an official capacity which involve a substantial
and material exercise of administrative discretion in the formulation of County
policy;

(b) The expenditure of money of the County; and

(c) The enforcement of laws and regulations of the State or the
County.

5. “Reprisal or retaliatory action” includes:

(a) The denial of adequate personnel to perform duties;

(b) Frequent replacement of members of the staff;

(c) Frequent and undesirable changes in the location of an office;

(d) The refusal to assign meaningful work;



(e) The issuance of letters of reprimand or evaluations of poor
performance;

(f) A demotion;

(g) A reduction in pay;

(h) The denial of a promotion;

(i) A suspension;

(j) A dismissal,

(k) A transfer;

(1) Frequent changes in working hours or workdays; or

(m) If the County officer or employee is licensed or certified by an
occupational licensing board, the filing with that board, by or on behalf of the
employer, of a complaint concerning the officer or employee: or,

(n) Knowingly placing false information, including, without
limitation, a false complaint, in the personnel file of the County officer or
employee,

If such action is taken in whole or in part because the County officer or

employee disclosed information concerning improper governmental action.,

SECTION 2. Public Policy

It is hereby declared to be the public policy of Storey County that a County
officer or employee is encouraged to disclose, to the extent not expressly
prohibited by law, improper governmental action, and it is the intent of the Board
of County Commissioners of Storey County to protect the rights of a County

officer or employee who makes such a disclosure.



SECTION 3.
1. A County officer or employee:

(a) Shall use the official authority or influence of the ofticer or
employee to remedy any reprisal or retaliatory action of which the officer or
employee becomes aware.

(b) Shall not:

(1) directly or indirectly use or attempt to use the official
authority or influence of the officer or employee to intimidate,
threaten, coerce, command, influence or attempt to intimidate,
threaten, coerce, command or influence another County officer or
employee, in an effort to interfere with or prevent the disclosure of
information concerning improper governmental action, including,
without limitation, by intimidating, threatening, coercing,
commanding, influencing or attempting to intimidate, threaten,
coerce, command or influence the other officer or employee to take
reprisal or retaliatory action.

(2) Fail to use the official authority or influence of the officer or
employee to remedy any reprisal or retaliatory action of which the
officer or employee becomes aware.

2. For the purposes of this section, use of “official authority or influence”
includes taking, directing others to take, recommending, processing or approving
any personnel action such as an appointment, promotion, transfer, assignment,
reassignment, reinstatement, restoration, reemployment, evaluation or other

disciplinary action.



SECTION 4.

1. Ifany alleged reprisal or retaliatory action is taken against a County
officer or employee who discloses information concerning improper governmental
action within 2 years after the information is disclosed, the County officer or
employee may file a written appeal with the county manager. If any alleged
violation of section 3 above is alleged the County officer or employee has 60 days
within which to file the appeal with the county manager. The county manager
shall appoint a hearing officer to hear the appeal and to make a determination of
whether a violation of section 3 above occurred or the action taken was a reprisal
or retaliatory action. The written appeal must be accompanied by a statement that
sets forth with particularity, as applicable:

(a) The facts and circumstances relating to the alleged violation of
section 3 above; or
(b) the facts and circumstances under which the disclosure of
improper governmental action was made and the reprisal or retaliatory
action that is alleged to have been taken against the County officer or
employee

2. The hearing must be conducted substantially in accordance with the
procedures set forth in NRS 284.390 to 284.405, inclusive, as they now exist or
may hereafter be amended and the procedures adopted by the hearing officer
pursuant to subsection 5, below.

3. If the hearing officer determines that a violation of section 3 above
occurred or the action taken was a reprisal or retaliatory action, the hearing officer
may issue an order directing:

(a) The proper person to desist and refrain from engaging in such a
violation or action; or

(b) The termination of the employment of the proper person.



4. The hearing officer shall file a copy of the decision with the County
manager or any other elected county officer who is responsible for the
actions of that person.

5. The hearing officer may not rule against the local officer or employee
based on the person or persons to whom the improper governmental action was
disclosed.

6. The hearing officer may adopt rules of procedure for conducting a
hearing pursuant to this section that are not inconsistent with the procedures set
forth in NRS 284.390 to 284.405, inclusive as they presently exist or may hereafter
be amended.

SECTION 5

1. Upon the appointment of a hearing officer, the hearing officer shall grant
the County officer or employee a hearing within 20 working days after
appointment as the hearing officer unless the time limitation is waived, in writing,
by the County officer or employee or there is a conflict with the hearing calendar
of the hearing officer, in which case the hearing must be scheduled for the earliest
possible date after the expiration of the 20 days.

2. Upon verification that an appeal has been filed with the county manager
any county office or department which has investigated the complaint, if any, shall,
within 5 days after receiving a request by the County officer or employee or his or
her representative, produce and allow the County Officer or employee or his or her
representative to inspect or receive a copy of any document concerning the internal
administrative investigation, including, without limitation, any recordings, notes,
transcripts of interviews or other documents or evidence related to the internal

administrative investigation.



3. The County Officer or employee may represent himself or herself at the
hearing or be represented by an attorney or other person of the employee's own
choosing.

4. Technical rules of evidence do not apply at the hearing.

5. After the hearing and consideration of the evidence, the hearing officer
shall render a decision in writing, setting forth the reasons therefor.

6. The decision of the hearing officer is binding on the parties.

7. Any petition for judicial review of the decision of the hearing officer
must be filed in accordance with the following:

1. Judicial review of a final decision of the hearing officer must be:

(a) Conducted by the court without a jury; and
(b) Confined to the record.

2. The final decision of the hearing officer shall be deemed
reasonable and lawful until reversed or set aside in whole or in part by the court.
The burden of proof is on the party attacking or resisting the decision to show that
the final decision is invalid pursuant to subsection 3.

3. The court shall not substitute its judgment for that of the hearing
officer as to the weight of evidence on a question of fact. The court may remand or
affirm the final decision or set it aside in whole or in part if substantial rights of the
petitioner have been prejudiced because the final decision of the hearing officer is:

(a) In violation of constitutional or statutory provisions;
(b) In excess of the statutory authority of the agency;

(c) Made upon unlawful procedure;

(d) Affected by other error of law;

(e) Clearly erroneous in view of the reliable, probative and

substantial evidence on the whole record; or



(f) Arbitrary or capricious or characterized by abuse of
discretion.

4. As used in this section, “substantial evidence” means evidence which a
reasonable mind might accept as adequate to support a conclusion.

SECTION 6

1. The hearing officer may, upon application of any party to a hearing held
pursuant to this chapter, issue subpoenas requiring the attendance and testimony of
witnesses at the proceeding.

2. The hearing officer may, upon motion of a party, direct that an opposing
party participate in a discovery conference at which both parties and their counsel
may put questions to the other party and receive answers, or request and receive
copies of relevant documents or examine relevant documents and records and any
other physical evidence which the opposing party intends to use at the hearing.

3. The hearing officer may administer oaths and affirmations and examine
witnesses.

SECTION 7

1. All witnesses appearing pursuant to subpoena, other than parties or
officers or employees of the State or any political subdivision thereof, are entitled
to receive fees and mileage in the same amounts and under the same circumstances
as prescribed by law for witnesses in civil actions in the district courts.

2. Witnesses entitled to fees or mileage who attend hearings at points so far
removed from their residences as to prohibit return thereto from day to day are
entitled, in addition to fees and mileage, to receive the per diem allowance and
travel expenses provided for state officers and employees generally for each day of
actual attendance and for each day necessarily occupied in traveling to and from

the hearings.



3. Per diem and travel expenses must be paid by the party at whose request
the witness is subpoenaed. The hearing officer may award as costs the amount of
all such expenses to the prevailing party.

SECTION 8

The hearing officer selected by the county manager must be a lawyer or
other person experienced in conducting contested hearings. The hearing officer
must be free from conflicts of interest identified in NRS 281A.420(1). The hearing
officer is entitled to reasonable compensation for his/her services and to the

reimbursement of costs reasonably incurred.

Proposed on , 2020.

Proposed by Commissioner

Passed on: , 2020
Vote:
Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk

This ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the day of the
month of of the year 2020.



Assembly Bill No. 274-Assemblymen
Neal:; Torres and Watts

CHAPTER..........

AN ACT relating to governmental administration; revising
provisions governing the disclosure of information relating to
complaints filed with the Nevada Equal Rights Commission
within the Department of Employment, Training and
Rehabilitation; revising provisions governing the protections
against reprisal or retaliatory action provided for a state or
local governmental officer or employee who discloses certain
governmental action; and providing other matters properly
relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

The Nevada Equal Rights Commission is created under existing law within the
Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation. (NRS 233.030) Among
other duties, the Commission accepts, processes and resolves complaints alleging
unlawful discriminatory practices in  employment, housing and public
accommodations. (NRS 233.157, 233.165, 233.170) With certain exceptions,
existing law makes any information gathered by the Commission in the course of its
investigation of an alleged unlawful discriminatory practice confidential. Existing
law authorizes the disclosure of such information to any governmental entity as
appropriate or necessary to carry out its duties. (NRS 233.190) Section 1 of this bill:
(1) limits access to information related to a complaint filed with the Commission to
such staff of the Commission as are necessary to carry out the duties of the
Commission relating to the complaint; and (2) prohibits such staff from disclosing
the information to other officers and employees of the Department of Employment,
Training and Rehabilitation unless the disclosure is necessary to carry out the duties
of the Commission relating to the complaint.

Existing law encourages state and local governmental officers and employees to
disclose action taken by a state or local governmental officer or employee in the
performance of his or her official duties which is: (1) a violation of a state law or
local ordinance: (2) an abuse of authority: (3) of substantial and specific danger to
the public health or safety: or (4) a gross waste of public money. Existing law protects
the rights of a state or local governmental officer or employee who makes such a
disclosure, commonly known as a whistleblower. (NRS 281.611-281.671) Section 2
of this bill makes the placement of false information in the personnel file of a state
or local governmental officer or employee who discloses improper governmental
action a form of reprisal or retaliatory action.

Existing law prohibits a state or local governmental officer or employee from
using or attempting to use his or her official authority or influence to intimidate,
threaten, coerce, command or influence another state or local governmental officer
or employee in an effort to interfere with or prevent the disclosure of information
concerning improper governmental action. (NRS 281.631) Section 2.5 of this bill
clarifies that this prohibition includes using or attempting to use official authority or
influence to intimidate, threaten, coerce, command or influence another state or local
governmental officer or employee to take reprisal or retaliatory action. Section 2.5
also requires a state or local governmental officer or employee to use his or her
official authority or influence to remedy any reprisal or retaliatory action of which
the officer or employee becomes aware.

"..‘. 80th Session (2019)



—D

Existing law authorizes a local government to enact by ordinance procedures that
provide greater protection to local governmental officers and employees against
reprisal and retaliation for the disclosure of improper governmental action than the
protections provided in existing law. (NRS 281.635) Section 3 of this bill: (1) makes
it mandatory for a local government to enact procedures that provide at least the same
amount of protection against reprisal and retaliation as is provided in existing law:
and (2) authorizes such procedures to provide greater protection than the protection
provided in existing law.

Existing law authorizes a hearing officer who hears an appeal relating to a
reprisal or retaliatory action against a state or local governmental officer or employee
for disclosing improper government action to issue an order directing the proper
person to desist and refrain from engaging in an action determined to be a reprisal or
retaliatory action. (NRS 281.641, 281.645) Sections 4 and 5 of this bill authorize the
filing of an appeal with a hearing officer for violations of the provisions relating to
use of official authority or influence. Sections 4 and 5 additionally authorize such a
hearing officer to order the termination of the employment of the proper person.

Existing law requires certain persons to annually make available to each state or
local governmental officer or employee a written summary of the provisions of
existing law concerning reprisal or retaliatory action against a state or local
governmental officer or employee who discloses improper governmental action.
(NRS 281.661) Section 6 of this bill requires this written summary to be: (1)
developed by the Division of Human Resource Management of the Department of
Administration and clearly explain the relevant provisions in existing law, including
any action that a hearing officer is authorized to take if the hearing officer determines
that reprisal or retaliatory action was taken; and (2) provided within 30 days after the
commencement of employment, in addition to being provided annually. Section 6
also authorizes. in lieu of the written summary, the viewing of a video recording
developed by the Division of Human Resource Management that clearly explains the
relevant provisions in existing law. Section 6 requires the Division and the
administrative head of a local government to obtain written confirmation that
employees received the summary or viewed the video as required.

EXPLANATION — Matter in bolded ifalics is new, matter between brackets fomstted matensal] is material to be omitted

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 233.190 is hereby amended to read as follows:

233.190 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section or
NRS 239.0115, any information gathered by the Commission in the
course of its investigation of an alleged unlawful discriminatory
practice in housing, employment or public accommodations is
confidential.

2. {¥he} Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, the
Commission may disclose information gathered pursuant to
subsection 1 to:

(a) Any governmental entity as appropriate or necessary to carry
out its duties pursuant to this chapter; or

% !!I ¢ 80th Session (2019)



— 3

(b) To any other person if the information is provided in a manner
which does not include any information that may be used to identify
the complainant, the party against whom the unlawful discriminatory
practice is alleged or any person who provided information to the
Commission during the investigation.

3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, the
Commission shall disclose information gathered pursuant to
subsection 1 to the complainant and the party against whom the
unlawful discriminatory practice is alleged if:

(a) Each has consented to such disclosure; or

(b) The Commission has determined to conduct a hearing on the
matter or apply for a temporary restraining order or an injunction or
an action has been filed in court concerning the complaint.

4. The Commission may not disclose to the complainant or the
party against whom the unlawful discriminatory practice is alleged:

(a) Any information obtained during negotiations for a settlement
or attempts at mediating or conciliating the complaint.

(b) Any investigative notes or reports made by the Commission.

(c) Any information that may be used to identify a person who
provided information to the Commission during the investigation and
who has requested anonymity.

5. After the filing of a complaint with the Commission, access
to information related to the complaint must be limited only to such
staff of the Commission as is necessary to carry out the duties of the
Commission relating to the complaint. Such staff shall not disclose
such information to the other officers and employees of the
Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation,
including, without limitation, supervisors and the Director of the
Department, unless the disclosure is necessary to carry out the
duties of the Commission relating to the complaint.

6. Except as otherwise provided in this section or NRS
239.0115, if the Commission’s attempts at mediating or conciliating
the cause of the grievance succeed, the information gathered pursuant
to subsection 1 must remain confidential.

{6} 7. If the Commission proceeds with a hearing or applies for
injunctive relief, confidentiality concerning any information, except
negotiations for a settlement or attempts at mediating or conciliating
the cause of the grievance, is no longer required.

Sec. 2. NRS 281.611 is hereby amended to read as follows:

281.611 Asused in NRS 281.611 to 281.671, inclusive, unless
the context otherwise requires:

1. “Improper governmental action” means any action taken by a
state officer or employee or local governmental officer or employee

Z-%; 80th Session (2019)



.

in the performance of the officer’s or employee’s official duties,
whether or not the action is within the scope of employment of the
officer or employee, which is:

(a) In violation of any state law or regulation;

(b) If the officer or employee is a local governmental officer or
employee, in violation of an ordinance of the local government;

(c) An abuse of authority;

(d) Of substantial and specific danger to the public health or
safety; or

(e) A gross waste of public money.

2. “Local government” means a county in this State, an
incorporated city in this State and Carson City.

3. “Local governmental employee”™ means any person who
performs public duties under the direction and control of a local
governmental officer for compensation paid by or through a local
government.

4. *“Local governmental officer” means a person elected or
appointed to a position with a local government that involves the
exercise of a local governmental power, trust or duty, including:

(a) Actions taken in an official capacity which involve a
substantial and material exercise of administrative discretion in the
formulation of local governmental policy;

(b) The expenditure of money of a local government; and

(c) The enforcement of laws and regulations of the State or a local
government.

5. “Reprisal or retaliatory action” includes:

(a) The denial of adequate personnel to perform duties;

(b) Frequent replacement of members of the staff;

(¢) Frequent and undesirable changes in the location of an office;

(d) The refusal to assign meaningful work;

(e) The issuance of letters of reprimand or evaluations of poor
performance;

(f) A demotion;

(g) A reduction in pay;

(h) The denial of a promotion;

(i) A suspension;

(j) A dismissal;

(k) A transfer;

(1) Frequent changes in working hours or workdays; e}

(m) If the employee is licensed or certified by an occupational
licensing board, the filing with that board, by or on behalf of the
employer, of a complaint concerning the employee -} ; or

% 80th Session (2019)



.

(n) Knowingly placing false information, including, without
limitation, a false complaint, in the personnel file of the employee,
= if such action is taken, in whole or in part, because the state officer
or employee or local governmental officer or employee disclosed
information concerning improper governmental action.

6. “State employee” means any person who performs public
duties under the direction and control of a state officer for
compensation paid by or through the State.

7. *“State officer” means a person elected or appointed to a
position with the State which involves the exercise of a state power,
trust or duty, including:

(a) Actions taken in an official capacity which involve a
substantial and material exercise of administrative discretion in the
formulation of state policy;

(b) The expenditure of state money; and

(¢) The enforcement of laws and regulations of the State.

Sec. 2.5. NRS 281.631 is hereby amended to read as follows:

281.631 1. A state officer or employee and a local
governmental officer or employee fshat :

(a) Shall use the official authority or influence of the officer or
employee to remedy any reprisal or retaliatory action of which the
officer or employee becomes aware.

(b) Shall not {direetly} :

(1) Directly or indirectly use or attempt to use the official
authority or influence of the officer or employee to intimidate,
threaten, coerce, command, influence or attempt to intimidate,
threaten, coerce, command or influence another state officer or
employee or another local governmental officer or employee, as
applicable, in an effort to interfere with or prevent the disclosure of
information concerning improper governmental action {4, including,
without limitation, by intimidating, threatening, coercing,
commanding, influencing or attempting to intimidate, threaten,
coerce, command or influence the other officer or employee to take
reprisal or retaliatory action.

(2) Fail to use the official authority or influence of the
officer or employee to remedy any reprisal or retaliatory action of
which the officer or employee becomes aware.

2. For the purposes of this section, use of “official authority or
influence” includes taking, directing others to take, recommending,
processing or approving any personnel action such as an appointment,
promotion, transfer, assignment, reassignment, reinstatement,
restoration, reemployment, evaluation or other disciplinary action.

:.@." 80th Session (2019)



-

Sec. 3. NRS 281.635 is hereby amended to read as follows:

281.635 A local government fmay-enaet} shall, by ordinance ,
enact procedures that provide fereater} ar least the same amount of
protection to local governmental officers and employees against
reprisal and retaliation for the disclosure of improper governmental
action {than—the—proteetion] as is provided in NRS 281.611 to
281.671, inclusive. Such procedures may provide greater protection
to local governmental officers and employees than the protection
provided in NRS 281.611 to 281.671, inclusive.

Sec. 4. NRS 281.641 is hereby amended to read as follows:

281.641 1. If any alleged violation of NRS 281.631 occurs or
any alleged reprisal or retaliatory action is taken against a state officer
or employee who discloses information concerning improper
governmental action within 2 years after the information is disclosed,
the state officer or employee may file a written appeal with a hearing
officer of the Personnel Commission for a determination of whether
a violation of NRS 281.631 occurred or the action taken was a
reprisal or retaliatory action {4 , as applicable. The written appeal
must be accompanied by a statement that sets forth with particularity
{4, as applicable:

(a) The facts and circumstances relating to the alleged violation
of NRS 281.631; or

(b) The facts and circumstances under which the disclosure of
improper governmental action was made 4 and

}by—Fhe} the reprisal or retaliatory action that is alleged to have
been taken against the state officer or employee.
= The hearing must be conducted in accordance with the procedures
set forth in NRS 284.390 to 284.405, inclusive, and the procedures
adopted by the Personnel Commission pursuant to subsection 44 5.

2. If the hearing officer determines that a vielation of NRS
281.631 occurred or the action taken was a reprisal or retaliatory
action, the hearing officer may issue an order directing :

(a) {the} The proper person to desist and refrain from engaging in
such a violation or action +} ; or

(b) The termination of the employment of the proper person.

3. The hearing officer shall file a copy of the decision with the
Governor or any other elected state officer who is responsible for the
actions of that person.

13-} 4. The hearing officer may not rule against the state officer
or employee based on the person or persons to whom the improper
governmental action was disclosed.

{44 5. The Personnel Commission may adopt rules of procedure
for conducting a hearing pursuant to this section that are not

:.@'.’ 80th Session (2019)



-

inconsistent with the procedures set forth in NRS 284.390 to 284.405,
inclusive.

54 6. As used in this section, “Personnel Commission™ means
the Personnel Commission created by NRS 284.030.

Sec. 5. NRS 281.645 is hereby amended to read as follows:

281.645 1. A local government shall, by ordinance, establish
procedures for hearing an appeal from a local governmental officer
or employee who {4 alleges a violation of NRS 281.631 occurred or
who:

(a) Disclosed information concerning improper governmental
action; and

(b) Believes that as a result of that disclosure, a reprisal or
retaliatory action has been taken against the local governmental
officer or employee,
= to determine whether a violation of NRS 281.631 occurred or
whether a reprisal or retaliatory action has been taken against the
local governmental officer or employee. The procedures must allow
a local governmental officer or employee to file an appeal not later
than 2 years after the information is disclosed or the disclosure of
which has been prevented or interfered with and require the local
governmental officer or employee who desires to file an appeal to file
the appeal within 60 days after the alleged violation of NRS 281.631
occurred or the alleged reprisal or retaliatory action was taken
against the local governmental officer or employee.

2. An ordinance adopted pursuant to subsection I must:

(a) Prescribe the required contents of an appeal;

(b) Provide for the designation or appointment of hearing officers
to hear such appeals; and

(¢) Provide that if a hearing officer determines that a violation of
NRS 281.631 occurred or the action taken was a reprisal or
retaliatory action, the hearing officer may issue an order directing :

(1) Hhe} The proper person to desist and refrain from
engaging in such a vielation or action {} ; or
(2) The termination of the employment of the proper person.

Sec. 6. NRS 281.661 is hereby amended to read as follows:

281.661 Heachyeard

1. The Administrator of the Division of Human Resource
Management of the Department of Administration shall fmake
avatlable-te} obrain written confirmation that each state officer and
employee f—and} , mot later than 30 days after commencing
employment and annually thereafter, received a written summary
or viewed a video recording that clearly explains the provisions of
NRS 281.611 to 281.671, inclusive, including, without limitation,

:.@.: 80th Session (2019)



—8—

any action that a hearing officer is authorized to take if the hearing
officer determines that reprisal or retaliatory action was taken.

2. The administrative head of a local government shall fmake
available—te} obrain written confirmation that each local
governmental officer or employee,
=1 not later than 30 days after commencing employment and
annually thereafter, received a written summary or viewed a video
recording that clearly explains the provisions of NRS 281.611 to
281.671, inclusive H}, including, without limitation, any action that
a hearing officer is authorized to take if the hearing officer
determines reprisal or retaliatory action was taken.

3. The Division of Human Resource Management shall
develop and revise as necessary the written summary and video
recording described in subsections I and 2.

Sec. 7. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.

20 ~~—~—~ 19

:.@.: 80th Session (2019)



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/19/20 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

n

10.

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Enter into Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and
Storey County School District for the use and maintenance of Miner’s Park Baseball Field,
amendment to water meter at Virginia City High School, and termination of existing Land Plot
Lease Agreement between the parties for use and maintenance of Miner’s Park Baseball Field.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, | [commissioner]
motion to approve Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and Storey County School District
for use and maintenance of Miner’s Park Baseball Field, amendment to water meter at Virginia City
High School, and termination of existing Land Plot Lease Agreement between the parties for use
and maintenance of Miner’s Park Baseball Field.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: County Manager Telephone: 775.847.0968

Staff summary: This action will provide access and first-right-of-refusal to Storey County School
District to use Miner’s Park Baseball Field for physical education and extracurricular sports, will
transfer maintenance and irrigation responsibilities of the ballfield Storey County, and will cause
the consolidation of one of several water meters at Virginia City High School for more proper and
efficient use. This will increase staffing and resource efficiency as Storey County already maintains
and irrigates adjacent Miner’s Park. The interlocal agreement will replace the existing Land Plot
Lease Agreement between the parties.

Supporting materials: Interlocal Agreement and Lease Agreement.

Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
Legal review required: __yes__ District Attorney

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Planning

@’ County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_——
—_—

Agenda Item No. \ 6



AGREEMENT

This interlocal agreement (Agreement) is entered into by and between Storey County
(County) and the Storey County School District (District). This Agreement is effective as of the
date of its execution by the last party executing this Agreement.

BACKGROUND

County owns a parcel of real property bearing APN 001-156-02 known as Miner’s Park.
A portion of this parcel was leased to District on December 1, 2009, which contained the Miner’s
Park Baseball Field (Ballfield). The lease was good for one year which automatically renews
each year unless a notice to terminate is provided or the parties mutually agree to terminate. To
this date, the lease remains in place. By the terms of the lease District was required to pay for all
utilities used on Ballfield and to maintain Ballfield. In return, District was entitled to use
Ballfield for District activities. Currently District desires to be relieved of some portion of its
financial obligations regarding Ballfield, but still have access to Ballfield for District activities.
County is willing to undertake the maintenance of Ballfield, pay the costs of maintaining
Ballfield and allow District to utilize Ballfield for District activities.

NOW THEREFORE IS IT HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The existing lease of the area described above by County to District first made effective
on December 1, 2009 is hereby terminated by mutual consent of the parties.

2. This Agreement commences upon the execution of this agreement by the last party
executing the Agreement and expires at midnight on December 31, 2021. This
Agreement shall automatically renew for consecutive one-year periods until either a
thirty days of written notice of termination is delivered to the nonterminating party or by
mutual agreement of the parties.

3. Ballfield may continue to be used by District for activities including sporting events,
physical education, and community programs that enhance the life of residents of County
and the school children of District.

4. Use of Ballfield by District shall be based on a system of reservations as follows:

District shall have the first right to reserve the use of Ballfield. District may reserve
its use of the ballfield as much as 24 months in advance of the anticipated use of
Ballfield. District must make its reservations at least 30 days in advance of the
proposed use. Reservation of Ballfield less than 30 days in advance of its proposed
use will be on a first-come, first-served basis. A schedule of the reservations for
Ballfield will be maintained by County through the Storey County Department of
Public Works. The schedule shall be posted for viewing on the County website.
Requests to reserve Ballfield shall be made to the Department of Public Works or
another County department.

Page | of 4



1.

The Virginia City Boosters Club shall continue to have the first right to operate a
concession stand within the Ballfield Snack Shack when Ballfield is being used for
District purposes. If the Booster Club chooses not to conduct concession activities within
the Snack Shack during District activities, District has the authority to determine what
person or entity may conduct concession activities within Snack Shack during District
activities at Ballfield.

County will pay for all utilities used at Ballfield.

County, at its cost, will irrigate, mow, fertilize, and otherwise maintain Baseball Field,
the dug-out, fences and bleachers.

District will, at its cost, stripe the field and maintain all baseball plates.

District shall keep Ballfield clean and sanitary when engaging in activities at Ballfield.

. County and the Storey County Fire Protection District shall have at all times, access to

Ballfield to inspect and verify the conditions of Ballfield.

County and District shall close and lock all gates and properly secure Ballfield after each
use.

. County and District shall turn off all lights after each use as applicable.
. County will maintain the existing commercial water meter at Ballfield.

. The existing commercial water meter to the Snack Shack will remain in place and District

will pay the costs of providing water service to the Snack Shack.

. County and District will maintain Ballfield as an emergency medical helicopters helipad

and will provide access for this purpose. Keys to Ballfield will be provided to the Fire
District and maintained in a Knox Box in accordance with county fire codes.

. County will remove, at no charge to District, one commercial water meter from Virginia

City High School as selected by District and agreed to by County. County will tie
landscape irrigation water line at Virginia City High School to the school’s main water
system, or an alternative system will be tied into the school’s main system as determined
appropriate by the County.

. District will install and maintain at its cost a surveillance camera system that will surveil

Miner’s Park, Ballfield. and County’s swimming pool facilities. County and Fire District
will be provided access to view and record the camera system for said areas in order to
surveil and appropriately respond to emergencies and urgent matters. The system must be

Page 2 of 4



18.

19.

21.

22.

23,

compatible with County’s information technology systems as determined by the Storey
County Information Technology (IT) Department.

District will within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement donate
permanently to County all grounds maintenance equipment and supplies which are not
utilized at any of District’s other current facilities and/or at the Louise Peri Park in
Lockwood.

District will report to County any damage or potential safety hazards of which it becomes
aware.

. District agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless County, its officers, employees

and agents against all liability, claims, attorney fees and costs which may arise from
District’s use of Ballfield except for claims arising out of the sole negligence of County,
its officers, employees and agents.

County agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless District, its officers employees
and agents from all liability, claims, attorney fees and costs arising from County’s
maintenance and use of Ballfield except for claims which arise out of the sole negligence
of District, its officers, employees and agents.

This agreement is not intended to benefit any third parties other than the parties to this
Agreement.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which shall be
considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when one or more
counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party, it being
understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart. This Agreement may be
executed by facsimile signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto set their hands the day and year below

written:
DISTRICT COUNTY
Storey County School District Storey County
By: By:
Dawn Miller, President Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County School Board Storey County Board of Commissioners

Page 3 of 4



By: Attest:
Tom Thompson School Board Clerk Vanessa Stephens, Clerk/Treasurer

Dated this day of , 2020 Dated this day of , 2020

Page 4 of 4



Enclosure B: Lease Agreement to be Canceled by Mutual Agreement

LAND PLOT LEASE AGREEMENT

This agreement made, entered into and executed this day of 20 ,by
and between Storey County (hereinafter “Lessor”), and Storey County School District
(hereinafter “the Lessee™). Lessor and Lessee contract and agree as follows:

l. Lessor herby leases unto Lessee the following land and any improvements
thereon (hereinafter “the leased property”) : Storey County property; Miners
Park Baseball Field: parcel # 00115602, which includes portions of LOT 3
Block 50, which includes portions of North “G™ St (abandoned); and all of
LOT 4-6 Block 49, which includes portions of North “F” Street (abandoned).

2 The term of this lease shall be for a primary term of | year, commencing on
_+20___, and expiring at midnight on December 31 each year,
and shall automatlcally renew unless Lessor or Lessee give 30 day notice to
said party to terminate agreement. The Agreement can be severed at anytime
if both parties mutually agree to terminate said Agreement.

3. During the primary term, Lessee shall pay to Lessor, as rental, the sum of $1
Dollar US currency per year.

4. The leased property will be used for School District activities, including
sporting events, physical education, as well as other community programs that
enhance the life of the residents of Storey County.

3. The Virginia City Booster Club shall have the first right of refusal in regards
1o operating any concessions with in the ball field. In the event that the
Booster Club defers their right, any and all use of the concessions will be
authorized by the Lessee.

6. Indemnity: Lessor and Lessee shall indemnify and save harmless the other
from and all losses, fines, suits, damages, expense, claims, demands and
actions of any kind resulting from their negligence, breach, or violation or
non-performance of any condition hereof.

7. Lessee shall pay for all water, electricity, and other utilities used on the
premises
8. Lessee will maintain and keep the leased property in a clean orderly condition

and will comply at all times with all lawful health, County and State
regulations. Lessee shall permit Lessor and it’s agents to enter the Property at
all reasonable times to inspect or verify conditions of property.

Lease Agreement I



LAND PLOT LEASE AGREEMENT

10.

13.

14.

The Lessor will rent out the field, with the Lessee’s approval, for community
activities. Any funds raised by Lessor will be given to lessee for maintenance
of the field.

All covenants, conditions and agreements and undertakings contained in this
agreement shall extend to and be binding on the respective successors and
assigns of the respective parties hereto and the same as if they were in every
case named and expressed.

Written notice to Lessee, all rent checks and all notices from Lessee to Lessor
shall be served or sent to: Storey County Community Services Director,
PO BOX 176 Virginia City, Nevada 89440

All notices to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
served personally or sent by United States certified or registered mail.

This Agreement contains all of the agreements and conditions made between
the parties hereto and may be modified in writing signed by all parties hereto
or their respective successors in interest.

This Agreement shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Nevada.

Lessee shall have the right to make such alterations and improvements to the
Property as it deems necessary or desirable upon notice to Lessor. Such
alterations and improvements shall comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and shall conform generally with the existing improvements on the
Property. The lessee shall keep the Property free from any and all liens
arising out of the work preformed or materials furnished in making such
improvements.

Lease Agreement 2



LAND PLOT LEASE AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto set their hands the day and year below
written:

LESSEE: LESSOR:

Storey County School District Storey County
By: - By:
Christine Miller, President Greg Hess, Chairman
Storey County School Board Storey County Board of Commissioners
By: By:
Pamela Smith, School Board Clerk Vanessa Dixon, Clerk / Treasurer
Date: o
By:

Harold Swafford, Storey County District Attorney

Lease Agreement



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/19/20 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

10.

Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Amendments to Interlocal Agreement between Storey County
and the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V& T Railway (Railway) regarding fund
creation and management, budgeting, accounting, processing, and related staffing practices and
responsibilities to manage funds of the Railway by Storey County, and other properly related
matters.

Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner]
motion to approve of amendments to Interlocal Agreement between Storey County and the Nevada
Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway (Railway) regarding fund creation and
management, budgeting, accounting, processing, and related staffing practices and responsibilities
to manage funds of the Railway by Storey County, and other properly related matters.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: County Manager Telephone: 775.847.0968

Staff summary: The existing interlocal agreement between the parties is presented to be amended
in order to re-align it with actual practices and responsibilities.

Supporting materials: Markup and clean agreements enclosed.
Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: _____ Comptroller
Legal review required: __yes__ District Attorney

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Planning

_ @’ __ County Manager Other agency review:

Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[S——

Agenda Item No. \q



V & T INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into as of the date of the last signature affixed hereto and is by
and between the County of Storey, (County) a political subdivision of the State of Nevada,-and
the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway (Commission), a body
corporate and politic of the State of Nevada.

BACKGROUND

The Commission was created by an Act passed in the 1993 Nevada Legislative Session.
See Chapter 566, 1993 Stats. of Nev. pg. 2326. Initially the commission was known as the
Tricounty Railway Commission and consisted of members from Carson City, Storey County and
Lyon County. In the Legislative Session of 2001, the Commission was given its present name
and expanded to include members from Douglas County and Washoe County. See Chapter 42,
2001 Stats. of Nev. pg. 400. In the Legislative session of 2017, the makeup of the Commission
was again amended to reduce the number of commissioners and its jurisdiction was reduced to
Carson City and Storey County. See Chapter 62, 2017 Stats. of Nev. pg. 239. The purpose of
reducing the size of the Commission was to increase the effectiveness of the Commission, reduce
the costs of the Commission and to limit the representatives on the Commission to those with a
substantial interest in the successful operation of the historic V & T Railroad.

The Commission has the authority to enter into an agreement with the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County to create a fund for the Commission and to pay all claims
against the fund that are properly approved by the Commission. 1993 Stats of Nev.. chapter 566
. section 8(2). It also has the authority to take such actions necessary to accomplish the purposes
of the act creating the Commission. Further, pursuant to NRS Chapter 277.180 any one or more
public agencies may contract with any one or more other public agencies to perform any
governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the
contract is authorized by law to perform. By this Agreement the parties desire to establish a
process for handling the finances and budgets of the Commission through the use of the services
of the Storey County Treasurer with assistance from the Storey County Comptroller to provide
accounting services. Accordingly, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Budget Preparation. Each year, the Storey County Comptroller shall prepare tentative
and final budgets with the assistance of the Executive Director in accordance with the
Local Government Budget and Finance Act (NRS 354.470 — 354.626, inclusive) on
behalf of the Commission, subject to the approval of the Commission.

2. Budget Augmentation. The Storey County Comptroller shall also prepare the
Nevada Department of Taxation documentation necessary for budget
augmentations which are approved by the Commission.

1|Page



0.

10.

Comptroller Processing of Bills. Bills to pay the expenses of the Commission will be
first submitted to the Commission. Bills approved for payment must be delivered to the
Storey County Comptroller for processing and for the issuance of vouchers. Vouchers
prepared by the Comptroller shall be delivered to the Storey County Treasurer for
payment. Processing of payables will follow Storey County policies and established
processes.

Creation of Fund. The Commission shall approve by resolution, the creation of an
Enterprise fund to be known as the V & T Railway Fund. It is agreed that this fund shall
be under the control of the Storey County Comptroller.

Location of Account. The account containing the V & T Railway Fund shall be
maintained at the Wells Fargo Bank. All balances in other accounts maintained by or on
behalf of the Commission shall be consolidated into the V & T Railway Fund account.
Deposits into the V & T Railway Fund. There shall be deposited into the V & T
Railway Fund the revenues from the operation of the Railway, funds appropriated by
either Carson City or Storey County for the benefit of the operations of the Railway,
funds generated through the sale of license plates pursuant to NRS 482.37945, grants
received, and donations received.

Use of Revenues from License Plate Sales. To the extent that funds are received from
the sales of license plates pursuant to NRS 482.37945, they must only be used for the
reconstruction, maintenance. improvement and promotion of the Virginia & Truckee
Railroad. Commission will advise the Department of Motor Vehicles that revenues from
the sale of license plates should now be directed to the Storey County Treasurer for
deposit in the Fund authorized by 1993 Stats. of Nev. chapter 42 section 8(2).
Reimbursement of Storey County. Approved vouchers for the payment of Commission
expenses will be forwarded to the Storey County Comptroller who will audit and
authorize payment of approved vouchers from Storey County funds by the Storey County
Treasurer. County will be reimbursed for its expenditures from the V & T Railway Fund.
The Storey County Treasurer and Comptroller will have signing authority over the V.& T
Railway Fund and need not await the approval of the reimbursement for the payment of
vouchers authorizing the payment of bills which have been approved by the Commission.
Records. Storey County will maintain complete accounting records for the Commission,
which records will be public records available for inspection by the Commission, Carson
City, the independent auditor and the public. Commission will endeavor to obtain all
existing accounting records and turn them over to the Storey County Comptroller.
Reports. The Storey County Comptroller will prepare timely monthly. quarterly and
annual accounting reports and perform or prepare analyses and special reports as
requested by the Commission.

. Accounting. In addition to the other duties provided above, the Storey County

Comptroller and Treasurer shall reconcile the account containing the V & T Railway

2|Page



Fund, balance the check book for the fund against the bank statements produced and
provide for the proper account classifications for voucher payments.

12. Payment for Services of County. County is entitled to have the costs incurred in
handling the financial and budgeting matters for Commission paid to County. These costs
include a portion of the salaries, wages and benefit costs incurred by County in providing
the services. County will submit invoices for the cost of the services provided to
Commission for approval. Commission shall promptly review each invoice on a monthly
basis, and process each invoice as the Commission processes other monthly invoices. For
the first 24 months of this agreement, the County and Commission on an hourly basis will
share an administrative assistant, accountant, or like position to perform accounting.
bookkeeping, and other administrative functions of the Commission as specified in this
Agreement. The subject position will be equivalent to that of an Administrative Assistant
I1 in the Storey County Classification Plan. All merit increases, promotions, transfers,
overtime, incentive pay, differential, etc. will be administered in accordance with Storey
County policies and/or the applicable collective bargaining agreement. Written
timesheets shall reflect the hours spent on Commission work by the staff of the
Comptroller’s office. Following this 24-month period the County and Commission will
share the cost of this like position on a 50/50 basis.

13. Status of Interlocal Contract with Carson City. The Commission and Carson City
entered into an Interlocal Contract on the 31% day of August, 2005, by which the Carson
City Finance Department would provide financial services on behalf of the Commission.
That Agreement is superseded by this Agreement as Storey County will now be
providing the financial and budgeting services.

14. Storey County Quarter Cent Sales Tax. Storey County voters approved a ballot
measure in 2010 (ST-1) extending the 1/4 of 1 cent sales tax upon retailers in Storey
County for a period of 30 years. In 2010 the Commission and Storey County agreed that
if the Storey County voters approved the ballot measure, that the Commission would
refund to Storey County on a monthly basis sales taxes as are collected by the
Commission under any renewed or extended sales tax ordinance for the entire length of
time that such additional 1/4 of | percent sales tax is approved by the Storey County
electorate. That obligation continues. Storey County will annually attribute $+25;600-60
$250,000 from the proceeds of the tax in the V & T Railway Fund for the operation and
maintenance of the railroad within Storey County. These funds are subject to being
utilized by the Commission in preparing its annual budget. In any year in which proceeds
from ticket sales and the annual amount provided above are insufficient to cover the costs

3|Page



of the train operation and track maintenance of the railroad, or, in an emergency situation,
the V & T Commission may request that additional tax revenues be allocated to cover
those expenses.

15. The Agreement between Storey County and the Commission dated May 20, 2010 is
superseded by this Agreement.

16. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement for any reason or even for no
reason at all upon giving 60 days notice to the other party of the termination. Notice shall
be in writing and mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested to:

Storey County Manager
P.O.Box 176
Virginia City, NV. 89440

Nevada Commission for the Restoration of the V & T Railway
Post Office Box 1711
Carson City, NV 89702-1711

Upon termination of this Agreement, the Storey County Treasurer will turn over control
of the account containing the V & T Railway Fund to the Commission. The Storey
County Comptroller will turn over all financial and budgeting records to the Commission.

17. Limitation of Liability. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS
Chapter 41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be
subject to punitive damages. Actual damages for any breach by a party shall never exceed
the amount of funds which have been identified for payment under the Agreement for each
month.

18. Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall
be governed by. and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada.

19. Severability. If any provision contained in this Agreement is held to be unenforceable by
a court of law or equity. this Agreement shall be construed as if such provision did not exist
and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision
or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable.

20. Status of Parties. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to
the extent set forth in this Agreement. Each party is and shall be a public agency separate
and distinct from the other party and shall have the right to supervise, manage, operate,
control and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Agreement.
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership
or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent , or
except as provided herein, otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with
respect to the indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the other agency or any other
party.

21. Assignment/Delegation. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights,
obligations or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other

party.

4|Page



22. Waiver of Breach. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach
of the Agreement or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a
waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

23. No Interpretation Against Drafter. Each party recognizes that this Agreement is a
legally binding contract and acknowledges that such party has had the opportunity to
consult with legal counsel of choice. In any construction of the terms of this Agreement,
the same shall not be construed against either party on the basis of that party being the
drafter of such terms.

24. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Agreement ifit is
prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions,
or acts of God, including without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such
an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an
excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the
terms of the Agreement after the intervening cause ceases.

25. Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of
the parties and is intended to be the complete and exclusive statement of the promises,
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made
in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the
terms of this Agreement, no modification or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding
upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto.

26. Third-Party Beneficiaries. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed to create any third party beneficiaries.

27. Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in two or
more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall
become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each party and
delivered to the other party, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same
counterpart. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-named parties have set their hands and executed this
Agreement on the date(s) set forth below.

(Dates and Signatures appear on next page.)

Dated this day of, . 2020.
Board of County Commissioners of Storey County

By:

J

Marshal McBride, Chairman

Attest:

5|Page



Vanessa Stephens Storey County Clerk
Dated this day of , 2020

Vanessa Stephens. Storey County Clerk/Ireasurer

Dated this day of , 2020.
Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway

By

Stan Jones, Chairman

Attest:

Commission Secretary

6|Page



Draft 04/20/20 2:30 pm.
V & TINTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into as of the date of the last signature affixed hereto and is by
and between the Counly of Storey (Lounty) a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, the-
2 ) and the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction
ofthe V & T Rallway ((ommlssmn) a body corporate and politic of the State of Nevada.

BACKGROUND

The Commission was created by an Act passed in the 1993 Nevada Legislative Session.
See Chapter 566, 1993 Stats. of Nev. pg. 2326. Initially the commission was known as the
Tricounty Railway Commission and consisted of members from Carson City, Storey County and
Lyon County. In the Legislative Session of 2001, the Commission was given its present name
and expanded to include members from Douglas County and Washoe County. See Chapter 42,
2001 Stats. of Nev. pg. 400. In the Legislative session of 2017, the makeup of the Commission
was again amended to reduce the number of commissioners and its jurisdiction was reduced to
Carson City and Storey County. See Chapter 62, 2017 Stats. of Nev. pg. 239. The purpose of
reducing the size of the Commission was to increase the effectiveness of the Commission, reduce
the costs of the Commission and to limit the representatives on the Commission to those with a
substantial interest in the successful operation of the historic V & T Railroad.

The Commission has the authority to enter into an agreement with the Freasurer Board of
County Commissioners of Storey County to create a fund for the Commission and to pay all
claims against the fund that are properly approved by the Commission. 1993 Stats of Nev.,
chapter 566 , section 8(2). It also has the authority to take such actions necessary to accomplish
the purposes of the act creating the Commission. Further, pursuant to NRS Chapter 277.180 any
one or more public agencies may contract with any one or more other public agencies to perform
any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into
the contract is authorized by law to perform. By this Agreement the parties desire to establish a
process for handling the finances and budgets of the Commission through the use of the services
of the Storey County Treasurer with assistance from the Storey County Comptroller and-with-the

use-of persennel-from-the VCTC to provide administrative accounting services. Accordingly, the

parties hereto agree as follows:

I. Budget Preparation. Each year, the Storey County Comptroller shall prepare tentative
and final budgets with the assistance of the Executive Director in accordance with the
Local Government Budget and Finance Act (NRS 354.470 — 354.626, inclusive) on
behalf of the Commission, subject to the approval of the Commission.

Budget Augmentation. The Storey County Comptroller shall also prepare &y

the Nevada Department of Taxation documentation necessary for budget
augmentations which are approved by the Commission.

19

1|Page



3. Comptroller Processing of Bills. Bills to pay the expenses of the Commission will be
first submitted to the Commission. Bills approved for payment must be delivered to the
Storey County Comptroller for processing and for the issuance of vouchers. Vouchers
prepared by the Comptroller shall be delivered to the Storey County Treasurer for
payment. Processing of payables will follow Storey County policies and established
processes.

4. Creation of Fund. The Commission shall approve by resolution, the creation of an
speetal-revenue Enterprise fund to be known as the V & T Railway Fund. It is agreed
that this fund shall be under the control of the Storey County Comptroller.

5. Location of Account. The account containing the V & T Railway Fund shall be
maintained at the Wells Fargo Bank. All balances in other accounts maintained by or on
behalf of the Commission shall be consolidated into the V & T Railway Fund account.

6. Deposits into the V & T Railway Fund. There shall be deposited into the V & T
Railway Fund the revenues from the operation of the Railway, funds appropriated by
either Carson City or Storey County for the benefit of the operations of the Railway,
funds generated through the sale of license plates pursuant to NRS 482.37945, grants
received, and donations received.

7. Use of Revenues from License Plate Sales. To the extent that funds are received from
the sales of license plates pursuant to NRS 482.37945, they must only be used for the
reconstruction, maintenance, improvement and promotion of the Virginia & Truckee
Railroad. Commission will advise the Department of Motor Vehicles that revenues from
the sale of license plates should now be directed to the Storey County Treasurer for
deposit in the Fund authorized by 1993 Stats. of Nev. chapter 42 section 8(2).

8. Reimbursement of Storey County. Approved vouchers for the payment of Commission
expenses will be forwarded to the Storey County Comptroller who will audit and
authorize payment of approved vouchers from Storey County funds by the Storey County
Treasurer. County will be reimbursed for its expenditures from the V & T Railway Fund.
The Storey County Treasurer and Comptroller will have signing authority overthe V& T
Railway Fund and need not await the approval of the reimbursement for the payment of
vouchers authorizing the payment of bills which have been approved by the Commission.

9. Records. Storey County will maintain complete accounting records for the Commission,
which records will be public records available for inspection by the Commission, Carson
City. the independent auditor and the public. Commission will endeavor to obtain all
existing accounting records and turn them over to the Storey County Comptroller.

10. Reports. The Storey County Comptroller will prepare timely monthly. quarterly and
annual accounting reports and perform or prepare analyses and special reports as
requested by the Commission.

11. Accounting. In addition to the other duties provided above, the Storey County
Comptroller and Treasurer shall reconcile the account containing the V & T Railway

2|Page



Fund, balance the check book for the fund against the bank statements produced and
provide for the proper account classifications for voucher payments.

13. Payment for Services of County. County is entitled to have the costs incurred in
handling the financial and budgeting matters for Commission paid to County. These costs
include a portion of the salaries, wages and benefit costs incurred by County in providing
the services. County will submit invoices for the cost of the services provided to
Commission for approval. Commission shall promptly review each invoice on a monthly
basis, and process each invoice as the Commission processes other monthly invoices.

contraet—For the first 24 months of this agreement, the County and Commission on an
hourly basis will share an adminisirative assistant, accountant, or like position to
perform accounting, hookkeeping, and other administrative functions of the Commission
as specified in this Agreement. The subject position will be equivalent to that of an
Administrative Assistant Il in the Storey County Classification Plan. All merit increases,
promotions, transfers, overtime, incentive pay. differential,_etc. will be administered in
accordance with Storev County policies and/or the applicable collective bargaining
agreement. Written timesheets shall reflect the hours spent on Commission work by the
staff of the Compiroller's office. Following this 24-month period the County and
Commission will share the cost of this like position on a 50/50 basis.

15. Status of Interlocal Contract with Carson City. The Commission and Carson City
entered into an Interlocal Contract on the 31* day of August, 2005, by which the Carson
City Finance Department would provide financial services on behalf of the Commission.
That Agreement is superseded by this Agreement as Storey County will now be
providing the financial and budgeting services.

16. Storey County Quarter Cent Sales Tax . Storey County voters approved a ballot
measure in 2010 (ST-1) extending the 1/4 of 1 cent sales tax upon retailers in Storey

J|Page



County for a period of 30 years. In 2010 the Commission and Storey County agreed that
if the Storey County voters approved the ballot measure, that the Commission would
refund to Storey County on a monthly basis sales taxes as are collected by the
Commission under any renewed or extended sales tax ordinance for the entire length of
time that such additional 1/4 of 1 percent sales tax is approved by the Storey County
electorate. That obligation continues. Storey County will annually attribute $425:006-00
$250,000 from the proceeds of the tax in the V & T Railway Fund for the operation and
maintenance of the railroad within Storey County. These funds are subject to being
utilized by the Commission in preparing its annual budget. In any year in which proceeds
from ticket sales and the annual amount provided above are insufficient to cover the costs

4|Page



of the train operation and track maintenance of the railroad, or, in an emergency situation,
the V & T Commission may request that additional tax revenues be allocated to cover
those expenses.

17. The Agreement between Storey County and the Commission dated May 20. 2010 is
superseded by this Agreement.

18. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement for any reason or even for no
reason at all upon giving 60 days notice to the other party of the termination. Notice shall
be in writing and mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested to:

Storey County Manager
P.O.Box 176
Virginia City, NV. 89440

Nevada Commission for the Restoration of the V & T Railway
Post Office Box 1711
Carson City, NV 89702-1711

Upon termination of this Agreement, the Storey County Treasurer will turn over control
of the account containing the V & T Railway Fund to the Commission. The Storey
County Comptroller will turn over all financial and budgeting records to the Commission.

19. Limitation of Liability. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS
Chapter 41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be
subject to punitive damages. Actual damages for any breach by a party shall never exceed
the amount of funds which have been identified for payment under the Agreement for each
month.

20. Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall
be governed by. and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada.

21. Severability. If any provision contained in this Agreement is held to be unenforceable by
a court of law or equity, this Agreement shall be construed as if such provision did not exist
and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision
or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable.

22. Status of Parties. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to
the extent set forth in this Agreement. Each party is and shall be a public agency separate
and distinct from the other party and shall have the right to supervise, manage, operate,
control and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Agreement.
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership
or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent , or
except as provided herein, otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with
respect to the indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the other agency or any other
party.

23. Assignment/Delegation. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights,
obligations or duties under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other

party.

S5|Page



24. Waiver of Breach. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach
of the Agreement or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a
waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

25. No Interpretation Against Drafter. Each party recognizes that this Agreement is a
legally binding contract and acknowledges that such party has had the opportunity to
consult with legal counsel of choice. In any construction of the terms of this Agreement,
the same shall not be construed against either party on the basis of that party being the
drafter of such terms.

26. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Agreement if it is
prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions,
or acts of God. including without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such
an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an
excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the
terms of the Agreement after the intervening cause ceases.

27. Entire Agreement; Modifications. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of
the parties and is intended to be the complete and exclusive statement of the promises,
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made
in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the
terms of this Agreement, no modification or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding
upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto.

28. Third-Party Beneficiaries. Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, nothing in this
Agreement shall be construed to create any third party beneficiaries.

29. Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in two or
more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall
become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each party and
delivered to the other party, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same
counterpart. This Agreement may be executed by facsimile signatures.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-named parties have set their hands and executed this
Agreement on the date(s) set forth below.

(Dates and Signatures appear on next page.)

Dated this day of .202018.

Board of County Commissioners of Storey County

By:
Marshal Mc¢Bride, Chairman

Attest:

6|Page



Vanessa Stephens Storey County Clerk
Dated this day of , 202018

Vanessa Stephens, Storey Cou8nty Clerk/Treasurer

Dated this day of ., 202018.
Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway

By

Peny-Detsen,Stan Jones Chairman

Attest:

Commission Secretary

7|Page



8|Page



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 1 hour

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the 2020-2021 Storey County Final Budget, for
submission to the Department of Taxation

2. Recommended motion: I approve the filing of the 2020-2021 Storey County Final Budget,
to the Department of Taxation

3. Prepared by: Jennifer McCain and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Annual approval of all Funds and Department Budget Requests
5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: Yes
Funds Available: Fund: ALL M Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
~ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda ltem NO},-:)O



2020-2021
Storey County
Final Budget



5/11/20 jm

General Fund 2017-18 2018-2019  2019-2020  2020-2021  2020-2021 C:::fe
Audit Audit Final Tentative Final mn;?:\:f °

REVENUES
Taxes (Secured + Unsecured) 10,095487 10,756,962 10,626,000 10,134,249 10,134,249
Centrally Asssessed 1,802,302 1,802,302
Youth Services 24,405 27,219 23,965 23,965
License & Permits 1,688,848 2,678,554 2,501,600 1,656,000 1,656,000
Intergovernmental 2,325,740 2,395,011 2,276,000 2,625,115 2625115
Charges for Services 2,703,547 2,527,094 1,508,700 1,632,500 1,632,500
Fines 4,981 8,340 208,050 126,400 126,400
Interest & Misc 527,907 1,182,490 500,000 274,000 274,000
Prior year adj
Total Revenues 17,370,915 19,575,670 17,620,350 18,274,531 18,274,531 0.0%
EXPENDITURES
Clerk/Treasurer
Salaries/Wages 220,752 225,248 233,976 249 302 249,302
Benefits 120,544 119,327 131,189 142,342 140,851
Service & Supplies 168,159 233,942 269,100 133,012 133,152
Capital Outlay

509,455 578,517 634,265 524,656 523,305 -0.3%
District Court
Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Service & Supplies 146,117 131,780 179,860 184,500 184,500
Capital Qutlay

146,117 131,780 179,860 184,500 184,500 00%
Recorder
Salaries/Wages 159,238 190,194 208,538 157,263 157,263
Benefits 5,578 94,026 115,104 87,007 85,516
Service & Supplies 39,488 50,576 128,798 57 662 57,662
Capital Outlay 1,500 1,500 1,500

274,303 334,796 453,940 303,432 301,941  -05%
Assessor
Salaries/Wages 209,393 294 145 251,305 273,363 273,363
Benefits 106,388 149,805 150,868 164,850 161,368
Service & Supplies 41,579 145,150 92,660 82,415 82,415
Capital Outlay 6,145

363,505 589,100 494 833 520,628 517,146  -0.7%

1 of 4 5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx  General



5/11/20 jm

General Fund

Bldg & Grounds
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Pool & Parks
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Service Dept
Salaries/Wages

Benefits
Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Community Development

Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

DA
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

JOP
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Communications
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

2 of 4

2017-18 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2020-2021
Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
119,865 133,045 181,879 164,698 164,698
55,942 64,331 91,170 83,598 82,790
143,931 143,969 152,250 193,554 194,554
71,768 12,500 12,500
319,738 413,113 425,299 454 350 454 542
62,036 63,073 68,410 75,530 75,530
13,552 13,451 16,669 20613 20,419
40,147 28,342 42,000 53,750 61,636
3,000 3,000
116,735 104,866 127,079 152,893 160,585
147,448 194 894 195,327 237 425 216,426
68,469 94 151 92,885 117,621 111,175
50,806 69,850 60,850 82,084 82,084
3,750 95,372 37,500 5,000 5,000
270,473 454 267 386,562 442 130 414,685
546,352 598,245 644 053 580,450 534,103
179,458 187,875 275,957 331,723 303,232
212,010 144,702 141,700 131,129 131,129
937,820 930,822 1,061,710 1,043,302 968,464
331,726 346,891 412 966 389,962 389,962
158,395 168,731 195,328 196,907 193,876
180,061 156,188 421,425 423,837 423977
670,182 671,810 1,029,719 1,010,706 1,007,815
200,542 232,376 237,943 272,339 272,339
99,930 105,295 149,093 164,221 160,616
16,379 29,335 22,400 31,840 33,500
2,000
316,851 367,006 411,436 468,400 466,455
579,411 610,978 673,651 669,215 669,215
260,908 249,717 335,716 348,485 325,580
66,413 95,205 101,550 160,602 160,602
20,123 6,000 45,000 45,000
906,732 976,023 1,116,917 1,223,302 1,200,397

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx

Change
from
Tentative to
Final

0.04%

4.8%

-6.6%

-7.7%

0.3%

-0.4%

-1.9%

General



5/11/20 jm

General Fund

IT Dept
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Comptroller
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Emg Management
Salaries/Wages

Benefits
Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Community Relations
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Sheriff/Jail
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Commissioners
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Administrative
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Health & Human Services

Salaries/Wages
Benefits
Service & Supplies

3 of 4

2017-18 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2020-2021
Audit Audit Final Tentative Final

233,470 266,248 283,325 305,069 305,069
117,487 152,919 182,396 198,844 196,807
138,325 124 484 191,600 365,325 365,325
35,616 250,484 171,500 23,000 23,000
524,898 794,135 828,821 892,238 890,201
244173 270,706 281,988 316,388 316,388
117,975 134,511 150,918 182,568 181,000
102,941 81,707 103,260 108,240 108,240
465,089 486,924 536,166 607,196 605,628
21678 25,946 21,678 26,678 26,678
4310 2,710 6,732 7.145 7.829
18,995 28,016 53,650 66,178 66,178

4. 400
44 983 56,672 86,460 100,001 100,685
140,952 143,681 210,726 194,110 194,110
57,289 56,957 95610 79,507 78,016
621,811 688,064 766,600 952,807 952,807
820,052 888,702 1,072,936 1,226,424 1,224 933
1,968,167 2,137,080 2,402 547 2,305,887 2.478,230
1,197,927 1,215,659 1,604,203 1,632,199 1,681,865
433,580 564,313 438,168 508,790 508,930
88,158 72,587 40,000 6,000 6,000
3,687,832 3,989,639 4,484 918 4,452 876 4 675,025
357,104 454 337 387,298 332,942 332,942
193,665 184,618 236,571 211,122 209,085
33,868 76,244 112,200 102,651 102,651

2,500
584,637 715,199 738,569 646,715 644 678
231,257 210,884 290,474 205,903 205,903
111,168 111,721 330,482 308,270 308,953
650,802 709,979 721,350 770,784 770,924

3,497 3,518 5,000
996,724 1,036,102 1,347,306 1,284 957 1,285,780
6,461 6,777 7,016 7,229 7,229
3,262 2,905 3,266 3,434 3,385
95,444 86,402 137,600 145,000 145,000

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx

Change

from
Tentative to
Final

-0.2%

-0.3%

0.7%

-0.1%

4.8%

-0.3%

0.1%

General



5/11/20 jm

Change
General Fund 2017-18 2018-2019  2019-2020  2020-2021  2020-2021 from
Tentative to
Audit Audit Final Tentative Final Final
105,167 96,084 147,882 155,663 155614 -0.03%
Planning
SalariesNVages 146,277 157,044 279,621 157,734 157,734
Benefits 70,707 74,153 136,965 79,981 78,536
Service & Supplies 52,852 29,002 229,300.00 249 380 250,380
Capital Outlay
269,836 260,199 645,886 487,095 486,650 -01%
13,875,756 16,210,563 16,181,464 16,269,029 054%
Contingency (no<3% of Expense) 486,317 485,444 488,071 054%
Total Expense 16,666,908 16,757,100 054%
Total Revenue 17,370,915 19575670 17,620,350 18,274,531 18,274,531 000%
Revenue vs Expense 5,040,786  -1,349,815 -131,530 1,607,623 1,517,431  -594%
“Transfer In
Transfer Out to:
Roads 400,000 400,000 400,000
Jail
TRI-Payback 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000
USDA Fund
Fire
Emergency Mitigation 55,000 50,000 50,000
Pipers 105,000 80,000 109,000
To Capital Projects 5,000,000
Prior Period ad]
Total Transfer 0 7,049729 1,055,000 1,130,000 1,159,000
Total Expense + Transfers Out 12,330,129 20,925,485 17,751,880 17,796,908 17,916,100
Total Revenue 17,370,915 19,575,670 17,620,350 18,274,531 18,274,531
Revenue vs Expense 159,238 190,194 208,538 477,623 358,431 -333%
Beginning Fund Bal 10,285,058 12,454 343 11,104,528 9,917,998 9,917,998
Ending Fund Bal 12,454,343 11,104,528 9,917,998 10,395,621 10,276,429 -12%
4 of 4 5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx  General



Summary - General Fund

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlIsx

2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 10,285,058 12,454,344 11,104,529 9,917,999 9,917,999
Revenue 17,370,915 19,575,670 17,620,350 18,274,531 18,274,531
Expenses 15,201,629 13,875,756 17,751,880 16,666,908 16,757,100
Transfers Out 7,049,729 1,055,000 1,130,000 1,159,000
Ending Fund Balance 12,454,344 11,104,529 9,917,999 10,395,622 10,276,430
Summary - Genetic Marker
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 47,059 48,787 57,440 63,940 63,940
Revenue 10,525 14,846 11,500 11,100 11,100
Expenses 8,797 6,193 5,000 8,500 8,500
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 48,787 57,440 63,940 66,540 66,540
Summary - Drug Court
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 30 30 20 20 20
Revenue 420 450 600 400 400
Expenses 420 460 600 400 400
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 30 20 20 20 20
Summary - Technology
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 111,394 130,227 177,389 152,489 152,489
Revenue 97,964 110,771 70,100 59,050 59,050
Expenses 79,131 63,609 95,000 85,000 85,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 130,227 177,389 152,489 126,539 126,539

10of5

Summary Storey Co

Change
from

1920 Final -
Tentative

-1.2%

Change

from
19-£0 Final -
Tentalive

0.0%

Change
from
1¥-20 Final -
Tentative

0.0%

Change

from
1¥-20 Final -
Tentative

0.0%



Summary - Roads

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Transfers In
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - USDA

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Other Financing Source
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx

Summary - Justice Court Fund

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Emergency Mitigation

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

20of 5

2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
776,904 400,253 930,746 616,822 616,822
1,050,206 1,249,297 1,552,200 1,346,992 1,346,992
1,426,857 710,054 1,866,124 1,925,035 2,139,420
(8,750) 400,000 400,000
400,253 930,746 616,822 438,779 224,394
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
29,016 29,187 29,697 27,198 27,198
8,870,532 4,779,827 393,501 393,490 438,220
8,870,362 4,528,827 396,000 393,490 5,656,020
(250,490) 5,217,800
29,186 29,697 27,198 27,198 27,198
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
37272 44,071 63,681 105,181 105,181
34,903 46,283 46,000 33,000 33,000
28,104 26,673 4,500 123,000 95,000
44,071 63,681 105,181 15,181 43,181
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
(42,910) (41,391) (10,692) 44,308 44,308
- 30,699 95,000 50,000 50,000
(1,519) 40,000 50,000 50,000
(41,391) (10,692) 44,308 44,308 44,308

Summary Storey Co

Change
from
1¥-2U Finai -
Tentative

10.0%

-95.5%

Change

from
1¥-2U Final -
Tentative

0.0%

Change

from
1¥-&U Finai -
Tentative

64.8%

Change
from
1Y-20 Final -
Tentalive

0.0%



Summary - Park Fund

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx

2018-19 2019-20 2019-21 2020-2021 20-21
Final Final Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 125,131 132,355 132,355 135,355 135,355
Revenue 7,000 6,500 2,500 2,500
Expenses - 116,000 116,000 116,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 132,131 22,855 132,355 21,855 21,855
Summary -Equipment Acquisition
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 454,094 583,247 2,729,120 2,729,120 2,729,120
Revenue 284,793 328,582 312,000 317,279 317,279
Expenses 155,640 26,709 312,000 169,630 169,630
Other Financing Source 1,844,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 583,247 2,729,120 2,729,120 2,876,769 2,876,769
Summary - Indigent Medical
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 477,943 484,798 493,466 353,466 353,466
Revenue 56,965 60,744 60,000 61,508 61,508
Expenses 50,110 52,076 200,000 200,000 200,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 484,798 493,466 353,466 214,974 214,974
Summary - Indigent Accident
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 11,438 5,354 5,354 14,354 14,354
Revenue 85,457 90,718 89,000 84,386 84,386
Expenses 91,542 90,718 80,000 80,000 80,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 5,353 5,354 14,354 18,740 18,740

30of5

Summary Storey Co

Change
from

19-20 Final -
Tentative

0.0%

Change
from

12U Final -
Tentative

0.0%

Change
from
1¥%-4U Final -
Tentalive

0.0%

Change
from

1W-2U Finai -
Tentative

0.0%



Summary - Capital Projects

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Other Financing Sources
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Infrastructure

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Transfer to Capital Projects
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Stabilization

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - TRI Payback

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Transfers in
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

4 0f 5

2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final

2,149,331 1,342,667 5,729,262 5,822,262 5,822,262

2,121,453 93,732 93,000 93,000 93,000

2,928,118 1,286,181 - 1,370,000 6,691,988

5,579,044 5,217,800

1,342,666 5,729,262 5,822,262 4,545,262 4,441,074
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final

1,820,582 2,219,981 1,865,434 1,290,434 1,290,434

468,933 488,650 425,000 450,000 450,000
1,000,000 169,200 919,200
(843,197)

2,289,515 1,865,434 1,290,434 1,571,234 821,234
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 500,000 500,000

- 500,000 400,000 400,000

1,000,000 1,000,000 500,000 100,000 100,000
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final

3,006,111 3,154,850 3,594,263 1,849,263 1,849,263

751,000 755,000 755,000 755,000

602,261 315,587 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
755,000

3,154,850 3,594,263 1,849,263 104,263 104,263

Summary Storey Co

Change

from
19-2U rinal -
Tentative

0.0%
79.5%
100.0%

-2.3%

Change
from
19-2U Finai -
Tentative

-91.3%

Change
from
19-2U Finai -
Tentative

0.0%

Change

from
19-2U Finai -
Tentative

0.0%



Summary - VC Rail Project

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xIsx

2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 835,829 685,972 545,048 394,048 394,048
Revenue 21,753 20,000 10,000 17,082
Expenses 171,610 171,000 90,960 166,410
Other Financing Sources (140,924)
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 685,972 545,048 394,048 313,088 244,720
Summary - Grants
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 51,995 84,584 110,074 110,074 110,074
Revenue 176,212 221,987 93,000 10,000 75,521
Expenses 143,623 196,497 93,000 75,521
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 84,584 110,074 110,074 120,074 110,074
Summary - VCTC
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 304,077 252,991 453,909 477,183 477,183
Revenue 1,365,391 1,561,327 1,572,000 1,818,300 1,270,000
Expenses 1,416,477 1,360,409 1,548,726 1,750,405 1,396,465
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 252,991 453,909 477,183 545,078 350,718
Summary - Piper's Opera House
2017-18 18-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance - 40,610 77,119 2,835 2,835
Revenue 99,909 151,041 181,000 161,100 161,100
Expenses 59,299 219,532 255,284 272,589 272,461
Transfer In 105,000 80,000 109,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 40,610 77,119 2,835 (28,654) 474

5Sof5

Summary Storey Co

Change
from

1¥-20 Final -
Tentative

-27.9%

Change
from
I1¥-2U Final -
Tentative

-9.1%

Change
from

19-2U Finat -
Tentative

-43.2%
-25.3%

-65.4%

Change

from
14-20 Final -
Tentative

6145.1%



General Fund

Revenue/Expense
Summary



S jo 1 3bed

Wd 9%:£0:ZT 0T0Z/ZT/S

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 9191
%000 000 00°000'7T %000 00°000Z2 00°000ZT 000 76'T89'TT 000 9¥'STETT
%000 000 00°000°0C %000 000 00°000'0Z 00°000°02 000 00°000°0Z 000
%000 000 00°000°0€ %000 000 00°000°0€ 007000°0€ 000 00°000°0€ 00°0v0°0V
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 00°000'T 007000°T 000 000 00'S0Z°T
%000 000 00°000°959°T  %08'EE-  00°009°S¥8- 00°000°959°T  00°009'T0S'Z  TUT'SZT'00T'T  00'6LO'SYT'T  [6'SSE'LEL'E
%000 000 00°000°0T %yvvp-  00°000°8- 00°000°0T 00000°8T 00'00L'6 00°000°'8T 00'579°6
%000 000 00°000°00L %000 000 00°000°00L 00700000 £0°684°950'T  00°000°0TT £6°006°0SS'T
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000°T69- 000 00°000°T69 000 00'645'0ET S7'T08'81S
%000 000 00°000'09T %000 000 00'000°09T 00'000°09T ¥ET¥9°0TZ 00°000°08 YT'BEO'LLT
%0070 000 00°000°00Z %ITTIT-  00°000'ST- 00000002 00°000'SZT SE'GSR'YIT 00°000°0LT 8T°ST19°9%T
%00'0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°009- 000 00°009 000 00005 0005,
%000 000 00'000°0SE %00°0 000 00'000°0S€ 00°000°0SE W TrS'PoS 00°000°0€2 9v'STE'6EY
%000 000 00°000°08 %88'S- 00°000°S- 00°000'08 00°000°S8 00'5£8'T9 00'000°SL 00'529'SL
%000 000 00°000°8 %000 000 00°000'8 001000'8 00062 00°000°€ 000528
%000 000 000008 %000 000 0070008 000008 00°0F1T 0070008 000€9't
%000 000 00°000°0€ %000 000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ SL9LOET 000 ST0Z0'vY
%000 000 00°000°01T %999 00000t 00°000°0T 00'0009 yalsra s 7d 000 00'SET’9
%000 000 00°000°00T %SS'vS-  00°000°0TT- 00'000°00T 00000°0Z2 L6°L60'8L 00'000°0T2 99°6£9°STT
%00°0 000 IT'91S'096'TT  %95°CT IT9IS'PEE’T  TT'9TS096°TT  00°000°9Z9°0T  00°988°TSOTT 00°000°0£S'6  £L°08T'vBLOT
%000 000 9/'TOE'TO8'T  %S10Z  9LTOETOE 9/ 106708 T  00000°00S'T  [8'TZ8'99.'T  00°000'008T  OT'SST'TEST
%000 000 S0'S96'ET %ER"L- S6'vEQ'T- S0'S96'ET 00'0009¢ 60°LEG'OT 00°000°0€ ET'6TT'LT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 0T Tv9'T 000 £5°219°L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 SHOv9'E 000 LLSTL9
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ¥9°L9T'L 000 [6'ETT'LT
%000 000 00°000°000'T %000 00°000°000'T  00°000°000'T 000 95'6£6'L58 000 9£'768°80L'T
%000 000 00°000°005'T  %00°5Z-  00°000°00S- 00°000°00S'T  00'000°000T  PL'6Yt'SO8 00000°00¢'T  YT'ELT'¥6S
%000 000 6£'S6C'G96'Y %000 6E667°596'  6E'G6T'G96Y 000 88908't¥6'y 000 YT'S66'TLEY
%000 000 16°§S6'899'7  %Tt'79-  609POTEFH  T6E€S6'899'C  0000000T'L  LSTE'LEST 00°000°00£'9  6E'EBT'6SE'T
Aew ySnoayy
(eseanaq) |euid (aseasnaq) ELGTTIET] jeuty Ananoy QLA 123png |E30L Ayanoy |e3oL
/ @seasdu| T20Z-0202 / @seanu] 1202-0202 020Z-610T 020Z-610T 6107-810C 610Z-810T
% 12dpng T o 19dpng 1289png jualed
uosuedwo) 03 123png Juased 0} 123png

zuospedwo)  z vosuedwo) 1uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AJewiwing Juno2dYy
1Joday uosuedwo) 123png

AINVYO dO1S £G1-00vEC-100
INIWIOVNYIN ADNIOHIW3I ZHT-00vEc-100
SLNVYD 1vd3a3d 000-00v<E-100

SX1 40 N3N NI SLINAL @34 000-00€EE-T00
SINWYO 31V1S 000-001cc-100

ONIGNNS TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ ‘dnoiDidynay

:S1IWY3d / SISNIDN - Z€ :dnoanidyaay e1o0L

YVYA/3SN D34S ONINNYId 000-90Z¢¢E-100
IVIHLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL 005-G0C¢E-100
Y1531 00¢-5022¢-100

S1lWY3d 9018 000-50Cce-T00

XV1 ISIHONWVHS 000-80T¢E-100
S3ISNIDN L3YVEVD 000-901¢E-100

§334 S31LNILN 000-S0T¢E-100

S3SN3DN NOILLNLILSOYd 000-+0T¢E-100
02 - SISNIDIN ONINVD 000-€0TZE-100
SISN3IDN HONDN 000-20TCe-100
TVIYLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL 00S-TOTCE-100
v1S3L 00Z-TOTCE-T00

(409) S3SN3DIM SS3NISNE 000-TOTCE-100

SLINY3d / SISNIDIN - Z€ :dnoiDidyasy

JNIHOTVA OV - T€ :dnosnidyaay |elol

355355V ATIVHAINID-ILVLS 000-80T1e-100
S3DIAY3S HLNOA 000-Z0TTE-T00

SYV3IA HOIYd LNINDNN3A 000-S0TTE-100
IVIHLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL 00S-€0TTE-T00
HV3A LSHI4 IN3NDNMN3A 000-£011E-100
TVI41SNANI ON3Y JOHVL 005-10T1E-100
YOSSISSY-WIHOTVA QY 000-TOTTE-T0O0
IVIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHVL 00S-00TTE-T00
¥YIA LNIYUND WIYOTVA QY 000-00TTE-T00

W3IHOTVA AV - T€ :dnosnidyaay
AaNN4 TYY3INIO - T00 -pung
Jaquinp Junony




S Jo Z sbeg

Wd 9:£0:21 0202/21/S

%000 000 00'00¢€ %Sv'Sh-  00°0ST- 00°00¢ 00°0SS 000 00°00S 00T
%000 000 0000t %00C7S- 00009°C- 00°00%C 00°000°s 00955°C 00000 00'Z8Y'y
%000 000 00°005'T %000 000 00°005T 00°005°T TTLIET 00°000'T 00'vIP'T
%00°0 00°0 00°005'Z€9'T %8 00°008°9ZT 00°005'Z€9°T 00°00£‘S0S'T SS°009°0T9°T 00°00€'TL0'T LT'690°THt'T
%000 000 00'000°00£ %000 000 00°000'00L 00°000°00£ SO'T6E0t9 00°00000Z 0Z°0v6'9LL
%000 000 00'000'€ %0S°79-  00°000°S- 00°000'¢ 00°000'8 LT96E'E 00°000'8 £v'959'f
%000 000 000008 %£9°9%-  00°000'¢- 00°000°8 00°000°ST 80'T0S8 00'000°ST 8E€99Sv1
%000 000 00°00€ %000 00'00€ 00°00¢ 000 00°ZeE 000 00'90€C
%000 000 00000 %000 000002 00°000°Z 000 LETE6'T 000 00002t
%000 000 00000 %000 000007 000007 000 66°LYT'S 000 SLETR'E
%000 000 00°000'02Z %00°0S-  00°000°0Z- 00°000°0Z 00°000°0% 65'669'81 00°000°0€ 90'66T TV
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0009-
%000 000 00°008 %000 000 00°008 00°008 00'SSL 00°00S 00°L£0T
%000 000 00°000'0€ %000t~  00000°0Z- 00°000°0€ 00°000°0S 66'£86'0€ 00°000°0t TETIT LY
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00006- 000 00°006 000 00°008 88°695
%000 000 00'00%'T %000 00°00t'T 00°007'T 000 00'819°T 000 002779t
%000 000 00°000°tT %000 000 00°000¢T 00°000%T €0'8E9'vT 00°000ZT I TIP'ET
%00°0 000 00'000°ST %ST'9- 00°000°T- 00°000'ST 0000091 00'SEB'ET 00°000°ST LLTOT'PT
%000 000 00°000°86 %000 00°000°86 00°000'86 000 SLPLEEL 000 00'Z50°0L
%000 000 0000002 %00°0 0000002 00'000°02Z 000 ££°919°0€ 000 SO'tSE'96
%000 000 00°000°09 %00'SZ-  00°000°0Z- 00°000°09 00°00008 00°S8E'LL 00°000°08T 00'S¥6'S9
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°068 000 000
%000 000 00°00008€ %80°06T  00000°6¥Z 00°000°08€ 00'000°TET LE'6Y60EY 000 00°'SBLYE8
%000 000 00°000'9 %EEE6-  00°000'v8- 00°000°9 00°000°06 00'€TL'S 000 00°L0€'0T
%000 000 00°000002 %000 000 00°000°002 00°000°00Z S8°L66'TIT 000 ¥1'9€8°S6T
%000 000 00°000's %EEES-  00000'SZ- 00°000°'s 00°000°0€ 00°ZIt'S 000 YUECY' LT
%000 000 00°000'0€ %000 000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 19'S68°ZH 0000005 SS°0vr68E
%000 000 00°000'vZ %000 00°000°%2 00°000vZ 000 TETLERT 000 0T'1ZS'LZ
%000 000 00000°cT %00°£8-  00°000°£8- 00°000‘ET 007000001 S6'066°0T 00'000°0Z L969Z'TT
%00°0 00°0 0£'STT'529C %YEST 0E'STT'6VE 0E°'STI'SZ9'2 00°000°9£2°T ¥S'068'16£'C 00°000°026'T vZ'600°56€°C
%00°0 000 00°60L't62 %ZE9T-  00'TEZ'SOT- 00'60L 62 0000000 EV'¥9L LYE 00700000t 90°L68'60Y
%000 000 0£'€80'6E0'T %6867 0£'ER0'6ET 0£°€80°6E0°T 00°000°008 S9v9S'EVE 00°000'059 98'v+5'998
%000 000 00'68¥'846 %Ly 0E 00'68Y'87C 00'68Y'8L6 00°000°05£ £5°850'878 00000009 TSP6T'08L
%000 000 00'vv1'Ze %IT€C- 009s8°L¢- 00'vY1°Z6 00°0000ZT SLLTELTT 00°000°0ZT S9'66L'LTT
%000 000 00'000°0£T %0L°E- 00000°S- 00°000°0€T 00°000°SET €L°ETO'8CT 00°00008 SS6T8'9ZT
%000 000 00°CIY'S %086~ 00'885- 00°ZIP's 00°000'9 L9709V 00°000'9 €LTSE'S
%000 000 00842 %0ETI- 00T2LT- 00'8LZTT 00°000°tT 98'998°0T 00°000'+T 6L9ZT'ET
Aew y3noayy
(aseanaq) leuly (eseasnaq) anye3us| |euty Ampoyaia  wdpngeol Aanay jeaop
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seanu| T20Z-020T 0202-6T02 0Z0zZ-610¢ 610Z-8102 610Z-8102
% 1@dpng 1 % 18dpng 133png juasey
uosuedwo) 03 19dpng juaied 0} 123png
Z uosuedwo) g uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

INI4 1O11SIa
SLINWSSV/SINI4 ITINIANS
1018/2I1SNIH04/TYNY WIHD

000-L0TSE-TOO
000-€0TSE-100
000-TOTSE-100

S1I34H04 ANV S3INI4 - SE :dnosnidyaay
SIINIAYIS Y04 SIDYVHD - v€ :dnosgidyaay [e10]

$334 I9VNNOL L¥04INI
SNOISSIINOD - 100d WIMS
INLIWNGV/S3ISSVd 100d INIMS
$334 SIILNIDVA Nuvd
S11S0d3Q ¥3WOLSND
S3IDIAYIS HO4 IDYVHD

$334 INIWHSINYVYO 44143HS
$334 NOILD3dSNI

J0YLNOD 904

$334 S,44143HS

$334 VT

$334 YOLYOILSIANI DA

$334 L¥NOD ID1LSAr

$334 14N0I 1D1¥1SIa

V1531

FNI3Y LOVHLINOD-ONITIE
ONISNOH LOVY¥LINOD VIg

334 ONNI4 ILVAIONYD
¥153L

$334 1430 9NIATING
NOISSIWINOD/S334 HOSSISSY
TYIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHYL
$334 43Q¥0D3Y

$334 AWQ X430

$334 39310

000-08FE-T00
000-609vE-T00
000-C09vE-T00
000-T0S¥E-T00
000-7TvPE-TO0
000-CTEVE-T00
000-60EvE-TO0
000-LO0EVE-T0O0
000-¥0EvE-T00
000-Z0EVE-T00
000-TOEVE-TO0
000-TTZPE-100
000-v0ZvE-T00
000-00Z¥E-T00
00Z-6TTVE-TO0
000-6TTVE-T00
000-8TTvE-TOQ
000-0TTPE-TOO
00Z-80TPE-TOO
000-L0TvE-TO0
000-v0TvE-T00
005-Z0TVE-TO0
00G-Z0TvE-T00
Z{T-TOTPE-TO0
000-TOTYE-TO0

S3JIAY3S YO4 SIDUVYHD - pE :dnosidynay

'ONIANNS TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - £€ :dnoinidyaay [e10)

XVL 3937AI4d HIA HOLOW
14205

142D JIsva
3LVLS-2OVEAVd OT'T LLdy
31LV1S - 3SN3IDIT ONIWYD
X¥.L H0N0N
XVL31L34VOI1D

000-60SEE-T00
000-£0S€E-T00
000-905SEE-T00
000-S05EE-100
000-¥05EE-100
000-€0SEE-T00
000-Z0S€£-T00
JQUWINN JUN0IDY

woday uosuedwo) 128png



G jo ¢ abeg

Wd 9:£0:2T 0Z0Z/Z1/S

%00°0 00°0 TV TES'PLT'ST  %EL'E Y 181°LS9 TP TESPLT'ST  00°0SELTILT 90'vZZ'60Y'8T  00°6L8°0T2°9T LTTTEETT'0Z
%000 000 IV TES'PLT'BT  %EL'E IV 18T°L99 TP TES'P/T'8T  00°0SE'LTILT  90°vTT'60v'81  00°6£8°0ZZ'9T LTTTE'ETT'0T
%00°0 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 00°0 00°000°921°2 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00000921 000
%00°0 000 00000042 %07 St 00'000'922- 00°000°vLZ 00°000°00S 68°S0L'VTO'T 007000582 LTE0V'IST T
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 000 000 008199
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ST'6v9 000 LE98TT
%000 000 00°000°T %000 00°000°T 00°000'T 000 0S°LLy 000 09°'80%'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 8C'880°6L 000 TL'TSO'8E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 99°246'SE 000 6L 6EV'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 00’0 000 £5°606'vY 000 LY EBEOY
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 09't80°L 000 68'9vT'eE
%000 000 00000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T TTLYRTL 00°000°S S9'€T9'ETT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 T10°659 000 96°T0T'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°£T6°S 000 10902
%000 000 00°000°ST %000 00'000°ST 00°000'ST 000 TESLE'ET 000 00°0SZ'v
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 1291 000 96°61
%000 000 00'000°8€ %00'te-  00°000°TT- 00°000°8€ 00°000°0S 12°€9¢v0F 00'000°0€ 88 TrT’SE
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000°06- 000 00°000°06 000 000 T1°€59'SS
%000 000 00°000°0TZ %000~  00°000°0VT- 00'000°0TC 00'000°0SE 1T9ETVTL 00°00005¢ LL0L6'ET8
%00°0 00°0 00°00%'92T %ST'6E-  00°059°T8- 00°00%'92T 00°050°80Z L6°'TTID6ET 00°00S‘EVT 66"E06°€TT
%000 000 00'002'T %000 000021 00°007°T 000 00°0€Y 000 000
%000 000 00°000°021 %00°0t-  00°000°08- 00°000°0TT 00°000°002 SL'60L'EET 00'000°0%T 66°€95'S0¢
Ae y3noayy
(aseanaq) |euly (aseasd=q) anyejual |eul4 AjAnoy alA 128png |e10L Aanoy |e30)
/ aseanu) 120Z-020¢ /[ @seasnu] 1202-0202 020Z-6T02 020T-6102 6T0Z-810C 610Z-8102
% 193png 1 % 198png 193png juaied
uosuedwo) 03 128png juaied 03 188png

z uosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwio)

:je3o) poday

:aNN4 TVHINID - T00 -pund 8301

‘HIJSNVHL AONNAYHILNI - L€ :dnoiDidynay |e3o)

H1M WOY4 NI 4334SNVHL

v8t-CECLE-TO0

H3I4SNVHL ONNJYILNI - LE ‘dnoiDidyaay

:3NNIATY SNOINVTIFDSIA - 9€ :dnosDidyaay |ero)

$31vS LNIWJIND3

SANN43Y

S3I17vN3d DI sSng

SYA Od-ALTYN3d VA QY
0130 YAIFALTVYN3d VA QY
dV3IA LN3I¥END ALTVYN3d
IN3WAVJYINO

Y3H10 - DSIN

IN3SNIN ALNNOD B 43IWINVIS
31AYd SNOILYNOQ/8I41INOD
SONIATNG ALNNOD - SIN3Y
ONIZVHO YO1AVL
S3ILTVAQY - SINIY

V1S3l

SONINYVI 1S3HILNI

000-0vS5€-100
000-0£59€-100
000-9TS9€-T00
000-¥159€-100
000-¢1S9¢€-100
000-0TS9€-100
000-2059€-100
000-0053€-100
9ET-00v5€-100
000-00%9€-100
000-E0Z9E-T00
000-T0¢9E-100
000-00¢9€-100
00Z-00T5E-T00
000-00T9E-T00

INNIATY SNOINVTIIDSIW - 9 :dnoinidyasy

:51134404 ANV SINH - SE :dnosoidynay jeroL

pEYEY) PUNH [00YIS UBUEWSY
SINI3 LY¥NOD TIVF

000-8115%-100
000-6015¢-T00

Jaquinp unoay

Joday uosuedwo) 3e3png



€ jo 1 abegd

Wd 8+:10:21 020Z/T1/S

%0070 00'1L0°88Y 00°TL0'88Y %00°00T- 00 LIE'98Y- 000 00°LTE'98Y 000 00°T9€°98 00°0
%000 00°'TL0°88Y 00°'TL0'88Y %00°00T- 00°LTE'98%- 000 00°LTE'98Y 000 00°'T9£'98 000
%00°0 00°TL088Y 00°TL088Y %00°00T- 00°LTIE98Y- 000 00°L1E98Y 000 00°T9£°98 000
%000 00'TLO'88Y 00'TL088Y %00'00T- 00°LTE98Y- 000 00'LTE'98Y 000 00°'T9€'98 000
Aey ysnoayy
(aseasnaq) |euq (aseanaq) ELGTSUET |eul4 AuAnoy QlA 128png |e301 Auanoy (ejoL
/ @seanu| 120T7-0202 / @seasnu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-610T 0Z0Z-6102 6102-8102 6T0Z-8102
% 198png 1 % 1edpng 193png juaied
uosuedwo) 03 123png uaied 0}

Z vosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

AJewwing JunoJJY
1oday uosiiedwo) 193png

1 vosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

|e30] Woday
:ADNIONILNOD - 009 uawyiedaq |e3o)

1$3D¥NO0S ONIDNVYNI4 HIHLO - 046 :Tdnosoidydx3 |e1o)
ADNIONILNOD 000-006Z5-009-T00
$32YNO0S ONIDNYNIA YIHLO0 - 045 :Tdnos9idydx3
AINIONILNOD - 009 uawnedag

J3QWINY JUN0Y




Clerk-Treasurer



$S 40 £ 3bed

Wd $S:11:6 0Z0Z/11/S

%9Z°0- 00" TSET- 00°SOE€TS %8TLT-  00°609°601- 00°959'vZS 00°S9Z'vE9 v6'8S6'ETY 00°96E'PLS ¥8'L15'8LS
%00°0 000 00°000°02 %00°09- 00°000°0¢- 00°000°02 00°000°0S 0£'ZZEQ 00°000°0L 0T LIT'8L
%000 000 00°000°0Z %0009-  00°000°0¢- 00°0000Z 00°000°0S 0£TTE9 00°000°0L 0T LIT'8L
%TT0 00°0vT 00°ZST'ETT %Zy'8t-  00°880°901- 00°ZIO'ETT 00°00T°612 8S°6Z8'STI 00°009°SZT 1€'578'SST
%000 000 00°000°'ST %00'0S  00000°S 00°000°ST 00°000°0T 96'169°07 00°000°8¢ €8°LL0'67
%000 000 00°000°0T %00°0ST 000009 00°000°0T 00000t ¥0'686'T 00°00S ‘€ TEELT'S
%950 00°0v1 00'0¥T'ST %$9'78- 00000611~ 00'000°sT 00°000'FYT ¥9°90'8€ 00°000°02 05°ZpSs'ST
%000 000 00216 %000 00'Z16 00'Z16 000 00'8L 000 000
%000 000 00'002C %000 000 00'002'C 00°002'C ¥9'TLE'T 00'000°Z 69°659°C
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 59°99L°T 000 000
%000 000 000008 %EECEE 0000007 00°000°8 000009 ¥£LT0'2T 00°000°S £6°L6T'LE
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 0STUTT 00°005°T 00°005'T
%000 000 00°000' %.S'TZ-  00°00T'T- 00000t 00°00T°S 60'818'E 00°001°S 01'9£9'9
%000 000 00°00€ %00°0 000 00°00€ 00°00€ 000 00°00€ 000
%000 000 00'000°0€ %00°0 000 00°000°0€ 00°000'0€ 69°SZE°0T 00'000'SE €9'TEGTE
%000 000 00'000'T %000 000 00'000°'T 00°000'T 86769 00'000°T 00'St8
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00°000'€ 8T'vL6 00°005T 87'950C
%000 000 00°009 %000z 00001 00009 00005 L9571 00'000'T €6°0EY'T
%000 000 00°000'S %000 000 00'000°S 00°000's €6°E66'T 00'000°S 6T°59r't
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00°000'S 00°000'S 78195 00'00L'%T 18°80€9T
%S0T~ 00°T6%°T- 00°1S8'0PT %0S'8 00°€EST'TT 00°ZPETPT 00°68T°TET 9E'09L'ETT 00°1TH'82T LOLZE'6TT
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 BLLEL'S 000 000
%000 000 00164 %ESE 00°LT 00164 00'v9L $S'8TE 000 8T 6E€
%000 000 00'ST9E %¥S9 0072T 00'ST9'E 00'€6€°E 0£'585°C 00'8SS'E 09'796'C
%99°C- 00161 00'€T9¥S %SLTT 00°9tE‘9 00'¥0T'95 00'85L 61 04°060'St 00'€68'tY 59°'GS5ES
%000 000 00°LTY'TT %85°T 00°€6T 00°LTt'TT 00°vZT'CT 6t 162'S 00°Z5T'TT 06'LS8'Y
%000 000 00°STH'69 %TL'9 00°'S9€'Y 00'STH'69 0005059 SS9ELYS 00°80£°89 ¥L'609°LS
%000 000 00°Z0E'6¥T %559 00°97E'ST 00°Z0E'64T 00'9L6°EET 04°9%0°88T 00°'S8E'0ST 9E'8YT'STT
%000 000 00'TLTPT %000 000 00TLT'YT 00°TLTYPT 9v'9.0°ZT 00'ELT'PT VLSLE'E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 89'8SE 000 9t'L6E'9
%000 000 00'0£0'SET %869 00'9ZE'ST 00'0£0'SET 00'v0L'61T 95 T19'SLT 00°ZTT9€Z 9T'SLBPTT
Aewy yBnouyy
(eseasdaq) |euty (aseasaq) anneual jeuty Auanoy aia edpng |e3oL  Auanoy elo0L
/ aseasnu| 120Z-0202 / @seanu| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 020Z-610Z 61028107 6102-8102
% 198png T % 1@dpng 123png jualed
uosuedwo) 03 123png ualed 03 123png

7 uospedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

SANN43Y

THIUNSYIYL HYITD - Z0T Auawipeds [eIoL
:SNOINVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3 |eoL

000-0€595-201-100

SNO3NVTIIISIN - 095 ‘Tdnoini1dydx3

S3DIAY3S T¥YNOISS3d08d
S3D1LON 21Ngnd
IN3IW3IOVNYW 040034
FHYMLI0S ¥ILNdWOD
LIN3IWdINDI Y3LNdWOD
6TAIAQD -S3IDYVHI ANVE
SIOYVHI ANVE
ONINIVYL

S3SV3T ANV SIN3Y
IDONVNILNIVIN INIWCIND3I
3SN3dX3 NOILLD313
“d1¥2s8Ns B Sana
13AVHEL

3NOHdI13L

$31ddNS 321330
39V1SOd

:S3ISNIJX3 TYNOILYHILO - 0£S :Tdnoimidydx3 jeloy

000-8¥0€5-¢0T-100
000-S€0€5-20T-T00
00-¥E0ES-COT-TOO
000-EE0ES-¢OT-T00
000-Te0t5-¢01-T00
000-ST0£5-¢0T-100
000-FT0ES-COT-100
000-€T0ES-C01-100
000-CT0ES-C0T-100
000-TT0ES-¢0T-100
000-0T0€5-¢0T-100

SISNIJXI TYNOLLYYIHO - 0€S Tdnosnidydx3

dWOD LNIJWAOTdWINN
ALIYNIIAS WVIDOS
JYVIIQIN

JONVYNSNI HLTIV3H
10vd

S¥3d

:S1133IN38 IONIYS - 0ZS :Tdnossdydx3 |ejoy

000-ST0¢5-¢0T-100
000-¥T0¢5-¢0T-100
000-€T0¢5-¢0T-100
000-TT0Z5-Z0T-T00
000-0T0¢5-¢0T-100

SLI4IN38 IONIYA - 025 ‘Tdnosnidydx3

ALIA3ONOT
JNILYINO
SIOVM B SIEVIVS

:3SN3dX3 103410 AYYIVS - 016 :Tdnounidydx3 |ejo)

000-020T5-20T-T00
000-TT0T5-¢0T-100
000-0T0TS-¢OT-100

ISNIAX3 1D3Y¥10 AYYIYS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
HIYNSVIYL HYITD - Z0T uswiiedaq
Jaquinn Junoddy

yoday uvosuedwo) 128png



District Court



6 J0 /1 abed

Wd $SITT:S 020Z/T1/S

%00°0 00°0 00°005°'v8T %85 00°0v9' 00'005¥8T 00°098'6L1 8Z°195'T9T 00°001°89T 0E'0BLTET
%000 00°0 00°000°ZTT %St 00°0vLE 00°000ZTT 00°09Z'801 80"tt0'S0T 00°000°L6 L7898
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00'000°S 00°000°S 0S'€18'8 00°000°S 00°STY'T
%000 000 00'000°56 %0T'v 00°0vL'E 00°000°S6 00'092'16 85°0£7'96 00°000°08 TLLST18
%000 000 00'000'S %000 000 00°000°S 00'000°S 000 00°000°S 000
%000 000 00°00S %000 000 00005 00°00S 000 00°00S 000
%000 000 00°000'9 %000 000 000009 00000'9 000 000009 000
%000 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 00005 000
%00°0 000 00°00S'ZL %9T'T 00°006 00'00S'ZL 00°009°TL 0T°L15°9S 00°00T°TL 85°L60°6Y
%000 000 00002y %69°L 00°00€ 00'00Z't 00°006°E€ EBHVT'Y 00'006'€ 00'ELY'E
%000 000 00°005°€ %000 000 00°005°€ 00005 T9°6Z1°E 00'000°€ 00'796'C
%000 000 00°000°09 %000 000 00°000'09 00°000°09 9L 5SSy 00°000°09 85°799'TY
%000 000 00°008'Y %6T T 00009 00008V 00002y 00'889°Y 00°00Z‘y 000
Aey ydnoayy
(aseasaq) |eutq (eseaunaq) annejuaL leulq Aianoy aiA 128png |ej0L Auandy [ejop
/ aseanu| 1202-0202 / @seasdu) T202-0702 020Z-610Z 0Z0Z-6102 610Z-8102 610Z-8102
% 12dpng 1 % 123png 128png Jualied
uosiedwo) 0y 128png jJualed 03 123png

Z uosuedwo)

7 uosupedwo)

1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AINYOLLY 1DN4INOD
¥3aN3430 2n8nd
NOILN313Q 3TUN3ANT
ONILYOd3Y 14N0D
ssounr
SYILIHUdYILNI

:1¥N0D 1DIYLSIA - ZTTT Auawiedaq |e3oL
' INJINNYINOD TV¥INID - 0vS :Tdnoiodydx3 [e3o)

000-ZvTPS-CT1-T00
00-SYIPS-¢TT1-T00
000-7¥ZTPS-CIL-100
000-EPZPS-CIT-100
000-ZvZPS-C11-T00
000-T¥ZPS-CIT-100

INIWNYIAOD TV¥INID - 0pS :Tdnosnidydxy

J1VOILSIANI IONILNIS-IYd
3DIAY3S HLNOA 3104Vd
S3DIAH3S TYNOISS3408d
IDNILNIVIN LINIWGIND3

:SISNIdX3 TYNOILYY3JO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 |eol

000-S07€5-CT1-100
000-9T0ES-CT1-T00

SISNIX3 TYNOILYYIHO - 0€S :Tdnos9idydx3y
1¥N0D 12141510 - ZTT uawpedag
Jaquinp junody

Joday uosuedwor 138png



Genetic Marker
Testing



T L T

%000 000 00°005°8 %00°ST-  00°005°T- 000058 00°000°0T 8£°968°¢E 00°005TT 00°€6T9
%000 000 00°000'% %00°0Z- 00°000°T- 00000t 00°000°S B8L°968°€E 00°000°L 00°€61°9
%000 000 00000t %00°0Z-  00°000°T- 00°000't 00°000°S 8L968'¢E 00°000"L 00°€619
%0070 000 00°00S't %00°0T-  00°00S- 00°005' 00°000°s 00°0 00005y 00°0
%000 000 00005t %00°0T- 0000S- 00°00S't 00'000°S 000 00005t 000
Aey y8noayy
(eseasdaq) jeuiy (eseasdaq) aanejual |eul4 Aanoy ala 128png |e30L Annoy |e10)
/ aseanu 1Z0Z-020¢ / aseasnu| 1202-0202 020Z-610C 0Z0Z-610C 610Z-8102 610Z-810Z
% 19dpng T 9% 19dpng 198png jJuaieg
uosuedwo) 0y 128png juaued 03 128png
7 vosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
%000 000 00°00T‘TT %8P E- 00°00t- 00°00T'TT 0000511 6L V1S6 00°000°1T 00°9¢8°vT
%000 000 000009 %000 © 000 00°0009 00°000°9 8L9TL'Y 00°000°S 000918
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 007258
%000 000 00°000T %000 000 00°000°T 00'000°T 00°0Z8 00000°T 000TT'T
%000 000 00°000°'S %000 000 00'000°S 00'000°S 8L7968'€ 00000t 00°€61°9
%000 000 00°00T°S %LTL- 00°00%- 00°001°'S 00°00S°s 10°86L'Y 000009 00°989°9
%000 000 007001 %0008~ 0000~ 00001 00°00S T0°1C 000 00°0€
%000 000 00°000'S %000 000 00°000°'S 00°000'S 00°LLL'Y 00'0009 009599
Aepy ysnoay)
(eseasneq) |euly (aseanaq) anpejus] [euly Ajagoy aia 198png g0 Ajanoy jejol
/ @seanu) 1202-0Z02 [ @seanu] 1202-0202 0Z0Z-610T 0Z0Z-6T02 610Z-8102 6T0Z-8T0C
% 198png T o 198png 128png juaiegd
uosuedwo) 0} 198png jualed o3 128png

Zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

CONILSIL HINYVN JILINID - 08T :pund |e30L

:0SS - 055 :Tdnosnidydx] jejoy
1018/2ISNIY04/I¥NY WIHD

000-TOTG5-08T-
0SS - 055 ‘Tdnosmdydx3

1INIWNYIA0D TWHINID - 0vS :Tdnoinidydx] e1o)
ININIAOYdINI IWOOY LYNOD 000-8T¢vS-08T-08T
AIN3IWNY3IA09 Tv¥INIO - 0¢S :Tdnosnidydx3
ONILSIL HINYYIN JILINID - 08T :puny
JaquinN Junody

Hoday uosuuedwo) 128png

‘DNILSIL HINYVIN JILINID - 08T :puny |€30]
'$1134404 ANV SINI4 - SE :dnosDidyAay jelo)

S1133404 000-00Z5€-08T
334 ALI¥ND3S L¥N0D 000-ETT1GE-08T
1018/2ISNIYO4/IVNY WIHD 000-TOTSE-08T

S1134404 ANV S3INI4 - SE :dnoiidynay
:§3DIAY3S Y04 SIDUVHD - € :dnounidyaay |e3oL

Y3HL10 S334 LY LO141SIa 000-50ZvE-08T
$334 14N0J LO1d1SIa 000-00ZFE-08T

SIDIAYIS YO4 SIDUVH) - vE :dnoigidynay
ONILSIL HINYVIN JILINID - 08T :pung
Jaguiny Junoly

uoday uosuuedwo) 128png



Drug Court



8¢ Jo g abeg

Wd 8p:51:5 0Z0Z/11/S

%00°0 000 00°00% %EEEE-  00°00Z- 00°00v 00°009 0001V 00°009 00'09¢
%00°0 00'0 00°00v %EEEE-  00°00T- 00°00% 007009 00°0TP 007009 00°09%
%000 000 00'00Y %EEEE- 0000¢- 0000t 00°009 0001 00°009 0009t
Aey y3nouyy
(aseainaq) |eutd (aseasaq) anueual |eulq Auanow ata 1@8png B30l AuApoy [ejoL
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seasu| 1202Z-0Z02 020¢-6102 0Z0Z-6102 6T0Z-8T02 6102-8102
o 12dpng 1 9% 19dpng 188png juased
uosiedwo) 0} 128png uaied 03 128png
Z uosuedwo) 7 uosiedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
%00°0 000 00°00% %EE'EE-  00°00T- 00°00v 00°009 00°0tY 00°009 00°0SY
%00°0 000 00°00% %EE'EE-  00°00T- 00°00% 00°009 00°01Y 00°009 00°0S¥
%000 000 00°00v %EE'EE-  0000C- 00°00t 00°009 00°0TY 00°009 00°0St
Aey y3noayy
(aseaidaq) [euty (aseasn2q) ELV A TVET euiy Aanoy QLA 198png |e301 Aianoy e300
/ @seainu| 120Z-0Z0¢ / aseaiu| 1202-0202 0202-6107 0202-6102 6102-8102 610Z-810¢
% 328png T % 12dpng 128png Juaied
uosuedwo) 03 128png juaied 03 12d8png

z uospedwo) g uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

:14N0D 9NYA - OvT :pundg [B30L

{INJWNYIA0D TYHINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejo)
$334 1¥4N0D 5nN¥a 000 €ET¢vSOpPT-OvT
AINIWNYIAOD TWHINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydxy
1¥N0J 5NY¥A - OvT :punyg
Jaquinp unoddYy

woday uosuedwo) 133png

*1HNOD 5NYA - OvT :pund |EI0L

1$IIIAY3IS HO4 SIDYVHD - vE :dnounidyaay |B10)
$334 1¥N0D 5N¥a DOO-ETCrEOPT
SIDIAHIS YO4 SIDYVH) - vE :dnosnadyaay
L¥N0D 9N¥Q - OvT :pund
J3quinp unoy

1oday uvosuedwo) 128png



Recorder



#S 40 t abed

Wd $S:11:5 0202/11/5

:43Q¥O0I3Y - €0T :uawiedaq ko)
:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnoanidydx3 |eyo)

%6%°0- 00°T6Y'T- 00°T¥6°T0E %91 EE- 0S°L0S‘0ST- 00°ZEV'EOE 0S'6E6'ESY v6°006'€9Z 00°££2789€ T1'96L'VEE
%000 000 00°005°T %000 00°0 00°005'T 00°005T B6'TLE 000 000
%000 000 00°00S'T %00°'0 000 00'00S'T 0000ST 86'TLE 000 000
%000 000 00005 %0070 000 00°00S 00°00S £6°'6LE 00°00S E6°EVT
%000 000 00°'00S %000 000 00°00S 00°00S £6'6LE 00°00S E6'EVT
%000 00°0 00°Z91°LS %SP'SS- 0S'SET'TL- 00°Z9T°LS 05'L62'821 LEOTSLS 00°0SZ'€9 ST'ZEE0S
%000 000 00°000°8 %IT'TL- 00000°T- 000008 00'000'6 00°091 000006 IV 6YEY
%000 000 00000 %000 000 00000 00000T 61191 00°005°C ET'60T'8
%000 000 0000021 %000t~ 00'000°'8- 00°000TT 0000002 8LTIT'L 00°000'81 €6'9LE'S
%000 000 00005T %L6°56" 0S'LPS'65- 000052 05'L¥0'79 £E°0V8'LT 000051 8°49¢
%000 000 00216 %0Z'T6T 007161 00°716°C 000001 LS'SE9 00°000°T 9T°€80°8
%000 000 00'000't %EEEE-  00°000°CT- 00'000't 000009 SO'ELE'T 00°000'S 06'8L8'F
%000 000 00°00S %00°0 000 00°'00S 00005 000 00005 000
%000 000 000058 %ETET 00°000'T 00'0058 0000SL 000 000002 06°0ST'L
%000 000 00'00S°C %LS 8T 00°000°T- 00°005°C 00'00S'E 000 00°00S°E €9'8ETT
%000 000 00000t %000 000 00000t 00'000% 00'STT'ET 00°00S°C 0S90L
%000 000 00005 %08 LE- 000051~ 00'005°T 00000t LT'6CL 00°000°S 26'65L
%000 000 000001 %000 000 00'000°T 00°000°T 0S°61S 00°000'T 08°686
%0070 000 00°005°€E %0S°CT- 00005~ 00°005'E 00'000'% 09°€45°T 00°000°€ 88'61C°C
%000 000 00°00L %000 000 00°00£ 00'00L PTLLT 00°00L £8'TEY
%000 000 00'05L°T %TTTL- 00°005- 000SLT 00052'C 85°120°C 00°052°C 9£'689'T
%000 000 00°008 %000 000 00°008 00008 v8 et 00°008 €6'6LT
%ILT-  00'T6Y'T- 00°9T5's8 %Ib'vZ-  00°L60°8T- 00°£00°L8 00°+0T'STT L8'¥ST'Y9 0092Z'16 LL'STO'V6
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°€TL'T- 000 00'€TL'T 86°09 00'8¥L'T CESPS
%000 000 00082'C %09'vZ-  00'vvL- 00°082'T 00'v20'E SL'STE'T 00968'T ov'119°C
%0T1°G- 00°'16%'T- 00'6TL'LT %LS'9E-  00'v¥89T- 000ZZ'6Z 00'¥90'9% 8506712 00°£55'LT YT66T'TY
%000 000 00'805'6 %ED'ET-  00'vEV'1I- 00°805'6 002E6'0T €9'vL0'Y 0001501 9/'8¥8'E
%000 000 00'666'SY %08°€T- 00'Z9€'L- 00°'666'St 00'T9E'ES £€6°218'9€ 00'STS'8Y ST'1Z8'SY
%0070 00°0 00°€9Z°LST %6SvZ-  00'SLTTS- 00'€9Z°LST 00°8£5'80C 6LEBY'TYT 00°LST'ETT LTY6T'06T
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00'8I¥TT- 000 008IV'IT 8R'EEE'T 00°166°6 16'SLE'E
%000 000 00°€9Z'LST %ZT'0Z-  00°LS8'6E- 00°'€9Z°LST 000ZT'L6T 16'6¢T°0VT 00'9927°'€0T 9€£°8T8°08T
Aew ydnoayy
(aseanaqg) |euty (eseasnaq) anuejua)l jeutdy Aanoy QLA 128png |e30L Ajanoy [eloL
/ @seasnu) 120Z-0207 [ aseanu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-610Z 020Z-6102 6T0Z-8102 610Z-8107
% 199pna T % 128png 129png jualed
uosuedwo) 03 198png juaied 0} 198png

7 uosuedwo)

Z uospedwo)

T uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

LIN3IWdIND3 ¥31NdW0D

000-09T+9-£0T-100

0%9 - 0v9 :TdnosDIdydx3

:SNO3ANYTIIDSIA - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejo)

SNO3NVTIIOSIN

00G-00595-€01-100

SNOANYTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnoso1dydx3

:§3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 |e3o)

NOILYAY3ISIHd/NOILYE0LSIY

000-6£0£5-801-100

$3DIAY3IS TYNOISSIIOHd 000-0Z0ES-€01-100
SIN3W3IIYOV LNIVIA 000-650€5-€01-100
AINIW3IOVNVIN QH0D3Y D00-GEOES-€0T-100
IYYMLIOS YILNdWOD DO0-vEOES €01-100
ONINIVYL 000-620¢5-€01-100

$3SV31 ANV SIN3Y 000-ZZ0€5-€01-100

W4 000-610£5-€01-100

39VH0LS W4 000-8T0ES-€01-100
ONIddVIN 000-ZTOES-E0T-100

IONVNILNIVIN LNIWCIND3
'dd2saNs 8 sand

000-910£5-£01-100
000-v10£5-£0T-T00

1IAVYL 000-ETOEG-€0T-1T00
3INOHd313L 000-¢1T0€5-€01-100
S3MNddNSs 321440 000-TTOES-€0T-100
39V150d 000-0TOES-€0T-100

§3SN3dX3 TYNOLLYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:S1143N38 IDONIYA - 0ZS :TdnoJDadydx3 jelog

ALIYND3S VID0S D00-¥T0ZS-€0T-100
IWVYIIQIN D00-E1025-€01-100
IDINWVUNSNI HITV3IH 000-C102G-€01-100
1Jvd 000-11025-€01-100

S¥3d 000-0T0Z5-€01-100

S1143IN38 IONIYS - 025 Tdnounidydx3
:3SN3dX3 1D3HIA AYYIVS - 0TS :TdnoJnidydx] |eoy

ALIAIONOT 000-0zZ0T5-€01-T00
SIOVM B SIFVIVS 000-0T0TS-£01-100

3SN3IdX3 1D3Y1Q AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3

¥3QYOOI3 - £0T Iuswedsq

13qWINN JunoaJy

Moday uosuedwo) 338png



Assessor



S jo § abeg

Wd $5:11:5 0202/11/5

'HOSSISSY - ¥OT uawnedaq [e3oL
:§3SN3dX3 TYNOLLYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnosmdydx3 jejoL

%L9°0- 00°Z8Y'€- 00°9T'LIS %IT'S 00'S6L°ST 00°829°0ZS 00°EE8'v6Y b1 6E8'66€ 00'£50°995 62'001°685
%000 000 00'STH'Z8 %90°TT-  00°SYZ'0T- 00°'ST¥'Z8 00°099°T6 16'6E8°TL 00'09Z'vET SO'0ST'SPT
%000 000 00'000°£9 %SC9T- 00°000°€T- 00000°£9 00'000°08 STIYTTY 00°000°0ZT 05°869°GET
%000 000 00°005'T %000 00°00S'T 00°005'T 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°0SS %000 000 00055 00°0SS v0'6EE 00°0SS 68815
%000 000 00°00€ %000 000 00°00€ 00°00¢ 0E'SET 00°00€ LO6TE
%000 000 000vT'T %000 000¥T'T 000vT'T 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00¢ %000 000 00°00E 00°00€ LEBET 00°00¢ ST €9t
%000 000 007000 %000 000 00°000°C 00000C PSPSTT 00°000C €0'BEL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 88'976 00009°T 0T'LEY
%000 000 00°520°T %601 00'ST 00201 000T0T ot'sz0’1T 00°010°T Ot'810°T
%000 000 00°009 %000 000 007009 00009 0t'+9S 00°009 0v'¥9S
%000 000 00°0SL %8E°ST 00001 00°0SL 00059 00'TLL 00059 BEYRL
%000 000 00'00Z'T %000 000 0000Z°T 00°00Z°T £6'85S 000021 11°810°C
%000 000 000SZ'T %000 000 00°052'T 00°05T°T 8£'9T6 000521 0S°08T'T
%000 000 00°00€'T %000 000 00°00€'1 00°00€'T Z1'E69'T 00°00€'T 95°'6E6
%000 000 00°005°€ %000 000 00°00S°€E 00'00S'E 0€'0LY'T 00005°€E 9’69
%IT'T- 00°Z8Y'E- 00°89€'19T %LT6 00°Z86°ET 00°058°tv9T 00°898°0ST 06'E€6T'TTIT 00°TP0'SET 6L v086VT
%000 000 00'796°E %BL'8 00°0CE 00't96'€ 00'tt9'E 75'9L0°E 00°009°t vS 190V
%00°S- 00°Z8Y't- 00°€TZ99 %PSTT 0001T°L 0056969 00'S8%°79 67 EV6'6E 0010405 SS'OY8'ES
%000 000 00°ZET'TT %000 000 00ZET'TT 00'ZET'TT t¥ LST'S 00°ZET'TT £E188'S
%000 000 00'656°6L %8L°8 00759 00'656'6L 00'L0S‘EL S9°'910°€9 00°805'69 LETZO'98
%0070 00°0 00°€9€ELT %8L'8 00'850°22 00°'€9€'ELT 00°S0E‘1ST ££'50891¢ 00°2SL'96T S SY1'v6e
%000 000 00°S¥8TT %0S'TT 00 LT T 00'$¥8'ZT 00°8T¥'TT 6V’ V61’6 001666 T6°GLE'E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ¥8'90¢ 000 T0'6¥S'Y
%000 000 00°815°092 %098 00°'T£9°0C 00°815°09C 00'L88'6ET 00°v0t'L0T 0019982 £5°077'98T
Aepy ydnoayy
(eseasnaq) leuly (aseasaq) angeual jeuid Agoy ala  3e8pngielol ANARDY [e30L
/ aseasu| T20Z-0T0¢ / @seainu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0Z0Z-610T 6T0Z-810 610Z-8102
% 19dpna T % 198png 123png juased
uosuedwo) 0} 138png 1ualed 0} 128png

Z uosuedwo)

z uosuedwo)

1 uosiedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

S3DIAY3S TYNOISS34048d
40ddNS/SININIIHOV LNIVIN

000-0£0€S5-+0T-T00
000-650E6-¥01-100

135310 73 SVO 000-0v0EG-¥0T-100
SIWYO4INN 000-6£0€5-¥01-100

JHVYMLIOS ¥3LNdWOD 000-v£0£S-¥OT-100
IDNVNILNIVA OLNY D00-0£0EG-¥0T-100
ONINIVYL 000-6¢0ES ¥OL-100

S3SV3IT ANV SIN3Y
AIMSBTIVHSHVYIN X008 4SSV

000-£20£5-+0T1-T00
000-TZ0€S-+0T-100

ONILNIYd 000-020€5-+01-100
*41¥258NS '8 sana 000-v10€Sv01-100
TIAVYHL D00 €T0£S-FOT-100
INOHdIIL 000-¢10£5-¥01-100
$311ddNS 321440 000-TT0EG-F0T-100
39V1S0d 000-010€5-¥0T1-100

$3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYH3JO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydxy

:S1143N39 IONIY4 - 0ZS ‘Tdnosoidydxy |ejo)

JWVIIQIN 000-£10¢5-¥01-100
JONWVHNSNI HLIVIH 000-¢1025-701-100
10vd 000-11025-¥01-100

S¥3d 000-010¢5-¥01-100

$1133N38 IONIYS - 0ZS :Tdnoigidydx3

:3SNIdX3 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnonidydx] |eloy

ALIAJONOT
JWILH3AO
SIOVM 8 SAIYVIVS

000-0Z0TS5-+01-100
000-TTOTS-+0T-T00
000-0T0TS-+0T-100

ISN3dX3 1DIHIA AYYIVS - 016 :Tdnounidydxy

HOSSISSY - 10T Iudwiiedag

Jaquinp Junoly

poday uospedwo) 128png



Technology Fund



8¢ 10 6 abed Wd 8%:S1:6 0Z0Z/11/S
%000 000 00°050°6S %9L°ST- 00°0S0°TT- 00°0S0°65 00°00T°0L 75°69L'79 00°008°LL 66'0LL'0TT ‘ADOTONHDI3L - S9T :pund B30
%0070 00°0 000081 %00°0v- 00°002'T- 00°008°T 00°000°€E TLY8 00°008 98°08E'Y :3NNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIW - 9€ :dnounidynay |e3oL
%000 000 00°008'T %000~  00°007'T- 00°008°T 00'000°€ ITLve 00°008 98'08€'Y SONINYV3I L1SIHILNI 000-00T9E-59T
INNIAIY SNOINVTIIDSIW - 9€ :dnosidynay
%0070 000 00°0SZ°LS %89°vT- 000586~ 00°0SZ°LS 00°00T°£9 0v'ZZ6'T9 00°000°2L £1°06£°90T 1S3)IAH3IS Y04 SIDYVHD - vE :dnosoidyasy jeroy
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ST v0v SI9 0LC-LTT¥E-S9T
%000 000 00°000°0S %£9°9T-  00°000°0T- 00°000°0S 0000009 ST'996'€S 00°000°0L €L'VILLE $334 HO31 HOSS3ISSV 000-50T+E-S9T
%000 000 00°0S %0005~ 0005 00°0S 00°00T 00°0% 000 00°0¥ S334 HO3L X430 000-50TPE-S9T
%000 000 00000°T %000 000 00°000°T 00°000'T 00068 000 00'058 TVIHLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL 00S-E0TPE-S9T
%000 000 0070029 %EEE 00°00¢ 0070029 00°000°9 ST'9Z0°L 00'000°L STTEEL $334 HD31 43Q4023H 000-E0TPE-S9T
S3DIAYIS YO4 SIDYVH) - vE :dnouoidyasy
ADOTONHIIL - S9T -pund
Aey y8noayj Jaquinn Junoddy
(eseasdaq) |euty (eseasdaq) ELETET] [VE] Ajialay LA 128png |e301 Aingoy |eyor
[ @seasnu| 120Z-020T / @seanu) 1202-020¢ 0Z0Z-610T 0Z0Z-610C 610C-810C 610Z-810Z
% 1@dpng T % “3a8png 128png 1ualed
uosuedwo) 03 128png juased 03 128png

z uosuedwo)

Z vosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

1T uosuedwo)

woday uosiedwo) 128png



7+ 40 11 abed

Wd OF:v1:G 0202/11/S

%00°0 000 00°000°S8 %€S°0T- 00700001~ 00°000°S8 00°000°56 15°002°6L 00°001°v8 ¥6°809°€9
%000 000 00°000°0S %L9'9T-  00°000°0T- 00°000°05 00°000°09 T6'9T¥'YS 00°000°LY 61°0Zt'9€
%000 000 00°000'05 %000 000 00'000°0S 0000005 €T'80T'LY 00°000°SE €9°60€'TE
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 0000001~ 000 0000001 69'80T'L 0000021 95 0IT'Yy
%00°0 000 00°'000°SE %00°0 000 00°000°SE 00°000°SE 65 E8LDT 00°00T°LE SL'88TLT
%000 000 00'000'SE %000 000 00°000°SE 00°000'SE 0SE0L YT 00°000'SE SL'88T°LT
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 000 00°000°C 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 6008 00°00T 000
Aejal y3noay)
(eseanaq) leuty (aseainaq) aAnejua) leuy Ajanoy aLa 1a8png |ejoL  AyAandy |ej0L
/ @seasdu| 1202-020¢ / @seanu| 1202-020T 020Z-610¢ 020Z-6T0Z 610Z-810¢ 610Z-810Z
% 198png T % 193png 123png jualed
uosuedwo) 03 128png juaied 0} 198png

Z uosuedwo)

Z vosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

ADOTONHI3IL - 69T :pund |el0]
{INIWNYIAOD TY¥INID - 0vS :Tdnoinidydx] [ejoL

1SNDIV HO31L YOSSISSY 000-90T¥S-S91-591
1SDOV HO31 ¥30¥033y 000-€0TPS-S91-591
INIWNYIN0D TvY¥INID - 0tS :Tdnosnidydxy

:$3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIJO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3 je1o)

$19-5334 404d 04¢-0£0€5-G91-G9T
$3SV31 8 SLNIY 000-2Z0€5-591-59T
saiddng 33140 000-T10€6-691-G01

S3ISNIAX3 TWYNOILYHIJO - 0€S ‘Tdnosnidydxy
ADOTONHDI3L - 9T :puny

Jaquiny Junony

woday uosuedwo) 1a8png



Buildings & Grounds



S 4o 6 abed

Wd $S:T11:S 0202/11/S

%000 000 00'000'S %00'0 000 00'000'S 00°000°S T6'918C 00°000'S €T'6SS'E
%000 000 00'¥SZ'T %000 00+SZ'T 00'¥SZ'T 000 000 000 000
%00'0 000 00'000C %000 00000C 000007 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00000'C %000 000 00°000°C 000007 LY'T96 00000 7L°808°T
%000 000 00°0007 %000 00°000C 00000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 09'SLT 000 07 €8V
%000 000 000051 %000 00°00S°T 0000S°T 000 99'LTET 000 v£'S08
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00'000°S- 000 00°000°S 76°L69'Y 00'000'S 00942
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00'0L 000 v7'868
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°'000°02- 000 000000 9E'v96'T 00°000'ST 75°095
%000 000 00°000°0€ %0005 00'000'01 00°000'0€ 00°000°0Z TrSST'LT 00°000°0€ 16'655°0T
%000 00'0 000 %000 000 000 000 86'¥850T 000 LESLE'TT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 1T7L0T 000 SPEST'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 68°0TY'8 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 9E'8TTTT 000 £1°690'97
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 T L9t 000 000
%00°0 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 6£'696'TT 000 Y6 YE6'IT
%000 00'0 000 %000 000 000 00'0 95'8Y9'E 000 £9°978'€E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ST'9vE 000 TLT0¥
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 0T 6v8'T 000 0E'T0V'E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 0£'9L6 000 v0'SSL
%000 000 00'000°00T %00°ST 00°000°07 00'000°00T 00°000°08 LY6EL 00°000°SL 80'8VT'T
%000 000 00'000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ [ R 4%'; 00°000°E S6'TEEY
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 08'SE 000 000
%000 00'0 00000'L %EE'EET  00°000'% 00'000°L 00'000°€ 96'899'9 00°000°€ 06'TvY'y
%000 000 00'00€ %000 000 00'00€ 00'0SZ v9°9v1 00'00T 58°00Z
%L6°0- 00'808- 0070628 %TE 8- 00'2LS'L- 00°865'€8 00°0LT°T6 LB LET'E9 00°€8T'€9 0L 0EE'V9
%00°0 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 5868
%00°0 000 00'E€8E'T %9t°6- 006t~ 00'€8ET 00'7€9°C S9PL9T 00'SZ6'T L6°018°T
%BEE- 00'808- 00'690°€T %8L'8- 00'862'C 00'LL8'ET 00'S41°92Z 16'v6T'ST 00'8L0°LT 6EETT'VL
%000 000 009976 %00'0 000 0099Z°6 00'99Z'6 8Y'T0LT 00'020°L TELIS'E
%000 000 00'ZL08Y %9v'6" 00°SZ0°S- 00'2L0'8Y 00°L60°ES €8'995°EE 00'09T'LE LT'66LVE
%00°0 000 00°869'¥9T %St°6- 00°18T'LT- 00°869°¢9T 00°6£8°T8T TS LEBITT 00°€90°8VT L8 YPO'EET
%00'0 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 1708 000 £9°S18
%0070 000 00'869'¥91 %Sb'6- 00'T8T'LT- 00'869'¥91 00'648°T8T LESEO'OTT 00'E90°8YT YT 6T TET
Aew ySnoayy
(eseanaq) jeutd (eseanaq) annejual |euid Auagow ala 1e8png |e30l  Auandy |B30L
/ aseanu| 1202-0202 / @seanu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0z0Z-610Z 6T0Z-8107 610Z-8102
% “ie8png T % 199png 198png 1uaied
uosuedwo) 03 12dpng juaied 03 j28png

z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

135310 B SVO

JHVYMLI0S 43LNdWOD
INIWCIND3I ¥3LNdWOD
JONVNILNIVIN OLNY
ONINIVYL

3ISNOH1YNOD

S3SV3IT1 ANV SIN3Y
SIHONLI3YLS

1334153 SOT DD0A
SdIvd3y

$311ddNS ONILVYY3d0
IVIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHVL
Sd3dId-S3LniLn

41D adnsnf-saniin
3SNOHL¥NOD

10430 LHOI3¥4-SALALLN
SIHOMNLIIHLS

1334153 S 0T D00A
133415 '8, S 3OVHEVD
d01S 1534 DA

YILN3ID LYV S,AYVIN LNIVS
S3LLnLn

JINVNILNIVIN LNINCIND3
SNOILdI¥IS8NS 8 S3NA
INOHdI3L

$31ddNS 321440

000-0v0€5-901 100
000-vE0ES-90T-100
000-€€0ES-90T-100
000-0£0€S-90T-100
000-6¢0£5-901-100
8ET-£¢0£5-901-100
0Z1-970€5-901-100
ST1-920€5-901-100
000-9¢0€S-901-100

S6T-¢20e5901-1
STT-220eS-901-100
TTT-ZZ0€5-901-100
OTT-¢¢0£S901-100
000-2¢0€5-901-100
000-9T0ES-901-100
000-FT0ES-90T-100

$3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnoinydydx3y

ALIMND3S IVID0S
JHVYIIQINW
JDNVYNSNI H1ITV3H
10vd

SY3d

:S1143N39 IDNIY4 - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 (e30L

000-+T0¢5-90T-100
000-£T0¢S-90T-T00
000-TT0ZS-901-100
000-0T0Z5-901-100

S1143N38 IONIYS - 0TS :Tdnounidydx]

JWILH3AO
SIOVYM 8 SAWVIVS

:3SN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 016 :TdnosDidydx3 e3o)

000-TTOTS-901-100
000-0T0TS-901-100

ISN3IdX3 1DIYIA AHVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosoidydxy
SAQNNOYD B ONIATING - 90T :uawyedaq

Jaquinp JuNoYy

yoday uosuedwo) 198png



6 40 Q1 abed

Wd $S:11:5 0202/11/S

%v0°0 00°¢6T 00°ZvS‘vSy %EB9 00°150°62 00°0SE‘vSY 00°667'SZY 8t VEI'GTE 00°9t8°L9Y 9T TIT'EIY
%000 000 00°005'ZT %0070 00°005'ZT 00°005°CT 00°0 00°66T'T 00°000°08 0v'89L'TL
%000 000 00°005°2T %000 00'005'ZT 0000521 000 006621 0000008 0v'89L'TL
%00°0 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 L0°SS8L 000 8L°080°7T
%000 000 000 %000 000 o000 000 000 000 [4 % AT a4
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 revy 000 8TT9T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 TLE68'E 000 S6°9LT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 S0°S0T'E 000 v8°LSLL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 65607
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 88°T1E 000 000
%CS0 00°000°T 00°vSS'v61 %ET'LT 00'tOE‘TY 00°¥SSE6T 00°05Z°TST £0°S0S'0ET 00°009°9LT 15°L88TET
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°00S- 000 00°00S 000 00°00S 000
%000 000 00'00S°€ %000 00'005°€ 00°00S'€E 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ST'STL 000 991§
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 +¥8'899 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00001 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°SE 000 000
%ET'E 00°000'T 00°000°€E %0007 0000072 00°000Z€ 00°000°0T 8L7L09 00°000°ST LS’
%000 000 000002 %EE'EE 00°00S 00°000C 00'005'T SE'09ST 00'00S'T 057911
%000 000 00°000'Z %000 000 00000 00000 000 00°00S'T 95 v6L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 Z0'€E8¢E 000 06°€ELS
Ae ysnoayy
(eseasnaq) |euly (sseatdaq) aagejua) |euyy Angov ala 128png [eloL  AuARdy ejoL
/ @seasnu] 1202-0202 / aseanu| 1202-0202 0Z02-6T0C 020Z-6102 6102-8102 6102-8T02
% 1989png T % “iedpng 123png jualeqd
uosuiedwo) 03 128png juased 0y 128png
z uosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) 1 uospedwo) T uospedwo)

:SANNOYD B ONIATINEG - 90T :Auawiiedaq |e3olL

:0v9 - Ov9 :Tdnosnidydx3 301

AY1LNO IVLIdYD

000-0T0¥9-901-100
0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnoinidydx3

1INIIWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0pS :TdnosDidydx] e3o)

IVIYLSNANI ON3IY JOHVL
X31dW0D 02 HLYON 5078 0D
QYVvA WdG-S3ILMIDVY4 0D
ALTIDV4 0D

dO1S 1S34 AMH 9018 0D
3SNOH 1¥N0D 53018 00

000-LT¥v5-901-100
000-60vv5-901-100
000-Z0¥v5-901-100
000-TOvPS-90T-100
000-00%$5-901-100

INIWNHIAOD TVYINID - 0vS Tdnoinidydxy

:§3SN3dX3 TYNOILYHIdO - 0£5 :Tdnos9idydx3 |e3o)

SIDIAY3IS TVNOISSIH0Hd
SINIWIIEOV LNIVIN
3SNOH VY340 S.¥3did

Y12 3DULSNM - INIVIN 9078
YIWWYIS-LNIVIN ©018
JJDA-3DONVYNIINIVW 9018
IDNVNILNIVIA ONIATING
AYANNYT

S3YIL

TVIHLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL

000-0£0€S-901-100
S6T-£50E5-90T-100
000-Tr0ES-901-100
00S-0¥0ES-90T1-T00
13quInp JUN0DY

1oday vosuedwo) 128png



Swimming Pool



$S 0 17 =begd

Wd $S:11:G 02Z0Z/T1/S

1100d ONIWWIMS - STT Juawpredaq |e30)
:0%9 - 019 :Tdnosoidydx3 |eyo)

AVILNO TVLIdVD 000-0TO¥9-STT-T00

0t9 - 09 :Tdnosnidydx3

:§ISNIdX3 TYNOILYHILO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3 je3ol

QO0OMXD01 $0S-00L€5-511-100

NIVML XYV £06-00£E5-GT1-100

SONVIHOIH DA Z0G-00£€5-511-100

ALID VINIDYIA T05-00£ES-STT-T00

$311ddNS NOISSIONOD 100d -960£5-G11-100
SIYNLXI4 ANV FHNLINYENS 000-2Z0EG-STI-100
S3DIAY3S TYNOISS3IJ0¥d 000-0Z0€5-GT1-100
S1INY3d 000-890€5-G11-100

IDNYNILNIVIA ONIQTING 000-250£5-511-100
S3YIL 000-Tv0£G-G11-100

135310 '8 SVO 000-0F0ES-ST1-100
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNY 000-0EDES-GT1-100
ONINIVYL 000-620€5-611-100

S3MddNS ONILYY3dO 000 +Z0E5-511-100
SIVIIWIHD 000-€20E5-GI1-100

S31LNLN 000-7¢0€5-STT1-100

IINVNILNIVIA ININDIND3 000-9T0€S-ST11-100
INOHd3ITIL 000-ZT0ES-GTT-100

$311ddNS 321440

000-TTOES-STT-T00

SISNIdXI TYNOLLYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3

:$1143N38 IONIYS - 026 ‘TdnosDidydx3 |eol

ALIYND3IS IVIDOS D00-v102G-GI1-100
3YVIIQIN 000-£102G GL1-100
FONVYNSNI HLTV3IH 000-¢T0¢5 S11-100
1ovd 000-TT0Z5-G11-100

S EL] 000-010¢5-511-100

%E0'S 00°269°L 00°S85°091 %IE0Z  00'vI8'ST 00°€68°ZST 00°6£0°L21 86'ELT'E0T 00°868°9¢T " S98'v0T
%00°0 000 00°000°€ %000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 9L'2069 000 000
%000 000 00'000°E %000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 000 9£'706'9 000 000
%L9'vT  00°988°L 00'9€9°19 %86'LZ  00°0SLTT 00°0SL'ES 00°000°ZY voIvLLT 00°00€vY 18°IvE'ST
%000 000 00°00S°E %00°0 000 00°005°€ 00°00S°€E 96°£95'T 00°00S°€E LS8TT'T
%000 000 00°00S'E %000 000 00'005°E 00°00S'€E 0L TIT'T 00°00S € TUEL9'T
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00'000°€ ¥6'670'T 00°000°€ 90°€TTT
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 8E'867'8 00°000°0T E16EY'L
%000 000 00°00S°€E %000 000 00°005°€ 00°00S°€ YT LYET 00°000°€ TETZ81
%000 000 00005 %000 00'00S 00°00S 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°L8¢€ 000 0090¢
%000 000 00°000'T %000 00°000'T 00°000°T 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°E %000 000 00°000'¢ 00'000'€ 000 00°000°S B0 LPO'E
%00°0 000 00°000'T %000 00°000'T 00°000'T 000 0070 000 000
%000 000 00'00S'T %0005 00005 000051 00°000°T 9T ¥t 00°000'T 56'899
%000 000 00'000°T %000 00°000'T 00°000'T 000 $STEE 000 zLott-
%000 000 00°00S°T %0057 00005 00°00S'T 00°000'Z 00°0S€ 00000°T 00052
%000 000 00°00S' %000 000 00°00S't 00005t ZUPSP'T 00005y 89°¥8Y'E
%000 000 00°000°¢ %00°00T  0000S'T 00°000°€ 00°005'T 8¥'750'C 00°008'T (y'718
%8L°76  00988'L 00'98€'9T %00'SZE 000059 00°005'8 00°000C 807969 00'00S'T T8'EBTE
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00'000°€ 8E'61S 00°000°€ 81°/T0'T
%000 000 00°00ST %000 000 000051 00°00S'T S56ST'T 00°00S‘T STLSE'T
%000 000 00°052 %000 00052 0005 000 000 000 00°0€
%v6°0- 00°v6T- 006102 %99°€Z  00'vP6E 00°€19°02 0069991 10°826°CT 00'TLL 8T ETISYETL
%000 000 00'69€'E %660 00'€E 00'69€'E 00'9EE'E 10°951°C 00'9€EE'E 68°LEET
%000 000 00'S60'T %8E°0T 00'€0T 00'S60°'T 00266 60'€8L 00'TL0'T 0v'6€8
%YTS- 00'¥61- 00'905°€ %TELS  O008YE'T 00°00L'€ 00'ZSET 78'86LC 000187 7T089°C
%000 000 00887'S %S0TT  009¢S 00'882'S 0079L'Y 156817 00'€£0°S 96'7Z6'T
%000 000 00'19T'L %00°LE  O0VEE'T 00'T9T'L 00°£22'S 8S°00L°S 001259 99°0£9°S
%00°0 000 00°0€S'SL %It 0T 000ZT'L 00°0£5'SL 00°0Tt'89 LS'T109°SS 00°LZ8EL 05°ZL0E9
%000 000 00°0€S'SL %1101 000ZT'L 000€5'SL 00°0TY'89 L5'T09'SS 00°£28'EL 05°CLO'E9
Aepy ydnoayy
(aseanaq) |euly (eseasnaq) angejua) |euty Aoy ala 3eSpngeiol  ANARDY |EjoL
/ @seainuy 120Z-020T / @seasnu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 020Z-610Z 6102-8102 610Z-8102
% 1989png 1 % 198png 198png juaseq
uosuedwo) 03 128png juased o} 12dpng

7 uosuedwo)

z uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

S1143IN38 IDNIYS - 026 :Tdnosnidydx3

:3SNIdX3 1I3HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 [el0L

SIOVM 78 SII¥VIVS 000-0TOTS-GTI1-100
ISNIAX3I 173410 AYVIVS - 0TS ‘Tdnosnidydx3

1004 ONIWWIMS - STT Juawiedag

Jaquinp junoly

poday uosuedwo) 123png



Service Dept.



pS 40 97 abed

Wd $S:T1:5 0202/11/S

:3DIAY3S - 81T -uawiedaq |e30L
:0p9 - 0v9 :Tdnounidydx] |30

AVILNO TV1IdYD 000-0TO¥9-8IL-100

0%9 - 0¥9 :TdnoJo3dydxy

:INIWNYHINOD TV¥INID - 0vS :Tdnoigidydx3 |e3o)

SIVIISAHd - T¥2IQ3N D00-G1EP5-811-100
AININYIAOD TVHINIO - 0pS :Tdnoinidydxy

:§3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIMO - 0£5 :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejo)

%129 00°SYY'LZ- 00°S89°vTY %LE' VT 00°'895°SS 00°0ET‘TYY 00°795'98¢€ LTTIL'BIE 00°TE0'L9Y 05°99Z'vSY
%000 000 00°000°S %£9'98-  00°005'TE- 00'000°S 00°005'LE 66 8EE'6T 00°000°00T Y0 TLE'SE
%00'0 000 00°000°S %.9°98-  00°00S'TE- 00'000°S 00'005'LE 66 8EE'6T 00'000°00T YOTLE'SE
%000 000 00'00L %00'S.  D0°00E 00°00L 00°00% 00°86T 00°00% 000
%000 000 0000 %00°SL 00'00€ 00°00L 00°00% 00'86T 00'00% 000
%000 000 00'¥8E‘18 %E9'PE  00'VEG'OT 00'¥8E‘18 00°05v'09 S8'YST'6E 00°0ST'€9 8 6v8'69
%000 000 00005 %0005  00°005- 00°005 00°000'T 000 00°000T 05815
%000 000 00'00S°T %0005 00°005 00'005T 00°000'T 00°0€ 00°000°T 000
%000 000 00005t %000 000 00005’y 00005t 88'857°€ 00000 SEEVL'Y
%000 000 00°000°€ %00°'ST 00°009 00°000'€ 00°00t°T 00760°T 00009'T 8V 6Y9'E
%000 000 0000007 %000 000 00°000°07 00°000'02 8T'CIZ'S 00°000'€T +9°985'9¢
%000 000 00'v89 %000 0089 00°'¥89 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00000 %6T 71 00°00S 00°000't 00°00S'€E 60'00°€ 00'00ST v86TS'T
%000 000 00'00S'€ %00°0 00'00S°€ 00'005°E 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°0€ %0005 00°000°0T 00°000°0E 00°000°0Z 8v'896°LT 00'000°02 0S9TT'¢T
%000 000 00°00S°E %000 000 00'005°€ 00'00S'€ LTV 00°005'S 15918t
%00°0 000 00'00S't %00'$ZT  00°00ST 00005 00°000°C TTY80'T 00'000°C 95°£09'T
%000 000 00'000°€ %000 00°000°€ 00'000°€E 000 08'st 000 000
%000 000 00°00%'T %000 000 00°00%'T 00°00t'T 6E'89YC 00°00%'C LOE9T'T
%000 000 00°00€ %00°00T  00'0ST 00'00€ 00°0ST 6085 00°0ST 8E8TIT
%8S~ 00°9vb°9- 00°SLT'TTT %£9°97  00°9EL'VT 00°TZ9LTT 00°588°26 09'v59°76 00'€EEV'86 8L°0ST'V6
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 €£°6979 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- OOTEE'E- 000 00'TEE'E 000 00'€0LT 67'8€
%000 000 00'8EY'E %19°1Z 00119 00'BEV'E 00°LT8'T ST'69TT 00'896C 586597
%6L'T- 00'585- 00'521°TE %L6°0T 00'tET'E 00'0TLTE 00°9Lt'6T TO6T8'TE 00°Z15'62 T TET'EE
%TET 00182 000T¥'TT %01t 00'8LY 0062171 00'TS9'TT TTT9L'E 00'65+°ZT 9€'609'S
%98°8- 00°ZYT'9- 00'Z0Z‘€9 %L0TS  00vvL'ET 00'tvE'69 00°009'St 66'SE98Y 00'S6L°TS 96'TTL TS
%v8 8- 00°666°0Z- 0097912 %GS'TZ  00°860CY 00'STY'LET 00°£ZE'S6T €4°597°L91 00°8¥0°S0T v8'€68'V6T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 BETLT 000 S86S'T
%¥8°8- 00'666'0Z- 009Zt'91T %SS' 17 00'860°TY 00'STY'LET 00°LZE'S6T SEY60°LIT 00'8¥0'S0Z 66'867'€6T
Aewy ySnouay)
(eseanaq) |euy (eseasnaq) aAnEjuSL |euty Ampov ala  eSpngelol  Ayanoy [EloL
[ @seanu| 1202-0202 / @seanu) 1202-0202 020Z-610¢ 020Z-6102 6102-810Z 6107-8102
% 18dpng 1 o 139png 128png juaied
uosiiedwo) 03 128png juaied 0} 128png

z uosuedwo)  z uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

S3IDIAY3IS TYNOISSII0Hd
JDONVNILNIVIN ONIATING
AYANNYT

S3YIL

135310 '8 SVO

FHYMLF0S ¥3LNdWOD
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNY
ONINIVYL

$317ddNS ONILYH3dO
salnun

IDNVNILNIVIN LNINGIND3
SNOILdI¥ISENS B S3NA
INOHdI13L

$31NddNS 321440

000-0£0ES-8TT-100
000-£SOES-8TT-T00
000-TFOES-8TT-T00
000-7E0EG-8TT-100
000-0E0ES-8TT-100
000-6Z0ES-8TT-100

000-CZ0ESBT1-100
000-9TOES-8TT-T00
000-vTOES-8TT-100
000-¢TOES-8TT-T00

$3SNIdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0£S :Tdnounidydx3

dW0D INIWAOTdWINN
ALIYNDIIS IVIDOS
3YVIIQIN

JONVHNSNI H1TV3IH
10vd

SH3d

:51143IN38 IONIYA - 026 ‘Tdnosnidydx3 |ejoL

000-STOCS-8TT-100
000-vTOZS-8TT-100
000-ZT0ZS-8TT-100
000-TTOZS8T1-100
000-0T0Z5-8T1-100

S1143IN38 I9NIY4 - 0ZS :Tdnosnidydx3

JWILH3A0
SIOVM B SIIEAVIVS

13SN3dX3 1D3HIA A¥VIVS - 016 :Tdnos9idydx3 |ejo)

000-TTOTS-8TT-100
000-0TOTS-8T1-100

ISN3dX3 1D3HIA AYYIYS - 0TS :Tdnossadydxa
3DIAY3S - 81T Juawnedag
J13quInN Juno2ay

yoday uosiuedwo) 388png



Roads



g€ Jo 7 abed

Wd 8b:ST:S 0Z0Z/T1/S

60°7669VL'T

%00°0 000 %S9S°TT 60°T6L V6T 60°766'9VL'T 00°002°255'T ¥9'L8SILY'T 00'00Z°716 L6 P6T'6VT'T
%000 000 00°000'00% %000 000 00'000°00% 00°000°00% 00°000°00% 000 000
%000 000 00°000'00% %000 000 00°000°00t 00°000°00t 00°000°00% 000 000
%00°0 000 000009 %000 00°0009 00°000°9 000 TEVYIV'IE 00°000°0 £8°20L°9ST
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0S'ZEE'EET
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 08'86E'TT 000 ¥£C0ST
%0070 000 000009 %000 00°000'9 000009 000 75'S90°0T 00°000°02 65°£98'TC
%0070 000 00002'152 %00°0 000 00°00Z°1S2 00°002'15Z LL'869°081 00°00Z'181 66°9EL'6TT
%000 000 00'000'05C %000 000 00'000°052 00'000'05¢ 60°€79°08T 00°000'081 66'9ET'6TT
%000 000 0000Z°T %000 000 00'00Z'1 0000Z°T 89'SL 00°00Z'T 00009
%0070 000 60'764°880°T %86°0T 60°76L 88T 60°Z6L'880°T 00°000°006 §S'bTTT98 00°000°0TL St vET V98
%000 000 60980859 %C9TE 60980851 60'980'859 00°000°00S 10°T65'L6S 00°000°0S€E 08°1T8'8YS
%000 000 00'90L'0¢Y %89'L 00'90L'0€ 00'90L 0tV 00°000°00t ¥S EE9VIT 00°000°09€ S9'TLE'STE
%0070 000 00000°T %0070 000 00°000°T 00°000°T 00007 00°000°T 0L°0ZL'8
%000 000 00'000'T %000 000 00°000°T 00°000'T 00'00TT 000001 04'0ZL8
Aewy y3noayy
(aseasd2q) |euld (aseasaq) anneual jeutd Aagoy alA 128png |g30L Aianoy [ejol
/ @seatdu| 1202-0202 / @seasnu| 1202-020¢ 020Z-610Z 020Z-6102 610Z-8107 6102-810Z
% 1@2dpng 1 % yedpng 123png 1ualed
uosnedwo) 03 128png judled 03 123png
zuosuedwo) g uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

:$avOH - 0Z0 :pung |B30L
'¥34SNVHL ANN4YILN| - LE :dnosoadyasy jeloL

¥IISNVEL ANNFEILNI 000-00ZZ5-0z0
HIASNVHL ANNIYILNI - LE :dnoinidynay

:3NN3ATY SNOINVTIAISIW - 9€ :dnoiDidynay |eloy

S31VS LNIWGIND3 000-0¥SS€E-020

43H10 - JSIN 000-0059€-070
SONINYVI LS3HILNI 000-00T9€-0Z0
INNIAIY SNOINYTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoiidyasy

:$3DIAYIS HO4 SIDUVH) - vE :dnoioidynay jeroy

5334 IOYNNOL L4OdWI 00020855020
S101d IAVHD/NOILVAYIX3 000-819vc-020
S3DIAYIS Y04 SIDYVYHD - vE :dnoamidynay

:ONIONNS TYINIIWNYIAODYILNI - ££ :dnoinidyaay |ejo)

14308 000-L0SEE-0T0
XV1SvO 000-T0SEE-0C0
ONIGNNA TYANIWNYIAODHILNI - €€ :dnosgidyaay

:S1IWY3d / SISNAJIT - Z€ :dnoioadynay elol

SLIWY3d NOLLYAYDX3 000-207cE-020
SLIWY3d / SISNIDIN - Z€ :dnoinidynay

SAvod - 020 :puny

JaquinN junoly

1oday uosuedwo) 1a8png



jo 1 abed

WY TT:0T:T1T 0Z02/21/S

000 000 00°00T %000 000 00°00T 00°00T £9'66¢ oo.ooa. 8..0 )
000 000 00°000°€ET %000 000 00'000'€C 00°000'€C 6E¥ST9 00°000°0Z vw.ahm.mﬂ
000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 wm.m...o..m 000 ) mm.coﬁ .m
5000 000 00°000°0€ %00°0T 00°000°S 00'000°0€ 00°000°ST E9TITLT 00°000°ST mm.w...m (114
5000 000 00'89E'T %000 00'89€°T 00'89E'T 000 000 8..0 oo.o

5000 000 00°005°S %000 00°00S'S 00°005°S 000 000 ) 8.o _ oo.o )
5000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00'000'S 00°000°S 0L°SYS _N 00 ooo.m Ne.mmm.m
$00°0 000 0070008 %000 000 0070008 000008 00°SOT'T 00'000°S S.mma €
6000 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°009 000 oo”oom 8.0

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 9T'ST ) oo.o ) oo.o .
4000 000 00°000°ST %000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST ...m.mmw.ﬂ“ 00 ooo.m eN.mom‘oﬂ
4000 000 00'000°€ %00'0S 00°000°T 00'000°€ 00'000C 857769 .H oo..ooo.m mm.wmm.ﬁ
%00'0 000 000001 %000 000 00°000'T 00°000°T 8T8ITT 8.80 Z Nq.mmm 74
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 08°SE oo.o ‘ oo,o

%0070 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000°Z- 000 00'000C 000 ) 00 ooo.m oo.c )
%000 000 00°000C %000 000 00°0007 00000'C LLTES'T 00°000°C m.m.vmm T
%000 000 00°0ST %4999 00°00T 00'0SZ 00°0sT 8186 00'0ST €ELPT
%18V 00°S8E'6E 00°EVT 86T %C1'SE 00°¥9Z'TY 00°8SL8ST 00'v6¥'LTT ﬁw.mhmucﬂ 00°S00°8TT mh..wmm”mmﬁ
%000 00°T06'TY 00'T06'TY %00'0 000 000 000 mm.whﬁ.am 000 . mH.SR.Nm
%000 000 00°9v0't %8T'6T- 00°096- 0090V 00'900'S TT°LE6'T oo”mno S .r...mmm T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 ) oo.o ) mo.a .
%0070 000 00'S06't %100 00'818 00'S06Y 00280t mo.wmw.m oo.__..mw.q S.mmﬂm
%LE'S 00915 00'9€EL VY %LY'BY 00°LTY'ST 00'ZST'LY 00'SZ8'TE qm.hm\.\mm 00 cmo.am mm.oﬁ..mm
%000 000 00°0€S'TT %88 1€ 00'v0T'S 00'0ES'T2 009ZE"9T mn.mhw‘m oo.mmm.ma S.mﬁ.c
%000 00’0 00'ST0'T8 %8Y'PE 00°5LL°0T 00'S20'18 00°052'09 £9°'6¢9°19 00'v£9°09 SL'SS6°LS
%00°0 000 00'6SE'6EE %L6°6T 00°6L¥'95 00'6SE'6EE 00°088'787 mu.www‘.wﬂ 00°LL6'V6T mc..mmm..mm~
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 9T IPLY oo..o G.FB 1
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 ) 000 . Nm.m___. _
%000 000 00'6SE'6EE %L6°61 00'6L1°9S 00'6SE6EE 00°088°78¢ 00 SYSEVT 00'LL6'YET IS LYS'EVT

Ae y3noayy
(aseasdaq) jeuiq (esea1d2q) aanejua) [euly ANAGOY QLA 128png |e30L Ananoy |E30L
/ @seanu) 1202-020T / @seasu| 1202-020C 0Z0Z-6102 0202-6102 6102-8102 6102-810C
% 30dpng 1 % 123png 128png jualed
uosuedwo) o} 128png juaied 03 jadpng
z uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) puosuedwo) 1 uospedwo)

AJeuiwing Junoddy
y1oday uosuedwo) 133png

S3DLLON 2118Nd 000-8v0£5-020-0¢0
S3YIL 000-T¥0£5-0¢0-0C0

TYIHLISNANI ONIY JOHVL 00¢
135310 B SVO 000-0¥0£5-0¢0-020
IYYMLIOS HILNdWOD D00-¥E0£5-020-020
INIWJIND3I ¥3LNdNO0D D00-€E0%5 20
IDINVNILNIVN OLNY 000-0€E0ES-020-0¢0
ONINIVYL 000-620%5-020-020

$3SVIT ANV SIN3Y

IVIHLSNANI ON3IY JOHVL
$311ddNS ONILYYIdO

000-£T0€5-0¢0-020
005-720tS-0 0
000-¥Z0ES-0¢0-020

S3ILNILN 000-¢¢0€5-020-020
JINVYNILNIVW IN3IWIND3 000-9T0E£S-020-020
SNOILLIYDSENS B S3NA D00-FTOES-020-0¢0
1IAVHEL 000-€10€5-020-0¢0

INOHdIAL 000-210€5-020-020

S3Nddns 301440

000-TT0ES-0Z0-0¢0

$3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIHO - 0€S ‘Tdnoinidydxy

AYVIAISNS SNI 334IL3Y

:51143N38 3IONIHL - 026 TdnoiDIdydx3 |eoL

000-9T0Z5-020-000

ALIYND3S VID0S 000-+¥10¢5-020-0¢0
£TOZ Q0014 AN I19-£10¢5-020-020
YYIIAIN 000-£1025-0¢0-0¢0
IDNVHNSNI HLTV3H D00-¢1025-020-0¢0
1ovd 000-110¢5-020-00

Sy3d 000-010¢5-020-020

S1143N38 39NIYL - 025 Tdnoinidydx]

:35N3dX3 103410 AYYIVS - 0TS :1dnoinidydx3 je3ol
JNILYINO

£10Z QOO AN

SIDYM 78 STYVIVS

000-TT015-0¢0-0¢0
£19-01015-020-020
000-0T015-020-020

ISNIdXI 1D3YIA AYVTVS - 0TS :Tdnosoidydx3
SAVOH - 070 uawedaq
JBqUINYN JUNONY




¥ 40 7 3beg

WY TT:0T:TT 0Z0Z/Z1/S

%PTTT  00°SSEvIZ 00°0Z¥'6ET'Z  %9T'E 00°TT68S 00°'SE0'SZE'T  00°PZT'998'T  £4°90T0LZ°T 00°0S£°S06 Y5 E0ETOL
%YT'IT  00°SSEbIZ 000ZV'6ET'Z  %9T'E 00°TT6'8S 00'SE0’SZ6'T  00'PTT'998'T  £v°90T°0s2°T 00°0S€'506 vS E0E'TOL
%YT'ST  00°000°SLT 00°00S°0EE'T  %EL°0- 00°005°8- 00°00S'SST'T  00°000°¢9T'T  bZ'0ZEbOL 00°8T9°TEZ LL°09%'POT
%00°0 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 ¥0'6€6 000 TLU8Y9
%000 000 00'000°0SE %000 00°000°0S€ 00°000°0S€ 000 YT rr9'9sT 000 €E'SET9T
%00'00T  00°000°0S 00°000°00T %000 0000005 00'000°0S 000 SLETL'0T 000 6E'E6L ST
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 69'100'9T 00°000°02 9£'€203T
%000 000 000 %000 00'0 000 000 000 00°8T19'TPT 000
%000 000 00°000°0ST %000 000 00°000°0ST 00'000°0ST 08°80% 000 000
%00'58 00'000'S8 00°000°58T %000 00°000'00T 00'000°00T 000 08°£06T 000 PT¥8STT
%00°0T 00°0000F 000000t %00'00€  00°000°00€ 00°000'00t 00°00000T v1°Z9tv'86¢ 00'000°0¢ 8S'SLTT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0T€ST
%000 000 00°000°00T %EE'ER-  00°000°00S- 00°000°00T 00°000°009 9E'TLRE 000 6L°SL8TTT
%000 000 00°005'S %ST'86-  00°00S80¢- 00°00S'S 00°000vTE VrT9E YT 000 vL'876'S8-
%0070 000 000 %00°00T-  00°000°DS- 00°0 00°000°05 ST'068'TZ 00°000°0S 00°LSL'ST
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00'000°S- 000 00'000's 000 00'000°s 000

%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000'SH- 000 00'000°st ST'068'1Z 00°000'st 004522
40070 000 00°00£99 %L8'S 00°00L°E 00°00£°99 00°000°£9 £€°672'82 00°000°8€ v8'9LTTE
4000 000 00°000'ST %00'ST  00°000°€ 00°000°'ST 00°000°ZT 99'vtb's 0000071 887288
6000 000 00'000°0S %00'0 000 00°00005 0000005 £9'768°12 00'000°'SZ 96'76£'TT
60070 000 0000£°T %000L 0000 0000£'T 00°000°T 00768 00°000'T 00°'196
5000 000 00°8TLb0Z %9t°8 00'896°ST 00'8TL P02 00705881 v6'L0T'L2T 00°0S4°2LT 0T°ZZ0'8¥T
5000 000 00°000°0£ %000 000 00'000°0 00°000°0L 85'9STES 000000 80'769°8S
5000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 S7'8S 000 000

000 000 00°000°0¢ %67 T 00°000°S 00°0000% 00'000's€ 90°09T°LT 00'000°0€ 6v'9£0'87

Aey y8nouy)
(aseanaq) leuty (aseanaq) angejuay |euy Aungoyain  39dpng mor  Auagoy jeiog
/ @seanuy 1Z0Z-0202 / @seanu| 1202-020Z 0Z0Z-610Z 0Z0Z-610Z 610Z-8107 6T0Z-810T
% 19dpng 1 o 12dpng 128png juasey
uosuedwo) oy 1a8png usied oy 128png
Zuosuedwoy 7 uosuedwo) T uosuedwoy 1 uosuedwo)

‘[e3o0] 1oday
‘SAVO0Y - 020 Iuawpedaq |ejo)

09 - 0%9 :1dnoumydydxg |e3o)
I41 - JAQHdWI aVO0Y
141 - IAOYJWI AVOY
IDVNIVHA NOANYD I XIS
W XIS - IAOHLINI AvOd
141 - 3AQYd NI avOy
dOOMXI0T - IA0¥AINI QY OY
HOIH DA - 3A04d NI avOY
IVML YYVIN - IA0HdINI VOY
H9 - 3A0¥dWI AvOoY
JA - IANQ¥dINI AYOY
AVILNO TVLIdYD

005-0££%¥9-020-020

000-052¥9-020-020
000-0vZ+9-020-020
000-0€E£+9-020-020
000-0ZZ+9-020-0¢0
000-0T£¥9-020-020

000-0T0%9-020-020
0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnougydydxy
*SNOINVYITIISIN - 095 :Tdnoagidydx3 eroy
318110NA30 IDNYUNSNI 000-20995-0¢0-0¢

WNIW3Yd 3DNVYNSNI 000-00995-020-020

SNO3INVTITIISIW - 095 :Tdnosgidydxy

*“INIWNYIA0D TYHINIO - 0ps :Tdnosnydydxg (e30)
SNOIS 13341S 000-€0v75-0¢0-020
ANVS 2 11VS ¥ILNIM 000-00v¥5-0¢0-0¢0
SIVIISAHG - 1w2IQ3IW 000-STEV5-020-020

ANINNYIAOD TYHINID - 0pS :Tdnosgidydxy

‘SISN3dX3 TYNOILYHI4O - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3 jejoy
S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIH0Yd 000-0Z0€5-020-0¢0
SLIWY3d 000-890£5-020-020
LNIV dIND3 AAYIH 000-850€5-020-020

J3quiny unomy

Hoday uosuedwo) 1adpng



USDA



£ 4o 1 3bed

WV v€:25:6 020Z/21/S

%0¥ LEE'T 08°67ST9T'S 08°'610'959°S %000 00'11- 0006t E6E 00°'TOS E6€ 80°0SL'961 00'000'v6E'T 00°LT8'TI6'Y
%0b"LEE'T 08°67579T'S 08°610°959°S %000 0011~ 00°06¥'€6€ 00'TOS'E6E 80°0SL°96T 00'000'V6E‘T 00°LT8'TT6'Y
%ZTLO0T  08'6L5'S6T 08'61T'8EY %SL'E9-  00°T98°0ST- 00°0v9°ZYT 00'TOS'E6E 000ZE1L 00°000°EYT 00°000°EYT
%0070 000 00°0Y9'ZrT %000 000 000¥9'ZYT 00'0t9'THT 000ZE'TL 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000°EPT 00'000°EYT
%000 0€°£08'8T 0€'L08'8T %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 05'995'TT 05'995°TT %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 00'95€'t 00'9SEY %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 00'v88'8TT 00'¥88'8T1 %00'00T- 00'v68'8TT- 000 00'v68°8TT 000 000 000
%0070 00996'T€T 00996'TET %00'00T- 00°£96TET- 000 00'L96'TET 000 000 000
%00°00T- 00°996'TET- 000 %00°0 00°996°TET 00°996'TET 000 80°0EY'STT 00°000°TST 007000752
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°LYY'65 00'000°6TT 00000611
%00'00T- 00996TET- 000 %000 00'996'TET 00'996'TET 000 80°'€86'S9 00'000°ZET 00°000CET
%86'887'v 00°916'860'S  00°008'LIT'S  %00°0 00'v88'8TT 00°t88°8TT 000 000 00°000°000°C  00°£Z8'8ZS'Y
%00°00T- 00'¢88'STT- 000 %000 00788811 00'v88'8T1 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°000°000°C 00°LZ8'8TS'Y
%000 00008°£TZ'S 00'008°L1Z'S %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
Aewy y8nouyy
(aseasnaq) |euty (aseanaq) angejual leuly Awanoy aia 398png (ejol  AlAnDy |elo)
[ @seasu| 1202-0202 / @seanu| 120Z-0202 0Z0Z-6102 020Z-6102 610Z-8102 6T0Z-8102
% ledpng T % 128png 128png jusued
uosuedwo) 0} y28png juaied 01 198png
zZ vosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AJewiwing Junoddy
yoday uosuiedwo) 123png

:jejo) yoday
‘¥asn - SET :pund |B30L

‘HIASNVHL ANNFYILNI - LE :dnosDidyaay |ejol

3414 WOYd ¥34SNVHL
INION3 344

60-16 INIT ITW S v¥asN
0T-T6 SUNVLHILYM VASN
Z1-26 LNY1d T1IH 3109 vasn
NOISNVdX3 LNV1d 43M3S
£076 0034 INITHIM3IS vasn

DE0-0TZLESET
OE0-Z0TLE-SET
69T-C0CLE-5ET
B9T-C0CZESET
TST-COCLESET
0ST-Z0CLE-SET
BET-COCLESET

YIISNVYL ANNAYILNI - L€ :dnosDadyaay

:$3DIAHIS YO4 SIDYVHD - vE :dnoioidyaay |ejol

NOISNVdX3 LNV1d 43IM3S
£0T6 0Q3Y INITHIM3IS vasn

OST-BOTvE-SET
6ET-BOTPE-SET

SIDIAHIS YO4 SIDYVHD - vE :dnoinidyaay
:ONIANNA TYANIIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnidyaay |eoL

NOISNVdX3 INV1d 4IM3S
£076 0034 INIMYIM3IS vasn
$033204Yd ONO1

0ST-vOvee-SET

BET-POPEE-SET
000-v0OrEE-SET

ONIANNA TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - £€ :dnosDidynay
vasn - SET :pung
Jaquinp unody




€ 4o 1 abed

WY ZE:15:6 0202/T1/S

%O’ LEE'T 08°625°792'S  08'6T0°959'S %000 00'1T- 00°06v°€6E 00'TOSE6E 08'T89'TSE 00°0vE‘PPI'T 9T LIETIE'Y
%0b'LEE'T 08'675792'S  08°610°959'S %000 00°'TT- 00°06V'E6E 00°TOSE6E 08°T89'TSE 00°0VE'YPI'T 9T LIECTE'Y
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 0070 000 000 00°000°000'T  00°LT8'8TS'Y
%000 000 000 %000 00'0 000 000 000 00°000°000'C  00°LZ8°8TSY
%TS'6TP'T SYEIS'OPT'S BV ITTOSH'S  %SLT 00°0LL'S 00°20L'STE 00°Z£6'60T 0S°ZTY'88T 00°'T60°TEE 9€'596'P0T
%000 00°008°£TT'S  00°008°LTT'S %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 8ETSL'9T 8E'TSLIT %0070 00°0 000 000 000 000 000
%000 99'vEEY 99°'FEE'Y %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%00°0 PP TEST PrZE9'T %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%00'0 000 00'SZE0S %06°C 00°8T+'T 00°SZE'0S 00'£06°8t L5°T99°0F 00'8L8'LY TLLLBLY
%00'0 000 00'SZ¥'08 %LS'T 00'0vT'T 00°STP'08 00°S8T°6L LYT16'S9 00°L¥T'8L 95°9v7'8L
%00'0 000 00'256t8 %08 00ZIT'E 00'ZS6't8 00°0¥8'18 9t'6E8'T8 00'996¥07 80°TYR'8L
%8ETT  TEOTOTT Z€'86L°66T %ST €~ 00'18L°S- 00°88LLLT 00'695 €8T 0£'692°€9T 00'6%2'ETE 08'vZS'88T
%000 Z6'¥S0TT 76'7S0CT %000 00°0 000 000 000 000 000
%000 PeTETL ¥8T1ET'L %000 000 0070 000 000 000 000
%000 95°€TL'T 95’ ETLT %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00'655'89 %v0°C 00'8Z¥'T- 00°655'89 00°£86°69 £7°801°8S 00'900°TL 87°900'TL
%000 000 00 THSTS %SET- 00°0vT'T- 00 TPS'1S 00°'T8LZS £€°090'vY 00'6TLES 09°6TL'ES
%000 000 00'889°LS %TT'S- 00'ETT'E- 00°889'£LS 00°T08°09 ¥5°008°09 00'75'88T 76'86L'€9
Aelal ySnoay)
(eseasaq) |euly (aseasnaq) anpeuay |eutq Aunnoy LA 1@dpng jelor  Ajanay [E30L
/ @seanu| 1202-0202 / @seasu| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 0202-6102 610Z-810Z 6T0Z-8T0¢
o% 198png T 9% 123png 128png Juaied
uosuedwo) o3 123png juaJted 03 128png

Z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

AJewwing Junoddy
1oday uosuedwo) 123png

T vosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:lejoy poday

:yasn - SET uawnedaq [ejo)
109 - 09 :1dnoinidydx3 1oL

IMY3S YASN-AVILNO TV1IdVD

6ET-0TOV9-SET-SET

0v9 - 0¥9 :TdnosnIdydx3

1$3DUNOS ONIDNYNIE HIHLO - 0£S ‘TdnoiDadydx] eo)

Y1LNO T¥LIdVD O1 Y34SNVHL
60-T6 INIT 3TN S 31dIDNIYd
T-16 SANVL H3ILVYM 31dIDNIYd
Z1-26 T1IH 4109 31dIJNIYd
7dX3 INY1d 43IM3S-31dIDNIEd
4 INITYIM3S VASN-ITdIDNIEd
INION3I FH14-I1dIDNIYd

000-¥TCLS-SET-GET
69T-TOTLS-GET-GET
89T-TOTZGGET-SET
TST-TOTZS-GET-GET
OST-TOTZG-SET-GET
BET-TOTLG-GET-GEY
OE0-TOTLS-SET-GET

S3DHNOS ONIDINVNIA YIHLO - 045 ‘Tdnounidydx3

:SNO3INYTI3DSIN - 095 :TdnoaDidydx] |ejo)

60-T6 INIT 3TN S 1S3YILNI
JT-16 SUNVL YILVM 1S3HILNI
TIIH G109 3SNIdXT 1SIYILNI
NVdX3 LNV1d Y3M3S-1SH3LNI
14 ANITYIM3IS vASN-1S3Y3LNI
3NION3 3¥I4-1S3YILNI

69T-00T95-5ET-GET
B9T-00T95-SET-GET
TST-00T9S-SET-GEL
0ST-00T95-SET-SEL

SNO3INVTIIISIW - 095 :T1dnoi0Idydxa

vasn - S€1 ;uswyedaq

JagWINp JuUNoYy




Community
Development



$S 0 1 sbed

IWd £S:TT:6 020Z/T1/S

%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 65Y0L9 00°000°'ST €1°906°CT
%000 000 00'000°T %00°02-  00'00S- 00'000T 00°005'T #£790S'T 00°000°€ 000
%000 000 00°00S %00°0 000 00°00S 00005 ST'86 00°005 95'986
%000 000 00002'T %00°0 000 0000Z°T 00°00Z'T 98’619 0000ZT 61816
%000 000 00281 %L9PL-  00'9LE'S 00'vZ8'T 0000Z'L 8T'EST'T 00°005°L 0$'816°E
%000 00'0 00°000°S %000S-  00°000°S- 00°000°S 00°000°0T 9E'SY6'E 00'000°€T 91'¥9Z'9T
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S LT188'T 00°000°TT 6L°STTY
%000 000 00°009°6T %00'C- 0000t~ 0000961 00°000°02 LELPETT 00°00v'6T 09°61€°ST
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°00S'T 0088
%000 000 00°000°CT %00°0 000 00°000°2T 00°000°ZT 88°087'8 00'000°TT S9°TEB'TT
%000 000 005659 %6L'S- 00°S0t- 005659 00'000°L t¥'680°C 00°006'8 TELO6'E
%000 000 00°000°S %00'0 000 00°000°S 00000°S LUETT'Y 00°000°S vS L899
%000 000 00°00S %00°0 000 00°00S 00005 000 00'00S 000
%000 000 00005 %000 000 00005 00°00S 000 00°00S 00'Z8€
%000 000 88'606'¢E %TLTT 88°60¥ 88°606'€ 00°00S°E £6'678 00°0TL'T 0S'SPE'T
%00°0 000 00'0S6'61 %00'S 00'056 00°0S6'61 00°000°61 9€'LEST 00°005°9T 9T'¥SETT
%000 000 000 %000 00'0 000 000 000 000 L89%
%000 000 00700001 %00°0 000 00°000°0T 00'000°0T TT°S9%'vT 00005, 95°0t%'0T
%000 000 00°000°€ %00'0 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ LL199T 00000t SO'TEST
%000 000 00000°T %000 000 00°000'T 00°000'T 8L'GEL 00'000'T T 8L
%658 00°16v°82- 00°ZET'E0E %IT'0¢  0099L°SS 00°ETLTEE 00°LS6°SLT 0472017991 00°LTL°LST Y8 PLEL8T
%000 000 000 %000 00'0 000 000 99°9€T 000 LLTPS
%008~ 00°€L9- 00vbLL %TEVT 00'¥S0‘T 00°LTH'8 00'€9€'L ¥1°60L"Y 00°59L°9 v6°€09'S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 0€'%ST 000 v9°61T°E
%T9'€l- 00°€9T'v1- 0012506 %61'9€  00°L¥8'LT 00'¥8¢'#0T 00°'LE6'9L 0C°LST'8¢ 0081298 97 €TT'0S
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 66'L6Y
%00°0T- 00'808°C 00°TLL'ST %00°'ST 00'919°S 0008087 00'%9t°TT TZ'780°8 00'v9t 7T 96'6LY'8
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 E8VEL'S
%¥9°S- 00°LbL'0T- 00'569°6LT %95°CT 00'6YZ'T2Z 00 Trt 06T 00'E6T'69T 6T €98 V1T 00°0LT'THT SYTL9'ETT
%86°L" 00°LYE 9 00°€0T'¥ES %886~ 00°€09'€9- 00°0SY°08S 00°£S0'v¥9 €£L°00T'9VE 00°S08°209 05°¥¥Z'86S
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°8¥T9ET- 000 00'8VT'9€T 00'¥9T'Y 00'8¥Z9ET 00°Z09°LtT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 68°S6T
%000 000 000 %000 00'0 000 000 0€'S67'E 000 GG L66°L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 EE'S6L6 000 95°62L°8€
%86°L- 00" LYE Y- 00° €01 'PES %TE VT 00°St9'TL 00°0S¥'08S 00°S08°L0S 0T"9t8°8TE 00°£S5°99% 0S'61L'E0r
Aew ySnoayy
(sseanaq) |euty (aseasnaq) angejua] |euy Aoy LA 128png |e3oL  Auandy |e3oL
/ @seanu) 1202-020Z / @seasnu) 120Z-020T 0202-6102 0Z0Z-610Z 6T0Z-8102 610Z-8102
% yedpng T % Tyedpng 188png juased
uosuedwo) 0} j9dpng juaied 0} 128png

Z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

135310 8 SVO 000-0P0E5-601-100
SINHO4INN 000 6011

dIND3 12310¥d TYNOSY3d 000-9E0E5-601-T00

IN3W3IOVNYIN Q4003 000-S£0£5-601-100

JYYMLIOS ¥ILNdWOD 000-FE€0ES-601-100

LIN3IWIND3 ¥31NdW0D
JDONVNILNIVIN OLNY

000-€€0€5-601-100
D00-0£0£5-601-100

ONINIVHL 000-6¢0€5-601-100
SNOLLYDINNIWWOD 000-8Z0€5-601-100
S3SV31ANY SIN3Y 000-ZZ0£5-601-100

$31NddNS ONILYY3d0
S3unun

ONLLNIYd

JONVNILNIVIN LNIWJIND3
‘dl42sans B Sand

000-7¢0€5-601-100
000-720€5-601-100
000-020€5-601-100
000-9T0ES-60T-T00
000-FT0ES-60T-100

13AVHL 000-ET0E5-601-100

TVIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHYL 005-¢10£5-601-100
INOH4ITIL 000-¢T0E5-601-100

$3114dNS 301340 000-TT0£5-60T-100
319v1S0d 000-0T0ES-60T-T00

SISNIAX3 TYNOLLYHIJO - 0€S ‘Tdnoisadydx3

:S1143IN38 3DNIYS - 0TS ‘TdnoJ9idydxy |e3o)

Y1S3L 00¢-£10¢5-601-1
IHVIIA3N D00-£10¢5-601-100
V1S3l 00C-CT0Z5601-T
IDNYYNSNI HLTV3H 000-CT0¢5-601-100
V1531 00C-T102560TT
1ovd 000-110¢5-601-100
V1S3l 00-010¢5-60L-100
SH3d 000-01025601-100

S1143N38 IONIYS - 025 Tdnosnidydxy

13ISN3dX3 1D3¥10 AYVIVS - 0TS :TdnosDidydx] je3o)

YO8V LOVEINOD 000-1¢015-601-100
Y153l 00Z-TT0T5-601-100

JNILY3A0 D00-TTO15-60T-T00

v1S3aL D0Z-01015-601-100

SIOVM B SIIYVIVS D00-01015-601-100

ISNIAX3I 1I3HIA AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnoimidydag
ININJO1IAIA ALINNWINOD - 60T “Iuawiedaq
Jaquinp unody

woday uosuedwo) 32dpng



bS 40 §1 3bed

Wd #S:T1:5 0Z0TZ/TT/S

BLLL- 00'8€8'vL- 88'€91'896 WELT- Z1'80%'81- 88°TOEEr0'T 00°0T£T90°T 6v'€56'585 00°ZE0'¥90°T STT1Z8'0E6
%00°0 00°0 00°0 %00°0 00°0 00°0 000 66'6L6 00°000°Z€ 00°0
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 66646 00°000°TE 000
%00°0 0070 00°0 %0070 000 00°0 000 00°0S€E 000 00°STI
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°0S¢t 000 00'STT
%0070 00°0 88'8ZI'TET %9v"L- ITTLS0T- 88°8TTTET 00°00L°TPT £0°02v'TL 00°0TSTLT 16'98S vvT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00'019°S 000 0S'SESBT
%000 000 00°000'S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00641 00°000°S 000
%000 000 00'005Z %000 000 00°00S°T 000057 00°ZS8 000057 LLvLeT’'L
%000 000 00'00Z'T %000 000 00°00Z°T 0000Z'T 000 00°00Z°T 000
%000 000 00'000°8 %00°0 000 000008 00°000'8 St'8sy 00°000°ST LEITPT
%000 000 00'00s %00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 00°00S 000
%000 000 00001 %000 000 00001 00’001 000 00°00T 000
%0070 000 00'0SZ9 %58°¢- 00°0SZ- 000529 00°00S'9 96°€T9'T 00°005"L 8 TTY'T
Ae y3noayy
(eseanaq) |euty (aseanaq) aauejua) |euyy Aingoy gia 19dpng [e30L  Ayapoy [elop
/ @seaidu) 120Z-0Z02 / @seanu| 1Z0Z-0Z02Z 0202-61T0C 0Z0Z-610Z 610Z-8102 610Z-8102
% 12dpng T % 13dpng 123png juaseyq
uosuedwo) o3 198png jualed 03 jadpng
Zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

:INIW40I1IAIA ALINNWINGD - 60T :Juawnedsq [e30]
109 - 09 :1dnosnidydx3 jejo)

09 - 09 :Tdnounidydxy

AVILNO TVYLIdVYD

*SNOINVTIIDSIA - 095 :Tdnosnidydx] je3oy

SANN43Y 000-0£595-601-100
SNOINVIIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnosidydx3

:$3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx] jejoy

000-TZ0ES-601-100
0LZ-0Z0ES-601T-100
000-0£0€5-60T-T00
000-650€5-60T-T00
000-£50€5-601T-100

SNOLLY13d 4091 3S43INaY
SI9

S3DIA¥3S TYNOISSII0dd
SIN3W3IIOV LNIVIN
FONVNILNIVIN ONIQTING

S3DI1LON 2N8nd
AN3Wd0OT13A30 JINONQD3 -(v0eS-60T-100
SYIL 000-T¥0ES-60T-T

JAQUUINN JUN0IY

Joday uosuedwo) 3aspng



District Attorney



S 40 91 abed

Wd $S:T11:6 0Z0Z/11/S

%6T°0- 00°168°C- 00°'ST8'L00'T  %S8'T- 00°ET0'6T- 00'90£°0T0°T  00'6TL'6Z0'T  9E'9TSELS 00°'¥89°€€6 TTOT8TLY
%E0'0 00°0¥T 00°LLE'ETY %LS 0 00°ZIPT 00°LEB'ETY 00°SZYIZY SE'BI8VOT 00'SZY'86€ TE'88T'9ST
%000 000 00'000°00% %000 000 00°000°00t 00°000°00t 61°€60'16 00'000°LLE T SEL YT
%00°0 000 00000°T %000 00'000'T 00000°T 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 00005 000
%00°8¢ 00°0vT 00'0t9 %000 000 00'00S 00°00S 18'86% 00005 8S°LTL
%00'0 000 00'Z16'C %0r'78Y  00TTH'T 00CT6'T 00°00S 00 L1V 00005 000
%000 000 00°00S°T %000 000 00°005'T 00°005°T 09'¢10°T 00'00S'T 000
%00'0 000 00'000'C %000 000 00°000T 0070007 00'£6S 000007 00649
%000 000 00'SL8'E %IS0Z- 00°000°T- 00°SL8'E 00'SL8'F 66 LSE'Y 00'SL8'Y LT'60T'S
%000 000 00'008°T %000 000 00'008°T 000081 PLOLT'T 00'008'T LYB6ST
%000 000 00000y %000 000 00000t 00°000't €9'vOV'E 00°000't €9°£0S'E
%000 000 00'00S'T %000 000 00°00S'T 00°005'T 000 00°005'T STT9T
%000 000 00000 %000 000 00'000'T 00°000C 88'07€ 00°000T 58818
%000 000 00'0SL'T %000 000 000SL'T 00°0SL'T €L98Y'T 00°0SL'T 85°00V'T
%000 000 00°005 %00°0 000 00°00S 00005 8L°95F 00°00S S9°6bY
%S T- 00°TE0E- 00'9L8°E6T %180 00'645'T 00°L06°96T 00°8Z£'S6T 95°69Z'9ST 00'PLT'OLT TETEL'SIT
%00°0 000 00'S9°S %85S 00'vEE- 00't59°S 00'886'S €9'S0T'v 00'€E0'S €S°L8Y'Y
%L 00'TE0'E- 00'18Z'19 %S6'T- 00'9S6'T- 00'TTEY9 00'897'99 G8'BES'SS 00'982'SS $9°887'v9
%000 000 00'LL8'TT %EL'T 00°TPE 00°LL8°TT 00'SESTT ¥9°7€9°S 00'TLI'TT 8T 9TLY
%000 000 00790V TT %6T'E 00°LTS'E 00'¥90vTT 00°LESOTT vv'766'06 00'v81L6 98'8€7'S6
%00°0 000 00'296°68¢€ %LS"S" 00°'#00°€2- 00°796'68¢ 00°996ZTY SY'8TYTIE 00°580°S9E 85°068°9VE
%000 000 00'£92°2T %00°0 00°£9Z°TT 00°£9T°TT 000 L8'9T6°L 000 000
%00°0 000 00'S69°LLE %S 8- 00'TLT'SE- 00S69°LLE 00'996TTY 85°T0S vOE 00'680°S9€ 85°068°97E
hey y3noayy
(eseasnaq) jeuly (eseanaq) angejual |euly ANALOY QLA 198png |e30L Aingov |el01
[ @seanu| 1202-0202 [/ @seasou) 1202-0202 0Z0Z-610Z 020Z-6102 6T0Z-8102 6T0T-8102
% 193png 1 % 128png 198png juaied
uosuedwo) 0} j28png jualed 03 198png
zuosuedwo) g uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

'AINYOLLY 12141810 - TTT uawiedaq [ejol

:S3ISNIAX3 TYNOILVYIJO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydxg |eo)

S3DIAY3S TYNOISS340dd
30ddNS/SINIW3IIHOV LNIVIN
IDNVNILNIVIA ONIQTING
LNIW3IOVNYIW QH0D3Y
FHVYMLIOS HILNdWOD
INIWCIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
ONINIVYL

S3SV31 ANV SIN3Y
S3unun

“d1¥42s8NS B $3nd
13AVHEL

INOHd313L

S31ddNS 321340
39V1S0Od

D00-YE0ES T1T-100
000-€E0ES-TTT-100
000-620€S5-TTT-100
000-¥T0ES TT1-100
000-0T0ES TI1-100

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYILO - 0£S :Tdnosgidydx3
:S1143N38 IDNIYS - 076 iTdnoaoidydx3 |ejo)

JYVIIQIN
JONVYNSNI HLTV3IH
10vd

SH3d

000-ZT0¢S T11-100
000-TT0ZS TT1-100

S1143N38 IDNIYA - 0ZS :Tdnosnidydx3
:3SN3dX3 103410 AYYIVS - 016 :Tdnossidydx3 jejoy

ALIAIONOT
SIOVM B SIYVIVS

000-0Z0TS-TTT-T00
000-0TOTS-TTT-T00

ISN3dXI 1D3YIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
AINYOLLY 1D141$10 - TTT :Juawiedaq

J3qWINN JUNODY

Joday uosuedwo) 323png



Justice Court



$S JO 81 sbeg

Wd £S:11:S 0202/11/8

%000 000 00°000'T %000 000 00°000°2 0070002 00°8LY 00°000°€ 00°8LT'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°50Sv- 000 00°008°C-
%00°0 000 00°000°9 %00°00T  00°000°E 000009 00°000°€ 0t"99s 00°000T 09'6¥0°E
%L0°L 000991 00°0S1°S¢ %L6'9E 00°0vE9 00°06V°€2 00°0ST'LT 86'T¥S'ST 00°0SZvT L09SY'LT
%000 00’0 00000'T %000 000 00°000'T 00'000T T09LL 00°000'T 6£°S00'T
%EE'EE-  00°00S°T- 00'000°S %000 000052 00005, 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°005'T %000 000 000051 00°00S°T 00'TE8'T 00°00S'T 89LEV'T
%000 000 00°000°€ %00°09- 00005t~ 00°000°€ 0000S°L 00'SLE6 00°000°ST 00°0S0°81
%00°00T- 00°00¢- 000 %00°00C  00°00T 00°00€ 00°00T 000 000 000
%000 000 00'0S¢ %000 000 000sZ 00°0S2 0g'eT 00°00% 68'VLE
%00°0 000 0000 %EEEE 00001 00°00v 00'00€ 08'8¢v 00°00¢€ 2T°85S
%6Z'8TF 000989 00°005°8 %¥y'v9Z  0006T'T 00091 00°05% 000 000 000
%00°00T- 00°000Z- 000 %0070 000002 00°000T 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 00’0 00’0 T re9 000 000
%00°0 000 00°0S5¢ %LT 6L 00056~ 00°0S¢ 0000T°T oY 00°00Z°T 000
%000 000 00008 %000 000 00008 00008 75999 00°008 0L'TrL
%000 000 00°052 %000 000 00°0sZ 00°0S¢ 000 00°0ST 09'8¢
%00'0 000 00°00S %00°ST 00001 00°00S 00°00% 00°00t 00'00% 00'S6L
%00°00T- 00°00Z- Q00 %00°0 00°00¢ 00002 o000 €1°091- 000 t6°1ST-
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 000001 00°000'T S8'vat 00°000'T EVEER
%9L't- 00°00T- 00000 %L9°9T 00°00€ 00°00T°C 00°008'T v0'ST6'T 00'008°T 0£'990°C
%0S'¢T-  00°001- 00°00L %EEEE 00002 00008 00°009 STLYT'T 00°009 ot'90L
%0T'T- 00°509°€- 00°91909T %ST'0T 00°82T'ST 00°TZZ'¥9T 00"E60°6YT 80'0LEETT 00°609'SET TLv62'S0T
%000 000 00°90€'T %000 00'90€T 0090€'T 000 SEBLET 000 000
%000 000 00'6¥6'E %911 00'66¢ 00'6¥6'E 00°0St'E 60°LY0'E 00887°€ S8'I9T'E
%C0'S- 00'509°¢- 00°002°89 %0811 00'845'L 00'S0B'TL 00°£ZZ%9 8¥'€85'8E 00'6T0°LS 1'6%6'SE
%000 000 00°0SL'ET %SE9T 00ZE6'T 00°0SL'ET 0081811 vrT6E9 00'6T8'TT £€8°0EEY
%000 000 00'TTY'EL %8t’S 00'ET8'E 00 TIV'EL 00'865'69 TL'896€9 00°€8t'€9 78'758'19
%000 000 00°6£ETLT %9t'bT  00'96EVE 00'6EE2LT 00°EY6’LET 06" TTH'STZ 00°2ZLYYT SLSLE'TET
%000 000 00'166°6 %89'9T  00'8ZV'T 001666 00°€95'8 L6'BTTL 009€T’L 85°666'T
%000 000 00'€LST %000 00°ELST 00'€LST 000 8v'z9r 000 10881
%000 000 00'5££4'092 %69°€T 00'S6E'TE 00°54L°09T 00°08£°67T SP'6TLLOT 00'985LET S0°005°87¢
Aew y3noayy
(aseasd2q) |euld (eseaiaq) EL L UETR leuld Auagow 1A 128png |e10L Aunnoy |ejoL
/ @seanu| 1202-020¢ [ @seasnu| 120Z-020C 0202-6102 020Z-610C 6T10Z-8T0T 6102-8102
% ~398png 1 % 1edpng 128png jualed
uosuedwo) 0} 128png jualed 0} 128png

Z uosiedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

AINYOLLY LDITINOD
430N3430 JN8nd
ONILYO0d3Y 14N0D

000-L¥T¥S-ETT-T00
000-S¥ZPS-€T1-100
000-E¥CFS-ETT-T00

1NIIWNYIAO0D TVHINID - 0bS 'Tdnoioidydxy

:$3SN3dX3 TYNOILYHIJO - 0€S :Tdnoiidydxy e3o)

Y313¥dd3LINI

SIYNLXI4 ANV FANLINGNS
SIDIAYIS TYNOISSI40dd
HLTv3IH TVININ SET'L S¥N
135310 B SVYO

SIWYOLINN

INIWIDVYNVYIN QY003
JYYMLA0S ¥3LNdINOD
SY31NdINOD

ONINIVYL

SISVITANY SIN3Y
ONILNIYd

JOINVYNILNIVIN INIWCIND3I
'dld2saNns B sana

T3AVYL

3INOHd4313L

S311ddNS 321440

39v1S0Od

000-8L0ES-ETT-100
000-Z£0€S-ETT-T00
000-0£0€S-ETT-T00
000-€v0ES-ETT-T00

000-£T0£S-E1T-T00
000-ZT0€S-€T1-100
000-TTOES-ETT-T00
000-0TO£S-ETT-T00

S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3

'S1143N38 IONIYA - 025 ‘Tdnoi9idydx3 [ej0)

ALIYND3S VID0S
JYVIIQIW
JONVUNSNI HLTV3IH
10vd

SY¥3d

000-PTOCS-ETL-100
000-€T0ZSETT-T00
000-ZT0¢5-€1T-100
000-TTOZS-€TT-T00
000-0TOZS-€ETT-T00

$114IN38 IONIYS - 025 ‘Tdnosnidydxy

:3SN3dX3 1D3YIA AHVIVS - 0TS :Tdnos9idydxg |e3o)

ALIA3DNOT
JWILY3AO
SIOVYM 8 SINEVIVS

000-0Z0TS-E11-100
000-TTOTS-ETT-T00
000-0TOTS-ETT-T0O

ISNIdXT 1D3HIA AHYIVS - 0TS ‘Tdnosgidydx3
1¥NOD 3ILSNI - £1T uawiedsg

JaquInp Junody

Joday uosuedwo) 388png



S Jo 61 2fed

Wd S T11:S 020T/11/8

%Zb 0~ 00°St6°T- 00°'S5t°99% %S8'ET  00'¥96'9S 00°00t'89% 00'9v'TIY St LET'SYE 00°'T80°0TY Z£'500L9%
%000 00°0 o000 %00'00T- 00°000°¢- 00°0 0070002 0070 000 o
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°Z- 00°0 000007 000 000 0
%000 0070 00°00T %00°0 00°00T 00°00T 000 00°0 00°0 00°0
%000 000 00'00T %000 00°00T 00001 000 000 000 000
%0070 000 00°052'8 %PTLS 00000 00052°8 00°052's 15°980°C- 00'005's SE'8L8T
%000 000 00°0s2 %000 000 00°052 00°0SC 60'VLE'T 00'00S SL0SY
Aey y3noay)y
(aseasnaq) |euiy (aseasnaq) aagejua) leulq A3Agoy QLA 128png |e301 AJiARoy [e3oL
/ @seanu| T20Z-020¢ / @seanuy| T202-0202 020Z-6T02 020Z-6T02 6T0Z-8T02 6T0Z-8102
a9 183png T % 12dpng 128png juaieq
uosuedwo) 03 193png juaied o} 128png

Z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

11¥N0D 3DILSNS - ETT ;uawpedaq [e30]

109 - 0%9 :Tdnoinydydxg |e3oy
LNIWdIND3I ¥3LNJINOD

000-09T¥9-€TT-T00
0%9 - 0v9 :Tdnounidydx3

'SNOINVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3 |e10)
INIWIDYNYIN IINATM 000-59595-€L1-T00
SNO3INVTIIISIN - 095 Tdnoinidydxg

*INIIANYIAOD TYHINID - 0ps :Tdnoioidydx3 |e3ol
5311ddNS ININIDHOANT 000-60EPS-EL1-100
JaqUWNN Junody

Hoday uosiedwo) 198png



Justice Court Fund



g€ Jo z1 3bed

Wd 8¥:51:5 020Z/11/8

%0070 000 00'000°€€ %9z'87- 00°000°€T- 00°000°€E 00°000°9% 7L°0L8'6T 00°000°¥2 TTEBT'9Y
%00°0 000 00°000°€€ %97'82-  00°000°€T- 00°000°€€E 000009t TL'0L8'6T 00'000'v2 TTERT'IY
%000 000 00°00S°E %000 00°00S°€E 00°00S'E 000 000TL'T 000 000
%000 000 00000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S LTI8Y 00000t 1T'Sov'y
%000 000 00'000°ET %00'SE-  00°000°L- 00'000'ET 00°000°0T 00'S6ETT 00000°0T 00'0TECT
%000 000 00°000°0T %yyyy-  00°0008- 0000001 0000081 00708 000006 00°£69'ST
%000 000 00°00S'T %0005- 00°00S'T- 00'00S°T 00°000°€ 00'ZPTT 00°000'T OT'TL8'E
Aey y8noayy
(aseaneq) |euty (2seadaq) anyejual |euly4 Aanoy alA 128png |el0L ANAndy (2301
/ @sealdu| 120Z-020C [/ @seanu] T20Z-0Z0T 020Z-6102 0Z0Z-610Z 6102-8T02 6102-8102
% 123png 1T % 12dpng 128png juaJed
uosuedwo) 03 128png juaied 03} 128png

zuosuedwo) 7 uosiedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:aNN4 LYNO0D IDILSNI - L8T :pund [BI0L

151134404 ANV S3INIS - S€ :dnoanidynay jejo)
s234 yoehjoe|g
ONII4 TIAID dOT
ALMIDVH LYNOD dOf

£$ LNIWSSISSY NIWAV dOf D00-VOTSE-Z8T

3DIAY3S TVIYL 34d 000-vv0SE-Z81
S1134¥04 ONV SINIJ - S€ :dnounidynay

aNN4 L¥N0J 3D1LSNT - L8T :pung
Jaquiny Junodoy

000-9ZTSE-£81
000-SZTSE-L81
000-TTTISE-LBT

woday uosiedwo) 128png



- jo 1 abed

WY 9Z:0%:8 0Z0Z/T1/S

%94°7Z-  00°000'8%- 00'000'56 %EEEE9'T 00°005°8TT 00'000°€2T 00°00S'Y 99'6¥£'9T 00°005'SE $§'€£9'9 :|e3o) woday
%9L°7Z-  00°000°8Z- 00°000°S6 %EE'EEY'T 00°00S'8TI 00°000°€ZT 007005’V 99°6VE‘9T 00°005'SE SS'EL9'9T :QNN4 LENOD IDLLSAS - £8T :uawedaq |e3ol
%000 00°0 000 %000 000 000 000 06'8VE 000 9T'ETIT 109 - 0v9 :Tdnoan3dydx3 je3o)
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 06'8vE 000 9T €79C dinb3 saundwo) 000-00T¥9-281-281
019 - 0v9 :TdnoiDadydx3
%000 00°000°56 00°000°S6 %000 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 1055 - 055 :Tdnounldydx3 (2301
%000 00°000°07 00700002 %000 000 000 000 000 000 000 090’ S¥N ONIMI3 TAID DO0-G2156-L91-181
%000 00°0000S 00°000°05S %000 000 000 000 000 000 000 TT90°9LT SHN ALINIDVA LHD 000-TTI%S-Z81-181
%000 00'000°ST 00'000°5T %000 000 000 000 000 000 000 6S0°9LT SUN £S5 SISSV NIWAY 000vO1GS-Z81-(81
0S5 - 055 Tdnoudydx3
%00°00T- 00°000°¢- 000 %0070 00°000°€ 00°000°E 000 000 000 00°0 {INIWNHIA0D TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydx3 |e3oy
%00°00T- 00°000°¢- 000 %000 00°000'€ 00°000°€ 000 000 000 000 sdounf 000-ZvetS-Z81-I81
INIWNHIAOD TVHINID - 0vS :Tdnonidydxg
%00°00T- 00°000°0Z1- 000 %£9'995'T 00°005°STT 00°000°02T 00°00S't 9£'000°9T 00°005'SE 627050V :$3SN3IdX3 TYNOLLYYIJO - 0£S ‘Tdnoanydydx] jeoy
%00°00T- 00°000°0T- 000 %EE'EEL  00°000'L 00°000°0T 00'000'€ 86'66¢€ 00'000'8T 00'5.8 SIYNLXIS B IWNLINGNS 000-2Z0%5-Z81-281
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°00S'T- 000 00'00S°T 00055 00°000°€ SS'0L8'S S3IDINYIS TYNOISSIH0Hd 000-0Z0€G-Z81-L8T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00'STS°E 000 LS'T19T'Y 3DIAY3S ViYL 34d 000-tr0ES-Z81-281
%00°00T- 00°000°0T- 000 %000 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 000 000188 00°005'L 07'0£0'8 IYYMLA0S ¥3LNdWD 000-VE0EG-Z81-L8T
%00°00T- 00°000°001- 000 %000 00°000°00T 00°000'00T 000 00°0Z6'T 00°000'9 ST'TITLT INIALINDI ¥3ILNdWOD 000-CE0ES-Z81-LBT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 84508 00'000T 6L TOE'E ONINIVYL 000-62055-/81-L81
S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYY¥dO - 0£S ‘Tdnosnidydx3
ANN4 1¥N0D IDILSNI - L8T uaunedag
Aew ySnoayy JAQWINN JuNoy
(aseanaq) leutd (eseasdaq) ETVITTET |euly ANALOY QLA j23png |8301L ANAndy |ejoL
/ @seanu| 120Z-020T / @seasdu| 120Z-020T 0Z0Z-610Z 0Z0Z-610C 6T0Z-810T 6T0Z-8T0C
% 1@¥3png 1 9% “je8png 108png 1uaied
uosuedwo) 03} 12dpng juaied 03 128png
zuosuedwo) T uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AJewwing 3UnodJYy
uoday uosiiedwo) 393png




Communications



v JO vz =bed

Wd £8:11:5 0Z0T/T1/S

:SNOANYTIIISIA - 096 :TdnosDIdydx3 |e30L

SNO3INYTIIISIN 000-00595-ZT1-100
SNOANYTIIISIA - 095 :Tdnos9adydx3

:INIWNYIAOD IVHIN3ED - 0vS :Tdnosnidydx3 jeoy

IDINYIS TT6 D00-TTEPG-Z11-100
INIWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0vS :Tdnoinidydxy

:53SN3dX3 TYNOLLYYIJO - DES :Tdnoanidydx3 jeso)

S3YNLXI3 ANV 38NLINYNA
SI9

S3IDIAY3S TYNOISSIH0Yd
SIN3W33Y9OV INIVIN
IDNVNILINIVIW ONIATING
ALIYND3S

135310 B SVO

JYVYMLI0S H3LNdWOD
IN3IWCIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
JONVNILNIVIN OLNV
ONINIVHL
SNOILVIINNWWOD
S$35Vv31 ONV SLN3Y
S311ddNS ONILYY3IdO
ONILNIYd

IDNVNIINIVN INIWCIND3
“d142%8Ns ¢ Sanad
INOH4IT3IL

$311ddNS 321440

000-CL0€S-LT1-100
0Z7-0L0€S-LTT-T00
D00-0LOES-ZT1-100
000-650€5-£TT-T00
000-0F0€5-ZT1-100
000-¥EOES-LT1-100
000-L -L11-100
000-vZ0ES LT1-100
000-0Z0ES-L11-100
000-9TOES-ZTT-100
000-¥TOES-ZTT-100
000-TT0ES-LTL-100

$3SNIAX3 TYNOLLYYIJO - 0ES :T1dnoioidydx3

JHVYII0IN
IDNVHNSNI HLTV3H
1Jvd

Sd3d

:S1143IN38 IONIYS - 026 Tdnoinidydx3 je3o)

000-€T0C5-LT1-100
000-ZT0C5LT1-T
000-0T0Z5£1T-100

%00°0 00°0 00°000°T %0070 00°000°T 00°000'T 000 00°0 000 00°0
%000 000 00°000T %000 00°000°T 00°000'T 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 0000089 %EE'ESE  00°000'ES 0000089 00°000°ST 0S°06LTT 000 7€959vT
%000 000 00'000'89 %EEESE  00°000°ES 00'00089 00°000°ST 0S'06LTT 000 Z€959'v1
%000 000 00°709°16 %8S 00°250°S 00°209°'16 00°055°98 6.°598'8Y 00°0SL'96 8L°8v508
%000 000 00°000°S %000 00°000'S 00°000°S 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00'000°S SLE08 00000'S 00°S8EC
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 000001~ 000 00'000T 000 00°000°T ST96L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°000°ST 000
%000 000 00°000T %000 000 000007 000007 LST8L 000059 8T PSL'E
%000 000 00'000'TT %00'02T  00°000'9 00'000°TT 00°000°S 9T°€50'8 00008°C S6'TET'S
%000 000 00°009 %000 000 00009 00°009 9€'TEL 00009 TL'TSE
%000 000 00°TSLPT %9191 0072507 00°ZSLPT 00°00LCT £8°'S60°0T 00002°6 6T'6EEIT
%0070 000 00°000'S %£9°9T-  00°000°T- 00°000°S 000009 TLTLE 00°0009 6L°0t8°C
%00°0 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 00°00S 6v'L
%000 000 00'0009 %000 000 000009 000009 00°0LT 00000°€ 00091
%000 000 00°005°ST %000 000 00°005°ST 00°005°ST LY TLE'ST 00005'ST TLE86'ET
%000 000 00'00S°ZT %0070 000 00°00SCT 00°00S°TT TLLTY'Y 00°00€CT €0'SZT'S
%000 00°0 00'000°T %000 00’0 00°000°T 00°000°T 08'889 00°000°T 6T°8.L8
%000 000 00°'00E %000 000 00°00€ 00°00¢ 000 00'00€ 000
%000 000 000009 %000S- 000009~ 000009 00°000°ZT €ETS5T 0000021 PT6ZTTT
%000 000 00°0ST %0070 000 00°0ST 000ST 000 00°0ST 000
%000 000 00008t %000 000 00008t 00008t E1°'STS'Y 00°008't 9Y°E8C’S
%000 000 00°00ST %000 000 00°00S'T 00°00S‘T 76°T6L 000011 65 I8CT
%LS"9- 00°S062T- 00°085°SZE %08°€ 00°69LTT 00°S8Y'8YE 0091L'SEE €£4°865°VST 00°€67'64C E0°LTIL6YVT
%000 000 00v0L6 %0€°C- 00°8¢¢- 00'v0L'6 00'TE6'6 00'T06'L 00°ST8'8 98'LTIb‘E
%09°LT- 00067~ 00't£Z°L0T %8L'8T 00°'€85°02 00°'6LT°0€T 00°965'60T LE'8YS96 007T9'LL bT'8IT'L8
%0070 000 00'TOS'SE %000 000 00'T0S'SE 00°'T0SSE 6£°LTC'6 00'TLS'EE 9E°9SS°ET
%000 000 00°'TOT'ELT %07V 0098S°L- 00 TOT'ELT 00'£89°08T LE6TT60PT 00'S8Z 65T LS'PI9°0VT
%0070 00°0 00°STZ'699 %99°0- 00°9v'v- 00°STZ'699 00'TS9'€L9 90°565°95S 00'T0SVE9 LE'BLE6'0T9
%000 000 00 TIZ'vE %67°TE 00'TSES 00 TTZ'VE 00°098°ST OT'¥8L't9 00'vS0°8 6E°LTLLL
%000 000 00'+00°S€9 %L6°T- 00°L8L°TT- 00'+00°SE9 00'T6L°LY9 96'018'T6¥ 00°LYY'929 86'0ST €ES
Aewy ySnoayy
(aseaneq) Jeuid (eseasnaq) annejual |euly AAnoy alA 123png |B30L Aoy jelo)
[/ aseanu| TZ02-0Z0Z / @seanu) 120Z-020¢T 0Z0Z-610C 0Z02-610Z 6102Z-8T0C 610Z-8102
% 1°3png 1 % 19dpng 198png juased
uosiedwo) 03 128png juased 03 1e3png

Z vosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo) T uospedwo)

S1143N39 IONIYS - 0ZS Tdnosoidydxy

:3GN3dX3 1D3Y10 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx] |ejo)

IWILYIAO D00-TT016-Z11-100

SIAOVM B SIVIVS D00-0T0TS-Z11-100
3ISN3IdX3 103410 AYVIVS - 015 Tdnosnidydxg

SNOLLYDINNIWIWOD - LTT uawiedag

Jaquinn junody

1ioday uosuedwo) 188png



#S 40 57 3bey

Wd vS:TT:S 0Z0Z/T1/S

00°S06°2Z-

%L8'T- 00°L6E'00Z'T  %IS'6 00°S8E£°90T 00°Z0E'€ZT'T  00°LI6'9TT'T  B80'0S8ZL8 00'T89'TSO'T  LL'€T0°9L6
%00°0 000 00°000°sy %00°059  00°000°6E 00°000°St 00°000'9 000 00°LET'TY LTETT'0T
%000 000 0000052 %000 000007 00000'SZ 000 000 000 000
%0070 000 00°000°0Z %EE'EET  00°000'bT 00'00002 000009 000 00 LET TV LTETTOT
Aepy y3nouy)
(aseasdaq) |eulq (aseasdaq) ETGUET] |euly Aanoy gia 19dpng |m30) Aoy [ejol
/ @seaiu| T120Z-0202 / @seanu 1202-0202 0Z02-6T02 0Z0Z-6102 6T0Z-8102 6T0Z-8T0¢
% 1@dpng T % 128png 129png juaseg
uosuedwo) 0} 193png luaJed o3 123png

Z uosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo?)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

'SNOLLYDINNWINGD - £TT Sludwiiedaq |ejo)

109 - 0v9 :1dnoinydydx3 [e3o)
HILNdWNOD 000-09T¥9-ZT1-100
AYILNO TVLIdYD 000-0T0¥9-ZT1-T00
0t9 - 09 :Tdnounidydxy
Jaquiny junoddy

uoday uosuedwo) 198png



IT Dept.



; Jo £z 3bed

Wd $5:11:5 0Z0Z/T1/5

000 000 00°5Z¢'S9¢E %zL'06  0O0'STLELT 00'S7Z'99E 00°005 161 1v°'8Z8'611 00°00€'L8T 10°06£'vZT
000 000 00°000'S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000'S S8'S9L'T 00'000'T SL0TOT
;000 000 00'000'S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 00°000'S 000

5000 000 00°000°66 %00'088'T 00°000¥6 00°000'66 00°000°S SL868'T 00'000°01T 00°05S°T
5000 000 00'000°S %6T'S8  00°00ET 00000°S 00°00L°C SEEY 00°00LT 000

5000 000 00°000°Y %0000 00°000°€ 00°000' 00°000°T P OITT 00°000°T 0L'862
6000 000 00°0009 %000 00°0009 0070009 000 000 000 000

4000 000 00°000°€ %0005  00°000T 00°000°€ 00°000C 8 T0L 00°000Z 9£'€08
4000 000 00°000'6 %0000z 000009 00°000'6 00°000°€ 68'¥10°S 00°000'S [8°908°E
4000 000 00'S7T°09 %6L97  00°STLTT 0052709 00°005 LY ST'IV9'EE 00°00S €Y ST EVE'TY
%000 000 00°000'6 %000 0070006 00°000'6 000 £6'€0T'9 000 000

%000 000 00°005'¥ %0008 000007 00005t 00°00ST 6SLYL 00°000°S 68'896'C
%00°0 000 00°000'8 %EE'EE  00°000T 000008 00°0009 ST'0SE'S 0070009 90'8L5°E
%000 000 00°005°LL %Z9'€E 0000561 00°00S'LL 00°000°8S GETREDE 00°000°€S ¥¥°008'8T
%000 00'0 000 %00'00T- 000005 000 00°000°S TEESL'T 00°000°6 TOV6T'Y
%00°0 000 00°000°S %000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 00°000°E 000
%00°0 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 6170787 00'000°€ £9°L¥8T
%000 000 00°00¥'TT %00't1 00°00t'T 00°00¥'TT 0000001 98'€98'S 00°0009 LTS6ED
2600°0 000 00°008°SE %gL'7T9  00008BET 00°008'SE 00'000'2T +8'088'01 00'000'7T $5°995°ST
%0070 000 00°000T %000 00°000°'T 00°000°T 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000T %000 000 0070002 00°000'T €1°019'T 00°000T LO6ET'T
2000 000 00'000°0T %000 000 0070000T 00700001 19'690°€ 00°00S'L LY6ST'L
2000 000 00°008°T %000 000 00°008°T 00°008'T £STLOT 00°009 LT L9
%Z0°T- 00°LEO0T- 00°L08°96T %06 00°8vY9T 00'vt8861 00'96€'T8T 18°EE98VT 00'EETEST TT°616'TST
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'8€ET'T LTLIS
%000 000 00'ETY'Y %L9°L 00°STE 00°ETt'Y 00'80T'Y 8¥'GTY'E 00'TZ6E g.mhm..m
%L1T- 00'L€0°T- 0061616 %19TT 00°€ELL'E 00'956'€6 00'E8T'v8 £5°0£9'69 00'0£9°09 ﬁ.:w.ﬁ
%000 000 00TETTT %000 000 00TELTT 00°ZET'TT SETILY 00°8¥8°9T 90°99%'t
%000 000 00'EET'68 %LY 'L 00°09€9 00'EET'68 00°€L8'T8 $5°978°0L 00'95¥'0L TT8YY'OL
%000 000 00°690'S0E %L L 00°¥YL I 00°690'S0E 00°STE'E8T 6L°S0T'EVT 00'TLE'E6T 80°8Y¥T 992
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 €LTIV'T
%000 000 00'690'S0E %L9'L 00¥PLTT 00'690'S0€ 00'STE'E8T 64°S0T'EVT 00°'TLEE6T SE'ST8 YT

Aeyy y3noayy
(aseanaq) Jeuty (eseas02q) anneiual leutd Auagoy gia  ieBpngimol Auanoy eioL
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seainu) 1202-0202 07026102 020Z-610¢ 6102-810T 610Z-8107
% 1°8png 1 % 193png 128png jualied
uosuedwo) 0} 128png jualed 0} j23png

7 uosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

S3UNLXId GNV JHNLINGNA
SID

$3DIA¥3IS TYNOISSII0Ud
SINIW334OV INIVIN
IDNVNILNIVIA ONIGTING
ALIMND3S

S3YIL

135310 8 SVO

IYYMIL0S ¥ILNdWOD
LINIWJIND3 ¥ILNdWOD
IDNVNILNIVIA OLNY
ONINIVYL
SNOILYDINNIWINOD
SISV3I1 ANY SLNIY
SHIVd3Y

$317ddNS ONILYYI0
SILLALLN

IINVNILNIVIN LNIINJIND3
SNOILAI¥ISENS/SINAa
T3IAVYL

INOHdII3L

$3NddNns 321440

:63SNIdX3 TYNOLLYY3dO - 0ES :dnosnidydxg |e30)

000-¢LOES-6T1-100
[Z-0£0ES-61T-100
000-0Z0ES-611-100
000-650€5-611-100
B00-£505-611-100
000-TS0E5-611-100
000-TP0E5-611-100
000-0v0€S-6T1-100
000-7E0E5-611-100
000-E€0€5-6T1-100
000-620€5-611-100

000-970%5-61L-100
000-¥Z0ES-61T-100
000-C20e5-61L-100
000-9TOES-61T-100
000710561 1-100
000-ETOES-6TT-T00
000-2T0ES-6TT-T100
000-TT0ES6LT-100

SASN3IAX3 TYNOILYHIJO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydxy

:$1143N38 I9NIY4 - 0TS 'Tdnosidydx] |elo)

ALIHND3S 1VID0S
JUVIIaIN
JDNVHNSNI HLIV3H
10ovd

SY3d

000-+T0Z5-6T1-100
00-€T025-611-100
000-CT0ZS-611-100
000-TT0CS 6L 100
000-0T0Z5-611-100

$1143N38 IDNIYS - 075 :Tdnoinidydx3
:35N3dX3 103810 AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnosmdydx3 jezo)

JNILY3IAO
SIOVM B SIIVIVS

000-TTOTS 6111
000-0T0TS5-611-100

ISNIdX3I 1DIHIA AHVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosmdydx3

11 - 61T uawiedag
Jaquinp Junoxy

poday uosuedwo) 198png



¥S J0 g7 3beyd

Wd pSITTIS 0202/T1/8

SET0- 00°L£0°2- 00°T0Z068 %S9°L 00°LIY'E9 00°8€Z°768 00°'128°8Z8 Ov'TET'S09 00'v0v'L68 ZTSET'VEL
»00°0 00°0 00°000°€7 %6598-  00°00S'8YT- 00°000°€2 00°00STLT 6£°€95°€6 00°005°€92 89°€8v05¢
000 000 00°000°€7 %ST'E8-  00°00S'ETT- 00°000°cz 00°00S'9€T 6£'769'09 00°000'95T 89°E8Y'0ST
000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°SE- 000 00'000°s€ 00°'T£8CE 00°005°¢ 000
000 000 007001 %00°0 000 007001 00°00T 000 00001 VE'v6
000 000 00°00T %000 000 00°00T 00001 000 00°001 vEPE
Aey ySnouyy
(eseanaq) leury (aseaudaq) angejua) Jeuly Aoy gin - 3e3pngieiel  Auagoy jejor
/ aseanu) 1202-0202 / @seanu) 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6107 0202-6107 610Z-810Z 610Z-8102
% 13dpng 1 9% 13dpng 123png juaieq
uosuedwo) 03 12dpng juaied oy 128png
Zuosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) Tuosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo)

“11 - 61T -3ulwpedaq [ejo)
*0v9 - 0¥9 :1dnoinydydx3 jejog

000-03T¥9-611-100
000-0T0%9-611-100
0t9 - 0v9 :Tdnoinadydxy

LN3W4IND3 ¥31NdWOD
AVILNO TVLIdYD

*SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3 |e1o)

SNO3INYTI3DSIA 000-00535-611-100
SNOANVIIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosgydydxy
Jaquinn Junody

1oday uosuedwo) 3a8png



Comptroller



#S 10 67 abed

Wd #S:11:5 0Z0Z/11/S

‘HITOULdWOD - TZT “uawpedaq |e30)
:SNO3INVTIAISIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3 |30y

SNO3INVTIIDSIN 000-00595-TZ1-100
SNOINVTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnosnadydx3

'S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYHIJO - 0£S :Tdnoin3dydx] e3oy

%920~ 00'895°T- 00°829°509 %ST'ET  00°0E0TL 00°961°£09 00°991°9€S v6°019°LTS 00°'v8S'LIS 1S°€26°98Y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 00°0 S9°6ES‘T 000 50
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 S9BES'T 000 750
%000 000 00°0¥Z°80T %I8'¥ 00086’ 00°0¥Z'80T 00°09Z°€0T 0L'tvSE6 00°09£'S0T S0°90£°18
%000 000 00'000'Lt %05 LT 00°000°L 00°000°LY 00°000'0v 00°00L'LY 0000009 00°005'9Z
%000 000 00'000°€ %000 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ LO'PLS'9 00°000°T 000
%000 000 00°000°0€ %000 000 00°000°0€ 00°000'0¢ 9%'Z8€'ST 00°000'SZ 0S'SL6'LT
%000 000 00°00Z'T %000vT  00°00L 00°00Z°T 00°005 0$°Z8¢ 000 ST'SEL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 00'0 000 00002 000
%00'0 000 00°0¥T'E %00°LS  00°0PT'T 00°0vT'E 00°0002 L8'EITT 000 61701
%000 000 00000t %000 000 00°000°% 000007 LEBPI'T 00°000't SL'9TE'E
%000 000 00°000°L %00'0€-  00°000°E- 00°000°L 00°000°0T 00'0bE’T 00°000°9 L09T'6
%000 000 00'00L %000 000 00°00L 00°00£ 06'8€9°C 00°00S 99°6LT'T
%000 000 00°009 %0S'LE-  00'09€E- 00009 00°096 00°0vE 00096 00085
%000 000 00'000°L %00°0 000 00'000°2 00°000°L 9T'768'T 00°00S°€E LELET'L
%000 000 00°00S°T %£9°9T-  00°00S- 00°005°C 00°000'€ €8'SPE'T 00°005°C ¥8129°C
%000 000 000007 %000 000 000007 00°000'7 61°996'T 00°000'T 00°55C°T
%000 000 00°00T %000 000 00°00T 00001 SE0LT 00001 8L
%98°0- 00°895'T- 00°000°T8T %L6'0T  00°0S9'TE 00°895'781 00°8160ST 89988781 00°60€'9ET 68°0TSVET
%000 000 00885t %07°TT 0066t 00885 00'680t ¥S'69E°E 00°058°€ Ov°ESS'E
%ITT- 00°895'T- 00'LE9'TL %69'C€  00°T8T'ST 00'S0¢'vL 00°¥26°SS 0T'€8S'LY 00°T69°6t 05°€92'vS
%000 000 00ZET'TT %EE'EE  00808°C 00ZET'TT 00°vZr's 88'0v6°E 00'vZh'8 SE'B66'E
%000 000 00'€¥S'T6 %07 TT 00°790°01 00'EV¥S'T6 001878 90°€66°L7T 00'trEvL +9'569'2L
%0070 000 00°88€£'9TE %0Z'TT  00°00Y'vE 00°'88E°91E 00°886'18Z 16°6£9°6T 00°'ST5SLT 50°90L'0LT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 YP'SLT 000 £STOY'T
%000 000 00'88E'9TE %0T'TT 0000t 'tE 00'88E°9TE 00'886'182 LY Y9E'6YT 00'STS'SLT TS EPT'69T
Aey y3noayy
(aseanaq) |eutd (aseassaq) angejual |euly Aoy ala 198png elol AuAndy |ejoL
/ aseanu) 1202-0202 / @seainu| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 020Z-6102 6102-8102 6T0Z-8102
9% “329png 1 % 19dpng 128png juaied
uosuedwo) 03 123png jualed 03 128png

zuvosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

139ang/Lany
SIYNLXI4 ONV JNLINYNA
$3DIAY3S TYNOISSII08d
$3J1LON 2N8Nnd
INIWIDVYNYIN QH0D3Y
IYYMLIOS ¥3LNdINOD
LIN3INGIND3 ¥3LNdINOD
ONINIVYL

$3SV3I1 ANV SINIY
*dI¥2sans 18 sana
13AVHL

INOHd3I3L

$3174dNS 321440
39v150d

000-00€S-T¢L-T00
000-8Y0ES-TZT1-T00
000-FE0ES 11 100
000-E£0€5-T¢L-100
000-6Z0£S5-TZ1-100
000-£20€5-TZT-T00
000-%T0ES-TZ1-100
000-€T0ES-TZT-100
000-ZT0ES-TZT-100
000-TTOES-TZI-100

$3ISNIdX3 TYNOILYHILO - 0€S ‘Tdnosoidydx3y

JHVYIIQIW
JONVENSNI HITV3IH
1ovd

S43d

'S1143IN38 IONIYA - 026 :TdnoiDidydx] jejo)

000-£T025-T¢1-100
000-TTOCS TCT-T00
000-010Z5-TCLI-T00

SLI4IN38 IONIYS - 025 :Tdnosnidydx3

JWILYINO
SIOVM 8 SAVIVS

:3SN3dX3 1D3HI0 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnounydydx3 |elo)

000-TI0TS-TCT-100
000-0T0TS-TZT-100

ISN3dX3 103410 AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
HITIOHLdWOD - TZT “uawnedag
Jagquinn unoxny

yoday vosuedwo) 328png



Emergency
Management



S 40 Of abed

Wd £S:11:5 0202/11/S

{INIINIDVNYIN ADNIDHIWA - ZbT :juawiiedaq |eio)
‘09 - 0¥9 :TdnoiDidydx3 jelo)

IN3WdIND3 ¥31LNdW0D 000-09T+9-Z¢1-100

0v9 - 0t9 :TdnoinIdydx3

{INIJWNYIAOD TV¥INID - 0pS :Tdnounidydx3 je3og

%890 00°'v89 00°589°001 %99°ST PO IYS'ET 00°T00°00T 96'651°98 Yo vIE DL 00°LZY'8S €0°7L9°95
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°00%'t- 000 00'00%'¥ 00°00%V 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°00%'t- 000 0000t 00°00t"y 000 000
%0070 000 00°000°S %00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 00°000's 000
%000 000 00'000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 00°000°S 000
%0070 000 00°8LT'T9 %SL°ST 0082571 00'8LT°T9 00°059'8% YT IVE'SY 00°0STvT LLSTO8T
%000 000 00000°S %000 000 00'000°S 00000°S 05'978°€ 00°000°S 00'0€E8T
%000 000 00'000°0€ %000 000 00°000'0€ 00'000°0€ 00°00L‘82 00°000'9 00°69T°0T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 2€'649 000 000
%000 000 00°008 %000 000 00008 00°008 60°€0€E 00008 0E'SYT
%000 000 00'8ZL %000 00'8¢L 00'82L 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00ST %000 000 00°00ST 00'00S'T 62'897'T 00°00ST 000
%000 000 000089 %00°0SL 000009 000089 00°008 EE0v 00008 Y6 ¥8¢
%000 000 00000t %00°00T  00°000C 00000t 00'000°C 00°080't 00°000°C vS'6SvC-
%000 000 00005t %LS 8T 00°000'T 00'00S'Yy 00'00S°E £5°Y79'T 00°00S'€E 009ST'€E
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 000S8" 000 00°0S8 00°v¥S 00°058 00°09L
%000 000 00'005°T %0000 000007 000051 00°00S 000 00°00S 000
%000 000 00°0S€E %00°SL 00°0ST 00°0S¢E 00°00T 000 00002 00°90€
%000 000 00000°€ %00°00S 0000ST 00000°€ 00'00S 60°S6Y 00°'00S ze'8sy
%000 000 00005T %000 000 000052 00'00ST 95'¥8S'E 00000C SET66'T
%000 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°005 £V°G61 00'00S 0] 72872 74
%LS 6 00'89 00'6Z8°L %¥T9 vO'ELY 00°SPTL 96°'TEL'9 65°8ES°L 00°660°L YT OTLT
%000 000 00°TEY'T %c00 S¢0 00 TEFT SLOEY'T IYLSLT 00'TEV'T L9°(BE
%000 000 00'STE %170 L9°0 00'STE EEYIE 90°€0¢E 00'STE 88°€9¢
%SY'8T 00'v89 00'T6E'Y %0S°CT 001y 00'80L'E 00962 $0'9ST't 00'799°¢€ 8€7TO'T
%000 000 001691 %100 1o 00'169'T 88°069'T Tozee 001691 TE'986
%0070 000 00°8£9°9T %90°ET 00°000°S 008£9°9Z 00°8L9°TT TTSE0LT 008412 20°916°ST
%000 000 00°000°S %000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000 000
%0070 000 00'8£9'TC %000 000 00'8£9°1T 00'8L9'TT TTSE0LT 0084122 T0'9v6°ST
Aey ysnoayy
(eseasaq) |euiy (aseanaq) angejual |eur4 A3AoY QLA 128png |\j0L Angoy |e301
/ @seanu| T170Z-0T0¢ / @seanu) 1202-0207 0Z0Z-610T 0Z0Z-6T02 6T0Z-8102 6T0Z-810C
% 3e8png T % 12dpng 128png juaied
uosuedwo) 0} 198png juadied 03 128png

Z vosuedwo)

Z vosiedwo)

1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

NOILVOILIW ADNIOHIN3I

000-06£¥5-CPI-100

ANIWNHIA0D TYHINID - 0pS :TdnosDidydxy

SI19

S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIF0Ud
S3YIL

135310 B SVO
JYVYMLA0S ¥ILNdWOD
1NIWGIND3I ¥3LNdWNOD
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL

S317ddNS ONILYY3Id0
S3Lnin

ONILNIYd

"d14258NS § SINa
13AVYL

INOHd3131

$317ddNS 301340

:S3ISNIAX3 TYNOILYHILO - 0£S Tdnosnidydx] je3o)

0£Z-0£0ES-CPT-TOO

000-620€5-CvL-100
000-FZ0€5-CPT-100
000-¢Z0€S CvI-T00
000-0Z0€5-¢HI-100
000-vTOES-CHT-100
000-€TOES-CPI-T00
000-T1085-¢P1-100

$S3ISN3IAX3 TYNOILYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnos9idydxy

ALIMND3S IVIDOS
3YVIIQIN
IDONVHNSNI HLTV3H
1Jvd

:§1143IN38 IONIYA - 026 :Tdnosoidydx3 |ejoy

000-¥T0CS-CYI-T00
000-ET0CSCrT-T00
000-TT0CS-CPI-T00

S1143N39 IDNIYS - 0ZS :Tdnosnidydx3

JWILH3AO
SIOVM 8 SIIYVIVS

:3SN3dX3 1D3Y10 AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejo)

000-T10TS-Z¥1-100
000-0TOTS-CvI-T00

3ISNIAX3 1D3HI0 AHYIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
AINIWIOVYNYIN ADNIDHIW3 - ZHT “uawiedag
Jagquiny Junoly

Joday uosiiedwo) 123png



Emergency Mitigation



Wd 8F:S§1:6 0Z0T/TT/S

8¢ 40 ¢ abeq
%000 000 00°000°05 %000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 000 T0°LLS'8T 000 000 NOLLVOILIW ADN3DY3IW3 - 050 :pund |e30L
%000 000 00°000°05 %000 00°000°05 00°000°0S 000 T0°LLS'8T 000 000 {INJIWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydx] |ejo)
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 T0'LLS'BT 000 000 5T QIAOD-NOILYOILLIW D433 619-060tS-050-050
%000 000 00'000'0S %000 00°000°0S 00'000°0S 000 000 000 000 uonedmw Auadiawg 000-060t5-050-050
INIWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnosnidydx3
NOILVOILIW ADN3IDHIWA - 050 :pung
Aepy ySnouyy JaquINN Junoddy
(aseaszaq) e tesennng] aapeua) feuty Auanovaia - 1e8pngjeiol  Auagov jeol
/ @seaiu) 1202-020¢ / aseanu) 1202-0202 020Z-6107 020Z-610Z 610Z-8T0Z 6T0Z-8T02
% 193png 1 % 123png 198png juasegd
uosuedwo) 03 128png juaied 03 128png
Z uosuedwo) g vosuedwo) T uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo)
1oday uosiedwo) 123png
%000 000 00'000°0S %LE'Ly-  00°000'St- 00'000°0S 00°000S6 L YTL8Y 000 ST'669°0E INOILVOLLIN ADNIDYING - 050 -pund [B301
%000 00°0 00°000°0S %60°6" 00°000°S- 00°000°0S 00°000°SS 00°005°LT 000 00°0 1YIJSNVHL ONNYILNI - L€ dnosDadynay jeso)
%000 000 00°000°0S %606~ 00'000°S- 0000005 00°000°SS 00°005'£2 000 000 TVE3IN3O IWOYd 434SNVYL 000-£0CLE-0S0
HIJSNYHL ANNJYILINI - LE :dnoinidynay
%00°0 00°0 00°0 %00°00T- 00°000°0%- 000 00°000°0% vLvTTIY 000 S2'669°0€ :3NN3IATY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoaoidynay |e3oL
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°0%- 000 00°000°0Y vLYITTY 000 SZ'669'0€E a00T1d AN SHNEWIZY SWIVID 719-0099€-050
JINNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoiDidyaay
NOILYOILLIW ADNIOYIW3 - 050 -pund
Aewy yBnoayy JBqUWINN JUN0dY
(aseasdaq) jeuld (aseasaq) anyejual |euly Auanoy QA 198png |0l Anandy |eloL
/ @seasnu| 120Z-0202 / @seanu| 120Z-0Z0¢ 0Z0Z-6102 0Z0T-6107 6T07-8107 6T0Z-810C
o @3png 1 % 1edpng je8png jualied
uosuedwo) 03 12dpng juased 0} 128png

zuosuedwo)  Z uospedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

1 uvosuedwo)
uoday uosuedwo) 128png



Community Relations



$S Jo 7z 3bed

Wd $S:T1:5 020T/11/S

%000 000 00°005'C %000 000 00'00ST 00'005'T 009€8 00°005'C 000
%000 000 0000t %000 00°00v 00°00% 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°9- 000 000009 aTve 000009 8€°L8S
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00005 000 00°00S 86°LTT 00°00S S '86€
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°00€ 00'SL
%0070 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 000 000 00'SL
%000 000 00°00£ %000 000 007002 0000 8t°889 00°00L 000
%000 000 00°00L %000 000 00°00L 00°00L 81°59¢ 00°00S T€0€S
%000 000 00'8Z¢C %088~ 00°Z7Z- 00°8¢¢ 00°0ST 000 00°05¢ Ot"€91
%000 000 00009°T %00°09 00009 00'009°T 00°000'T 000 00°000t €L°SSLT
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 00°000°T 00000'T r'600°E 00000T 8°0LL
%000 000 00'000't %000 000 00°000't 00000t 00'TZY'T 00°00S°T 00°S6E
%000 000 00'000°€ %00°00T 00°00ST 00000°€ 00°00S'T 86'€EL 0000S'T ST'EEL
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°005'S- 000 00°005°S €E'BEE 00°00S'S T6°T6L'Y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8T
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ TPZIET 00°000°€ L6'v19°C
%000 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 0000S 000 00°00S 000
%000 000 00000t %00'00€  00°000°€ 00'000't 00°000'T SZ'08L 00°000°€ LOSYYT
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°009T- 000 000091 0€'0vT 000091 €£°608T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 S8'v6
%000 000 00°00S'T %00°SZ- 00°00S- 00'00S°T 00°000Z v1'vLE 00°000'C TL'6L0T
%000 000 00009 %000 000 00°009 00009 8'6EY 00°009 89°0¢€T
%000 000 00°00T %000 000 00°00T 00°00T 000 007002 S0T
%88'1- 00°16%'T- 0091082 %t8'91-  00°€0T'9T1- 00°L0S'6L 00°0T9°S6 L GET'8S 00°9£6°€9 v LS6°95
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00909°T- 000 00'909'T Z0'vE6 002091 LELTITT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 TS'8TC 000 8ETIT
%000 000 00°S18'C %68'L- 00'1¥C- 00'S18°C 00'950°€ SEBYTT 00'681°C SSOvLT
%0T°S- 00 T6Y'T- 00'62L'LT %C6'TT 00'ETT'E 00'02Z'6¢ 00°L0T'9Z L88STTT 00'858°ST 18'9£2°91
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 £9°70T
%000 000 00vTr'8 %6E'81-  00868'T- 00'vZr'8 00'7ZE0T W psSY'e 006588 €8'98T'E
%000 000 00'8%0'6€ %8E'8T-  00'TLY'ST- 00'8+0'6€ 006TSVS LSYZT'0Y 00°'€9%'SE TLS0T'vE
%000 000 00°0TT'V6T %68°L- 00°919°9T- 00°0TT'v6T 00'922°012 8T TLE09T 00'T66°0ST 6t 189'EVT
%000 00C 000 %000 000 000 000 0S'¥90°ST 000 0S'€Z0'8T
%000 000 00'0TT 6T %68'L- 0091991~ 00°0TT'v61 0092L°01T 8L'LOE'SYT 00°166'0ST 66°£59°STT
Aep y3noay)
(aseasdaq) jeulq (eseaidaq) ETN L TET LVE] Ananoy QLA 128png |2301 Ayanoy |elol
/ @seasnu) 1202-0202 / aseanu) 1202-0202 0202Z-610¢ 020Z-610C 610Z-8T0C 610Z-8102
9% 12dpng 1 % @dpng 193png juased
uosuedwo) 0} 108png judied 03 128png

z vosuedwo)

Z vosiedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1 uosiedwo)

S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIF0¥d
SNOILAI¥4DSENS 8 S3NA
“HIND HOIN3S 'ON
IDONVNILNIVIA ONIQTINE
aoom001

ALIYND3S

S3YiL

135310 B SVO
FHYMLI0S ¥3LN4INOD
1IN3IWGINDI Y3LNNOD
FDNVNILNIVIA OLNY
ONINIVYL

$31NddNS ONILYH3Id0
aooMA201

NIVML YYIN

S3ann

IINYNILNIVIA LNIINGIND3
13AVEL

aoomio01

NIVAL HYVIN
3NOH4373L

$31ddNS 321440
39v1s0d

DO0-0Z0ES-9TT-100
000-650€5-911-100
IPT-ZS0ES-9TT-T00
000-Z50€5-911-100

000 TS0ES-9TT-100
000-TP0ES-3TT-100
000-0v0€5-911-100
000-YE0ES-ITT-T00
000-€€0€S-9TT-100
000-0£0£5-911-100
000-620€5-9T1-100
000-9Z0€5-9T1-100
P05-CZ0E59TT-100
05-CZ0€5-9T1-100
000-720€S-9T1-100
000-5T0ESITT-T00
000-£T0ESITT-100
705-C10£5-91L-100
€05-C10€5-911-100
000-CT0£5-911-100
000-TTOES-STT-100
000-0T0ES-9T1-100

SISNIdX3 TYNOLLYHIdO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydxa

"HLND ¥OIN3S 'ON
"HIND YOINIS 'ON
34VIIQ3W
IDNVINSNI HLTV3IH
"YAND HOIN3S "ON
10vd

Sdid

:$114IN39 IONIYS - 025 :Tdnoinidydx] [e30)
I¥1-v10¢5911-100

S114IN38 IONIY4 - 076 :Tdnoigidydx3

"YAND HOIN3S 'ON
SIOVM 8 SFIWVIVS

:3SN3dX3 10310 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnounidydx3 |ejo)

Z¥1-0T0TS-9T1-100
000-0T0TS-9T1-100

ISN3IdX3 1DIHIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
SNOILY13d ALINNWINOD - 9TT uaunsedag
Jagquiny unoiy

Joday uosuedwo) 1@8png



+5 JO £7 abey

Wd PSiTT:S omoN:,im

%T1°0- 00°T6t'T- TUEEEVZZ'T  %IEVT I1°88Y EST TUVTY9Z'T  00°9€6°'TLOT  TI'VEZ'THO'T  00°L9T'bI6 €9°v0L°888
%00°0 00°0 TT°648°8L8 %8v'87  TT'6Z8'v6T T1°6L8'8L8 00705089 2L°009°208 00°050'799 vS 0715699
%00°0 00°0 00°000°5Z %00°0 00°000'sZ 00'000'5Z 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00'000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°0000T 00°000°0T
%00°0 000 00°000°'ST %00°0 000 00°000'sT 00°000°5Z €0°0€T°0Z 00'000'sZ 9°TTIS'LT
%000 000 00°005 %9 %00'0 000 00°00SP9 00°005%9 00°005°69 00'005'69 00'Z6%'SL
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000°0ZT %00°0 000 00°000°0ZT 00°000°0ZT 00°000°0ZT 00°000°0ZT ZE'0LL'0ZT
%000 000 05'850'56 %ET'08T  05'8S0°0L 05°850°56 000002 YU VEZ'ET 00°000°ST £5°816°LT
%00°0 000 0000522 %000 000 00°005°LT 00°005°LZ 00'005°LT 00005°L2 00°005°£L2
%000 000 00°000°00T %00°SZ 00°000'02 00°000°00T 00°000°08 00°000'08 0000008 00°00€°08
%000 000 00°000'SS %000T  Q0000°S 00°000°SS 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 00°000'St 00°000'St
%000 000 00°000°0vT %69°L 00°000°0T 00°000°0vT 00°000°0€T 96'666'6Z1 00°000°0ZT 00005°2Z1T
%00'0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°050°¢- 00°0 00'0S0°L 00°0S0°L 00050 00°0S0°L
%000 000 29°028'902 %07 €S 79°028°1L 79°078'90Z 00'000°SET 65°981°S52 00°000'SET LOL9Y'SET
%000 000 00°000°0S %00°0 00°0 00°000°0S 00°0000S LV076°6 000 000
%000 000 0000052 %000 000 00°000'S¢ 00°000°'5¢ £9°8TL9 000 000
%000 000 00°000°s2 %00°0 000 00°000°52 00°000°SZ 08'T61'E 000 000
%00°0 000 00'8T6°€T %6v'9Z-  00°7T9°8- 00°826'€2 00°055°2¢ o' T0Z'TT 00°0ST'SE 81°555°8T
%0070 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 €6'6LT 000 000
Aey y3nouyy
(aseanaq) |eutd (aseasnaq) CL R |euly Aoy aia 3e8png esop  Anagov jejop
/ aseanu 1202-0202 / @seanu) 120Z-0202 020Z-610Z 020Z-610T 610Z-8102 610Z-8T02
% 198png T % 133png 123png Juasey
uosuedwo) 03 j2dpng jualed 03 128png

Z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwao)

'SNOILYTIY ALINNWINOD - 91T :uawiedaq [elog
:$32¥N0S ONIDINVNIL HIHLO - 046 :Tdnosgidydxg |eo)

A¥YLINID
1404dNS WN3ISNN 3414
NIVML XYV €05-€T0Z5-9TT-100
S3IDIAYIS FYVYD HLTVIH 000-CT0ZS9TT-T00
3550d d33r 000-TT0ZS9TT-100

JO0HIS Q¥YM H14NO4
“HLND HOIN3S "ON
NOILNILX3 JINLINDINOV AN
Y3LN3ID LYY S,AYYIN INIVS OTT-Z00Z59TT-T00
Advdan 000-9004S5-9T1-100

L1S3HD3 WOD ALIALLDY HLNOA
dIHSYOSNOJS dASH
DA-SNIZILID HOIN3IS
SIDYNOS ONIDNVNIA YIHLO - 045 :Tdnosoidydxy

SNOINVIIIISIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydxa |eyoy
a1 ANVE 0004 000-+0¥95-9T1-100
JANVE Q004 000-€E0¥95-911-100
SNO3INVITIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoumidydxy

‘SISNIAX3 TYNOILYYIO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydxy |eoy
SIUNLXIS B FUNLINYNA 000-2Z0€5-911-100
Jaquiny Junoly

1oday uosiiedwo) 3adpng



Park Fund



g£ 40 €1 3bed

Wd 8¥:S1:5 020Z/11/S

%000 000 00°000°9TT %000 000 00°000°911 00°000°9TT 00°S8LTT 00°000°91T 000
%00°0 000 00000911 %00°0 00°0 00°000'9TT 00°000°9TT 00°S8LTT 00°000°9TT 000
%000 000 00'000'6Z %000 000 00'000'6Z 00°000°6T 00'SBLTT 00°000'6Z 000
%0070 000 00°000'62 %000 000 00°000'67 00°000°6T 000 00°000'67 000
%000 000 00°000°6T %000 000 00'000°6Z 00'000'6T 000 00°000'67 000
%000 000 00°000'62 %000 000 00'000°6Z 00'000°6 000 00'000°62 000
Aew ySnoayy
(aseasd2q) jeuly (aseas32q) aagejua)l jeuty AnAndvY AL 1e8png jeror Ananoy |eloL
[ aseanu| 12020202 / @seainu| 120Z-020T 0Z0Z-6102 020Z-6T07 610Z-8107 610Z7-8107
% 19dpng 1 % 12dpng 198png juaied
uosuedwo) 0y 128png juadied 0} 128png
z uosuedwo) uosuedwo)d 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
%00°0 000 0070052 %¥S19- 00°000°t- 00°005T 00°00S‘9 0L €TTT 00°000°L UYL
>
%0070 000 000 %000 00°0 000 000 0L ETL 00°000°€ (4% 7444
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 000 OL'ETL 00°000°€ v’y
%0070 000 00°005°7 %S 19- 00000t~ 00005 00°0059 00°00S°T 00°000'Y 00'000°€
%0070 000 00005 %EE'€8-  0000ST- 00°00S 00'000°€ 000 00°00S 000
%000 000 00°005 %000 000 00°00S 007005 00°00S 00°00S 000
%000 000 00°000T %00°05- 00°000°T- 00°000'T 00°000°C 00°000°T 00°000T 00°000'T
%000 000 00°00S %0005~  00°005- 00°005 00°000T 000 00°000°T 00000°T
Aewy ygnoayl
(aseanaq) ] (aseasd2q) aAneud) |euiy ANAgoy alLA 128png |e301 AjAnay je30)L
/ @seasdu| 120Z-0202 / aseasu| 120Z-0202 0Z0Z-6T0T 0Z0Z-6T0C 6T0Z-810T 6T10Z-8T0C
% 328png 1 % 129png 128png jualed
uosuedwo) 03 123png juaied 0} 128png

Z vosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:QNN4 XYL NYVd - 06T -pund B304
:0%9 - 0p9 :1dnounidydx] |e30L

aMAT - Xdvd
NIVML XYVIN-IYYd
HOA-XYvd
IA-NEVd

000-519¥9-061-061
000-v19v9-061-061
D00-£19v9-061-061
000-¢19v9-061-061

09 - 0v9 ‘Tdnosnadydx3
aNN4 XYL ¥YYd - 06T :pund
13quINp uUnNo2dy

yoday uosuedwo) 188png

:ONN4 XYL Y¥Vd - 06T :pund |e3oL
:3NN3AZY SNOINVTIAISIW - 9€ :d

SONINYV3 LS3HILNI

noinidynaay |eiol
000-0019¢£-061

INNIATY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnounidynay

AOONMID0T-XVL 334 AYvd
NIVMINYYIN-XVL 334 X4¥vd
SAONVIHOIH-XVL 334 Jdvd
JA-XVL 334 Huvd

SIDIAY3IS HO4 S3

:SIDIAYIS Y04 SIDYVH)D - vE :dnoiDidynay |eloL

000-ST9¥E-06T
000-YT9PE06T
000-€19¥E-061
000-¢19vE-061

9YVHD - vE :dnoaoydyaay
AaNNd XYL NY¥vd - 06T :pund
Jaquinn Junony

woday uosuedwo) 328png



Equipment
Acquisition



%0070 000 00°0£9'691 %v1°09- 00°0T6'SST- 00°0£9°691 00°0¥S'SZY 00°005°0vT 00°000°95¥ ST'60L'Z8T ‘|e30) poday
%00°0 00°0 00°0£9°69T %t1°09- 00°0T6'SSZ- 00°0£9°69T 00°0vS'STY 00°00S'0YT 00°000°95Y ST'60LT8T INOLLISINDOY INIWJIND3 - 090 :Juswpedaq [ejoL
%00°0 000 00°0€9'9ST %£0°79-  00°0T6°SSZ- 00'0£9°9ST 00°0YS‘TIY 00°000°VET 00°000°00€ STE0L9T :0¥9 - 0v9 :Tdno19idydx3 |e30L
00'08Z'vL 000PT'LE 00T sadIyan joaed g - Juays |euy
00°000°'ST 00°000'ST 001 Y!| 59| 000°8T 1504 ¥ - 3AMIBS |euty
00'00T'ET 00'00T'ET 00T ionb Jad) mojd mous QT gyr ulpejed - speoy |euty
00°0SZ'61 000ST'6T 00T (210nb Jad) sauueid p|od pZ OJpeig - Speoy Jeuty
00'000°S€ 00000°SE 00T “dnyaid SHIOM 21jqnd e adejday - Md |eutd
unowy aold sHun uonduasaq apo)2dpng
|'e3ag 193png
%000 000 00°0€9'95T %E0T9-  000T6°SSZ- 00°0£9°95T 00'0¢S'TTY 00°000'VET 00°000'00€ ST'60L9C AepnQ (ende) 000-0T0v9-090-090
019 - 0v9 :Tdnounidydxy
%000 000 00°000°€T %000 000 00'000°€T 00°000°€T 00°005°9 00°000'9S1 00°000°95T 1$3DJUNOS ONIDNYNI4 HIHLO - 045 :Tdnoinidydx3 e3oL
%000 000 00°000°€T %000 000 00°000°ET 00'000°€T 00°005'9 00'000°€T 00°000°€T NOVEAVd 1YL OL ¥34SNWHL 000-82¢Z5-050-090
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000°EPT 00'000°EvT INIONI 3Y14-vasn 0€0-97¢£S090-090
S3D¥NOS ONIINVNI4 ¥IHLO - 04§ :Tdnosnidydx3
NOILISINDIV LN3WJIND3 - 090 uawiedag
Aey y3noayy Jaguinp Junoiny
(aseasaq) |euid (aseasnaq) anpeua) |eu4 AnAnoy QLA 123png |g10L Aianoy jelol
/ @seanu| 1202-0202 / @seasou| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 0202-6102 610Z-8102 6T0Z-8102
% 1@2Epng 1 o 12dpng 123png juaied
uosuedwo) 03 12dpng uaied 0} 198png
7 uosuedwo) Z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
Alewwing Junoddy
1oday uosuedwo) 1298png
%000 000 TE'BLULIE %69'T  TE'BLT'S  TE'BLTLIE  00'000°7TE 65 6EE'PTE 00°000°vL2 SYTI8S'8TE NOILSINDIY INIWGIND3 - 090 :puny [e301
%00°0 000 00°000'9 %00°0v- 00000t~ 00°0009 00°000°0T 19°Zr0'sT 00°000°0T S6°9LE'ST :INNIATY SNOINYTIIISIN - 9€ :dnounidynay |eioL
%000 000 000009 %000v-  00°000't- 00'000'9 00°000°0T 19°Z+0'ST 00'000°0T S§6'9LE'ST SONINYY3I LSIHILNI 000-00T9€-090
INNIATY SNOINVTIIDSIW - 9€ :dnosnidyaay
%00°0 0070 T6'8LTTIE %LO'E 16'8LT'6 T6'8LT'TIE 00°000°Z0€ 86°962'667 00°000'v92 05'v0Z'€0E IWIHOTVA QY - TE :dnosoidyaay |ejo)
%000 000 68°L58°05 %000 68'£58°0S 68°LS8°0S 000 0L°958°6Y 00°000°'tS ISTLL LY Q35535SV ATIVYANID-ILVLS 000-80TTE-090
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 SEELY 000 ET°0TC SHVIA HOId ININDNITIA 000-SOTTE-090
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°Tt- 000 00°000TY 96'79% 000 S0°TL9 HV3IA LSHI4 LNINDNN3A 000-€0TT€-090
%000 000 00°000°St %00'5C-  00°000°ST- 00°000'St 00°000°09 70'998'SE 000000 88'vL6'Y9 HOSSISSY-WIHOTVA QY 000-TOTT£-090
%000 000 €0'TZY'STT %IL L €0'TTH'ST €0°'TTY'STT 00000002 S6°LE9'TTZ 00'000°0LT 76'S79'68T HY3IA LNIHHND WIHOIVA QY 000-00TT£-090
IW3HOTVA QV - 1€ :dnoinidyaay
NOLLSINDIV INININD3I - 090 :pung
Aepy ySnoayy J3quiNN Junoly
(aseasdaq) |euiy (aseanaq) EY IS TIETE |euiy ANAnOY QLA 128png |e10L AuAndy jejor
/ aseanu) 1Z0Z-0202 / @seanu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0Z0Z-610T 610Z-8102 6T0Z-8107
% 19dpng [ % 12dpng 123png juased
uosuedwo) 03 19dpng juaied 0} 198png
zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

poday uosuedwo) 128png



Commissioners



S J0 T a6eg

Wd #S:11:S 0Z0Z/11/S

%000 000 00°159°88 %0¥'Z1-  00°6PS'TI- 00°159'88 00°002°10T TLL8Y'ST 00°00Z'L6 €8'888'v9
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 0000001 000 00°000°0T 000
%000 000 0000001 %000 000 00°000°01T 0000001 000 00°000°0T 000
%000 000 00°0000T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 00700001 00°000°07
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 00°000°01 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°000°0T
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 00°000'T 00000°T 0ST0t'T 00°000'T 08'6YL
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°9T- 000 0000091 000 00°000°0T 9%'SE6
%000 000 00002°T %60'6 00°00T 000021 0000T°T 000 00°00T'T 000
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 6929 00°000°€ ¥TLYS
%000 000 00°'TSY'T %000 00 TS+'T 00 1SY'T 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00005~ 000 00°00S 000 00°00S'T €9'€STT
%000 000 00°000'T %0000T 00005 00°000°T 00005 8T'ZET'T 00005 8E'89Y
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00'6T8 00°000°S 00'see'y
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°008°Z- 000 00008°'C 09°LL9 00°008°C LLBEY'E
%00'0 000 00000°T %00'0 000 00°000°T 00000°T 000 00°000°T 66699
%000 000 00°000'97 %000 000 00°000'9¢7 0000097 SO'L6L'Y 00°000'9 1v°786°ST
%000 000 00°000°L %ZUTIT  0000L°E 00°000°L 00'00E‘E 95'85E'Y 00°00€E’E 82066t
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 00°000°T 00'000T 06°€L9 00°000°'T L8'9TL
%96°0- 00°LE0 T 00°580°602 %9L°0T-  00°6¥Y'ST- 00°ZZT'T1L 00°'TLS'9ET 08°688'ZST 0088571 SEBI9'VET
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ST'HT
%00°0 000 00°8T8Y %EOYT-  00°88L- 00'8Z8't 00919°S 0S'TLT'S 00°€6€'S L9TES'Y
%LTT- 00°LE0°T- 00'9.8°16 %0T'L- 00 LT L 00°€16°€6 00'£80°TOT 67L55'0L 00'ETY'L8 ¥0'006°28
%000 000 00'S66'VT %85'6" 00'685'T- 00'566'¢T 00'+8S°9T LY'S66'S 00°9¥9'ST 8E'9ET9
%000 000 00°98€'L6 %EO'PT-  00'868'ST- 00°98€L6 00't8T'ETT 16491°TL 00'9ET 0T TT'9€0'16
%000 000 00'ZY6'ZEE %EO'PT-  00°9SEDS- 00°TV6'TEE 00'86Z°L8E S8°S61'99¢ 00°ET6°TLE 65 9EE'¥SY
%000 000 009298 %99'9T  00TELT 009798 00't6E’L 8€°0ZZ'9 000 88°0SL'T
%00°0 000 00'9TE¥TZE %€9'bT-  00'885'SS- 00'9TEVTE 00'v06°6LE LY'SLE'6SE 00'ET6'TLE 1458575t
Aep ysnoayy
(eseanaq) leuid (eseassaq) anpejua) jeuly Auanoy aiA 3eSpngjelol Ajandv jelol
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seanu) 1202-020¢ 020Z-6107 0Z0Z-6102 610Z-8102 61027-8T0T
% 398png 1 °% 128png 128png juased
uospedwo) 138png judied 03 jadpng

Z uosiedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

AJewwing JUNOJJY
140day uosiedwo) 1893png

1 uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

aooMAD0

NIVAL XEVIN

SANYTHOIH DA

ALID VINIDHIA

208 L40ddNS ALINNWIWOD
S3DIAY3S TVNOISSII0Ud
IN3W4013A3A0 JIWONOD3
S3YIL

135310 B SVO

JYYMUL40S H3LNdWOD
LIN3IWJIND3I ¥3LNdW0D
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNY
ONINIVYL

S3SV3IT ANV SIN3Y
"d1y¥2s8Ns 8 sand

T3AVEL

INOHdI3L

$3Nd4dNSs 321440

:§3SN3dX3 TYNOLLVY3IJO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydxg |e3o)

F0S-008€S-TOT-100

£05-008€S-T0T-T00
<05 -10T-
T0S-008€5-T0T-100

000-008E5-10T-100
000-0£0€5-T0T-T00
000-O¥0ES-T0T-100
000-+€0€S-T0T-100
000- -LOE-T

000-0E0€S-TOT-100
000-£Z0%5-T01-100
000-FT0£5-T01-100
DO0-ETOES-TOT-100
000-ZTOES-TOT-100

$3SN3IdX3 TYNOLLYYIJO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3

ALIYND3S WID0S
3YVIIQIN
3ONVYNSNI HLTV3H
1Jvd

Sy3d

:51143N38 IONIYS - 0TS Tdnosnidydxy |ejol

000-%T0ZS-TOT-T00
000-€T0ZS-T0T-T00
000-ZT0ZS-T0T-T00
000-TT0Z5-T0T-100
000-0T0¢5-10T-100

S1143IN38 IDNIYS - 026 :Tdnossdydx3y

ALIA3ONOT
SIOVM B SIIFVIVS

13SNIJX3 1DIHIO AHVIVS - 016 :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3o)

000-020TS-T0T-100
000-0TOTS-TOT-100

ISNIAX3 LD3UIQ AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydxa
SYINOISSININOD - TOT udwiiedag
J2qWnp Junoddy




pS J0 7 3beq

Wd $S:TT:G 0202/11/S

%LE0- 00°L£0°C- 00°8£9°v¥9 %t ZI-  00'vS8'T6- 00°STL'9Y9 00'695'8EL 80°6EL'SES 00'T0LZ69 95'861'STL
%000 00°0 000 %00°00T- 00°005°Z- 00°0 00'005°C LY'TITT 000 00°0
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°005C- 000 00005'C LPTITT 000 000
%000 000 00°000°vT WLTLT 00°000°€ 00°000°vT 00°000°TT ST 00°000°TT 6L VSE'TT
%000 000 00°000°0T %00°0 000 00°000°0T 00'0000T 000 00'000°0T 000
%000 000 00°000v %00°00€ 00000°€ 00000y 00°000°T STy 00'000°T 6L VSETT
Aew y3nouyy
(aseanaq) |euly (aseanaq) aagejua) leuly A}AROY QLA 123png |ej0) AjAgoy jejop
/ aseanuy) 120Z-0Z02 / aseanu| 120Z-0202 020Z-6T02 0Z0Z-6102 610Z-8T02 6T0Z-8102
% 193png 1 % 133png 128png juaieq
uosuedwo) o3 128png juaied o3 12dpng

Z uosuedwo)

Z vosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

SHINOISSIWWOD - TOT uaunuedag jejo)

10%9 - 0v9 :Tdnoinydydxy jejoy
LN3IWCIND3I 431NdINOD

000-09Tv9-T0T-100
0v9 - 0¥9 :Tdnounidydxy
'SNOINVIIIDSIA - 095 :Tdnoinidydxg [eloy
319110Na3a 3DNVANSNI 00G-20995-101-100
SNO3INVTIIDSIW 000-00595-T0T-T00
SNOINVTIIISIA - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3
daqunp junoly

1oday uosuedwon jadpng



Administrative



S jo 1 abed

WY €£0:£Z:TT 0Z0Z/TT/S

%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°T- 000 00°000°T 000 00°000°T 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000Z- 000 00000 000 000007 00691
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 000001~ 000 00'000°T 000 00°000°T 000
%000 000 00'005°S %00'SLT  00°00S°E 00°005°S 00°000°C 00°09t 00000T 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°S- 000 00°000°S ETEVRE 00°00SY £6TV6'E
%000 000 00°00Z°€ %8BETS 00°00T°T 0000Z°€ 00001°C OV L8L'Y 00°00T°T 0b"806°E
%000 000 00°000°8 %EEEE 00000 000008 000009 6ELVE'T 00°0009 £€°08L
%000 000 00°000°ST %LL°0£1  0000S'8 00°000°ST 00'0059 91" 096'ZT 000009 1682401
%000 000 00'000°S %00°ST 00°000'T 00°000°S 00000t 19Ty 00006'€ 7L'988°E
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 00°000°T 00°000°T SECEL 00°000T L9'6LY
%CT0 00°E89 00"£56°80E %TL'9- 0021222~ 00°0L280€ 00°Z8Y°0EE ST'195°€9¢ 00°ZLE'90E 0£°666'LYT
%00°0 000 00°000'SZT %6701 00000'TC 00000572 00°000'¥0T £€°788°0YT 00°000'¢6T €8°'LLT'9ET
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8E'GET
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8Tt
%000 000 00°£08 %£9'S 00°EY 00°£08 00'v9L 99'68S'T 00 LLYT v6'676
%000 00°0 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 99°'1¢
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8T
%000 000 00986 %IT'6C- 00921~ 00'986°C 00ZIT'Y PTTITV'E 00'8tT'E 18°£88'C
%60t 00°€89 00'00%"LT %pStv-  00'VIV'ET- 00°£TL'9T 00 TH1'0€E ot vST'SY 00¢19°£L2 P1'85L'9¢
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 06'v6
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 wL
%000 000 00'tE0’6 %618y~  00°T0t'8- 00't€0°6 009Et'LT 61667 00°06Z°TT 9E'vER'L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 S9'8LY'L
%000 000 00'9TL€ES %EELT-  00'E0Z'0Z- 009ZL'€S 00°626'E€L €8°£TT'89 00°S¥L'LS 80'8tS'SS
%00°0 000 00°€£06'S0T %IT'62- 00'TLS'V8- 00°£06'502 00°vLY' 06T £6°L0V TVT 00°200'vZT 09°£88'01Z
%000 000 0000001 %000 00000°0T 00°000°0T 000 9v'vET 000 reee
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 vLEBT'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 v'961
%000 000 00'€06°S6T %9S'TE-  00TLSV6" 00°€06°S6T 00'+LY 062 LY ELT VT 00700t 0€'v99°20C
Aepy y3noayi
(asea122a) Jeuty (sseatsaqg) aAgejua) [euly Auagoy alh  3eSpngielol Aoy |elol
/ @sesu) 120Z-0202 / @seasou| 1202-020¢ 0Z0Z-610C 0Z0Z-610T 6T0¢-810¢ 610Z-8102
% 12dpng 1 o 1=dpng 193png juaied
uosuedwo) 0 1a8png juaied 03 128png
z uosuedwo) g uosuedwo) tuosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AJewiwing 3uno2dYy
1oday uosuuedwo) 123png

INISNW ALNNOD 8 ¥3WINVIS
1334153 S 0T 320A

1043d TH 109

Sdivd3y

JINVNILNIVIN LNIWGIND3
*digdsans 8 sand

J3AVHL

INCHd3I13L

$3MddNs 321430

39V1S0d

BOT-9C0E5-501-100
000-9Z0€5-501-100
-9T10€5-S01-100
000-FT0ES-S0T-100
(L -S01-100
000-0T0E5-501-100

SISNIAX3 TYNOILYHIJO - 0ES :Tdnosnidydxa

:$1143N38 IONIYA - 02§ :Tdnoinidudx3 jelo)

AdVIQISENS SNI 3341134
LT0Z 0014 AN
3ISNOH vd3d40 S.¥3did
ALI¥ND3S WID0S
£10T @004 AN
3SNOH Y4340 S.¥3dld
3YVOIQ3IN
IDNVINSNI HLTV3H
£LT0Z G004 AN
3ISNOH Y4340 S,¥3dld
10vd

LT0Z A001d AN

S¥3d

000-9T0Z5-50T-100
IT9-¥10¢5-501-100

T-#T0¢S-S0T-T00
000-PT0Z5-501-100
IT5-£T0Z5-501-100
TBT-£1025-501-100
S61- -S0T-100

000-010¢5-501-100

S1143IN38 IONIY - 026 :1dnosnidydxy

13SN3dX3 103H1A AHYIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 [ejo)

JNILYINO

£102 400714 AN
3SNOH VY340 S, d3dld
SIOVM 8 SIIFVIVS

000-TT015-501-100

3ISNIAX3 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnoinidydxg
JALLVHLSININGY - SOT uawiiedag
JAQWINN JUN0NY




S jo Z sbeg

WY £0:£Z:TT 0202/21/S

%000 000 00°000°S %000 00Q 00000's 00°000°S TL9%6'S 00°000°S 05978
%000 000 00°000'0TZ %SL°0Z-  00°000°SS- 00000012 00'000'592 SS'6STLST 00°000592 96'TT8'€8T
%000 000 000 %00001- 0000T- 000 00°00T 000 00001 IS°LE
%000 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 00°00S 61°TT
%000 000 00'000°9T %000 000 00°000'9T 00°000°9T ¥1°0S8°C 00°0009T L8YTT9
%00°0 00°0 00°000°s %0°69- 00°0ST'TT- 00°000'S 00°05T‘9T ETTISE 00°0S1'8 LTEERTT
%000 000 00°000°S %£999-  00°0000T- 00°000'S 00'000°ST 95'TY6'T 00°000'S £6°'SSL'0T
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°0SS- 000 00°05S £9°20¥% 00°0ss 970t
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°009- 000 00009 00891 00'009'¢ L9vL9
%E0°0 00°0bT 00°'vZr'60S %6E°6T 00'v89°STT 00°v8Z'60S 00°009'€6€ 96'ESSZEE 00°00Lv0v 99'v0°L9¢
%000 000 00'000'0S %000 000 0000005 00'000°0S ST'95S'T 00°000°0S 000
%000 000 00005'S %EEZ- 00°00S- 00°00S's 000009 00°005°s 00°000'9 0000S°'s
%00°0 000 00'001'Z %000TT 0000T'T 00°001°C 00'000T 084951 00°00S'T 9L'0%0'T
%000 000 00°005'9 %000 000 000059 000059 €6'L08'E 00°0009 LEPSS'S
%000 000 00°000°0% %00°0Z- 00°000°0T- 00'000°0% 0000005 00'¥8L'9E 00°000°0S 00'€LL'VE
%000 000 00°00L %0005  00°00S 00°00L 00002 000 0070 000
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000°Z- 000 00000 000 00°000C 000
%000 000 000 %0000T- 00000Z- 000 00000°Z 000 0070009 000
%000 000 00°000°9 %00°00S  00°000°S 000009 00°000T Se'vLL 0070009 9€'90€’'S
%000 000 00°000°0Z %000 000 00'000°0Z 00°000°02 12'875°6 0000002 000
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00'000°01T 00°000'0T SL'7868 00'0056 LEWPST
%000 000 00°000°s %000 000 00°000°s 00°000'S 0699STT 00'000°S 000
%000 000 00009992 %1T'8Y 00'009'98 00°009°99¢ 00°000°08T LULBLTLT 00°000'08T 0L LEB'LLT
%00°0 000 00°00Z'€ %000 00002’ 0000Z'E 000 000 00°00¥'C 000
%00°0 000 00000t %00°00€  00000'€ 00000y 00°000T 6T¥TIT'T 00000°T ST'8Y8
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°0T- 000 0000001 18'815'S 000 89'096'88
%00°0 000 00°000'T %000 000 00°000'T 00'000'T 000 00°000°T 000
%000 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°00S LSBET 00°00S 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 0Q0'00F- 000 00°00t 000 00°008 29'v0T
%EE'6 000t 00°0¥9'T %0005 00°00s 00°00S'T 00000°T LLTIY 00°000'T E8°LTL
%000 000 00't89'SZ %08'9£0°S 00'V81'ST 00'¢89'S¢ 00°'00S 000 00°00S 00'v6E
%000 000 00005 %4999 00000T 00005 0000S'T 9 T1LI9°L 00°005°C 96'89S'T
%000 000 00°00Z'E %S6°LT-  00°00L- 00°00T°€ 00'006'€ STISH'T 00000V 0SZLT'E
%000 000 00°000T %00°00T  00°00S 00°000°T 00°00S LT'649°C 00°00S 000
%000 000 0000991 %£9°9LT 00°009°0T 00°009°91 00'000'9 98'152'9 000009 0£'S09'Y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 6¥'9St'ET 000 000
%0070 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000'€- 000 00°000°€ 66'v6S'T 00"000°€T 000ZT'0T
Aepyy y3nouyy
(eseanaq) |euty (eseasdaq) angejual |euty Aoy aLa 128png |e30L Aoy (e1op
/ @seanu) T1Z0Z-0202 / @seanuy) 1202Z-0202 020Z-6102 0Z0Z-6T02 6102Z-8102C 6T0Z-8102
% 19dpng T % 12dpng 1a8png juasey
uosuedwo) 01 193png jualed 0} 128png
Z uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) Tuosuedwo) [ uosuedwo)

319110NA340 IDNVHENSNI
WNIN3dd 3INVENSNI
INIWIDOVYNVYIN 3410 TIM
AYVSSININGD
SNOINYTIIDSIN

95-S01-T00
000-59595-501-100
000-50595-50T-100
000-00595-50T-100

SNOINVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosgdydx3
{INIWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnoioidydx3 jerog

ANN4 AL34YS
STVIISAH - T¥DIa3IN
5311ddNS INJINIDEO4NI

000-9TEYS-S0T-100
000-STEYS-S0T-T00
000-60€%5-50T-T00

INIWNYIAOD TVHINIO - 0t ‘Tdnoigidydxy
'$ISNIdXT TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoigidydx3 (eyor

HIOLVIN - INVYO

3553SSV LON 431¥YMANNOYO
aomL

ONLLNIYd VO
VANN-NMV(J3-GANM-0DVN
INNOYONOVE B LNIHdYIONIS
IN3SNN ALNNOD @ Y3IWWYIS
1334153 S0T 220A

S3YNLXId NV FNLININS
SNOILV13Y 4081 ISH3IAAY
SI9

SNOLLVILO93IN NOINN
$3DIN43S TVNOISS3404dd
SIN3IWIIHOV LNIVIN
S3J1LON 211and

INM3did

S3HIL

135310 B SVO

SWYO4INN

AN3IWIOVNYIW QH0D3H
JYVMUL40S 431NdWO0D
AIN3INGIND3I ¥31NdW0D
SITYVHDI ANVE
FINVNILNIVIN OLNY
ONINIVYL

V1130-S3Sv3T ANV SIN3Y
S3SV3IT ANV SIN3Y

000-vTTES-S0T-100
000-0TTES-S0T-T00
000-S80€S-50T-T00
000-080€5-501-100
000-SL0€5-501-100
9tT-CL0€S-S0T-T00
STT-CZ0ES-S0T-T00
000-ZZ0€5-S0T-T00
000-TZ0ES-S0T-T00
0£Z-0£0€5-S0T-T00
TET-0L0ES-S0T-TO0
000-0/0€5-501-T00
000-8¥0ES-S0T-100
6L1-Z¥0ES-S0I-T00
000-T¥0ES-S0T-T00
000-0¥0ES-S0T-T00
0€S-S0T-T
S-50T-
D00-¥E0ES-S01-100
DO0-EE0ES-S0T-TO0
000-TE0ES-S0T-T00
DO0-0€E0ES-S0T-T00
000-620€5-50T-T00

Jaquiny Junoddy

Hoday uosuedwo) 128png



S Jo € 3beg

WY £0:£Z:1T 020Z/21/S

%ET'T 00°€28'62 00°08LvrY'T %ES'0 00°159°21 00°LSEPIY'T 00°90€°T0V°Z L9 16V SEL'T 00'vZ8'00T'6 L6 TOT'THL'Y
%ET'T 00°€78°'62 00°08L'vbv'e  %ESO 0015921 00°LS6'PTP'T  00'90E'Z0V'Z  L9°TEY'SEL'T  00'0Z8'00T'6  LE6TOT'THL'9
%000 000 0070 %00°00T- 00°000°S- 0070 00°000°S 00°0 00°000°ST 0T'8IS’E
%00'0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000'S- 000 00°000°S 000 00°000°ST 01'8IS’E
%LS'T 00°000°62 00°000°6ST'T  %IT'L 00°000°SZ 00°000'0ET‘T  00°000°SSO'T  00°00S°LZL 00°000°TE8°L  00°000°S0L’S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°000°921°C 000
%ST9¢E 00'000°62 00°000'60T %000 00°000°08 0000008 000 000 00°000°S0T 00°000°S0T
%000 000 00°000°009 %000 000 00°000009 00°000°009 00'000°00€ 00°000'009 00°000°009
%000 000 00°000'00Y %000 000 00°000°00% 00°000'00% 00°000°00% 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°000°000°S 00°000°000°S
%000 00'0 00°000°0S %60°'6- 00'000°S- 00°000°0S 00°000°SS 00'00S°L2 000 000
%000 00°0 007005957 %89°LT-  0000T°SS- 007005952 00'009°TTE 01956591 00°009°TTE 0" €E28'V6T
%000 000 00'000°5Z %000 000 000005 00°000°ST 000 00°000°SZ 000
Aey ydnoayl
(eseaidaq) jeuly (aseanaq) ELGLUETE |eul4 Auanoy ala 128png |e30L Ayagoy (eyop
[ @seanu| 1202-020¢ / @seanu| 120Z-0202 0zZ0Z-610Z 0Z0Z-6102 610Z-8102 6T10Z-8102
% @PEpng 1 % 122png 1a8png jualed
uosuedwo) 03 128png juated 03 198png

z vosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

T uospedwo)

:jeyo] poday
:IAILVHLSININQY - SOT Suawiedaq [e30)
1019 - 019 :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejop

AYILNO TVLIdYD 000-0T0¥9-501-100
0t9 - 09 :Tdnosnidydxa

:$3D¥NOS ONIDNYNIS ¥IHLO - 045 ‘Tdnoioidydxg |elog

H1M OL NVOTQNNFY3LNI

S¥43did OL ¥IJSNVYL 000-TE€CLS5-50T-T00

WIVEAV 141 OL YIISNVHL 000-8¢ZZ5-50L-100

SAVOY OL1 ¥34SNVHL 000-52¢LG6-50TT

[0¥d TW1IdYD OL ¥3I4SNVEL 000-7¢¢/5-50T-T00

"LIW 9¥3IN3 01 Y34SNVHL 000-€¢2£5-501-100
$IDUNOS ONIDNYNIA HIHLO - 045 Tdnosmdydx3

¥8b-C€CL5-50T-T00

:SNOINVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3 |eog

JAY3S3Y INIWILLIS 000-0T995-S0T-100

Jaquinp Junoy

noday vosuedwo) 123png



Health & Human
Services



+S 40 oz abed

Wd $S:T1:5 0Z0Z/11/S

IAJS UBWINKH '8 Y3|E3H - vTT :3uawiiedaq |e30)

1SISNIAXI TYNOLLYHILO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 jejon

OYIIAVI/LNIW3IDVId HLNOA
A¥3S TVINIWJO1IAIA-SAHN
491 34VD IWIIQ3IN

JIAY3S 123108d @1IHD TvENyd
1253104d H1IV3H 43WNSNOD
1502 1vy¥3034 C8VvVIN
LN3IW33¥OV SIDIAEIS HLNOA
JONVLSISSY LNIDIANI
IN3IW3IIFHOV IDIAEIS HLNOA

000-STZESPTT-T00
000-¥TZESPTL1-100
D00-ETZESVTT-100
000-TTZESPTT-100
D00-TTZESPIT-100
000-0TZES-¥TT-100
000-Z0TE5-¥T1-100
000-ZF0E5-¥TT-T00
000-SF0ES¥TT-100

$3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0£S ‘Tdnosnidydx3y

'S1143IN38 I9NIYA - 02§ :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejo)

JYVIIQIN
JONVYENSNI HLTVIH
1ovd

SH3d

000-€T0ZS¥T1-T00
000-ZT0ZS¥TT1-100
000-TT0ZS¥T1-100
000-0T0OZS-¥TT-100

%E0°0- 00°6t- 00°v19°SST %9T°S 00°TI8LL 00°€99°SST 00°Z88'LYT 69°Z80'T0T 00°61'8PT vL'v80'96
%00°0 00°0 00'000'StT %8E'S 00°00%'L 00°000°SPT 00°009°LET 80'619°T6 00°00S'9€T ZE°70198
%000 000 00°00t'E %LE'69-  0000L°L- 00°00%'€ 00°00T'TT 000 00°000°7T 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00'000°¢- 000 00°000°€ 000 00°000°€ 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°T- 000 00°000'T 000 00°000'T 000
%000 000 00°00Z'9€ %EB'PT  00°00T'L 00°00Z°9€ 00°000'62 10'760'vE 00°000°22 009LT'LT
%000 000 00°000°87 %000 000 00°000°8T 0000087 LO'80E'EE 00'000'8¢ TE98Y'SE
%000 000 00'00¥'€7 %0095  00°00v'8 00°00t'€T 00°000°ST 000 00°000°ST 000
%000 000 00°000'0t %IT'8 00°000°€ 00°000°0% 00°000LE 00°£TT'ST 00'000°LE 00°0vL'ET
%000 00°0 000006 %88'S 00005 00'000'6 00°005°8 000 000058 000
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00'000°S 00°000'S 000 00°000°S 000
%EP'T- 006t~ 00'S8E‘E %b1°S 00°891 00'VEY'E 00'992°€ £L°0T9T 00°0t0°E £1°506T
%000 000 00501 %¥6'C 00'€ 00501 00201 Y18 00°00T 0T'€E6
%ST'S- 006t~ 00'588 %6ETT  00°E0T 00'vE6 00'TE8 957EL 00'€€L 8€'9T8
%000 000 00187 %00°0 000 00187 00'T8T 09°€6 00'18¢ 8t HET
%000 000 00¥TIT'T %Z0'E 0029 00vIT'T 002S0T OT'E0LT 00'9Z6'T L1'T98'T
%000 000 00°6ZZ°L %¥0°'E 00°ETZ 00'622'L 00910°L 88'758'S 00'6£8'8 6T'LLLY
%00°0 000 00'6¢T'L %v0'E 00°€1T 00'62Z°L 00'910°L 88'7S8'S 00'6£8'8 6T'LLLD
Aewy yBnoayy
(aseasnaq) |euiy (aseaiaq) annejua) Jeuly Auagoyaia  1e8png el Auanoy elo)
/ @seanu| 1202-0202 / @seanu] 120Z-0202 0Z0Z-6102 020Z-6102 610Z-8107 610Z-8102
% T i28png T % 1@dpng 198png Juaiegd
uosuedwo) 0y 198png waied 0y 198png
zuosuedwo)  z uospedwo) 1 uospedwo) T uosuedwo)

S1143IN38 IDNIYS - 025 :Tdnosnadydx3

13SN3IdXI 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 jejoy
safem 13 sauejes 00001015 #11-100
ISN3dX3 10310 AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
AJS UBWINH 78 YljeaH - pTT :uawisedaq
umnEn..Z unolly

yoday uosuedwo) 128png



Planning Dept.



¥ 40 T abed

WY T$:9€:TT QZ0Z/Z1/S

%0070

000

00°000°S

%000 000 00°000°S 00°000'S 00'69€'T 00°000°S 0S'LLET
%000 000 00700S'TTZ %ELOT 00°005°0T 00°00S'T1Z 00000161 1609V TY 00°000°8S 00'09Z°0C
%000 000 00°00S %000 00°00S 00005 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°€ %00°05 00°000'T 00°000°€ 00°000C Tr916T 00'000C 99'579'T
%0070 000 00005 %000 000 00°00S 00°00S 61°+8T 00005 16'62Y
%000 000 00'08%C %00'0¥T'T 0008Z'C 00°08¥°C 00002 000 00002 000
%00°0 000 00°00T %000 000 00'00Z 00002 56851 00°00Z 66'6€
%000 000 00°000'T %00°ST 00002 00'000'T 00008 6T'¥20T 00°008 T0'tv1
%000 000 00'000°€ %000 000 00°000€ 00°000°€ oLy 00000 00'064
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00000°T- 000 00°000°T 727987 00005 000
%000 000 00°000°ST %00°0 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 000 00°000'ST 000
%000 000 00°00% %000 000 00'00t 00°00t 00°8Z1 00°00t 000
%0070 000 00°00T %000 000 00°00T 007001 000 00001 000
%000 000 00°00Z'T %000 000 00'00Z‘1 00'00Z°T 00'895 000021 00°18L
%000 000 00005 %000 000 00°005°T 00'00S°2 PEEES 0000582 6v'ET
%000 000 00000°T %9E'vL-  00°006'T 00000°T 00'006°€ STvi6 00'000°€ 80'€92C
%000 000 00'000'T %000 000 00000°T 00°000'T v E9¢e 00'000°T 0S°0L6
%0070 000 00°000'T %EEEE- 00°00S- 000001 00°00S°T r'9s¢ 00°000°T £8'ELT
%181~ 00'SPY'T- 00°9£S8L %09'Tv-  00'v86°9S- 00'186'6L 00°S969¢1 LT°€79'8S 00°60Z°Z0T 96°2ST'vL
%000 000 00t10°T %IEVD  00°LTT 00°¢T0°T 00°£88 08'24T 00°£88 88292
%00°0 000 00'£82°T %09°Ev- 00'89L°T- 00°£82°C 00550y 0L'865T 00'1ZZ'E LTL91T
%10°S- 00'Sty'T- 00°02¥'LT %ETTE- 00'€99°€T- 0059882 00'82S'TY SE9EL'TT 00'ZET6T T1T'816°LT
%000 000 008¥0°L %89tV 0099%°s- 00°8%0°L 00%1S'TT 60°768°C 0099211 0€'678°C
%000 000 00°L9L'0F %y LY~ 0012 98- 00°£94°0F 00'T86'9L ETETT'TE 00°€09°LS 0E'SL6'0F
%00°0 000 00'vELLST %65 EV- 00°L88'121- 00°vEL'LST 00'TZ9'6LT 9L'€T0'STT 00'v91°TTT 9L EVO'LST
%000 000 00000°€ %000 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 06°20¢ 00'000°€ 01'9L1°T
%000 000 00'vELPST %90 Y- 00°£88'1ZT- 00'PEL'YST 0017992 98°S09°¥1T 00'¥91°61¢ 99°£98°VST

Aew ydnoayy
(aseas=q) |euiy (eseanaq) angejua) |euty Apanoy iA 1e8png @0l ARy |e3oL
/ @seanu| 120Z-020¢ / @seanu) T1202-020¢ 020Z-6102 0Z02-610C 610Z-8102 610Z-810C
% 198png 1 % 198png 198png Juaied
uosuedwo) o} 1adpng udled 03 128png

zuosuedwo) gz uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AJewiwing Junoddy
11o0day uosiedwo) 193png

SI19

S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIJ0Hd
40ddNS/SINIWITHOV LNIVIN
S3DLLON DNEnd

000-0Z0ES-EPT-100
000-6S0E5-EPT-100
000-8F0ES-E¥T-T00

135314 8 SVO 000-0v0c5-£vi-100
IYVYMLI0S ¥31NdNOD 000-VE0ES-EPT-T00
IN3IWdIND3 ¥3LNdWOD D00-EE0ES-EPI-100
JONYNILNIVIN OLNY 000-0€0€S-EFT-100
ONINIVYL 000-620£G-£b1-100
$3SY31 ANV SIN3Y 000-LZ0E5-€P1-100
10¥INOD @33M 000-GZ0EGEFL-100
ONILNIYd 000-0¢0E5-cvL-100
IDINVNILNIVIN LNIWGIND3 000-910€5-€v1-100
"dI¥4258Ns @ $3nA 000-¥T0£5-€v1-100
JIAVYEL DO0-£10E5-€v1-100
INOH4INIL 000-ZT0ES-£vL-100

$3NddNS 301440

39v150d

$3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIO - 0€S ‘Tdnoinidydxy

:51193IN38 IDNIYA - 026 ‘TdnoiDidydx3 |esol

ALIYND3S TVIDOS 000-v1026-€vI-100

IHYIIAIN D00-E10¢5-€v1-100
IDONVENSNI HITVIH
10vd

SY¥id 000-010¢5-€vL-T00

S1143IN38 IONIYS - 025 sTdnosnidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3YIQ AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosoidydx3 [e30)

JNILY3NO 000-TTOTS-EFT-T00
SIOVM B SIRVIVS 000-0T0TS-€vT-100

ISNIAX3 103410 AYYIVS - 016 :Tdnosnidydx3
INIW1Y¥YdIa DNINNVId - €71 uauniedaq
J3qWINN JUNo2DY




¥ Jo 7 3beg

WY TH:9€:TT 0202/21/S

%60°0- 00°Stt- 00°059°98t %8S°T- 00°T6L'8ST- 00°S60°L8Y 00°988°St9 00'1Z6°L22 00'ELL'BIY 69°86T°092
%60°0- 00°Sty- 00°05998Y %8SvT-  00'T6L'BST- 00°S60°L8Y 00988°s9 00°126°L2T 00°€ELL'8TY 69°861°092
%0070 00°000°T 00°000°T %00°0 000 000 000 1529 000 00°EE
%000 00°000°T 00'000°T %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 19779 000 00'EE
%00°0 0070 00°08€°6vZ %9L°8 00°080°02 00°08€'6v7 00°00€'622 95 T2Z'vS 00°00t'v6 L6'896'82
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00 I6v'y 000 000
Aey y3nouyy
(eseanaq) [E] (eseaudaq) ETGTSTTET) |euly Auanoy qla 323png |e30L Aoy ;o)
/ @seanu) 120Z-0202 / @seasdu) 1202-0Z02 020Z-6102 0Z0Z-6102 6T0Z-810Z 610Z-8T0C
% 199png T % jadpng 123png ualeq
uosuedwo) 03 1adpng juaied 03 1a8png

z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T vosuedwo)

:|e30] Joday
SININLHYAIA ONINNYI - €pT Suawiiedaq [e3o)
*SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejoy

dldN 000-ZT595-€vT-100

SNO3INVTIIDSIN 000-00595-€v1-100
SNO3ANVTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnoinidydxg

$3ISN3dX3 TYNOLLYY3O - 0£S :Tdnosoidydx3 |e3o)
SIHNLXIH '3 3¥NLININS 000-ZLOES-EYT-TO0
Jaquiny 3unoday

uoday uosuedwo) 123png



Indigent Medical



%0070 000

00°000° ; - 000" I o ,
~ 007 %00°0 000 00°000°00Z 00°000°002 ¥Z'SL6°0Z 00°000°007 9£'9L0'TS
%000 00°0 00°000°002 %000 z *000" 000" S ‘
%000 000 00°000°00Z %000 %.o J0 00808 o vZ'SL6'0Z 00°000°00Z 9€°9£0'ZS
0 00°000'00Z 00°000°002 vT'SL6°0T 00°000°002 9€'9£0'Z5
Aewyy y3noayy
(aseausds el
/ wmmw._umw SH_.N.““_N o2 ?HHHE anueIuay euid Amdyaia 3edpngleol Aoy jelog
% 198png T = / .omu_“mc_ 1207-0202 020Z-610Z 020Z-6102 610Z-810Z 6107-8T07
128png juase
uospeduwo) o3 123png waled 0 138png P s
Z uosuedwo) Z vosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uvosuedwo)
Alewwng junodoy
}1oday uosiedwo) 198png
%000 000 €£'805'T9 %IST €€'80S'T €£°805°T9 00°000°09 St°'L98°6S 00°000°€S TLEVL'09
%00°0 000 €£'805°T9 %1S°C €€'80S°T €£°805'19 00°000°09 St'L98°6S 00°000°€S TLEVL'09
%000 000 8STLIOT %CO'ET 8STLTT 8STLTOT 00°'000'6 SETLE'E 0000001 TEPYS6
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 89°S6 000 9Tty
%000 000 000 %000 * 000 000 000 00°Z6 000 LLOET
%000 000 000SZ'8 %00°ST- 00°0SL°T- 000528 00°000TT ETETT'Y 000008 8ETA0'E
%000 000 SL'980'EY %L'L SL'980'¢E S.'980°ty 00°000°0F 61'S8Y'SY 00°000'S€E 0T'vE6'LY
Aey ydnoayy
(aseasd2q) |eutd (aseasdaq) annejua) |euly Aoy @i 1e8png jejoL Aoy ejoL
/ aseanuy) 1202-0202 / @seasnu| TZ0Z-020¢ 0Z0Z-6102 0Z0Z-6102 610Z-8102Z 6T0Z-810C
o w@wapng 1 o 188png 128png jualed
uosuedwo) 0} 128png juaied 0} adpng
zuosuyedweo) 7 uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AJewiwing JunoJJY
1oday uosiuiedwo) 123png

“IYDIQ3IW LNIDIANI - 0TO :pun4 |e30)

‘SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYHIdO - 0£S :Tdnoanidydx3 |ejoy

TVDIQ3IW LN3IDIONI

000-££0€S-0T0-0T0

SISNIAX3 TYNOILYHIHO - 0£S :1dnoinadydxy
1¥2IA3IW LNIDIAGNI - 0TO0 :pung

AVYIIQ3N LNIOIGNI - 0TO :puny [e30L
IWIHOTVA QV - T€ :dnoinidynay |e3o)

Q3SS35SY ATTVHLNID-ILVLS
SYY3A HOIYd LNINDNN30
dV3A 1SH14 LIN3INDNN3A
d0SS3ISSY-WIHOTVA OV

YA LN34dND NIYOTVA OV

Jaquiny junoany

000-80TTE-0T0
000-€E0TTE-0T0
000-TOTTE-0T0
000-00TTE-0T0

WIHOTVA QY - T€ :dnoinidynsy
1VDIG3WN INIDIANI - 0T0 :puny

J2QUINN JUNOY




Indigent Accident



g€ Jo 11 abed

Wd 8t:61:5 0Z0Z/11/S

%000 000 00°000°08 %000 000 00°000°08 00°000°08 OL'ESSL8 00°005°18 Z1'8TL06
%000 000 00°000°08 %00°0 000 00°000°08 00°000°08 0L'ESS'L8 0000518 ZT'8TL06
%000 000 00°000°08 %000 000 00'000°08 0000008 0L°€SS'L8 00°00S°18 ZI'81L'06
Aewy y3noay)
(aseaidaq) jeuly (aseasag) annejua) jeuly Aunmdoy aia - e8png jelor  Auanoy jeloL
/ @seanu) 120Z-0202 / @seanu 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0Z0Z-6102 6T0Z-8102 610Z-810
% 1°9png 1 % 129png 198png Juaieq
uosuedwo) 0} j23png 1uaied 0y 198png
Z uosuedwo) 7z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo)
%000 00°0 66°S8€E'v8 %81°6- 10°v19b- 66'S8E'V8 00°00068 BE'E6L°68 0000588 ZI'8TL'06
%00°0 000 66'S8EV8 %815~ T0°vT19'Y- 66'SBE'VS 00°000'68 8E'E6L'68 00°005°'88 Z1'8TL06
%000 000 LELST'ST %P1 LT LELST'E LELST'ST 0000021 00'£56'VT 00'000°ST SE'OTEYT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 0TEVT 000 E€T'E9
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 08'8ET 000 0L 102
%000 000 00005’y %E£G5°€L-  0000STT- 00005y 00000'LT 87°09L°0T 00°00tLT T8 T6¥'6T
%000 000 79'829't9 %ILL 79879 79'879'v9 00°000'09 0T'¥6LE9 00'001°95 £0°5¥9°9S
Aey y3noayy
(aseasnaq) |euly (aseasnaq) anneuay |eutd AAnov @l 12dpng [e30L  AuARdv [ejoL
[ @seaidu| T202-070C [ @seannu| 1202-020¢ 0Z0Z-6107 0Z0Z-6T02 6T0Z-810C 6T0Z-8T0T
% w@dpng 1 % 12dpng 128png juaied
uospedwo) 03 198png judied 03 ya8png

7 uosuedwo)

7 uospedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

*AN3AIDDV LNIDIONI - S8T :puny |B3oL

1SISNIAX3 TYNOLLYYIAO - 0£6S ‘Tdnosnydydx] jeo)
1N3Q120V LN39IaNI

D00-9v0ES-S8T-G81

SISN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIHO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3

LN3QID)V INIDIANI - S8T :pung
JaQUINN JUN02DY

Hoday uosuedwo) 193png

{IN3QIDDV LNIDIANI - S8T :pund |e30)
IINFHOTVA AV - T€ :dnoigidyaay |e3oy

Q35$35SV ATIVHLNID-ILVLS D00-80TTEGEL
SYY3IA ¥OIdd LNINDNM3a 000-SOTTE-SBT
dv3A LSYI4 ININDNN3A 000-€E0TTE-S8T
HOSSISSY-WIHOTVA QY 0O00-TOTTE-G8T
YV3A LINIYHND WIHOTVA QY 000-00TTE-S8T

W3IYOTVA QV - T€ :dnoigidyaay
LN3QI120V INIDIANI - S8T :pundg
Jagquuinp Junodly

uoday uosuedwo) 198png



Capital Projects



8¢ 4o § abeg

Wd 8+:51:5 0202/11/5

%PS0T9'S 00°008°LTZ'S  00°008°0TE'S %000 000 00°000°€6 00°000°€6 YO'ZEL'EH 00°000°€60'S  ©O'ZEL'E60'S
%000 00°008°L1Z’S 00°008°L12'S %0070 000 000 000 00°0 00°000°000°S 00°000°000°S
%000 00008°£1T'S 00°008°LTT'S %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000°000°S 00°000°000°S
%000 000 00°'000°€6 %000 000 00°000°€6 00°000°€6 ¥0°'ZEL'EE 00'000'€6 ¥0'ZEL'EE
%000 000 00'000°€6 %000 000 00'000°€6 000006 YO'TEL'EE 00°000°€6 PO'TEL'EG
Aey ysnoayy
(eseasdsq) |euly (aseasdaq) aanejual |eul4 AuAnoy QLA 128png |B30L Ayagoy |e30]
/ @seanu| 1202-0202 / @seanu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0Z02Z-6T702 6102-8102 610Z-8102
% 198png T % 128png 198png juaied
uosuedwo) 0} 198png jualed 0} 1adpng

7 uospedwo)

Z vosiedwo)

1 vosiedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1S12310¥d 1VLIdVD - 0£0 -pund |B30)

'HIISNYYL ONNIYILNI - L€ :dnosgidyaay jelo)
YasN WOYd Y34SNVYL 000-vZZLE-0L0
TYHINID INOYS YIJSNVHL 000-€0ZL€-0£0
HI4SNVYL ANNYILNI - LE :dnoaoidynay

:§3D1AY3S Y04 SIDUVHD - vE :dnoinidyaay |el0)
Y13l 00Z-80Tv€-0L0
$3DIAY3S YO4 SIDYVHD - v :dnosoidyasy
$103r0¥d TVLIdVD - 00 :pund
Jaquinp Junody

Hoday uvosuedwo) 1a8png



v 40 T abed

Wd ST:91:+ 0202/21/S

00°000°SE 000 000 10| Buppied 13 Ajunwiwo)/aa4 HOA leul4
00°000°0ST 000 000 133D Alunwiwo) HoA |euiy
00°000°0ST 000 000 v ‘J00. ‘s1apjuuds |je1su) 23odaq ySiaid 1A Jeuly
00'000°SL 000 000 107 Bunjred 30daq 481244 13N leuty
000001 000 000 iojAe)] @ g7 ViEMpIS leuty
00'000°0T 000 000 Anjroey aqnd e s3U03S y|EM3IPIS 1353y |eury
0000052 000 000 wija1d Buip|ing Buiuien) T2 1S 2182013y |euy
00°00066 000 000 1D 2211SN[ 01 SA2NYO || 31ed0ojay |euly
00°000°0ST 000 000 JojAe) uO SiIeIS JL0ISIY [[eISul-BY |euly
SLLTL6ZST 000 000 3£'T$ 310N7 [BI01 3AeQ - P3f0U4 [13D/01peY |euty
DD.OOO.DH 000 000 Tﬂu 13 u: mbﬁao._mh._mu_ 404 JUSWSeED IsSeyaing |eui4
00°'000°0S 000 000 10| Bunyied aseq/jaAe48 :spunoidiiey |euly
00°000°0S£ 000 000 Aouasnuo) Jeuty
0000002 000 000 (suun g} |2uuay |043u0) |BWIUY leuiy
junowy a2ud sun uvondudsag apo) 188png
|reyaq 128png
Spuny Jamas pue Jalem 3yl woyy pua 1rafosd Jaye syuow 3jdnod e Les |im yoeqied
ueo] "sluesS pue sueo| yasN AQ pasinquiias aq [im pue Juno) Aaiois Aq papunj ase s1oafosd Juejd Juawneal] JAMas ||iH PIO9 7 JUE) JAIEM eut4 |euiy
uondunsag Ppalqns apo) 123png
sajoN 338png
%LYPEE  SLLTL'SYE'T SLLTL'S90'E %00°8€- 00'000°08¢- 00°000029 00'000°000°T LY 0TS 9TFT 00'000°00S 7S'9v6°£80'T AVILNO TVLIdYD 000-0T0¥S-0L0-0L0
09 - 09 :Tdnosodydxy
%00°0 000 000 %00°0 000 000 00°0 000 00°0 0L°TLT9PE 1$3DUNOS ONIDNVNIZ ¥IHLO - 046 ‘Tdnoinidydx] jejoy
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0L°68578 HILVM OL ¥3J4SNVYL 000-62¢L5-0£0-040
%000 000 00°0 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°Z85€9¢ ¥IM3IS OL HIASNVYL 000-£¢L50L0-040
$32¥NOS ONIDNVYNIZ HIHLO - 045 :Tdnosnidydx3
%00°0 000 00°0 %00°0 00°0 000 000 00°0 000 00°806°8€ 'S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILVHIdO - 0€S ;Tdnosnidydx3 jelo)
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0000002 £0Z6 0034 INIMYIM3S vasn 6€1-020€5-0.0-0L0
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°806'ST 1IN3WIFHOV LNIVIN 08Z-650€5-0L0-0£0
S3SN3IdX3 TYNOLLYHIO - 0£S :Tdnounydydxy
S12310¥d TVLIdYD - 0£0 3uaunJedaq
Aepy ySnouay) J2quInp JUnNoYy
(aseanaq) |eud (aseassaq) BAREIUBL |euy Auaoy aia 198png |g101  AlAgay (B3oL
/ @seasou| 1202-020T / @seasu| 120Z-0202 0202-6102 0Z0Z-610¢ 6102-8102 6T0Z-8T02
% yedpng 1 % 198png 123png juaied
uosuedwo) 03 j98png jualed 03 123png
Zuospedwo) 7 vosuedwo) Tuosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

Alewiwing Junoddy
1oday uosiuedwo) 193png




t o Z abed

Wd §Z:9T:v 020Z/Z1/S

%LY'88E  SLLB86'TZE'S  SLL86'T69'9  %00°LE  00°000°0LE 00°000°0LE°T  00°000°000'T  S8ETOY'IYI'Z  00°000°00S vTTSETEIT
%LYV'BBE  SLLBETIE'S  SLL86'T69'9 %00°LE  00°000°0LE 00°000°0LE°T  00°000°000'T  S8ETOY'TYI'T  00°000°00S YTTSETET
%LYV'88E SLLBETTE'S  SLL86'T69'9  %00'LE  00°000°0LE 00°000°0LE'T  00°000°000T  BE'TOY'IFY'T  00°000°00S PSTLTLYTT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 Zv'00Z'8T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°00T°S
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 by I8V LE 000 0S'TET'6T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 96'999'6 000 0L v6ED6
%00°00T- 00°000°0SL- 000 %000 00°000°0SL 00°000'0SL 000 L6'6TE'SOT 000 01'696°LT
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 ¥S'TTP'T9 000 6L019t
%0070 00'0LV'TLE'T  000LP'TLE'T %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 00'008°€S9'T  00'008€S9°T %00'0 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 6v°08T-
Aey ysnouyy
(aseanaq) jeuyy (aseaiaq) aAgejuaL [eutd Auanoy gla - 3@8png ol AuAndy jelo)
/ @seanu) 1202-0Z02 / aseanu| 120Z-0202 0Z0Z-610Z 020Z-6102 6T0Z-810T 6T0Z-8T0Z
% @dpng T % jedpng 123png juased
uosuedwo) o} 193png jualsed o3 123png
Zuosuedwo)  z vosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

:je30] Hoday

1019 - 0%9 :Tdno193dydx3 jeyoy

13NA3Q-dIND3 dINOD 398V
HI1AL-dINDI dINOD DUV
LN3W3IDVTd3d 3HVYMLI0S
IN3W3DV1d3¥ 3YVvMLI0S
XINNV L4N0OI 3ousnr
123r0¥d INIMY3ILVYM DA
SANYL HILYM

ANV1d 43IM3S T1IH 4109
£026 0434 INNYIM3S vasn

1S13370¥d TVLIdYD - 0£0 Juawiedaq |ejo)

T8Z-09T¥9-0L0-0L0
087-09Tv9-0£0-040
T8Z-T0T¥9-0£0-0L0
08Z-T0T¥9-0£0-0£0
ZT-0T0v9-0£0-0L

91-010¢¥9-0£0-0£0
TST-0T0r9-0L0-0£0
BET-010¥9-0L0-0Z0
1aguwinp 1unoxny

woday uosuedwo) 123png



120z xsix'8unaaw Jaye Jeah Ag ue|d 41D 0Z-TT-S

€01
00s'0t 00L'01% €# 191w Aipiqim Sunsixa 2ejday 060 120T
(AN JAIS '[ITH P10 ‘A1) BIWIEAIA) SPUR Y JIMIS PUE JNEA KJUN0)) £2101S WOL) LI0q SIS0 SO
HALVAILSYVA ® HALVAA
- 000's 0009 000'T  000'STZ - g : 000TZTT - 000'8SY'T  $ I¥I0LSOWY
000°S 000'sS Auqiory ansnf ApIALQ Ul aniIWny paumanns A30jouyoal mau [[wSU]  611-100 120T/6ToT
000’52 000'sT$ ‘Buipjing Suiuren |£ vonmg dgnd 01 pIqIo ABORY 0 L O 1T0T-6ToT
R 0000518 '§19a11§ €, PUE D), UIIMII 190G J0[AE | UO SIIBIS JLIOISIY [[BISUI-3Y 0L0 1T0T-6ToT
000°0ST . Auocu._u,u.._OUtbu:DU DE_.PEED.Uu e
0000518 ARjes/yayv ([esur ‘Jool [eisul ‘siapjuuds eisut jodaq S1a1g | WA oLt 120z/60T
00066 000'66% “Buipping 12920 20usnl apialqg 01 20edsy10Mm /201150 1] ANI0}Y 0L0 |Z0T/6E6T
000’ . ‘Suip|ing yueq 1e mou e
000's$ 191u3) puewwo)) suonesad) Aduadiawy 10j adeds Jouut Sunsixa AJipopw 0Lo0 Iz0z/eToT
00005 000°05£S 19pI0 UN0Y) 1d1NSI( Jad 2084 JO 21SN[ 10) SUONEIYIpoWw Joudu] 080 ¢0L0 120Z/6THT
000°0ST
ssa1301d ui sueld “SWOOIYIEQ PUB UAYINIY ppe pue sSuipjing Sunsixa yoene
000'0S1$ ‘191U AJlunwiwod AJuo aYew ‘I21uad Qunwwod HOHA Sunsixa woy syonn 0L0 120T/6T0T
aaowas ‘Aeq smesedde a1 mau pjing 1aua) Aunwiwo)) spueysiH HOA
00002 000°0ZS Sjun ¢ [1ef 1B S|2UUIY |0NU0D [RWIUY 0L0 | ToT/6TaT
0009 000798 ‘[e12U23 ‘[tB[ O] SJUILIPUIWE JOLINU] LO1-100 1Z0T/6ThT
000°1 0001 S[[EM JOLI2IUL 921JO ANENSIUIIPY JUIed LSOES-90(-100 170z
000°SL 000'SL$ arep 1212 ® 1@ Sularg- 10daq Jo SapIS Y10q aseq peol pue Suipess waun)) o
10dap 01 wadelpe Supped sousia umol aaoxdun jodaq wySiang WA oLl Icoe
00001 ‘
00001S Kujioey 21gnd 1 sy[EMIPIS UOIS 1259y 0L0 10T
00021 . 19218 VY pue o
000ls § u2aMIaq 1921§ 10]4e] 1v Sujsed 19a:0s 07 wadelpe [[EIsu Jaard YEMaIpIS 0L0 1coc
SANNOUD ¥ SONIATING
. 2 = = z = 2 - 000°5€8 000'56 - 000°088S speoy [©10 L
000'05 000°0SS ‘seale Guijied U0 UMOP aseq / [2ARIN) Spunosdie]  0L0 ¥ET 120T—E0T
000°0T . DURIIUD BUIE 10 o
oooo1s SUMUIA DA WOL 131G | PUB J UIMIA] JUAWISED ISEYIINg ‘spunosde,] Qdo0erx. 120z-0c0t
cooost 000°05 [$ SPUBIYSIH HOA — Py WSumue] (Aunjs pue yoted) aepmsay 02 0 1Z0T6T0%
000051 0000518 ‘11 5By - SluawdA0Idwl AFRUIRIP PUB LISAIND UTBM ] YIB] 0zZo 120T/6ToT
000°00% 000°00+$ YIpg Jo wawaaed-21 [|nj SUIpn|oul SPEO] UIRM | IR 20B1INSIY 070 120z/6T0T
000'SE 00058 ‘m_uﬁ_;m_z HOA — 11 3seyd Py umoiasnoy _.._83 pueiny 0Zo |coT/otaT
000'00T 000°001% qB3d JRO|IIBNG JB UOISIIAIP SFRUIRID PROY UOAUED) (I XIS 0Z0 1202
000'SE . Aemaaup pue o
000'5€S 10] Sunyred aaedar 11ud) Anunwiwo) HOA / TL uonewl§ ang spueydiy 0L0 Izoz
Savod
08¢ EPT-T00 6TT-T00 ZOT-100 SOT-T00 OLT (734 060 070 080 070 0s0 junowy uondiasag pun4 ICEYY
dAdVd NOISSNISIA LAVId
Ic0T

(d12) NV1d INTFIWIAOUJIWI TV.LIAVD
adueyp 01 Palqns s1 yeap sy, ‘sasodand Suruue(d pue uoissnosIp 10 FIdvVd ONDI VL LIVAJ © ST Suimofjoy ayy,



120z xs|x'8unaaw Jaye seah Aq ueid 413 0Z-11-S

€407

0005 000°ssS IPIYIA JAYD) UOlENEY MIU ISEYIING 081 1707
000°0YT . (198png J1D a4 0Z/61 Ul paacadde duo) a
000°0¢18 SIX0Q JUILIND BUIZINN SISSEYD MIU (I SQDUBNQWE 0M) YSIGInjay 08z 1207
STTDIHIA ¥ ININJINOI
- 00009 - - . - - . . - . 000'09S 1€10,] AMINISEIJU] JIYI0)
000'09 urem |
» MR PUB SPUR[YSIH DS 4V 'HO DA Ul 3sn 2anpwfe o) [enuaod ~ -
00009% ‘ammpnaseyur amny pue 3unsixa ‘suondafoid pue spuan asn aem ‘siy3u £¥1-100 1zoz
121M 10} WANSAS AndIRY 10) URld SI2IN0S21 IAEM AJUNO)) A210)§ youne]
< (VINDYL WM NOW a1qissod) “Suipooy areSniw o
ued ey s19foud ued pue eare 57 poomyoo] 1B Apmis pooy youne] le0z
S s19afoid uoneSniw o
POO DD POOMYDOT punj 01 SAAINOS JAY10 PUB ‘'WASN ‘VHIN Yim jom Icoc
< Auno)) 20ysem o
ur paredo| JuawWase proy Sumisniy A1uno)) aoysepy 01 Suruagsuen ysiuig 120z
SNVId ® TANLONYLSVHANTI HAHLO
- - - - - - 007691  SIL'6TS'1 816'869°1S  S[EI0] [J/uonediunwwo’)
8TL'6Z5°T o g aae(q (ssardoud ut) apimAIunod o
81L6es 1S WISAS  IRIN[|33/01PR]  SUOUEDIUNWILIOD IPIM-AIUNOD M3U 01 LIAUOY) 0L0 120T-6ToT
0000z 000°0Z$ 000°01@)7) SYNApeay - 25RI0IS R 13A3S 080 10T
000°9€ 000°9¢$ 2301018 2|QUIN dH - 2FRI01S 79 12413 080 2oz
00071 000'71$ 08€71Q 11 UaD dH - 28e101§ F 1945 080 120t
000'9 0009 (000°€@)T) yomaN Furyoo] yuomsiey) - Sunpey ¥ 1amod 080 1202
00027 00021$ (00F°T@)S) }oMIaN Funy20] yuomsiey) - Suryoey ¥ 19mod 080 10T
00Z'E 00Z'€S (0091TT) unowdEY 00OC DAV - Suyory % 1amod  SLI08 0 120t
000’8 00085 (008@01) unownIBY 0S| DAV - SUINOY 3§ 19m0d  SLI-08 0 120¢T
000 000°£$ (00§'€@T)  BQrUIY dH- SAAMAQ MOMIN  SLI-08 0 120T
000'sy 000°sYS (000°S1@)E)  1SHp 0951 - $301A( HOMIIN 080 120t
00007 Aupqedes 11ua)
000'0Z% puewnwo)y Louadiawg soj Supping yueg 1e Aipigedes yjomiau puedxy 080 120T<-020C
000°001$ + +'TTOT' 1ZOT "0TOT 4eak Jad NOTS  43qud NuIAu] DA
ADOTONHIIL NOLLYIWHOANI ¥ SNOILLVDINNIWINOD
B = = - - 000°T1 006° 1+ - B 0LT'979'¢ 0L1'089'cS SIBJO | JIJBMIISEAN W IIIBAL
0LY'TLE'T 0LE'TL6'1S SuiAjoazy 211S pUR V(S AQ 2SINQUUISY  SYUB] JANBAY 080 170T
008'ES9'T . 3 Buiajoady WIS puR YIS -
Q0B ESTIS 40 asunquusy (193f0xd aanoe) ondas Fuiprey aoeidas 01 Jamas (|1 plon 080 Lez
0009 000'9% wed 1amas 18 uaSAX0 paajossIp 10j Ja1aw aqoud yq yory o€l 120T/0%0T
o . ‘Ajnesia pue A1ages saseardul pue $1509 Surjeyyona dnyoid uo e
000'9% S3ABS 'WSAS wirup pinbi 3dejdas 01 ueld 1amas 1B WASAS 2ULIO[YD 13[QR o€l Iz0z/oTeT
00Z'1€ 007°1€$ S# ue|d 191Bm 18 SaA[RA 9ZIS-1I[Nw 20vjday 060 1202
53 £1- §TT-100 [0TT00 SOT-T00 OLT 061 060 oz0 080 0L0 030 junowy uonduasaq pung JBIA
dAdVd NOISSNISIA TAVId
ITc0c

(dID) NV'1d INTWHAQUdINI TVLIAVD

"a3ueyp 01 122fqns st yeap oy “sasodind Suruueld pur uoisSNISIP 10§ FITVA INDITV.L LIVIQ © 51 Sutmooy oy L



1207 xs|x8unaaw Jaye seah Aq ueid 41 0Z-11-5

000°S6T 00009  00O'S 000'9 00S'ET  000°SZZ  000°ZT 0061t  00SOV8  00Z'691 886'TLY'9  OE9'9ST 8TL'9VT'8 ¢
000'S6T 0057t - 005 - 0£9'95T 0£9'69€ S
- 00009 . e e g 00009 S
. s : 002'69T 8TL'62ST - 816'869'T S
- - 00071 006w - 0LZ'979'€ oLT'o89'c S
000°S 000'9 000'T 000522 - - - o00'1ZZT - 000°8S¥°T S
- z 000'SE8 - 00056 = 000'088 S

000°S6T - - - 0052T - - - 005's - - 0£9°951 0€9'69€%

08Z'¢ 08THLS

005°S 005°¢SS

000°sT 000°¢18

000°sE 000°S€S

000's 000°s$

00s't 00S°LS

0sz'6T

0€T618

00T°ET 001°¢1S
08T EPT-100 6IT-100 LOT-100 S0T-100 0/t 06t 060 0zo 080 070 090 Jjunowy

|e10] apiyan g wawdinby
8301 |JNJINIISEIU| JIRYIOD
$|e10] ||/uoniedunwwo)
S|e10] JRIBMIISEM '3 JBIEM
s|e10] spunoun g sfuiping
s|e10] speoy

[E10] Y2 A ¥ yuawdinby

€J0¢

1ero ] 12loag 1707

SANYAA [ONEG PUAYS T 090 10t
JOTEARIXI-UIW FunSIXD 10j uawyoene joedwod s1ejd Joleigia punoin 0z 0 | 20THOTOT
ODQ,ONH Sem QO_.—w Sdlueysauw ,_Q,_ .C__ Cou.mm uwa :_O...ﬂ 090 1 C0T/6ToT
dnyoig sypom angng easeiday 090 120T/6ToT
JAPUBYR[2] 9E01 AU JUAWYIRNR ING  901-1 0 0 1T0T
‘dnyjoid 3unsixa Jof WawyIenE MOl 90110 0 170T
1eydse yaed/puud o
01 103081 FUNSIXA 01 JUAWYDENE 12915 PYs 100w Jauueid pjoa  p7 ooprig 090 120z
“SUOIIDISIANU PUR S122.18 J0J 2pe|q mojd moys O €[ uIpe|ed 090 1202
uonduasag pung JESA
HAAdVd NOISSNISIA 1AV
Ic0T

(dID) NV'Id INFWIAOAJINI TVLIAVD
raduey? 01 1afgns st yerp ay |, ‘sesodand Suruueld pue uo1ssnosIp 10) FIdvd ONDIIVL LIVAJ ST Suwmmorioj ay,



Infrastructure



- j0 g abegd

%000

000 00°000°05¥ %88°S

00°000°SZ

00°000°0S¥ 00°000°SZY 68'VE0'809 00°000°SZE LT°059'88Y
%0070 000 00°000°05¥ %88°S 00°000SZ 00°000°0S¥ 00°000°SZY 68'vE0'B09 00°000°SZE L7'059'88¢Y
%000 000 00'000°0St %88°S 00000°SZ 00°000°0St 00°000°SZY 68'¥£0'809 00°000°SZE £2°059'88Y
Aey y8noay)
(eseasdaq) |euiq (aseasdaq) anyejual |euly ANALOY QLA 128png |e10L Aagoy |ejol
/ @seasnu| T1202-0202 / @seanu| T120Z-0202 0Z0Z-6T0Z 0Z0Z-6T0Z 610Z-8102 610Z-8102
% 128png 1 % 198png 128png jualeqd
uosuedwo) 03 128png juaied 0} j28png

tuosuedwo)  z uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

-FUNLONYLSYHANI - 080 -Pund |e30L
‘ONIGNNS TVANIWNHIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoigidyaay |e1o)

XVL 3YNLINYLSVYANI 000-805¢€¢ 080
ONIAGNNS TYANIWNYIAODHILNI - €€ :dnounidyaay

JYNLONYLSVHANI - 080 :pund

Jaquinp 3unoldy

Joday uosiedwor 1a8png



t Jo 1 abed

Wd 16:91 ¥ 0202/21/S

000008 00°008 0001 unouney ST JdVY - Supjoey 8 Jamog |euld4
00°000°L 00°00S°€ 00'C BEQRUY dH- S32iAaQ YJoMiaN |eul4
unowy aud suun uopdudsag apo) 123png
I'e3aqg 123png
11D 920SN[ BINONIISELU| I3UIBIU| 291wwo) 198png jeul4
uonduasaq palgng apo) 1a3png
sajop 128png
%000 000 0000281 %000 0000281 00'00Z°8T 000 000 000 000 LSNI -IN3WJIND3 ¥31NdW0D SLT-09T¥9-080-080
0000002 0000007 00T 43Qq14 juipaiu] DA jeuty
00°000°02 00°000°0T 00T SYNApeay - 3a8eJ01s 13 JaAIBS Jeuy
00°000'9€ 00'000°9¢ 00T 38eJ01S 3|QUIIN dH - 3BRI0IS 73 JBNIIS |euty
00°000°ZT 00°000TT 00T 08E1Q TT U39 dH - afes0ls 7 JamIas |euly
0000071 00°00t'2 00's WI3N Bupdo] yuomsiey) - Bunpey B Jamod |euty
000009 00°000°€ 00'¢ WIaN Bupd07 yuomsiey) - Buppey g Jamod leuty
00°000°St 00°000°'ST  00'E 1Sy 0351 - SAIAAQ HJOMIBN |eul4
junowy ERITF] suun uondulsag apo) 123png
|1eiaq 323png
2N1INIISELU| JBUIAU] Ianwwo)) 138png eui4
uondudsag palgng apo) 183png
sajopN 123png
%000 000 00°000°TST %000 00'0001ST 00°000'TST 000 000 000 000 ¥3LNdWOD 000-031+9-080-080
00°000°0SZ 000 000 11D @dnsng |euty
unowy ERIIP] sun uonduasaqg apo) 1=8png
|'e3aq 193png
%000 00°000°0SL 00'000°0SL %00°00T- 00°000°000T- 000 00'000°000'T 000 00000'000°T 000 AVILNO TVLIdYD 000-010v9-080-080
09 - 0v9 Tdnouoidydx3
JUNIONYLSVYANI - 080 Judwpedag
Kewy ySnouyg JaqUINp Unoy
(eseasdaq) {euly (aseasnaq) angejus) leuiq Auanoy aia 1e8png |e3oL  Aagoy (301
/ @aseanu| 1202-0202 / @seanu) 1202-0202 020Z-6102 0202-6102 610Z-810T 6T0Z-810Z
% dpna 1 % 139png 123png juased
uosuedwo) 0} 198png jualed 0y 198png
Z uospedwo)  z uosuedwo) Tuosuedwo) T uosuedwo)d

Alewiwing JunNo2dYy
1oday uosuedwo) 123png




t Jo Z abed

Wd 1S:91:¢ 020Z/T1/S

%9TEYY  00°000°0SL 00°00Z'616 %80°€8-  00°008'0£8- 00°00Z°691 00°000°000°T 000 00°000°000°T 000 :|e3o poday
%9TEYY  00°000°0SL 00°00Z°616 %80°€8- 00°008'0€£8- 00°00Z'69T 00°000°000°T 000 00°000°000'T 000 :IYNLINYLSYHANI - 080 suawiedaq |e30L
%9 €Yy  00°000°0SL 007002616 %80°€8-  00°008'0£8- 00°002°69T 00°000°000°T 000 00°000°000°T 000 019 - 0%9 :Tdnoigidydxy |ejo )
00'002°€ 00009°T 00'¢ unouIey 000E JdY - Supjoey g ;amod |euty
Aepy ydnoayy J13quINN JUNodYy
(aseasaq) jeuty (aseanaq) anleud] |eui4 Auanoy gla 123png |©301 Aunagoy [elon
[ @seanu T20Z-020¢ / @seanu| TZ0z-0Z0Z 0Z0Z-610¢ 0zZ0Z-6T0C 6T0Z-8T0T 6T0Z-8T0Z
% 12dpng T % 1a3png 323png juaseq
uosuedwo) oy 32dpng juaied 0} 398png

Z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwon

1 uosuedwo)

T vostiedwo)

Hoday uosuedwo) 123png



Stabilization



€ jo 1 abed

WY £¥:2+:17 0Z0Z/21/S

%00°0Z-  00°000°001- 00°000°00% %00°0 000 00000005 00°000°005 000 000 000
%00'0Z-  00°000°00T- 00°000°00% %000 00°0 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 000 000 000
%00°0Z-  00°000°00T- 00°000°00% %00°0 000 00°000°005 00°000°00S 00'0 000 000
%000Z-  00°000°00T- 00°000°00% %000 000 00'000°00S 00000005 000 000 000
Aepy y8noayy
(eseasdaq) |euly (eseasdaq) aagejua) |euld Aoy aia 1e8pngielor  AuARdy |eioL
/ @seanu| 120Z-0202 / @seasnu| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 020Z-6102 610Z-8102 6T0Z-8T07
% 128png 1 % 123png jusled
uosuedwo) 03 128png jualed 0} 128png
Z vosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) Tuosuedwo) T uosuedwod

AJewwng JunoJJY
1oday uosiiedwo) 3123png

:lej0) Joday
INOILVZINEVLS - 001 :juawyiedaq |e30)
'SNOINVIIIISIW - 096 ‘TdnosDidydx] |e3oL

SNO3UE||R2SIA B00-00595-00T-00T
SNOINYTIIISIW - 095 ‘TdnoiDIdydx3

NOILYZINEV1S - 00T :3uauwiiedaq

J3QUWINN JUN0Y




TRI Payback



8¢ 10 ¢1 abed

Wd B¥:61:6 0Z0Z/11/S

%0070 00°0 00°000°005'T %000 000 00°000°005°C 00°000°005'T ST'606°v6T 00°000°005°T TL98S'STE
%000 00°0 00°000°005°C %0070 000 00°000°005°C 00°000°005°Z ST'606 76T 00°000°005°T TL°985'STE
%000 000 00'000°005°T %000 000 00'000°005°C 00°000°005°2 ST'606 6T 00°000'005°T 1L°985°STE
Aew ysnoayy
(aseasnaq) |euy (aseasaq) aAneua) |euty Aunnoy aia 128png jeol  Ananoy |ejoL
/ aseanu| TZ0Z-0702 / 3seasnu) 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0202-6102 610Z-810C 610Z-8102
% 123png 1 % 123png 128png juased
uosuedwo) 03 j98png juaied 0} 1a8png
¢z uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) T uosiedwo) 1 uosuedwo)
%00°0 00°0 00°000SSL %000 000 00°000'SSL 00°000°SSL 00°005'LLE 00°000°S5L 00°000'S5L
%000 00°0 00°000°SSL %9T €T 00'000°ZYT 00°000°SSL 00'000°€T9 00°005°90€ 00°000°€T9 00°000°€19
%000 000 00°000°ZYT %000 00'000'Z¥1 00°000°ZHT 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00'000'€T %000 000 00'000°€T 00'000°€T 00'0059 00°000°€T 00°000°€T
%000 000 00°000°009 %000 000 00°000°009 00°000°009 00°000°00€ 00°000°009 00000009
%00°0 00°0 00°0 %00°00T- 00°000°Z¥1- 00°0 00°000°ZPT 00°000°TL 00°000°TYT 00°000°ZYT
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000°T¥1- 000 00°000°ZtT 00°000°TL 00'000T¥T 00'000°ZH1
Aen ydnouyy
(aseasaq) leuly (sseasnaq) anyeual |euty Aoy aia 1e8pngjelel Auanoy je3oL
/ @seanu| 120Z-0202 / @seanu| 120Z-0207 020Z-6102 0202Z-6102 610Z-8102 6102-8T02
% 19dpng 1 % 133png 198png jualed
uosuedwo) 03 128png jusied 0} 1o8png

7 uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

MIVEAVd 1YL - 00Z :pund [e3oL
$329N0S ONIDNVNI4 ¥IHLO - 0LS :Tdnos0idydx3 je3oy

AIVEAVd 181 -90€£5-00¢-00¢
$3DUNOS ONIINVNIA YIHLO - 045 ‘Tdnosnidydx3

XIVEAVd 141 - 00T :Pund

J3qWINp JuUNodY

yoday uosuedwo) 193png

HIVEAV 1YL - 00T -pund [B30L
‘HIJSNVHL ONNSYILNI - L€ :dnosDidyaay |elo)

Y14 WOYS H33SNVIL 000-0T{LE-00C

DIV dIND3 WOYS H34SNVYL 000-£0ZZ€-00C
IVY3IN3O WOYS H34SNVHL 000-€07£-002

YIISNYYL ANNJYILNI - LE :dnoiDidyaay

'SIDIAYIS HO4 SIDYVH) - vE :dnounidyasy |elog

Y¥IHLO - LAOD 1N3ID 000-80TvE-00¢
S3DIAYIS HO4 SIDUYHD - vE :dnosnidynay

NIVEAVYd 141 - 00T :puny

Jaquinp junodny

yoday uosuedwo) 123png



VC Rail Project



%S6'T8

00°0SY'SL

00°0T¥'991

%IB 9P 00°0t0°08- 00°096°06 00°000°TLT 00°SS0‘8YT 00°000°TLT 00°S6¥°0LT
%S6°78 00°0St'SL 00°0T+°991 %18 9t 00°0t0°08- 00°096°06 00°000°TLT 00°SSO‘SYT 00'000°TLT 00°S6H°0LT
%11°86 00°000°ZS 00°000°50T %00°Ly-  00°000°Ly- 00°000°€S 00°000°00T 000 00°00096 0000096
%11°86 00°000°ZS 007000501 %00'Ly-  00°000°Lt- 00'000°€S 00°000°00T 000 0000096 00'000°96
%8L°T9 00°0St'EZ 00019 %S9 00°00°€EE- 00°096°LE 00°000°TL 00'SS0‘8YT 00°000°SL 00°S6t'vL
%8L'T9 00°0St'€ET 00'0T¥'19 %¥S9r-  00'0POEE- 00°096'LE 00°000'TL 00'SS0°8YT 00°000°SL 00'S6¥'vL
Aey y3noayy
(aseasdaq) |euiq (aseanaq) anpejual jeul4 AAnoy QLA 128png |g30L AJAgoy |e30L
/ @seanu| 120Z-0202 / @seanu| 120Z-020¢ 0Z0Z-610¢ 020Z-6102 6T0Z-8102 6T0Z-810Z
% 198png 1 % 193png 198png uaied
uosuedwo) 0} 128png juaied 03 1a8png
g uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
AJewwing 1uno22y
1 oday uosiuedwo) 128png
%T8°0L 00°Z80°L 00°Z80°LT %00°05- 00°000°0T- 00°000°0T 00°000°02 8L6VE6 0000022 97'TLS'6T
%T8 0L 00Z80°L 00°Z80°LT %00°05S- 00°000°0T- 00700001 00°000'02 8L°6VE'S 00°000°22 92'TLS'62
%T8'0L 00'Z80°L 00°280°LT %00°05-  00°000°01- 00°000°0T 00700002 8L°6VE'6 00700022 9Z'TL5'62
%T8'0L 00780'L 00'780°LT %00°05- 0000001~ 00°0000T 00°000°07 8L6YE'S 0000022 9Z'TLS'6T
Aely ydnoayy
(aseaidaq) |euiy (aseasnaq) aAQejua) |eutd AuAndY QLA 198png |g10L Ayanoy |e0)
/ aseanu| 1202-0202 / @seandu] 1202-020¢ 020Z-610Z 0Z0Z-61T0C 6T10Z-810Z 610Z-8107
% 3e8png T % 193png 198png juaied
uosuedwo) 0} 123png uaied o} 12dpng
zuosuedwo) g uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AJewwng Juno2dy
1ioday uosiiedwo) 123png

:|e3o] yoday
112310¥d L'8A - 0ZZ -uaunuedaq |ejo)
SIDUNOS ONIDINVNIF HIHLO - 046 :Tdnosnidydx] |ejoy

31dIDNIYd 000-T0TZ5-02202¢
SIDUNOS ONIDNYNIE HIHLO - 04§ :Tdnounidydx3

:SNOINYTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosnydydx3 |ejo)

ISN3dX3 1S3H3LNI 000-00195-02¢-0¢¢
SNOANYIIIISIN - 096 :Tdnoanidydxy

103r0¥d L'8A - 02T -uaunsedag

J2qUWINN JUNCIDY

;jej0) Joday
1123r0¥d 11YvY DA - 02T :pund [B30L
:ONIONNS TVLNIWNYIAODHILNI - €€ :dnosn3dyaay |e3o)

aNO8 JIWONODJI AYNSYIEL 000-0TEEE-0CC
ONIGNNH TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidyaay

173r0dd VY JA - 0ZZ :pund

J3quunp Junoly




Federal/State Grants



8¢ 4o G1 sbed

Wd 8%:51:S 0202/11/8

%0070 LL0TS'SL- LL°0TS°SL- %00°00T- 00°000°€6" 00'0 00°000°€6 €0°590°ZS 00°000°SL $5°986'172
%0070 LL0TS'SL- LL0TSSL- %00°00T- 00°000°E6" 00'0 00°000°c6 €0°590°7S 00°000°SL ¥5°986'17¢
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00'008'9% 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0000002
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 Qv veT'y 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 20919
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000°0Z SISt
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000005 00'000°5T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00'68Y%'EL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00'5L6 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 £9°56 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 00’0 000 000 000 00°000°09
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 LTS69'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0565’8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00968'ST
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000°6T- 000 00'000°6T 000 00'000°0€ 000
%000 00°000°2E- 00°000°ZE- %00'00T- 00'000°0€- 000 00°000°0€ 000 000 000
%000 LLOTS'EY- LL0TS'EY- %00°00T-  00°000°tY- 000 00°000'vY 000 000 000
Aewy y8noay)
(aseasnaq) |eulq (aseasdaq) ETVTSUET] |euly Aandy ala 128png |e30) Aanay |elol
/ @seanu| 1202-0202 / @seanu| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 0zZ0Z-6102 6T07-8T07 610Z-8102
% 128png 1 % 128png 129png juaieg
uosuedwo) 03 1a8png jualed 03

z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

'SINVHYD 31V1S/1v¥3a3d - 902 :pung [e30]
‘ONIAGNNS TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidyaay |e3o)

7 qeyay shuew 1§ 661-00VEE-90¢

W3 ¥DOLSINOD LNVYO d34 861-00VEE-90¢
juawdinba 1¥3D - 4SHS 9TA44 0BT-00¥EE-90C
8T0Z WNYO4 dH SLNVYD Q34 €L1-00vEE-90C
INVY¥9 dO1S EGT-00FEE-90¢

ANVLS IM Q3LINN 6vT-00VEE-90C

alold 101843U39 SHIA dOWH OFT-00vEE-90C
DNINIVYL O1dX3 LYWZVH €ET-00VEE-90C
O ADNIOYIWI-INYYO DH3IS LZT-00¥EE-S0C
SINVYO 1wH3Q34 OTT-00vEE-90¢

LNWVYO NOILYY¥I4O SOT-00vEE-90¢

19N OW3I-ONINNY1d-d3AH ¥OT-00vEE-90C
IN3WdIND3 E0T-00PEE-S0¢

3dd ¥34VS 8ST-00TEE-90C

ANV1S 3IM A3LINN
SINVYO 31V1S

BYT-00TEE-90¢C
000-00TEE-90C

ONIANN4 TYINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnidynay
SINVYD 31V1S/1v¥3a3d - 90T :pung

J3quINN 3UN02Y

1oday uosuedwo) 198png



€ 40 1 abed

WY 9Z:v€:0T 0202/Z1/S

%00°0 00°125°SL 00°TZS'SL %00°00T-  00°000°€6- 000 00'000°€6 00°092'SE 00°000°SL LO'L6Y 96T
%00°0 00'125'SL 00'125'SL %00°00T- 00°000°€6- 000 00'000°€E6 00°09Z'SE 00°000°SL LO'L6Y 96T
%00°0 00'125'SL 00°12ZS'SL %00°00T- 00°000°€6- 00'0 00°000°€E6 00°09Z°SE 00°000°SL LO'L6Y'96T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°S8Z'vE 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00'00S°L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 or'veL'y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 TE'S98°C
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000°0Z 9598
%00'0 00'000°Z€ 00'000°Z€ %00°00T-  00°000°0¢- 000 00°000°0€ 000 00°000'sZ 00'000°ST
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°06t'EL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00°'sL6 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 LTSy
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 88°086'€
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°61- 000 00'000°6T 000 000 05'v65'8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00'vTL'¥T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000°0€ 000
%000 00'T1ZS'EY 00°'TZSEr %00°00T- 00°000tt- 000 00000t 000 000 000
Aey y3nouyy
(aseasaq) |euly (aseasdaq) aAnejual |euiq AAgoy LA 1adpng |e30) AJngoy [ejoL
/ @seannu) TZ0Z-0Z0¢T /[ @seanu) T120Z-0202 020Z-610C 0ZT0Z-610T 6T0Z-8107 6T0T-8T0Z
% 1@dpng 1 o% 193png 123png uaied
uosuedwo) 0y 1e8png juaied 03 jedpng
zuvosuedwo) 7z uosuedwo) T uospedwo) T uosuedwo)

Alewwing JunoJJy
1oday uosedwo) 188png

jeyo) poday
1907 - 907 uawedaq |e3oy

:SISNIAX3 TYNOILYHIAO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3 |e3o)

7 qeyay shuew 1§

W32 XD0LSIWOD-SLNVYO Q34
juawdinba 143D - dSHS 9TA44
10430 1HOI13¥4-SINVYO 34
LINYYO dO1S

AaNV1S IM Q3LINN
WYHYO0Ud NOILYOILLIW ZVH
ONINIVYL 01dX3 1YINZVH
YLD LYV SAYVIN LS

LNVY9 NOILYY3dO

19N OWI-ONINNYId-dIINH
LN3WdIND3

3dd ¥34VS

SINWYHD 31VIS

66T-00vES-90C-90¢C
B6T-00¥£5-902-90C
08T-00vES-90C-902
ELT-00vES-90¢-90¢
EST-00¥€5-90¢-90¢
6¥1-00vES-90-90C
0FT-00¥£5-90¢-90¢
EET-00¥£5-90¢-90¢
0TT-00v£5-90¢-90¢
S0T-00vES90¢-90¢
¥OT-00¥€5-90¢-90C
£0T-00v€5-90¢-90¢
85T-00£€5-90¢-90¢
000-00€£5-90¢-90¢

SISNIX3 TYNOILYYILO - 0£S :Tdnoumydydx3
90Z - 902 :3udwedaqg
JaquIinN junoay




VCIC



8¢€ 40 L1 abed

Wd 8v:ST1:S 0202/11/S

%000 000 00002 %000 000 00°00¢ 00002 0529 00'00¢ 06'S0T
%0070 000 00°00S %000 000 00'00% 00005 LY'SL8 00°00S 1195
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 000 000 00'05€
%.9'T¥-  00°00ST- 00°00S°E %000z 000001 00°0009 00°000°S LTGYY'Y 00°005't 0L '¥EED
%98'Zy-  00°000°€- 00°000°% %0SCT-  00°000°T- 00°000°L 000008 09'T6E'S 00'000°L 059507
%000 000 00°00S'T %00'SZ 00005 00°005°C 00°000°T 00'0SZ'E 00°00T'T 00'TIZE
%000 000 00'000'% %000 000 00000 00'000't 70'998'T 00°00€'t 0L LLET
%00°0 000 00°00ST %00'0ST 00006 000051 00009 SEB6LT- 00°009 T9LLET
%88°61-  00°0059TT- 00°005°69Y %ETT- 00°00L°9- 00°000°98S 00°00L'26S £L°98E'T6E 00°000°5€9 LLOTEPES
%E9°ST-  00°000°SZ- 00°000'SET %88°G- 00°000°0T- 00°000°091 00°000°0LT 95°096'9ST 00°000012 88°60T'THT
%00°00T- 00°000°S- 000 %000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000 00'005"8
%00'0 000 00°00S°S %000 000 00°00S'S 00°005°S 8L'%58°9 00°000°S €T°STT'S
%000 000 00000°ST %8E'ST 00°000T 00°000°ST 00000°€T 0T YSTET 00°000°6 6v°'%90°9T
%.T'67- 00°00S°E- 00°005'8 %00°0Z-  00°000°€- 00°000'2T 00°000°ST TEEBY'E 00°000ZT 780858
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000008 000
%0S'£8-  00'000'SE- 00°000°S %9v'8€-  00°000'SZ- 00°000°0% 00°000'59 ¥T E0TEE 00°000°05 65'STEES
%EEET- 000002 00°000°€T %000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 50'988°0T 00°000°ST 96'8EY'6
%00'0F 000000 00°000°0L %S0'61 000008 00°000°0S 00000t (TR TAN 00°000°St £E'SLOTE
%00°0€-  00'000°8T- 00°000°2Y %00°Sz 000001 00°000°09 000008t 67°LL8'T 00°000°Lt TL°€00'9S
%S6°vT-  00°000°6Z- 00'000°S9T %98't 00°000'6 00°000'%6T 00°000°S8T T4'698'9ST 00000061 81°0vT 64T
%00'sZ-  00'000°T- 00000 %000 000 00000V 00000t 00'S9tC 007000t 00°59LT
%GL'€6-  00°000°ST- 00°000°T %000Z- 00000t 00°000°9T 00°000°02 00°'SSt 00°000°L2 85°876°ST
%8S 1€~ 00°000°€- 00°005'9 %98°9- 00°004- 00°005°6 00°00Z°0T vETS0Y 00°000°¢T OT'ELT°8
%8LEE-  00°009°09€- 00°000°£L0L %L6'VE  00°009°9LT 00°009°290°T  00°000°T6L TT96E'L06 00°005°159 82°961°898
%p1'TE-  00°000'STT- 00°000'SLY %v87L  00000'S6T 00°000'00L 00°000°S0¥ v0'PEQ'809 00°000°0VE LS'6Y0'EYS
%ET'62-  00°000'S6- 00°000°0£T %1 L- 00'000'SZ- 00°000'S2€ 00°000°0SE 89'6YLL9T 007000'SL2 S L6V LOE
%80'€Z-  00°009- 00°000C %00t 00001 00°009°C 00°005°T 0ST19C 00°00§°C LT6¥9'T
%00°00T- 00°000°0t- 000 %0v'61 000059 00°000°0t 00005 €€ 00'000°62 00°000vE 00°000°S1
%yLLE-  00°00L'TT- 00°00£°61 %16°LZ-  00°000°ZT- 00°000°T€E 00°000'EY SL'6£9'ST 00°008°Tt 01°£S8°6E
%0009- 00°00T'T- 00°008 %000 000 00'000T 00000°T 00°00Z°T 00°008°T 0STET'T
%000 000 00°000Y %98°Zv-  00'000°E- 00°000'% 00°000°L 00'5L5'S 00°00S°L 00°0¥6°C
%0007~  00°000'%- 00°0009 %80°€Z-  00'000°E- 00°000'0T 00°000°€T 00°08L'L 00°00S°ZT 00°0/P'8
%EE'EP-  00°00S9- 00°005°2 %.5°8C-  00°000°9- 00°000'ST 00°000°TZ SLP80'TT 00'000°1Z 09°STE'9T
Aepy ySnoayy
(eseannaq) Jeuy (aseanaq) annejual |euly Auandy aia 128png |30l Auanoy |ejol
/ aseanuy 120Z-0202 / @seanu) 1202-020T 070Z-610C 020T-6102 610Z-8102 610Z-810¢
o T 3e9png 1 % “ie3png 198png jualed
uosuedwo) o) 128png juased 03 1a8png

Z uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

S3ILTVYNId O sng
¥3IHLO - ISIW

10434 T1IH @109

31Add SNOILYNOQ/9I4LNOD
SANNOYOYIVS

10430 T1IIH @109
SONIQNNE ALNNOD - SIN3Y
SONINYY3I LSIHILINI

000-9TS8E-0¢¢
000-0055€-0¢€C
8l £-08C
000-00v9E-0EC
PTT-E0C9E-08C
BOT-£029¢-0t¢C
000-E0¢9€-0EC
000-00T9E-0EC

IANN3IAIY SNOINVTIIISI - 9€ :dnoinidynay

S37VS L3XDIL 4V
SIHOIN 1SNONY LOH
AYQ SINILNITVA

AVQ Y3LHONVA-Y3HLVA
SYIALLSIYHD

JD01SWOD 3HL 40 31SVL
0300Y SYM LI AYM 3HL
30vyY ISNOHLNO
430-%002 NIHD

Add ¥31SA0

S30VY T3INVD
NOILYYSIA 133415

AINM 30 HLY

SIN3A3 TVI23dS

1S3DIAYIS YO SIDUVHD - v€ :dnosnidyaay |eloy

000-00/%€-0€¢
0EC-eTIve-0tl
8TC-ETIVEOEL

9CZ-E1Tve-0tc
STL-ETLY {4
GTC-EIIvEOEC

9TT-ETIVE-OEC
BOZT-ETTVEOEC
80C-ETIvE-0EC
LOZ-ETTvE-OEL
SOC-ETIvE0EC
POZ-ETTPE-OEC
EOZ-ETIPEOEC
000-€TTPEOET

SIDIAYIS HO4 SIDYVHD - b€ :dnoinidyasy

XV1WSIHNOL

Xv.1 WOOY

31V1S - 3SNIDI ONINVD
SINVYD 31VLiS

!DNIGNN4 TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnounidyasy |e3o)

000-CTSEE-0EC
000-TTSEE-OEC
000-¥0SEE-OEC
000-00TE€E-0EC

ONIANNA TVANIWNYIAODYILINI - €€ :dnosoidyaay

1S1IWY3d / SISNIDIN - Z€ :dnoinidyaay |e3oL

S3ISNIIN L3YvEvD

02 - SISN3DIM ONIAYD
S3ISNIDN HONDI

(409) SISNIDIN SS3NISNG

000-50T¢E0¢EC
000-E0TZE0EC
000-Z0T¢E-0EC
000-TOTZE0EL

SLIWY3d / SISNIDI - € :dnosoidyasy
NOISSININOD WSIMNOL DA - 0€T :pund

J3aquunp Junoldy

yoday uosuedwo) 123png



8¢ j0 81 abeg

Wd 8F:S1:5 0Z0Z/T1/S

%ST'0E-  00°00£'8YS- 000000£Z'T  %Y0'9T  00°00£°TST 00°00£'8T8'T  00°000°£9S'T  OV6ZSVIV'T  0000S'TSH'T  SLSTETIST
%000 00'0 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00095
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°09s
%05t~ 00°005'65- 00°002°vL %0L 't~ 00°009°9- 00°00L'EET 00°00€°0VT 0£°901°68 00°00Z°€ZT 09°'T0V'8TT
%SZ'TE-  00000°0T- 0000072 %LS°8- 00000°€- 00°000°2¢ 00°000'S€ 00'80Z'92 00°000°0€ 007EBTE
%0055~ 00°000tt- 00'000'9€ %88°S- 00'000°'S- 0000008 00°000's8 6T°L6L'8Y 00°000'SL L000T'TL
Aey ydnoayy
(aseasdaq) |eulq (aseaszaq) angeua) |euly AUALOY QLA 123png |e30L AuAagoy ejoL
/ @seanu| T1Z0Z-0Z07 / @seanu| TZ0Z-0202 0202-6102 0Z0zZ-6102 6T0Z-8T02 6T0Z-8102
% yodpng T % 128png 128png jualey
uosuedwo) 03 198png jualed o} 198png

Zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo)

T vosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

*NOISSININOD INSIINOL DA - 0€Z :pund |el0)

'YIISNVHEL ANNAYILINI - L€ :dnougidyaay |el0]
D1DA ¥34SNVYL TvE NVE 000-0052€-0¢€¢
HY34SNVHL ANNFYILNI - L€ :dnounidynay

:3INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIW - 95 :dnounadynay |ero)

NI9 A¥3L3IN3D 991-00£9t-0tC
SQ009 40 S3IVS 000-00£9€-0€C

A9qUINpN uno2dy

poday uosuedwo) 128png



Zv Jo g1 abed

Wd Op:pT1:S 0Z0Z/11/S

%ET'6E-  00°00S°TC- 00'000'SE %00'ST 0000511 00°005°LS 00°000°9% 8L TIE'ET 00°000°9% 8T°969°TS
%E6'PT- 0000591 00°000°0tT %T9'E 000059 00005981 00°000°08T 881678y 00°0SL'T8T 8T V60ELT
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 79'758'8 00°000°0T TETS08
%.9°9T-  00°000'%- 00°000'02 %000 000 00000'vT 00°000'+T SELYY'T 00'000'9Z 96'86T'TT
%6CvIT  00°000T 00°000°St %00°S 00'000°T 00°0001Z 00°000°0Z €€°£L09 00'000°9T 0T vEV'ET
%0006~ 000006 00°000'T %00°0 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T TSLEY'E 00'00S T6'9LY
%000 000 00°000'T %000 000 00°000°T 00°000'T SSLYT'T 00°00S 559781
%L9°9T-  00°00S- 00'005°T %00'0 000 00000°€ 00'000°€ 9L'6LY'T 00°000°€ 729
%00°05-  00'00S- 00'00S %000 000 000001 00000'T 00°452 00°000'T st
%00'09- 00'005°T- 000001 %£9'99  00°000T 0000S°C 007005'T S0'STLT 00°00S T6'98L°T
%00°0 000 00tZ8'T %000 00tZ8'T 00'tZ8T 000 000 000 00'000°€
%0S'LE-  00°00S'T- 00°005T %00°00€  00°000°€ 00°000°t 00°000°T r097'E 000009 PTPZE'E
%STTE-  00°00ST- 00°005°S %00°09 00'000°€ 00'000°¢ 00°000°S 66'9L0°S 00°005'Y 000
%£9'99-  00°000°T- 00°00S %0005 00005 00°00S°T 00°000°T 8T°080'T 00°000°T 01'842
%000 000 00'00S %000 000 00°005 00'00S 00°'St 007005 000
%00'00T- 00°000°9¢- 000 %000 000 00°000'9€ 00'000°9€ 000 000 00°006'y
%00'0 000 00°000°T %S9°E6-  00°00S'6Z° 00000 00°00S'TE YEE06 00°00S'T 86'979'T
%00°08-  00°000%- 00°000'T %000 000 00°000'S 00000'S 000 000 000
%000 000 00000°€ %6T'vI-  00°00S- 00°000°€ 00005 $8°906'T 00°000°€ 0£'599°C
%67 T 00°000'T 00°000°8 %99 00°00S- 00000°L 00°00S°L 95°208°L 00°000°L 09'9€5°S
%9 Tt-  00°000°'S- 00'000°L %0002 00000°C 00°000ZT 00°000°01T 9y TEE'E 00°000°S 9¢'L9Z’S
%1£'68- 00°000TT- 00°000°C %00'00€  00°005°0T 00°000vT 00°00S°€E 65°896'T 00°00L°E 89'8Y6'T
%0005- 000051 00°00S°T %0005 00°000'T 00'000°€E 00000 ST 00°000'T 000
%000 000 00005t %0008 000007 00005t 00°005°C 69°EST'E 00'000C LL'8SB'E
%EEEE- 000007 00°000'% %000 000 00°000°9 000009 ST'8LV'E 00°000"9 L6'TOT'S
%000 000 00000°'TT %0001 000001 00°000'TT 00°000°0T LL9E9'T 00°002°6 SS'68L°6
%9T°T- 00°0b'T- 00'9€E°TTT %S9 00"v0S‘L 00'9LL'ETT 00°ZLZ9T1T 19°£L8TTT 00°LYEOTT LL6BE'STT
%000 000 00'¥pS’S %9667 00'8L2°T 00'tHS'S 00992'% g9PIT'T 009107 SL°919°T
%000 000 00109t %S 1L 009LY 00109t 00°'STTY E€T°665'E 00020y 107207
%0L't- 00°0b¥'T- 00'TTZ6C %T0'TT 00'6£0°€ 00'TS9°0€ 00T19°LT 70'ST8'vE 00'619°L 08'858'v€
%000 000 00°€90°ST %69°S- 00'806- 00°€90°ST 00'TL6'ST ST'vLT'9 00 PT9'ET 9£'/88°S
%000 000 00°L16°L9 %E9'S 00'619°E 00°L16°L9 008629 €9'¥90°L9 00'8L0°69 S8'v00°69
%00°0 00°0 00°'SOE'LTE %SSTT  00°1S8TE 00°SOE'LTE 00'vS¥'¥8T 80°T18°8vT 00°ZSZ'88T 6£'5L9°L8T
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 67'TT 000 ¥0'€66
%000 000 00'SOE'L1E %SS°TT 00'TS8'TE 00°SOELTE 00'tSP'¥8¢ 65°0088vT 00752882 SE'78998T
Aew y3noayy
(eseanaq) leuty (sseainag) EL LS UET] leuty Ayagoy gia 398png |elol  AjApov |E30)
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seanu) 120Z-0202 020Z-6102 0Z0Z-610T 610Z-8102 6T0Z-810T
% 328png 1 % 129png 128png juaied
uosuedwo) 03 128png jualed 03 188png

Z vosiedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

‘AO-ONIONNG SIN3A3 TvID3dS
IVJ-ONIONNA SIN3AI TVID3dS
11S-ONIONNG SIN3IAT TVID3dS
1Lt-ONIONNS SIN3IAI TVID3dS
ONIANN4 LN3IAI TVID3dS
SANNOYOYIVY

1043@ TIH @109
IDNVNILNIVIN ONICTING
135310 8 SVO

SWHO4INN

FUVYMLI0S ¥3LNdW0D
1IN3dIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
S3DYVYHD JNVE
FDNVNILNIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL

SAONNO¥OYIVY

S3SV3T1 ANV SIN3Y
SANNOYOYIVL - SILLALLN
10d3d TIH 109 S3LLnun
S3Lnun

3DNVNILNIVIA INIWJIND3I
‘di¥dsans @ sana

T3AVHL

3NOHd3T13L

S3NddNs 321430

39V1SOd

L0Z-090€5-08¢-0¢¢
S0C-090E5-0EC-0€C
P0Z-090E5-0EC-0€C
C-090E5 34

0 0t

FTT-ZS0ES-0EC-08C
BOT-Z50¢5-0E¢-0¢¢C

[S0€5-08C-08C
000-0v0€S-0EC-0EC
000-6£0€5-0EC-0¢EC
DO00-7E0ES-0EC-0EC
000-€€0£5-0EC-0EC
D00-TE0ES-0EC-0EC

-0E0€5-0£¢-0tC
000-60€5-0EC-0¢¢

PTT-LZ0EG-0EC-0EC
000-£Z0ES-0EC0EC

PIT- -0€Z-0tC
172 -0EC
000-7¢0e5-0EC0EC
TOES-0EC-OEL

+T 0
000-£T0£5-0EC0EC

000-CT0ES-0EC-08¢C
000-TT0£5-0E¢-0¢¢
000-0T0£5-0E2-0¢tC

$3ISN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3
S1143IN3E IONIYS - 02S :Tdnosnidydx3 je3o)

ALI¥4NDI3S VIDOS
J¥VIIA3N
FDNVYNSNI HITV3H
1Jvd

Sd3d

000-¥T0¢50E¢-0¢E¢C

-E1025-0£¢-08C
-¢T025-08¢-0eC
000-TT0Z5-0£C-0tC

000-0T0¢S-0£C-0¢EC

SLI43INIE IDNIYS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3y
:3SN3dX3 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnoinidydx3 |e3o)

SWIUBA0
SIOVM B SIVIVS

-TT0TS-0E¢-0¢E¢
-0T015- [34
ISNIAX3 1D3HIQ AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnounidydxa
NOISSIWINOD WSIYNOL DA - 0ET :pund
Jaquinp junodoy

yoday uosuedwo) 128png



Zt 40 gz sbeyd

Wd Or:21:5 0202/T1/S

%TT0T-  00°0v6°ESE- 00°S9t"96E'T  %TO'ET  00°6£9'T0Z 00°S0Y0SL'T  00°9ZL°8vS'T  TH'9L0°T98 00°666'9TV'T  TOOTH'09E'T
%L£9°98- 0000059~ 00°000°0T %00°00Z  00°000°05 00°000°SL 00°000°S2 LY LL92T 00°0009¢ Or'vI69
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 66'550'T
%£9'98- 0000059~ 00°000°0T %0000  00°000°05 00'000°SL 00°000°SZ L9t 00°0009t 14'858°S
%S6°L- 00°000°21- 00°000°6ET %9E"L- 00°000°ZT- 00°000°1ST 00°000°€9T 9L°STR'BTT 00°00T°0TZ TS'S90°ErT
%LS'€ET-  00°000°6T- 00°000'121T %St € 00°000°s- 00°000°0tT 00°000°SHT 05'S¥9'LTT 00°000°002 LE'TBYEET
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00005 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000'8 %000 000 000008 000008 TTTES9 00°009'Z 8120,
%EC'EET  00°000°L 00°000°0T %0004~  00°000°L- 00°000°€ 0000001 STPET'Y 000 85°STTZ
%00'0 000 00'0 %00°0 000 000 000 00'%T 00°005°C 6E'St
%EP'ST-  00°005°SLZ- 00'vZ8'£08 %S8'TT 00'vZEETT 00°ZE'E80'T  00°000°096 0§°€88°LS¢E 00°00£'95L €6'P9E'L08
%00'SZ 000008 00°000°0% %64°ST-  00°000°9- 00'000°Z€ 00°000°8€ 6615222 00'000'0€ £L'9€6°ST
%0t'8- 00'005°S" 00°000'09 %68'€97  00°00S'Lt 00'005°59 00°000°8T 0L967'6 00°00£°0T ve016°0T
%95°SE-  00°000'9T- 0000062 %0008 00700002 00°000°SY 00°000°52 STELT'ST 000 000
%TE'S- 00'00S°Z- 00°00S ‘vt %ISECT  000009C 00'000°LY 00°000'TC 00°0SL'E 00°000'TT 00°00%'TT
%6TET- 000058 0000082 %L£9°1¢C 00°0059 00°005°9¢ 00°000°0€ ETEVTOT 0000272 65°£59°5T
%8T' Tt~  0000L- 00000t %00°0 000 00'00L'T 0000L'T LO'6L6 00'00L'T 17°'S90°T
%00°0 000 0000001 %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 000 00°000°0T
%0005 000007 00°000°T %00°0 00°000°C 00'000C 000 086717 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00189 000 0S'6LT°ZE
%LT6 00°000°0T1- 00'000'66 %96'ST 00°000'ST 00°000°60T 0000076 91°€66'78 00°002'L8 00°055'£8
%vyvy-  00°008- 00°000'T %00'08 00°008 00°008°T 00°000°T 00°S62 000001 BTLEE
%EEEE-  00000°Z- 00°000't %000 000 00°000'9 000009 L2056 007000t SETEST
%00'05-  0000S- 00005 %80°€Z-  00°00¢- 00°000'T 00°00€‘T Tt'9Z¢€ 00005'T 10°80¢€
%98'Tr-  00'000'¢- 00°000't %000 000 00°000°¢ 00°000°% 8y v16'E 00°005's 0£°855°T
%LS'8T- 00°000'T- 00'00S°Z %EEC'ES-  00°000't- 00°005°€ 0000S°L 69'6/8 00000 $9°0vZ'9Z
%¥$'T9-  00°000°0v- 00°000'sT %00°0 000 0000059 00'000°59 T/'888'¢€ 00°000'0S PT955°ES
%000 000 00°0 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00°000°S
%ETE- 00°000'T- 00°000'TE %00°0 000 00'000°Z€ 00°000ZE 00°00% 00°000'0¢ 00'0£0°ZE
%9€9E-  00°000°C- 00°005°€ %00°0T 00°00S 00005°S 00'000°S 00°00S 00000t v9'769't
%45°'8T7-  00°000°t- 00'000°0T %69'L 00°000'T 00'000¢T 00'000°€T v6'6vY 00°000'6 €L'€T0'ST
%000 000 00'000°02 %ITTT 000007 00°000°0Z 00°000'8T 9T'96L '€ 00°005°TT TTSYE'S
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000058 000
%EEC'ES-  0000S°Z9- 00°00S°ZT %EL'ST-  00°000'vT- 00°000°SL 00'000°68 Tr8LO'E 00700004 06°858°v8
%0S'Z¢- 00005t 00°005°ST %00°ST 00000t 00000°0Z 00'000°9T 65°066't 00°000'ST 9€'8LY'ST
%8S 00°000°L 00'000°'SS %0070 0070008 00°000'8Y 00°000°0% ¥8'T09ET Q0°0SL'Cy LYVEL'TY
Aey y3noayy
(aseasdaq) Jeutd (aseasnaq) angeluay leuly Aoy aia 128png [e10L  AuAnoy elop
/ @seanu| 120Z-0202 / @seanu) 1202-0202 0202-6102 0Z0Z-6102 6T0Z-8107 610T-8102
% 1edpng 1 % 12dpng 123png juaied
uosuedwo) o3 128png juaied 03 12dpng

Z uosuedwo)

Z vosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘NOISSININOD INSIMNOL JA-0EZ-pund |B30]

1019 - 09 ‘Tdnosgadydx] e1oL

LINIWCIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
AYILNO TVLIdYD

000-09T¥9-0tZ-0eC
000-0TO¥9-0EZ-0€C

0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnoinidydx3

:SNOINYTIIISIA - 095 Tdnoinidydx] [ejoL

IN3IW3ISENGNI3Y INN3IA dYD
318115NAa3Q0 IDNVHENSNI
WNIW3Yd IDNYUNSNI
ISN3dX3 ONILIIW
SNOINVIIIDSIN

000-00£95-08Z-0£C
000-20995-0£-0£¢
000-00995-0€-0EC
000-70535-052-0E¢
000-00595-087-0€¢

SNOINVITIISIA - 095 :Tdnouidydx3

SISNIX3 1YNOILYHIO - 0£S -Tdnoigidydxy |e3og

L3NY3LNI / VIQIW TVID0S
ONISILYIAQY QHVO8g1118
ONISILYIAQY 0I1aVY
ONISILYIAAY AL
ONISILYIAQY LNIYd

XV1 WO0OH

13sans/Lany

N9IS3Q 8IM

SNOILY13Y H08V1 ISH3IAQY
SIDIAYIS TYNOISS3I404d
SISN3dX3 MOHS 3avyL
ALITYLIASOH-S¥NOL V4
LINIWNIVLIYILNI

WYH4904d IN320d

NI9D A¥3LIWID

S3SN3IdX3 ¥ILNID HOLISIA
AQD-ONIANNS LNIAT TVID3dS
OH-9NIGNN4 SINIAI TVID3dS
YA-ONIONNS SIN3AI 1VID3dS
_V4-ONIANN4 SLNIAT TvID3dS
HJ-9NIANN4 SINIAT T¥ID3dS
'VL-ONIONNS SINIAZ 1VID3dS
IHL-9NIANN4 SINIAI TVID3dS
NO-9NIGNN4 SLNIAI TVID3dS
HJ-ONIANN4 SLNIA3 TvID3dS

00-609€5-0£Z-0E7
000-809€5-0€Z-0€C
000-909€5-0EC-0¢€C
000-P09€S-0ET-0EC
000-709€S-0ET-0EC
000-TTSES-0EC-0EC
000-060€5-0€¢-0€¢C
000-€E£0€5-0ET-0EC
000-TZ0€5-08C-0€C
000-020€5-0€¢-0€C

000-590€5-0€C-0EC
000-¥90£5-0€2-0EC
§9T-T90£S-0EC-0EC
000-TS0€5-0€2-0€¢

Ped-090€5-08C-08EC
0£2-090£S-0€C-0€C
§7C-090e505C0¢C
977-090€5-0£7-0E¢
SCC-050€5-08¢0EC
612-09025-0£¢-08¢
91¢-090€5-0£2-0¢T
60¢-090€5-0£C-0E¢C
807-090€5-0E¢0¢cC

13qUINN JUN0Y

1oday uosuedwo) 198png



Piper’s Opera House



€ jo 1 3bed

WY 8S:v+:0T 020Z/21/S

%E0'TT 00'000°62 00"00T°04LT %8691 00°000°SE 00'00T°T¥T 00°001°902 90'8SLT6 00°005°152 v6°0v0°9ST
%HEO'TT 00'000°62 00°00T°0LZ %8691 00°000°SE 00°00T°THT 007001902 90°8SL'T6 00°005'152 v6°0v0°9ST
%ST9E 00'000°62 00°000°60T %00°0 00°000°08 00°000°08 000 000 00°000S0T 00°000°S0T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°000'S0T 000
%ST9E 00'000°62 00'000'60T %000 00°000°08 0000008 000 000 000 00°000°S0T
%000 000 00°00T°ZE %0070 000 00°00T‘ZE 00°00T°ZE €L°ETRST 00°005°6Z 8L°S8E'TT
%000 000 00°000°€ %00°0S 00'000'T 00'000°€ 00°000°T 000 00'000T 00'ST
%000 000 00°00T %000 000 00°00T 00°001 89y 000 000
%000 000 00000t %00°0-  00°000°T- 00°000t 00°000°S S0'691°C 00°005C 8L°0L1
%000 000 00'000°ST %000 000 00'000°ST 00°000°SZ 00°059°91 00000 00°00Z°TT
%00°0 000 00'000°66 %197~  00°000°SE- 00°000°66 00°000°VET EEVEV'E 00°000°90T 91°SS9'TTIT
%000 000 00'000'6 %00'05-  00°000'6- 00°000'6 0000081 8T°TI8'S 00'000°0Z 8E°0SL9
%000 000 00'000°0€ %606~ 00°000°¢- 00°000°0€ 00'000°€E 08'EEPTT 00'00005 87’6007
%000 000 00'000°ST %000 000 00000°ST 00°000°ST 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°ST %000v-  00°000°0T- 00'000°ST 00°000°ST 0S°006'TT 000 000
%000 000 00'000'0€ %EC0E-  00°000€T- 00'000°0€ 00'000°€Y S8L8T'YT 00'000°9€ 05°G98'v8
%000 000 00°000°0€ %00'SZ-  00°000°01- 00°000°0€ 00°000°0V 00°005°6 00°000°TT 00°000°£1
%000 000 00'000'ST %0007~  00°000°0T- 00'000°ST 00'000°S¢ 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°ST %000 000 00'000°ST 00'000°ST 000056 00°000TT 00'000°LT
Aey y3noayy
(eseasdaq) euly (eseanaq) aAnejua) [IE] AuAnoy QLA 123png |e30) AAndy |e3ol
/ @seanu| 1202-0202 / 3seasu) 120¢-0202 0Z02Z-6102 020Z-6T02 6T0Z-8102 610Z-810C
% 1@9dpna T % 138png 198png juaied
uosuedwo) oy 128png uaJed 03 138png
z uosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

Alewiwing 3uno2dyY
1oday uosuedwo) 193png

:jejo) uoday
:3SNOH VY3dO S¥3did - TE€T :pund |B3OL
“YIISNVYL ONNJYILNI - L€ :dnosDidyaay (e30)

NI 434SNVHL 000-v0ZLETEC
IVHINID IWOYS HI4SNVHL 000-E0CLE TE¢C
Y3IISNVHL ANNAYILNI - L€ :dnosnidyaay

:3INNIAIY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9£ :dnounidyaay |e3oL

SQ009 40 31VS DO0-00Z9€-T€C

JSIN 000-0059¢€-T€C
31AYd SNOILYNOQ/8I41INOD 000-00%9€-TEC
SONIQTING ALNNOD - SIN3Y 000-€0Z9¢€-TEC

3INNIAIY SNOINVYTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnoinidyaay

*S3DIAH3S YOS SIOYVH) - vE :dnoinidyaay |e3o)

SITVS LINDIL dVD

SINIAI TVID3dS

IDINVINYO4YId ONIYAS

JONVINEO4Y3d YILNIM TTCETIPETEC

SIN3AI TVIDIdS 000-€TTPE-TEC
S3IDINYIS HO4 SIDYVHD - pE :dnounidyaay

000-00L¥E-TEC
OvZ-ETTPE-TEC
CTC-ETTVE-TEC

ONIONNS TYINIWNYIAODHILNI - €€ :dnoinidynay |ejol

SINVYO Tvy3a34 000-00VEE-TEC

SINVYO 31V1S DO0-00TEE-TEC
ONIGNN4 TVANIWNYIAODHILNI - ££ :dnoi1nidyaay

3ISNOH YY¥3dO S¥3did - TEZ :pung

Jaquinp Junody




¥ 40 T abed

WY £Z:vP:0T 0Z02/21/S

00°000°7

%000 000 %(9°99T 000ST'T 007000C 00°05L 000 00'058°C 00'S9
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'0 £8'658'T
%000 000 00'000°T %00°00T 00005 00°000°T 00°00S 000 00°000°T 000
%000 000 00'000°T %000 000001 00°000T 000 000 000 0005LC
%00°0 000 00'000ZT %000 000 00'000TT 00°000°ZT 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000CT %00'0 000 00°000TT 00°000'TT ST1I8'6 000 000
%000 000 00°000°ST %00'ST  00000°'S 00°000'ST 00°000°0Z 0L°05t'6 00°000°€T TTSEE'EY
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00'000°€ 00'000°€ 6V L8LT 00000°L TLTBE9
%000 000 00002 %00°00T  00°00T 00'002 00°00T 000 000 00°€T
%000 000 00°000'T %000 000 00°000°T 00°000°T 000 00°005°C 00°L06'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°000C 000
%000 000 00°00ST %0000 000ST'T 000051 00052 000 00°000'T 000
%000 000 000 %000 00°0 000 000 000 00'00S 96'6¥1'9T
%000 000 00°00S°T %00'S7-  00°00S- 00°00S'T 00'000'Z 000 00'000T TL6Y
%00°'0 000 00°000°6T %95°S 00°000'T 00°000°6T 00°000'8T S6'S0T°9T 00'000'8T SE'BOV'6T
%00'0 000 00°000C %000Z-  00°00S- 00°000'C 00005'T 000 00'006°E o1's8Z't
%000 000 00°000't %00°00T  00°000C 00000t 000002 V66T 00°008°T SS'88EE
%000 000 00°00S %00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S SO'TE 00°00€ 000
%000 000 00'000°€ %00°00F  00°00¢'C 00°000'€E 00°009 96'050C 0000Z°T 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ZTbEE 000 £5LE9
%000 000 0000T %00°00T 007001 00002 00°00T 09°L 00°00T 000
%970~ 00'821- 00°0TZ'8Y %09 001282 00'8EE'8Y 00°LTS'SY S9°0£6°TT 00'89E°8S YT LSYET
%000 000 00°SEY'T %¥9°S 00°0€T 00°SEVT 00'S0ET 99°€96 00°LS8'T 66'9TC'T
%000 000 00°€E0S'T %LE'S 0006 00°€0S'T 00'ETH'T St'T9L 00'8E6'T €L°L88
%90°T- 00'8Z1- 00'8€6'TT %ST'CT 00'£0E'T 00'990'ZT 006501 09°96¢°L 00°09Z°01 TLE90'8
%000 000 00'908°TT %810 0019 00'908°ZT 00°'SPLTT 88°L69'T 00'TLL YT 9€'809'T
%00°0 000 00'8TS'6T %vL9 00'€EC’T 00'8256T 00°S6Z 8T 90°'TTOTT 007156 tr'089'TT
%00°0 000 00°TS9'€0T %YE9 00°v8T°9 00°159°€0T 00°£9%'L6 ZO'STY'ES 00°Z¥9°0TT 76'926'79
%000 000 00'TS9E0T %YE'9 00't81°9 00'TS9°€01T 00'L9%°'L6 ZO'STH'ES 00ZH9°0TT 76'926'79
Aew y3nouyy
(aseaaq) |euly (aseanaq) angejua) |eutd Aoy gia 3e8pngelol  Ajanov |ejol
/ @seasu| 1202-0202 / @seanu) 1202-020¢ 0202-6102 020Z-6102 6102-810Z 610Z-8102
% 1@3png 1 % 129png 128png Juased
uosuedwo) 0} e8png uased 03 ja3png

Zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) Tuosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AlJewiwing JUN0JJY
1oday uosuiedwo) 123png

SISN3IdX3 MOHS 30VHlL
IN3WNIVIYILING

S3SN3dX3 HILNID HOLISIA
IM-ONIAONNS SIN3AT TVID3IdS
1dS-ONIAONN SIN3AI TVID3dS
IM-ONIONND SIN3AI TVID3dS
ONIONNI IN3AI TVID3dS
JDNVNILNIVIN ONIdTING
A¥ANNYT

LIN3WJIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
SIOYVHI ANVE

S3SVIT ANV SINIY

SYivd3ay

$311ddNS ONILYYIdO
SN

IDNVNILNIVIN INIWCIND3
"di¥2s8Ns B S3nd

T3AVEL

INOHdIT3L

$31NddNs 321440

39v1S0d

-990€S-TEZ-TEL

109
11090
000-090€5-T€¢-16C
000-ZS0ES-TEC-TEC
000-€S0€5-TEC-TEC
000-EE0ES-TEC T6C

-TE0ES TEC TEC

-LZ0ESTECTEC

-Tec-1td
~L1EC-LEC

000-9€0€S-TEC-1EC

YZ0ES TEL TEC
000-720e5Te¢-TeC
000-9T0E5-TEC-1€C
000-FT0ESTeC-TEC
-ET0ES TEC TEC
000-CTOES-TEC-TEC
000-TTOES-TEC-TEC
000-0TOESTEC TEC
S3ISNIdX3 TYNOLLVHICO - 0£5 :Tdnoinidydx3

:S1143IN38 IONIYS - 026 Tdnosnjdydxy |e3oL

ALIYND3S TVIDO0S
3YVIIQ3NW
IDONVYNSNI HLIV3AH
10vd

SY3d

000-ZTOCS-TEC-TEL
000-TTOCS-TET-1ET

S1143N38 IONIYA - 026 ‘Tdnosnidydx3

:3SNIdX3 1D3HIQ AYVYIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx] jejoy

S3IOVM B SIRVIVS

000-0TOTS-TEC-TEC

ISNIAX3 10310 AYVIVS - 016 ‘Tdnosnidydx3
ISNOH YY3dO SH3did - T€Z Juawiiedag

Jaquinn junoly




t Jo Z 3bed

WY £Z:%%:0T 0202/21/5

%S0°0- 00°8ZT- 00°T9V'2LT %8L"9 00°SOELT 00'6852LT 00°'¥82'5C LTSLT6ET 00°0TS'6b2 05725612
%S0°0- 00871~ 007 19%'2LT %8L°9 00°SOE'LT 00°685°2LT 00'¥82'55C LTSLT6TT 00°01S'64T 0S'ZES'6IZ
%00°0 000 00°0 %00°00T- 00°000°0T- 00°0 00°000°0T 000 00°0 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°0T- 000 00°000°0T 000 000 000
%000 000 000028 %EE'6 00°00L 00°00Z°8 00°00S'L 9v'100°C 00°00b°T LLLLLD
%000 000 000008 %L9°9 00'00S 000008 00005 00'vZ6'T 00'00¢'T 00'T6L9
%00°0 000 00002 %000 00'00Z 00'002 000 805 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 00°0 000 86°97 000 ETET-
%0070 000 00°00%2TT %LS'8T 00°009°LT 00°00t°2TT 00°008'v6 v0°878'1S 00°00T'6L LS'OLE'9IZT
%000 000 00°000°L WLT LT 000051 00°000°L 00°005'S 0000 00'009°L 6S6LE'6
%00°0 000 00000C %000 000007 00°000T 000 000 000 00°046C
%000 000 0000ST %00°'ST 00005 00°005T 00°000°Z 0S6LL 00705t 00'68L'T
%00°0 000 00°000'ZT %000 000 0000021 00°000°ZT 00°005°L 000056 00'000T
Aepy ysnoayy
(aseanaq) [euty (aseanaq) annejual |euty Aimwovala  iedpngielol  Auanay jejol
/ @seaiduy) 1202-0202 / @seanu| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 020Z-6102 6T0Z-8102 6T0Z-8107
9% 128png 1 9% 19dpng 133png jualey
uosuedwo) 03 19dpng juaied 03 128png
Zuosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

:|eyo] Joday
:3SNOH VH3IdO S¥3did - TET -uawiedaq jeloL
079 - 0v9 :Tdnos9idydx3 |ejoL

AVILNO TVLIdYD 000-0TOV9-TEZ-TEC
09 - 0t9 :Tdnoinidydx3

'SNOANVTIIISIA - 095 :Tdnosoidydxy |eo)

WNIW3Yd IDNVENSNI 000-00995-T£C-1cC

ISN3dX3 ONILIIW 000-v0595-T€C-1€C

JSIW 000-00S95-TEC-TEC
SNO3INVTIIISIW - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3

:§ISNIdXI TYNOILYYHIJO - 0ES :Tdnoigidydx3 [e3o)

L3INYILNI/ VIQIW TVIDO0S 0 TEC-TEC
ONISILYIAGY O1aVY 0-909€S1EC-1EC
ONISILY3IAQY LNI¥d 000-209¢€5-Te¢-1€¢

$3DIAY3S TYNOISSII0¥d 000-0£0€5-TE¢-Tee

JaquIny N0y

noday uosiedwo) 198png



Sheriff



vS J0 11 3bed

Wd $S:11:S 0202/11/¢

%000 000 00°TSLTT %09'LES  00TSLOT 00TSL'TT 00°000T 69°871°T 00'00S'E ¥ZLZ9'T
%000 000 00°000°8T %00'09C 00'000'€ET 0000081 00°000'S ¥S'€SS'T 00°00L'6 YO'ESE'9
%000 000 00°000°ST %0070 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST Y LTL'8T 00°000°ST 4218 483
%000 000 00°LEY'VT %80°'TT 00°LEVT 00°LEV'FT 00000°2¢ 9 ETT'8T 00°0059T 009t9°ST
%000 000 00'000°s %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 08°v06 00°000°S 76'02T'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 S6°0£09
%000 000 00'005°0Z %000 000 0000502 00°005°0Z S9'9EV'ST 0070050 80'884'81
%000 000 000001 %000 000 00°000°T 00°000'T 000 00°000°T 8€'489
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 6E0VZ'T 000 SELIYE
%000 000 00'000°€E %00°CE 00°000'8 00'000°EE 00'000'ST 9T°586'ST 00°000'sZ 60°€9C°CE
%000 000 00°00ST %000 000 00°00ST 00°00S°T 6 VTE'T 00°00S°T SO'186
%000 000 00°00¥'€ %EE'EBT  00°002°T 00°00t°E 00°00Z'1 00°599 0000Z°T 009Z8
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 8Y°69L°C 00000 6T°L9T'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 18°688'T 000 LEBYET
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00'000°0T 00°000°0T SL'S80°L 00°000'8 LS'T6Z0T
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 00°0 000 000 66'69
%00°0 000 00°000'% %000 000 00°000t 00000t 89'81Z'E 00°000% £9'0T¥'C
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 00°000'T 00°000T 99°€16 00°000°1 ¥1°265
%P0 0079996t 00°598'189°T %SLT 00°966°L2 00°66T°ZE9'T 00°€0Z°v09°T L6°TT8°080°T 00°T00°€92°T v6°859°STZT
%000 000 00°T99°T %L0'ET 00°Z61 00’1991 00'69t'T +1°606 00°0Lt'T 90'98€'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°€86°9 000
%EBLT 00'€SZ'T 006LT'8 %SY'ET- 00°T60'T- 00970°¢ 00'8T1'8 6S°706'E 00'6E0¥C TY62L'T
%TI'Y 00°€0Z'T 00'91Z'LT %ET'T- 00°'SZE- 00°€10°9C 00'8EE"9T 69'¥55°TT 000 S0°089°LT
%0g' v 00’806t~ 00°S9T°60T %S9'v1 009451 00'€L0°YTT 00'L6V'66 €4°90€91 00°L6S'0L £1°596°81
%C9't- 00'ZOE'ST- 00'Z780°8LE %L89T 00°€TTLS 00't8E"96€ 00'T9T 6£€ 6T°'SLL'YVLT 00°€19°£ST 86°EEE'E6C
%000 000 00°L£9'ST %000 000 00°L£9°ST 00°L£9'ST 000 00'628°7C PP EET'T
%000 000 00°TrS99T %150 00'€s8 00°Z¥S'991 00°689°S91 Z6'TO0'ETT 00'6ZE'0ET 8605 THT
%L8'6T 00°LTL'9E 00°0SS'TZE %I6vT-  00°L6ETE- 00 €T8'¥8T 00°07T'LTT 000 00'895'TZT TV EVETE
%SLY 00°E69'EE 00'EEL'EVL %EST- 00'vE0TT- 00°0¥0'0TL 00'¢L0TTL T9°'T9€°059 00°€LS'LT9 YELLY'L69
%Ly L 00" EVE'TLT 00°0£2°8LYT %20t 00°099°96- 00°L88'S0E'2 00°LYS 20t TUSTITvLL'T LTOTE9LT'T €0°080°LET°T
%000 000 00°596°0T %100T 00'828°1 00'5960T 00°LET6 65°980°ET 00'8ET'6 88585y
%000 000 00'E¥9'6t %SL'T 00'vS8 00 E¥9°6Y 00'68L'8Y LT°6£0°9T 00°0TY'LY 86°656°LT
%BE'S 00°8¥9'E 00'96t'TL %912 00'86t°T- 00°8¥8°L9 00'9v€'69 S6'886°L8 00°£85°09 vLTEYTIT
%Iv'0Z  009T¥'68 00°EVY'LTS %T8'YT- 00°62T°9L- 00°LZO'SEY 00'95Z°¥1S 67 T9L'6ET 00°0LT vEY €8°0£T 20T
%95t 00'6LT 6L 00'€89'8T8'T %ETT- 00°'ST9°1C- 00 vOF'6ELT 00'6TO'TILT 11°20T°L0V'T LTSB6'VTL'T 09°018°668°T
Aewy y3nouyy
(aseaunaq) |euq (aseasnaq) anneuad) |eul4 Ananoy QlA 128png |e10) Auagoy (ejo)
/ @seanu| 1202-020¢ / @seasnu) T120Z-070¢ 020Z-6T0T 020Z-6102 6T0Z-810¢C 6T0Z-810¢
% 1@Epng 1 % 1@dpng 128png juaied
uospedwo) o} 128png juaied 03 1a8png
z uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) Tuospedwo) T uosuedwo)

JHVYMLH0S HI1NdWOD
IN3IWGIND3 ¥31NdNOD
3DNVNILNIVN OLNY
ONINIVYHL
SNOLLYDINNWIWOD
aooMAD0N

S$3SV31 ONY SIN3Y
S3NddNS ONILYY3dO
aoomiD01

S3LniLn
JONVNILNIVW LNIWCIND3
“dI¥2s8NsS B Sanad
13AVHL

aoom201
INOH4313L

aoomA201

S31ddNs 321440
39V1S0d

000-v€0€5-£0T-100
000-£€0€5-201-100
000-0€0£5-£01-100
000-60€5-£0T-T00
000-820€5-20T-100
000-LZ0€5-L01-100
000-vC0€S-L0T-T00
$05-CC0ES-L0T-100
000-CZ0€5-L0T-100
-9T0ES9-L0T-100
000-vT0€S-L0T-100
000-€T0ES-L0T-100

v0S-CT10ES-L0T-
000-¢10€S5-L0T-T00

S-TT0ES-LOT-T
000-TT0ES-L0T-100
TOES-L0T-

SISN3IAXI TYNOLLYYIJO - 0£S Tdnosnidydx3
1S1143IN38 IONIYS - 0TS :TdnoiD1dydx] jejoy

ALIYND3S TVID0S

)S $30804 ONINIOr 3dVIIA3INW
33A0TdW3 IVl 3YYIIQ3NW
JYVIIQ3N

TNVE IDONVYNSNI HLTV3IH
IDONVYENSNI H1TV3IH
33A0TdW3 TIVI LOVd

1ovd

33A0TdN3 TIVT S¥3d

SY3d

000-+T0¢5-L0T-100

000-¢T0Z5-Z0T-T00
00T-TT0Z5-£0T-T00
000-TT0CS-£0T-100

000-0T0ZS-Z0T-1T00
S1143IN38 IONIYS - 026 Tdnaigadydx]

:3SN3dX3 1D3YIA AYVIVS - 0TS ‘Tdnoinydydx3 jejoL

ALIAZONOT

33A0T4N3 TIVT INILYIAO
INILYIAO

YT SIOVM/AUVIVS
SIOVM 8 SIHVIVS

000-0Z0T5-£0T-100

T-TT015-Z01-T
000-TTOTS-Z0T-100
0O0T-0T0TG-Z01-100
D00-0T01S-Z01-100
ISNIAX3 1D3HIA ABVIVS - 0TS :Tdnounidyda
44143HS - £0T 3uawpedag
Jagquinp Junoxny

uoday uosuedwo) 1a3png



$S J0 Z1 =beg

Wd pS:11:5 0Z0Z/T1/S

%000 000 00°0009 %0058~  00°000'vE- 000009 000000 6ETLS6L 00°000°€ ST'S8T'S9
%0070 000 00°005T %00°0 00°0 00°005°T 00°005°T 9 L8Y°T 00°00S°T €8'9.7
%0070 000 0000S'T %000 000 00'00S'T 00°00S'T Y9 L8Y'T 0070051 £€8'94T
%0070 000 0000029 %65°T- 00°000°T- 00°000'29 00°000°'€9 05°00€'8Y 00°000'29 00°2T6°0S
%000 000 00°000°s %000 000 00°000°S 00000°S 00°000°'S 00°000°s 000
%000 000 00°000°LS %TL'T- 00°000°T- 00°000°LS 0000085 0S°00E'EY 00°000°£S 00°Z16'05
%0070 00°0 00°005Z¥T %SS'EL  00°000°LT 00°005'Z¥T 00°005°S2T 16'¥50'68 00°005'EET 86°66T'Z0T
%000 000 00°00S°T %00°0 000 00°00ST 00°005'T TQ66LT 00°00ST LTBPT'T
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 6¥°5S9'Y 00000°¢€T 1Z°01STT
%000 000 00°000°0S %00°0 000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 0£°T0t0€ 00°0000S €0°ESE0E
%000 000 00°000°02 %S8°ES 000002 0000002 00'000°€T SQTPT'9 00°000°€T 76'S88'T1T
%000 000 000008 %00°0 000 00°000°8 00°000°8 L8LLLT 000008 6V ¥8EE
%000 000 00°000°T %000 000 000001 00'000°T 000 00°000°T 000
%000 000 00°000°SZ %00°SC 00°000°S 00°000°SZ 00°000°0Z 67°ST8'LT 00'000'SZ 87979
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S LL8YBE 00°000°S v0'88L°C
%000 000 00°000T %000 000 000001 00°000°T ECBPE 00°000°T ¥5°999
%000 000 0000002 %EEEE 00°000°S 00°000°0Z 00°000°ST 05°991°0Z 00°000ST 0E8EBPT
%S0°0 00°0vT 00°0£620€ %T0°TT 00°729'vS 00°064°20€ 00°891°8vZ v6°ZT6'STE 00'9zL'0vE 9Z°vZ6'0TY
%000 000 00°00S°T %000 000 007005 00°00SC 000 00°000'S 000
%000 000 00°000°52 %000 000 0000052 00°000°SZ 0t"9£5°8T 000 16'88T'CY
%000 000 00'000°0T %000 0070 00'000°0T 0000001 0S'#LS'TT 00°000°0T 0S'+8'CL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 65°LT7'86 000 0S'SBY'ZIT
%000 000 00'000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00'000°S 00°89% 00°000°S 00'9€9
%000 000 00°'10Z0v %689 00°€E8TT 00°'10Z'0r 00'89€'LT 00'8YE VT 00'9ZL'VE 00086'SZ
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 ooo 00°SZT°0T 00°00Z'9 000
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000st
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000'S ET9EL’Y 00°00€°01 ¥S'T786'6
%000 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00005 00'96 00°00S 00'¥8
%000 000 00°000°'ST %00°0S 00°000'S 00°000'ST 00°000°0T ¥6°Ly9°0T 00°00S°L 6167t
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 8STLL'S 000 £6°'TE0D
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 EV'69'ET 000 8SvLOYT
%000 000 00°000°0€ %000 000 00°000°0€ 00°000'0€ TT'086'6T 00°000°0€ TEL9Y'VE
%000 000 00°000°ST %000 000 00°000°ST 00'000°ST 85929t 00°000°ST 69°69€'L
%00°L 000tT 00'0¥T'T %00'ST  00°00% 00000C 00°009'T TTL19'T 000091 ¥£988'T
Rew y3noayy
(eseanaq) |eui4 (aseanaq) angejual |eulq Auagoy aia 123png |e101 Aagoy |ejor
/ @seany) 1202-0202 / @seanu| T1202-0202 020Z-6102 0202-6102 610Z-8102 6T0Z-8102
% 1@dpng T % 1adpng 123png jualeq
uosuedwo) o3 123png uaied 0} 1adpng
z uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

AVILNO TVLIdVD

000-010t9-L0T-T00
09 - 0t9 :Tdnoinidydxg

:S32UNOS ONIINVYNI4 YIHLO - 045 :Tdnoinidydx] |e3oL

140ddNS ALINNWWOD

000-9T0L5-Z01-100

S3DYNOS ONIDNYNIE YIHLO - 04§ :Tdnosnidydxg
'SNOINVTIIISIN - 096 :Tdnosgdydx] (ejo)

318112NQ34a IDNVUNSNI
WNINTYd IDNVINSNI

000-70995-£0T-T00
000-00995-£0T-T00

SNOANYTIIISIA - 095 :Tdnosgidydxy
(INIWNYIN0D T¥HINIO - 0vS 'Tdnoinidydx3 [e3o)
000-02er5-Z01-100
000-8TEPS-Z0T-T00

JYIH/LS3L INIINAOTING-IHd
$311ddNS ILVIANI

Q004 ILYINI

SIVIISAHd - V103N
TY2IQIN - ILVIAINI

$3AY3S3Y

S3I1ddNS LNIW3IDHO4NI
SNOILYSILSIANI TVID3dS
TOYLNOD TYWINY

301440 SYINOHOD

INIWNYINOD TWHINID - 0pS :Tdnoigidydxg
‘SISNIAXT TYNOILYHIJO - 0€S :Tdnoa9idydxg er0y

HJILVW - LNVY9
SIN3WHSINYVO 44143HS
INNOYONIVE B LNIYdUIONIL
SNOLLY13Y 408V ISY3IAQY
$3JIAY3S TYNOISSII04d
§3348v1

SINIWIFUOV INIVIN
aoomD0ol

IDNVNILINIVIN ONITING
S3D110ON JNand

S3HIL

qoomid0

TVYIYLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL
135310 8 SVO

SWHO4INN

INIWIDOVNYIN 40I3Y

000-TOVES-Z0T-T

000-60€€5-0T-T00
00-SL0ES-L0T-T00
000-TL0€S-L0T-T00
000-0£0€S-0T-T00
000-690€5-£0T-T00
000-650€5-£01-100

D00-8¥0ES-Z0T-100
000-T#0ES-Z0T-T00

000-0v0€5-201-100
000-6£0€5-201-100
000-€0€5-£0T-100

13qUINN 3UNCY

poday uosuedwo) 188png



$S Jo g1 2beg

Wd $S:11:5 0202/11/5

1019 - 0v9 :Tdnosnidydx3 [e30)

%66V 00°6¥T°TTT 00°SZ0'SL9'Y 00°ZH0'ZE- 00'9.8°7S¥'Y  00'8T6'vBY'Y  9V'BST'66E'E LT LE0'0B6'E  ¥8'BEY'6B6'E
%00°0 000 00°000°9 00°000°v€- 00°000°9 00°000°0t 6£°7LS'6L 00°000°€ 089852,
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°0 000 S9'T0E"L
Aeiy ySnoayy
(aseasdaq) |euly (eseasd=q) anyelua) |euty gy ala 1e8png |e301  Auanoy |ejop
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seanu| 120Z-0202 0Z0Z-6102 020T-6102 610Z-8102 610Z-8107
% 329png 1 128png 128png jualed
uosuedwo) 0y 128png uaied 01 12dpng

z uosuedwo)  z uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

AIN3INGIND3 ¥31NdWO0D

44193HS - L0T luawpedaq [e3o)L

000-091+9-L0T-T00
Jaquinp junoay

Joday uosiiedwo) 1a28png



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 19, 20 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the 2020-2021 474 Fire District Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

2. Recommended motion: I approve the filing of the 2020-2021 474 Fire District Final Budget
to the Department of Taxation

3. Prepared by: Jennifer McCain and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Annual approval of all Funds and Department Budget Requests
5. Supporting materials: Budget Package — Requested Revenue and Expense Reports

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL (Womptro]ler

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
—_—

Agenda Item No.c_’)(;



2020-2021
Fire District 474
Final Budget



474 Fire District §/11/2020 jm

Summary - Fire 250

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-2021 2020-2022 Change from
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final 19-20 Final -Tentative
Beginning Fund Balance 893,072 1,324,050 1,098,632 1,004,067 1,004,067
Revenue 5,382,096 6,069,932 6,118,000 5,416,920 5,633,920
Salaries/Wages 3,516,209 3,516,491
Benefits 1,837,419 1,852,446
Service & Supplies 1,184,004 1,184,004
Capital Outlay
Expenses 4,941,588 5,567,162 6,212,565 6,537,632 6,552,941
Other Financing Sources 562,513 (728,188) 150000 150000
Prior Period Adj (572,043)
Ending Fund Balance 1,324,050 1,098,632 1,004,067 33,355 235,046 604.7%

Summary - Fire Emergency

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-2021 2020-2022 Change from
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final 19-20 Final -Tentative
Beginning Fund Balance 207,141 207,141 207,141 207,141 207,141
Revenue 205,000 205,000 205,000
Expenses 205,000 205,000 205,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 207,141 207,141 207,141 207,141 207,141 0

Summary - Fire Mutual Aide

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-2021 2020-2022 Change from

Audited Audited Final Tentative Final 18-20 Final -Tentative
Beginning Fund Balance 420,798 896,737 1,277,359 1,277,359 1,277,359
Revenue 857,357 589,354 500,000 300,000 300,000
Expenses 381,418 208,732 500,000 300,000 300,000
Transfer Out 150,000 150,000

Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 896,737 1,277,359 1,277,359 1,127,359 1,127,359 -

Summary - Fire Capital Projects

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2019-20 2020-2021 2020-2022 Change from
Projected
Audited Audited Final actuals Tentative Final 19-20 Final -Tentative
Beginning Fund Balance 1,000,000 927,409 597,405 597,405 497,405 497,405
Revenue
Expenses 72,591 330,004 750,000 100,000 272,000 272000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 927,409 597,405 (152,595) 497,405 225,405 225,405 -

lof 1 5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx  Fire



Fire District 474



g Jo 1 sbed

Wd 11:8p:t 0Z0Z/11/S

%000 000 00°002°S %000 00°002'S 00°00Z'S 00°0 97'£59°6E 00°0 TLE9P'E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 009vS’E 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°000°T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 1L8TL 000 TL8L2C
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ¥9°6Z¥ v 000 00°09
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00'STTCT 000 00°SZT
%000 000 00'00Z°S %000 0000Z°S 00°00Z°S 000 16'€€8'8 000 000
%90°ST 00°000°£9 00°000°Z1S %ST'9E-  00°000°EST- 00°000°SYY 00°000869 SE'TY0'90L 00°958'T59 98'958°067'T
%000 00°000°00T 00000001 %000 000 000 000 TT'EE0'9TT 000 65'8LY'6TT
%000 00°000°ST- 00'000°ST- %000 000 000 000 80°S¥8°81 000 ¥6°7L9'TT
%000 00°000°8- 00°000°8- %000 000 000 000 ST'S6LTT 000 00°0LT°0T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 05't2S'8 000 07'STOPT
%000 000 00°000°00€ %6TvI-  00°000°0S- 00'000°00€ 00°000°0SE €9°7Z8°0CE 00°000°00€ 9L SLTTLE
%000 000 00°000°SYT %000 00'000°SYT 00°000°S+T 000 88'0Z0°0Z1 000 SL'T88'T0T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00'STT'T
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°000°€ 000
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°8YE- 000 00°000°8vE 000 00'9588YE 79'LEEOYY
%00°0 000 19 Ivv'99L°T %88°SE 19 1vv'99Y T9°TrP'99L'T 00°000°00€°T 99°0ETLEIT 00°000°00Z°T L8°602°TPS'T
%000 000 19TPP'99L'T  %88'SE  T9T¥y'99v 19T¥v'99.'T  D0'000'00ET  90°090%03'T  00°000'00Z'T  T'9TZT'ELYT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 09°0L0°EE 000 9t"€80'69
%00°0 000 1S°8L2'002°E %LETT- 6Y'TZL'6T6- 15°8L2°002'€ 00°'000°0ZT‘Y 0£'9£6°65T°'E 00°000°0T6Z PE'S8PZ0E'E
%000 000 60't¥6°€SS %6L0T 60'tY6'ES 60'vY6'ESS 00°000°005 TUBEQEYS 00°000°095 18°Z8L61S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 ¥0°081'S 000 EEERT'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 68°TL0'S 000 v6'0EEL
%000 000 00°000°00€ %8E7S-  00'000°0€E- 00°000°00€ 00°000'0£9 60'T¥9°06E 00°000°0St €€'S0L"L0L
%000 000 T YEEIVET %ESTT-  BS999'E€V9- Y VEEIPE'T 00'000°066°T 90'v00"9TE"C 00°000°006°T €6°TLESI0T
Ae ydnoayy
(aseanaq) Jeui4 (aseadaq) angejual |euid Auagoy LA 128png |g30L Aanoy 301
[ @seasu) 1Z0Z-020T [ @seanu) 1202-020T 0Z0¢Z-6107 0Z0Z-610C 610Z-810C 6T0Z-810C
% 183png 1 % 123png 129png Juased
uosuedwe) o} 12dpng jaied 03 1=8png
z uvosuedwo)  Z uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

Alewwing 3unoddy
14oday uosuedwo) 133png

SANNJ3Y
Y3HLO - ISIW

31AYd SNOILYNOQ/8141NOD
SONINYV3 LSTHILNI

:INNIATY SNOINVTIISIW - 9€ :dnosDadyaay [eol
3SYNENIZY WIVTD 3DNVYNNI
S31VS INIWLIND3

000-0099¢-05¢
000-0v59€-05¢C
D00-0ES9E-05¢
000-0059€-05¢
000-00¥9£-05¢
000-00T9E-05C

INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIW - 9€ :dnosnidyaay

S334 NOLLD3dSNI

ONIMTIE IINVINSNY

V1S3l

3414 10 IN3A3 TVID3dS

SIN3A3 TVID3dS
visal

:1$3DIAYIS HO4 SIDYVH) - vE :dnounidynay [eIoL
140dSNYYL W3 QY9
AYIA0I3IY INIQIDDV

SNOLLAIYDS8NS IINVINSWNY

000-STEPE-0SC
D00-TTEPE-0SC
000-80€vE-05¢C
000-L0EYE-05C
000-90€vE-05¢
00Z-6TTrE-05¢
OCZ-ETIvE-0SC
000-ETTvE-05C
00Z-80TvE-05¢C

$3DINY3S HO4 SIDYVYHD - vE :dnoioidyasy

14008
INVY9 434

NIHOTVA QY - TE :dnosmidyasy |elo)
(Q3553SSV ATIVYLNID-ILVIS
SUVIA HOIdd IN3NDNN3A
Yv3A 1SHI4 LININDNN3A
¥OSSASSY-WIHOTVA QY

YA INIHUND W3HOTVA QY

:ONIANNS TYANIWNYINODYILNI - €E *dnoinidynay |eoL

000-Z0SEE-05¢C
S9T-00tEE-0ST

ONIGNNH TYLNINNYIAODYILNI - ££ :dnosoidyaay

DO0-80TTE-05C
000-S0TTE0ST
DO0-EOTTE-05

000-TOTTE-05¢
000-00TTE-0SC

WIHOTVA QV - T€ :dnosnidyasy

vL 10191510 3HIH - 05T :pund
J2qWnp 1UNoNYy




8 40 7 abed

Wd T1:8%:F 0Z0Z/T1/S

8L°STO'6ET'9
000

%07°1T 00°000°29 Z1'0Z6°EE9°S 88'6£0°TSS- 21°0Z6°995'S  00°000°8TT9
%000 000 00°000°0ST 00°000°0ST 00°000°0ST 000
%00°0 000 00°000°0ST 00°000°0ST 00°000°0ST 000
(aseainaq) |euty (aseanag) aAnejual |euty
/ @sealduy) 1202-020Z / @seasu) 1202-0202 020Z-6102
% 1@dpng 1 193png 128png 1ualed
uosuedwo) 03 123png judied 0} 1a8png

Z uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo) [ uosuedwor

000

Aoy (e30)
610Z-8102

‘PLY 1D1Y1S1A 3414 - 052 :pun4 [e30L

“Y3I4SNVYEL ANNAYILNI - L€ :dnoagidynay |eroy
JIV IVNLNW INOYS Y34SNWHL 000-TZZZE-0SC
HIISNYYEL ANNAYILINI - L€ :dnosoidyasy
12aquinN Junoly

Hoday uosiedwo) 128png



9 jo 1 abed

WY £O:8€:0T 020Z/21/S

EN(E] T8-01025-05¢-

ERIE] 618-0T0¢5-05C-05¢

ERIE] 9T8-01025-05¢-05¢
V153l 002-01025-05¢-05C
SH3d 000-010¢5-052-05¢

S1143IN38 IONIYL - 026 ‘Tdnoinidydxg

:3SN3dX3 173410 AYVIVS - 0TS Tdnosnidydx3 |esoy

3414 dNVDI-3WLLE3NO
JNILYIAO FH14
JNILLY3A0 33814
JWILLY3A0 3414
JWILLYIAO 3did
3WILY3IAO0 314
JWILYIAO 3H14

JWILLH3AO
JWILYINO 34Id
JWILY3AO 3814
3NILY3N0 3414
JWILY3IA0 34l

JNILLY3NO

JWILE3AO

JNILLE3AO

JNILE3A0

visil

IWILYINO

81-8 4VOTHVONS
8T-8 A¥Y3d

SIOVM B SIYVIVS
S3IOVM B SIIYVIVS
V1S3l

S3OVM 7B SIFVIVS

¥¢8-T101S-0 ST
Z¢8-T10T5-08¢-0S¢

TZ8-TT0T5-05¢-05C
BT8-TT0T5-05¢-05C
BTE-TTOT5-05205¢
IT8-TT015-05C-05¢
-05¢-05¢

18-11

T8-TT0TS5-05C-05¢
TT8-TT0T5-05¢05¢
TT8-TT015-05¢-05C
OT8-TT015-05¢-05¢

IT8-01015-050-05¢
ZT8-0T0T5-052-05¢C
TT8-01015-05¢-05¢C

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 €S0P
%000 000 00’0 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 EV'SLE
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 85°68T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 E6'TLTTL
%000 000 00°STZ'TLO'T %99 00'7€0'S9 00'STZ'TLOT 00°€81°900°T LT'LEQ'EIL 00°'St6'896 0T8T TY8
%100 007287 00'T6¥9TS'E %v8'v 00°6LE29T 00°607°91S'E 00°0€8'ESE'E OV PLTTVLT 00°090°2T9'E SS'6ZP'E0E’E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 S1°7ZS"9
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 000 000 vZ'Sy
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 T1°589°C
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 000 000 Y9 rIv'S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 98°8S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0T'T0€"L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0£T6T'S
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 000 000 LLTIL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 LE'18T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 7E°88Y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 99°££0°T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 TSEVE'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 08'T9TT
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 76°80Z°CT
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 08Ty
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0T'S69°C
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 LY'€86'T9T 000 65 VSS6TT
%10°0 00282 00'£L2°09L %ET'T 00°€92°6 00'S66'65L 00CELOSL €9'8Y0'ET9 00'65t'85L 6€'68€'STS
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00°L26
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 08°TrL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 9/°668
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00018
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 0E'v69'LYY 000 TT'8L6T9S
%000 000 00vTZ'9SLT  %8E'S 00'9TTEST 00'¥TZ'9SLT 00'860°€09°C 00'8¥S61IST 00'T09'€S8T v0' L9V'6E0°T
Aepy y3noayy
(aseaiaq) jeuly (aseasdaq) angejua) leuy Aianoy aia  e8pngiezol  Aauoy (eloL
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seanu) 120Z-020T 020Z-610T 020Z-610¢ 6T0Z-810¢ 6T0Z-810Z
% 129png T % 128pna 128png Juased
uosuedwo) o3 128png juaied 0} 128png
z uosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

Alewwing JunN0dJJdy
1oday uosiiedwo) 193png

ISNIdX3 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydxa
Py 1141510 341 - 05T usuiedag
JaquInp Junody




9 jo 7 abeg

WY £0'8€:0T 0Z0Z/21/S

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 00'0
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%100 00's 00'TT5°0S %98°v 00'6EET 00'905'0S 00°L91'8Y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%L 00'£8L'1Z- 00°€E9€'6EY %IEET 00'Z5T'vS 00°0ST'I9t 00°866'90%
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000
%000 000 00°0S5'8vZ %89 00'88%'9 00°055'8¥T 00'790°Zv2

(aseasnaq) |euly (aseanaq) 3ngeual jeuty

/ @seaidu| T202-0202 / @seanu T20Z-0Z02 020Z-6102

% 19dpng 1 o 12dpng 133png jualeq
uosuedwo) 0y 18dpng waleqd 03 jadpng
zuosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) T uospedwo)y T uosuedwo)

000

000

000

000

00'0

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

£5'S0L°8

£5°085°0€

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

8T'STR'ZT

L6'YEQ'SHT

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

000

8E VYT E0T
Aewy ySnoayy
Aoy i

0Z0Z-6102

000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
00'¥SZ'8Y
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
00'0S8'PST
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
000
00'66€'8ET

123png |e10L
610Z-8102

18'8€
vE'9ET
S8'0
8811
85471
6601
80°%

99
05'8¢
T1E
SL'9T
ZE1E
119
B8E'BE
T4'S6L°6
£0'LS6'6E
SS°ZT
EEE6Y'T
£8°€80'T
15596
Zr'e9
w9
ozzy
ST6eT
i 4
04°S6£'T-
65 VL16E
06°L0€89C
€S9
v6°0cE
0S8
SS'9S
£9°0Y
79'€C
6CCEC
8695
Z1's9
8T°066'T
S6'66L'EET

Auagoy |eoL
6T0Z-8T0T

FYVOIQIN
JWVIIQIN
JYVIIQIN
HYIIQIW
JAVIIQIN
3YVIIQIN
FYVIIQ3IN
3YVIIQIN
JHUVYIIQIN
JHVOIQIN
J4VIIdIN
JUVIIQIN
JYVIId3IN
JYVOIA3W

V1S3l

3dVOIa3W
FINVYNSNI HLTV3IH
JDNVHNSNI HLTV3IH
FONVHNSNI HLTV3IH
FDNVHNSNI HLTV3IH
FINVYNSNI HLTV3IH
FONVHNSNI HLTVY3H
JONVHNSNI HLTV3IH
JONVHNSNI HLIV3H
JDNVINSNI HLTV3H
FDNVENSNI HLTVIH
VisiL

FINVHNSNI HLTV3IH
10vd 3414

10vd 3414

10Vvd 3414

1IVvd 344

10vd 3414

10vd 3414

10vd 3414

S¥3d

10vd

V1S3l

1Ovd

8T8-ET0Z5-05C-05¢
LT8-ET0ZS-052-0SC

vIB-€T0¢S-052-05¢
€T8-€T075-052-05¢

T18-£1075-09C-0S¢
0T8-ET0Z5-052-05Z
608-ET0Z5-052-05¢

L08-£1025-052-052
00Z-€1025-052-0S2
000-€1025-052-05¢

1¢8-¢10¢59-052-05¢
618-21025-052-05C

L18-21025-05¢-05¢C
9T8-710¢5-052-05¢
ST8-71025-052-05¢
ET8-7T0¢5-052-05¢
Z18-C10¢5-052-05¢

118-¢10¢5-052-05¢

00¢-7T0Z5-052-052
000-2T025-052-0S2
Z8-T1025-05Z-05¢

BT8-T10¢5-052-05¢
ST8-T10Z5-0SZ-0S¢C

00¢-TT0¢S-09¢-0S¢
000-TT0Z5-052-05¢

J13qUINN JUN029Y

Hoday uosuedwo) 138png



9 Jo ¢ abeg

WY £0:8€:01 020Z/21/S

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 78°L5L°58 000 0185095
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 05°£0S 00°000°ST 00'559
%0070 000 00°005°59T %00'0 000 00°005'S9T 00°005'S9T 6V ¥TT69 00°005'S9T Y6 vTL BT
%000 000 00°00S'v %000 000 00°00S't 00005t 8TISEY 00°00S't £8°0SEY
%000 000 00°056'CT %ST'E 00°00L 00°056'72 0005222 L0796 00°000'¢T 58°955'6
%00'0 000 00001 %00'S 00°00T 00°00T°C 00'000°T 0£°€58°T 00°008'T 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 OT'1€
%00'0 000 00°00%'T %69°L 00°00T 00°00t°T 00°00€T 05671 00°00€°T 88'T6ET
%000 000 00'6L1°TY %8E'TS  9L9TE'PT 00'6LT'ZY ¥Z2'798°LT T0°€80°6T 00°0£8°81 LS'TT0'8T
%00°0 000 00°000°0S %00'0 000 00°000'0S 00°000°0S 88°EEL BE 00°0000S S0°00L'TE
%000 000 00°'SES'S %000 000 00°S€S'S 00'SES’S 99° LT T 00°SES'S 00°€¥5T
%000 000 00'8EL‘8T %IL 0T  0008LC 00°8€L'82 00'856°ST €L°666'TT 00'TE9'9Z LY EL6'TT
%000 000 009456 %6T'€Z-  00°LO6'T- 00956 00°E8YTT 00'9t0°8 00°€ETT'TT 00vZS'6
%00°0 000 00°005°L %8EPEL  00'00E'Y 00°005°L 00002°€ 000 00°00Z°€ 08718'C
%000 000 00°000'SY %000 000 00°000'St 00°000°SY TE'65L9€E 00°000'S¥ 19°'9€6'Sh
%000 000 LL9SL'SY %IE8T  89T80'L LL95L'SY 60't29°8€ 0T LSP'L 00°09€'6€ LTTOOPT
%000 00°0 00°560°S %L9TT  95°ZES 00'560°S 795’ ITTI6T SLTITY 95°006°C
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00005t~ 000 00°005‘t ST'YI0S 000 19°€8Y'T
%000 000 00°0 %00°0 000 0070 000 St'PL69 000 0SCSE'T
%000 000 8£°000°tT %90'€ STSTY 8/°000tT £6°6BSET 0Z'818°L €S'GESET L68ETTT
%000 000 00'EYS'TE %000 000 D0 EPS'TE 00'E¥STE S6'TIS'TZ 00'EFS'TE 8L°966'6C
%000 000 ST'100°9E %S6'6 0T'LST'E SZT'100'9€ SO'tbLTE ST'90£°8T OT'ELP'TE SL'OTO'ET
%000 000 00'9ZE'E %000 000 00'97€'E 009ZE’E 00'tL6 00°9Z€’E 06'6/9'T
%000 000 00°000°S %00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 06°€TET EVTIL'S ESVETT
%000 000 00°000°LT %000 000 00700021 00°000°LT 66°¢09°TT 00°000°LT 96'7€9'€T
%000 000 00°000°C %000 000 00000C 00°000°C 08'607'T 00°000°Z 8S°LLS'T
%000 000 00'0S2°T %0008 000007 00°052°C 000SZ°T S0'660°T 00°0S¢'T 19°£0ST
%280 00°£20°ST 00°9vbTS8'T  %6YL 00°6£0°821 00°6THLES'T  00'0SE'60L°T  6E'98S'E0E'T  OO'EEE'VIST BT LLI'BES'T
%000 00°'608'9€ 00°608°9¢ %000 000 000 000 99°/L8€"LT 000 1S°LPT'TT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 9t'€99
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 08
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 €649
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 S9°E
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 Y0¥z
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 vt LT
%00'0 000 00'866'S %Lt0 0082 00°'866'S 000L6'S £8'08L°C 00°58%'¥ L1'S68'E
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 6EV6
%000 00°0 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 990
Aew ydnoayy
(eseannaq) leuyd (eseannaq) anpeual |eutd Auipovala  398pngjelol  Aandv EloL
/ @seanu| 1202-0202 / @seanu) 120Z-020T 0202-6102 020Z-610T 6102-810Z 610Z-8T0T
% 1289png 1 % Jadpng 188png juaied
uosuedwo) 0} 1adpng jualed 0} 12d8png

¢ uosuedwo)

Z uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

49 $13N4-5334 TYNOISSIJ0¥d
S3D1AY3S T¥YNOISS3404d
S3DIAY3S TYNOISS330dd

ALNIavLiigvH
JDNVYNILINIVW ONIQTINE
"INIVIN H3HSINONILX3
LALETE

AYANNYT

S3dIL

135310 B SVO

SINFJO4INN

diND3 12310¥d T¥NOS¥3d
JYVYMLI0S ¥31NdNOD
AINIWJIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL
SNOLLYDINNNWOD
S3SV3T1ANY SIN3Y

INYY9 S13N4- ONILVH340
$3NddNS ONILYY3d0
S3LLNLN

JINVNILNIVIN IN3NCIND3I
"d1¥2s8Ns g s3na
13AVYL

3NOHd313L

$3NddNs 321440

39V.1SOd

TET-0£0€5-0S¢-0SC
000-0£0859-05¢-05¢
000-€90€5-05¢-05¢

000-£50€5057-05C
000-950€5-05¢-05¢
00Z-€50€S-052-05¢
000- 05C-05¢
000 THOES-05C-05¢C

0E5-05¢-05C
DO0-6€0€5-05¢-05¢
000-9E0£5-052-05¢
000-%EGES-05C-05C
DO00-E£0£5-05¢-05¢
000-0£0£5-05¢-05¢
000-620€5-05C-05¢

000-8€0€5-05-05¢
000-LT0ES05¢ 0S¢
S9T-vC0ES-052-05¢

000-¥¢0ES-05C-0S¢

000-¢¢0E505C-058¢
000-910€5-05¢-05¢
000-v10€5-05¢-05¢C

000-2T10€S-05¢-0S¢
000-TTOES-05C-05¢

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILLYY3dO - 0£S Tdnoinidydxa
:$1143IN39 IONIYS - 026 TdnoiDidydx3 je3o)

AYVIAISENS SNI 334113Y
dINOD INIFWAOTdWINN
ALIYND3S VID0S
ALIYND3S TVIDOS
ALIYNI3S VID0S
ALIYND3S TVIDOS
ALI¥ND3S TVID0S
ALIYND3S IVID0S

JNW

JYVIIQ3INW

000-910259-05¢-05¢
000-51025052-05¢

TZ8-¥10¢S-05C-05C
TZ8-¥10¢5-05¢-05¢C
8T8-¥10Z5-05¢-05¢

PI8-PT1025-052-05C

JaquINN 3UNody

yoday uosuedwo?) 123png



9 JO p abey

WY £0°8€:0T 020Z/21/S

%ET0 00°60€°ST LL°0¥6'2559 %9t'T vS'v68°9ST LLTEI'LESY ETLEL'OBED LT606°969'Y £1°5€8950°9 S8°€69'80L'S
%ET0 00°60€'ST LLOV6'TSS9 %90°T ¥S'¥68°9ST LLTEI'LESD ETLEL'OBED LT'606'969Y E€T1°SE8950°9 S8'E69°80L'S
%00°0 00°0 000 %00°00T- tZ'Zvi'st- 00°0 YISt SS'SLY0T Lb'88E0E 09°L5L°L2
%000 000 000 %00°00T- $TTYI'ST- 000 YZZPT'ST SS'SLY'0T LY'88E'0E 09°45L°L2
%00°0 00°0 00'8ZE'ESY LT VT 00°9LT'SYI- 00'8ZE'ESY 00'09'865 00'0Z£ZYT 00°£21°912 00°000°ZvT
%000 000 00889891 %SLT- 00'9LL Y- 00'889'891 00'¥9t'€LT 000 00°LZT'vL 000
%000 000 00°000°ZPT %EL G- 00°00S0vT- 00000'Z¢T 00005282 00°000'TL 00°000'Z¢T 00°005'90T
%000 000 00°0¥9ZHT %0070 000 00'0¥9ZFT 000¥9'ZPT 00°0ZETL 000 000
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00°005°s€
%00°0 000 00°000'6L %00°0 000 00°000°6L 00°000°6L EVPIE'LS 00°005°9L CL9SELL
%000 00'0 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 6808’
%0070 000 00°000°T£ %000 000 00000'TL 00000'TL SL'SY0'6E 00°000'TL 00°'€66'St
%0070 000 000 %000 00°0 000 000 8989201 000 67611
%000 000 00°0008 %000 000 00000°8 0070008 00°000°S 00'00§°S 00°000°S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 1668412
%000 000 LE'VTLBOT %LT0- £9°28¢- L6'PZL'VOT +¥9°L00°S0T I82TL LS S8YYE'r6 80°0ST'TL
%00°0 000 00°0v8'8T %E0BT-  Q0'EPT'v- 00°0v8'8T 00°€86'2C 00'S0£'8T 0065991 SLES6PT
%000 000 £L6'990°'T8 %00'S €€°098°E 4699018 ¥9'90Z°LL 18°L0v'6E S8'L8T0L 879878
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00004
%00°0 000 00°00S %000 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 00°00% 00°'88%
%000 000 00'8TED %00°0 000 00'8TEY 00°81IEY 000 00'8669 S8'6ETZ
%00°0 000 08°056'9%S %ET'S SYLLT'LT 08°056'9vS SE'ELLGTS 69°522°98¢€ I8 I81'ZIS 2L°228'8YS
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00'000°0T
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'00S 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 8T'S8T'ZT 000 05°S£6'6
Aewy y3noayy
(aseanaq) jeuty (eseasdaq) aAgejual jeuly Aoy ala 1edpngielol  Auagoy ejop
/ aseanu TZ0Z-0Z0T / 3seanu| T20Z-0Z02 020Z-6T02 0T0Z-6T0C 6T0Z-8T0T 610Z-810Z
% 1@dpng 1 A 128png 128png jualeq
uosuedwo) o3 138png juaued o3 1a3png
zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

|e30) Joday
LY 1D141S1Q 344 - 05 uawpiedaq (eyo)
0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnos9idydxy [e30)

000-0T0v9-05¢-05¢
09 - 0v9 :Tdnounidydxg

AVILNO TVLIdYD

:$32UNOS ONIINYNIA YIHLO - 045 :Tdnoioidydxg je30)

AINIONILNOD
ADVEAVd ML OL YIISNWHL

000-00645-05¢-05¢

000-87¢L5-052-05¢
vaSN OL ¥34SNYYL 0€0-9CC¢L5-05C-05¢C

fO¥d VLIdYD 0L HI4SNYHL 000-%2Z£5-05¢-05¢
$3DYNOS ONIDNYNIJ HIHLO - 045 ‘Tdnosidydxy

'SNOINVITIISIW - 095 :Tdnoinidydx] jesop

3181LONA30 IDNVINSNI
WNINITYd IINVINSNI

SANN43¥ 000-0£595-05¢-05¢
Y33LINNTOA 000-20%95-05¢-05¢C
3SN3dX3 LSIYILNI 000-00T95-05¢05¢

SNO3INYTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3

*INJWNYINO09 Tv¥INID - 0pS :Tdnouoidydx] [ezo)

D00-S1E75-052-05C
000-80£75-052-05¢
ZL1-905%5-052-05¢
NOILNIAIYL 3H14 000-90€¥5-05¢-05¢
S31N1ddNS NOILDILOYHd I¥I4 000-50¢5v5-05¢2-05¢
ANIWNYINOD TVHINID - 0vS :Tdnoinydydxy

V2103
S3NddNS IDNVINSNY
NOILN3A3Yd 3HI4

‘53SN3dX3 TYNOILVYI4O - 0€S Tdnosnidydx] [e30)

13sana/uanv
S3UNLXI4 ONY JHNLINYNS
SNOLLY13Y 08V 3S¥3IAQY

000-060€5-05¢-05¢
000-CZ0ES052-05¢
-T£L0ES-058¢-0SC
1aquiny unoay

uoday uosuedwo) 128png



Fire Emergency Fund



:AJNIO¥IINZ 3YI4 - 09T Sudwiedaq [e10L

:635N3dX3 TYNOILYHI4O - 0€S :Tdnoanidydx3 |e1oL

%00°0 00°0 000 %00°00T- 00°000°S0Z- 000 00°000'50C 000 00°000°50Z 00°0
%000 000 00°0 %00°00T- 00°000°S0T- 00°0 00°000'50Z 000 00°000°50T 000
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00'000°S0T- 000 0000050 000 00'000°S0¢ 000
Aen ysnoayy
(aseasdaq) jeuid4 (eseasaq) ELG LT |leulq AyAnoY QlA 12dpng |el10L Alanoy [eloL
[ @seanu| 1202-0702 / aseasu| TZ0Z-020T 020Z-6T0T 0z0zZ-610Z 6T0Z-8T0C 610Z-810Z
ag 12dpng 1 o 1odpng 133png 1ualed
uosuedwo) 03 1adpng judied 0} 128png
z uosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uospedwo)
-
%000 00°0 00°0 %00°00T- 00°000°S0Z- 000 00°000'50Z 000 00°0 00°0
%00°0 00°0 00°0 %00°00T- 00°000°50Z- 000 00°000°502 00°0 00°0 000
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 00°000°S0Z- 000 00'000°502 000 000 000
Aew ySnouayy
(aseanaq) jeuly (aseasnaq) EIRIET |euty Auanoy QLA 1@dpng g0l Auanoy [e3oL
4 e 1207-0202 / aseanu 1202-0202 0707-6102 020Z-6107 610Z-8T0Z 610Z-810Z
% 188png T o 12dpng 123png waled
uosuedwo) 0} 123png juaied 0} 128png

Z uosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

S3DIAH3S TYNOISSI40Yd 000-0L0€5-09¢09¢
S3SNIdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3

AINIOHINI JHI4 - 092 uswniedag

JaquinN unody

poday uosuedwo) 128png

TADNIOHIWS 3414 - 092 :pun4 [EI0L

1$IDIAYIS HO4 SIDUVHD - vE :dnoinidyaay g30)

SONIT1IE 3414 000-0TEVE-09C
S3IDIAY3IS YO SIDYVHD - v :dnounidyaay

ADNIDHIW3I 34 - 092 :pund

Jaquinp unoay

uoday uosiedwo) 128png



Mutual Aid



g 10 v abed

Wd 11:8%:% 0202/11/S

%11 00°000°L9 Z1'0Z6EE6'S  %I0WT-  88°6L0°956- 71°0Z6'998°S  00°000'€Z8'9 ISL06°0TL'S  00°9S8°T9Z'S  T6'69E'8ZL°9
%0070 00°0 00°000°00€ %00'0t-  00°000°00Z- 00°000°00€ 00°000°005 S6°SHT'e9 00°000°00S T vSE'68S
%00'0 000 00°000°00€ %000~  00°000°00T- 00°000°00€ 00°000°005 S6°SYI‘89 00°000°00S YT vSE68S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00'TPt'e8
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00'vEL'S6
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 LOLOL'E6
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 68°ETY'6ET
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 6100997
%00'0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 TESEYTT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ¥5°956'8T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 Tv'066°€L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 86'£98°T¢
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 SLERTOT
%000 000 00°000°00€ %0007~  00°000°002- 00°000°'00€ 00°000°00S S6°SHT 89 00'000°005 000
Aep ySnoayy
(eseanaqg) |euy (eseanaq) annejuay leutd Aoy gla  398png elol  Alanoy jesol
[ @seaiu] 1202-0202 / @seanu) 1202-0202 0202-6102 0202-610T 6T0Z-8102 610Z-8102
% 198png T % 185png 123png juaied
uosuedwo) o} 128png judied 03 128png

Z vosuedwo)

Z vosuedwo)

T uvosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|e3o] poday

S@Iv TVNLNWN 3¥I3 - 042 *pund [BI0L

1$3DIAY3S YO4 SIDYVHI - vE :dnoioidynsy |20l

a4 dwe)

81-8 dvOWVYONS HLNOS
8T-£ AYY3d

81-L ¥uvD

81-L QvOyd

81-£ 190d4dNS DIV¥O 233
8T-£ 20V DND ALIY3IA3S
8T0T-L NLLEVIA
SONITIIE 3414

SONITIE 3414

SONIMIIE 34l

YT8-0TEVE-0LL
BT8-0TEVEOLL
ITB-0TEVE-0L
ST8-0TEPE0LL
TTB-0TEpE 04
TT8-0TERE0LL
608-0TEVE-0LL
L08-OTEVE-OLT
SO8-0TEPE0LT
TOB-0TEVE-DOLL
000-0TEPE-0L

SIDIAYIS Y04 SIDUVHD - b€ :dnosnIdyasy
aiy TvNLNW JHid - 0LZ :pung

J2quINN IUNODY

uoday vosuedwo) 138png



+1 40 ¢ sbed

Wd T0:pbib 020T/T1/S

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 89'8YST
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 vLveY
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8T'645°E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ZE0
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 S8'L8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8'SLT
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 €6'L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8T L8T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 £7°991
%0070 000 00'000T %00°08-  00°000°8- 00°000C 00°000'0T L5191 00°000°0T 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 LE'TOS
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 00’0 000 000 91'59
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 1L°0LE
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 6'661
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0€'09
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 00°0 000 000 £€79
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00°0 €' v0T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 98'S7T
%000 000 00°005'T %g81'€6- 0000507 00'00S'T 0000022 6t EEL 0000022 S0'L0T'S-
%000 000 000058 %98°Z¢T  00°000°S 000058 00°00S°€ £T°610°C 00'00S°€ 000
%0070 00°0 00°005°902 %06'S 00°00S'TT 00005902 00°000°S6T 66°ST9’ST 00°000°S6T 00°6TE8TT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 LTBLY'6T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0E'v8T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 76'589°4T
%000 000 00°0 %000 000 000 000 00°0 00°0 SSIv6'6
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 08'0€S'8Y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 T0t9L
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8LETL'Y
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8EBILE
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 60°108
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 r91Ed
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ZLYS8'S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 £9'916
%000 000 00°005'98T %LS9 00°00STT 00°005'98T 00'000SLT 66'ST9°ST 00°000°SLT SYI6T'8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 957901
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 00°000°02 00°000°0T 000 00'000°02 000
Aew y3noay)
(eseasdaq) leuy (eseasaq) aagelual leuy Auagoyala  1e8pngelor  Ananoy (eoL
[ @seaidu| 1202-020¢ / aseanu) T202-020Z 0202-6T0Z 020Z-6102 6102-8102 6102-8102
% 1edpng T % 128png 123png juaied
uosuedwo) 03 128png jusied 0} 128png

z uosuedwo) uosuedwo)

Tuosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

IDNVENSNI HLIV3IH
FDNYHNSNI HLV3H
3DNVYNSNI HLTV3H
FONVENSNI HLTV3IH
IDNVYNSNI HLTV3IH
IDNVENSNI HLTV3IH
FDNVINSNI HLTV3H
JDNVYNSNI HLTV3H
IDNWVHNSNI HLTV3H
IDNVENSNI HLTVIH
1ovd
10vd
1Ovd
1ovd
1ovd
10vd
1Dvd
1ovd
1Ivd
SY3d

[
TT18-C1075-042-04C
OT8-71025-042-0LE

TT8-110250L2-04T
TT8-T10¢5-0L¢-04C
0T TT0¢50LC-0LC
608 TT0Z50LC-0LC
I08-T10C5-0LZ-0LT
908-TT0¢S0LT-0LC
000-TT0CS0LC-04T
000-0T0¢5-0£2-0LC

S1143N38 IONIY4 - 075 :Tdnosnidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1DINIA AYVTVS - 016 :Tdnosnadydx3 |e3ol

FZ8-T10150L2-048
€78-TT015-0£¢-04C
61811015 0L¢-0LC
ITE-T101504¢-0LC
9T8-TT0LG0L¢-04C
ST8-T1015042-04C

3414 dWYD-IWILYIAO
g1-6 2414 Asuwiyd -10
INILYINO

INILYINO

JINILYEIAO

JNILYIAO

IWILY3A0

JNILY3AO

JNILYINO

JNILYIAO

JNILYIA0

3414 39014 319V3-10
JWILY3A0

SIDYM B SIIUVIVS
SIDVM B STIYVIVS

608-TT0TS-0L2-0LT
I08-TTOTS0LC0LE
§08-TT0TS0LC0LC
000-TTOTS0LT-0LT

£08-01015-042-04E
000-010TS-0L2-048

ISNIdXI 103810 AVTVS - 0TS :1dnosnidydx3
aiv IVNLNIN - 0£Z :3uauwiedag
Jaquiny Junodldy

uoday uosuedwo) 183png



vl Jo ¢ abey

Wd Z0:vviv 0Z0Z/T1/S

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 TL£'8LT
%000 000 00°0000T %L9°9T-  00000°Z- 00°000°0T 00'000°ZT ¥8'9zZ 00'000'ZT T0'0LT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 85°0%
%000 000 00°000'8 %0009 00'000° 00°000'8 00°000°S 0v'9ST 00°000's vL08L'E
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 €6°EET
%000 000 00°000°€ %000 000 00'000°€ 00'000°€ 0Z'TIST 00°000°€ 98945
%000 000 00'005°C %00°SZ 00°00S 00005T 00000T 000 00000 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 £9'€E
%000 000 00°0 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0S'S0B'T
%000 000 00°0 %000 000 000 000 000 000 Ly 1T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ST6I0T
%000 000 000 %000 000 00°0 000 000 00°0 08'SST
%00°0 000 00700001 %8T Tt~  00°000°L- 00'000'0T 00°000°LT 96'60T°C 00°000°LT 000
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°00S‘Z- 00'0 00'005' 000 00005 S8LLE
%00°0 00°0 00°005°ZT %ES'L9-  00°0009Z- 0000521 00°005'8€ ¥8°707°c 00°005‘8€ 68°S1Z9
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 €602
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 86'LZ
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 Q00 9£'65
%00°'0 000 000 %000 000 000 ao0’0 000 000 L6'ST
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 16°€T
%000 000 000 %000 0070 000 000 000 000 9492
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 €099
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 000 000 8v'8y
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°00S- 00°0 00°00S 6T°0L 00°00S 000
%00°0 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 00'0 000 61787
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ¥9'C
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 68'tSE
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ty'9rT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 607269
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 0€1T
%000 00°0 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 66°59
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 6’15
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 9L'01
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 9z'9
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 518
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 6T'ET
%00°0 000 00°00s %00°08- 00000Z- 00°00S 00°00S°Z 9€'812 00°00S°C 09811
%000 000 000 %0070 000 000 000 000 000 £€2°0L
Aepy ySnouyy
(aseannaq) leuiy (aseaidaq) angeual feuly Amgoyaia 1e3pngeiol Auandy jesop
/ @seasnu| 1202-0202 / @seanu| 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 020Z-6102 610Z-8102 6T02-8102
% 198png T % ~1adpng 123png tualeq
uosiedwo) 03 193png judied 0} 13dpng
zuosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) [ uosuedwo)

135310 8 SVv9

135310 3 SvO

LNIVIN OLNV
FONVNILNIVIN 01NV
$31NddNS ONILYYIHO
$3NddNS ONILYY340
JONVNILNIVIA LNIWCIND3I
13AVHEL

13AVHL

TIAVEL

13AVYL

T3AVHL

13AVYL

$31NddNS 321440

L08-0%0£S-04C-04T
000-0%0£5-0L¢-04C
9T8-0€0€5-04Z-0LC
E0E5-0LC-0LC
6T8-FZ0ES-0LL-0LC
000-+Z0€50ZZ-0LC
000-9T0ES-0£Z-02¢
LT8-ET0£5-0£2-0LC
9TE-ET0ES-0LC0LT
TT8ET0ES-0£C-0LC
TT8-ET0£5-0£C-04C
Z08-ET0E5-0LC-0LC
000-€T0€5-0£¢-04C
-TT0£5-0£2-0LC

S$ISNIAX3 TYNOILYYILO - 0€S Tdnoigidydxgy

‘SLI43N39 IONIYS - 025 Tdnosnidydx] |elog

ALIYND3S TVIDOS
ALI¥ND3SIVID0S
ALIYND3STIVID0S
ALIMND3S TVID0S
ALIYND3S TVIDOS
ALIMNI3SIVIDOS
ALIYNI3IS TIVID0S
3414 3901 319V3-SS
ALI¥ND3IS VIDOS
W

JHVYIIa3IN
VI3
3VII03IN
JEVIId3IN
FUVIIQIN
3YVIIQ3IN
JYVOIQ3IN
JHVIIQ3IN
FHUVIIQIN
JHVIIQIN

314 3901¥ 319VI-3YVIIQIN
3YVOIQIN
FONVHNSNI HLTV3IH

L18¥T0CS-0LZ-00
T8-¥T0¢5-04204¢C
IT8¥T [T0LT
TI8-7T025-02-0LC
OT8-+1025-0L2-0L

000-+1025-0£7-02
¥Z8-ET0¢S0LC-0LC
ET8-ET0C50L¢0LC
6T8-E1025048-0LC

TT8€10¢50LC-0LC
0T8-ET0CS-0LC-0L
B08-ET02504¢0LC
LOB-ETOCS0Lc0Lt
908-€10¢S0LC-0LC
000-€10¢504Z-0LC
€C8-CT0CS0L7-0L

J2quny Junoaay

woday uosuedwo) 338png



¥1 jo g sbed

Wd Z0:vP:t 0Z0T/11/S

%000 000 00°000°0St %00°01-  00°000°0S" 00°000°0S¥ 00°000°005 90'TL89E 00°000°00S S9°TEL'802
%000 00°0 00°005'92 %95'0L-  00°00S'€9- 00700592 00°000°06 000 00°000°06 £1°998°TS
%000 000 00°005'92 %95°0L-  00°005°€9- 00'005°92 00°000°06 000 00'000°06 L1'998'1S
%00°0 00°0 00°000°0ST %0070 00°000°05T 00°000°0ST 00°0 000 00°0 000
%000 000 00°000°0ST %000 00°000°0ST 00'000°05T 000 000 00’0 000
%0070 000 00°005°C %0S°L6- 00°005°L6" 00°005°T 00000001 000 00°000°00T 000
%0070 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°00T- 000 00000001 000 00°000°00T 000
%000 000 0000S°C %000 00'00S°C 00'00SC 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°2S %E0°TE-  00°00S'vET- 00°000°ZS 00°0059L €2°750°8T 00'005°9L 65°00€°2¢
%000 000 00000'T %0096~ 00°000°tC- 00'000'T 00°000'ST 000 00°000°ST 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 08'v9¢
%000 000 00°000'ST %00°00T  00°005°L 00'000°ST 00'00S'L €8°9V6'ET 00°005'L ¥9°6LT'S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 95'6%97
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 ¥9'%L07
%000 000 00'005C %000 000 00°005C 00'005T 000 00°005T ZEE60'T-
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 $T'LS0'T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 YT EY8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 8LYL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 75°70¢
%000 000 00°0 %000 000 000 000 000 000 €9°LYTT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 €9'80¢
Ae y3noayy
(asea1d3q) jeuld (aseassaq) aaneual |eul4 Aagoy ala 108png |B301 Aanoy |e30)
/[ @seaidu| T202-070¢ [/ @seanu| 1202-0207 020Z-610C 0Z0Z-610T 610Z-810C 610Z-810C
% dpng T % 19dpng 198png juaied
uosuedwo) 0} 128png jualed 03 y23png

7 vosuedwo)

7 vosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

gy TYNLNA - 042 3uawnedaq [e3o)
:0t9 - 019 :Tdnosn3dydx3 2301

AYILNO TYLIdYD 000-0T0¥9-0LC-0LC

0t9 - 0v9 :1dncinidydx3

1$37HNOS ONIDNYNI HIHLO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3 [e3o)

3414 OL ¥34SNVYL 000-12¢L5-04¢0L2
$378NO0S DNIDINYNIA HIHIO - 046 ‘Tdnosoadydx3

INIWNYIAOD TYHINID - 05 :Tdnosnidydxl [eo)

NOISS3¥dNS 38l 000-0££vS-0L2-0LC
$311ddNS NOILLD310%d 3414 000-50evG-0L¢0LL
INIWNYIAOD TWHINIO - 0pS Tdnoaoidydxy

:$3SN3dX3 TYNOILVY¥3dO - 0€S :Tdnosnadydx3 [e3oL

$3DIAY3S TWYNOISS330Ud
INIVIN dIND3 AAV3IH
INIVIN dIND3 AAVIH

000-0£0€5-0LC-0LE
£18-850€5-0L2-0L¢
000-8S0€5-04L-0L2

SIYIL oT8-THOES0L-0LT
S3YIL L08-TP0ES-0L2-04T

SIYIL 000-TP0ES-0LC-0LL

135310 8 SYO BT8-0%0£5-0L¢ 0L
135310 B SVO IT8-0v0ES0L2-0LC
135310 B SVO §18-0v0EG-0LC0LL
135310 8 SVO ZT8-0P0ES-0LC-0LL
13$31Q0 8 SVO TT8-0v0€S0L-0LT
135310 8 SV9 0T8-0v0¢5-04¢-0L¢

J3qQUINN JUNC2JY

uoday uosiedwo) 128png



Capital Projects
(Fire)



v1 J0 6 abed

Wd Z0:¢t:v 020Z/114

00°005°TL-

%8670~ LUTET'BBT'L  %SP'T S P68'ELT LLTE9'65T'L  ETLEL'SBO'L  £E°SS9'T9Lv  ET'SES'TISL  60°6Z¥LYT'9
%8€'8T-  00°000°0S- 00000722 %00°0 00'000°TLT 00°000°2LZ 000 00°5L8°8T 00°000°0SL 65 €00°0EE
%8E'8T- 00700005~ 00°000°2ZZ %0070 00°0002LT 00000°2LT 000 00'SL88T 00°000°0SL 65 E00°0EE
%BEBT- 00°000'05- 00000222 %000 00'000'ZLT 00000°7LT 000 00'S.8'8T 00°000'0SL 65 €00°0EE
Aepy ySnoayy
(esea1d2q) [eurd (eseanaq) aAneuaL jeutd Aoy ala  1@8png eor  Aanoy |elol
/ @seanuj T120Z-0Z0¢ / @seaiu] T202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0Z0Z-6T0C 6T0Z-810¢ 610Z-8102
% 3e8png T % 125png 128png Juaied
uosuedwo) 0} 128png juaied 0} 198png

Z vosuedwo)

Z vosiedwo)

T uosuedwo)

T uosiedwo)

:|e3o] yoday
:1§193r0¥d 1V.LIdYD Y14 - 087 :Juawisedaq (301

1099 - 0%9 :TdnoJnidydx3 |elo
$103r0¥d WWLIdYD 3414 000-0T0vS-087-08¢

0v9 - 0v9 :TdnoJDidydxy

$10310¥d 1V.LIdYD Y14 - 08¢ :uawsedaq

Jaquinn Junoxny

yoday uosiredwo) 123png



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 19, 2020 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the 2020-2021 Water-Sewer Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

[§®]

. Recommended motion: I approve the filing of the 2020-2021 Water-Sewer Final Budget to
the Department of Taxation

3. Prepared by: Jennifer McCain and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Annual approval of all Funds and Department Budget Requests
S. Supporting materials: Budget Package — Requested Revenue and Expense Reports

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL dg//ﬂ/complrol]er

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
—_——

Agenda Item No. 0?4_



2020-2021

Water/Sewer
Final Budget



Summary - Water

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Sewer

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

1of1

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
1,649,537 1,111,705 1,164,710 984,420 984,420
591,735 669,000 594,000 571,400 571,400
1,129,567 615,995 774,290 643,783 674,447
1,111,705 1,164,710 984,420 912,037 881,373
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-2021 20-21
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
602,033 602,033 694,763 694,763
707,382 396,000 454,500 454,500
690,477 303,270 540,738 550,370
602,033 694,763 608,525 598,893

5/11/2020 jm

Change
from

19-£2U Finai -
Tentative

-3.5%

Change

from
1¥-2U Finai -
Tentative

-1.6%

5-11-20 Summary 2020-2021 jm.xlsx Water- Sewer



Water



S jo 1 abeg

Wd €£5:10:5 0Z0Z/11/S

%000 000 00°00%'1LS %08'€- 00°009°7Z- 00°00%'1LS 00°000°v6S 98'S8L°01S 00°000°S6L°T  €T1°0S8°0TL
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 00°0 000 000 00°000°9ZT°T  0L°685T8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 04°685'T8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000'97T°T 000
%000 000 00°002°62 %00°Z6T 00°00Z°6T 00°002°62 00°0000T o I8Y'LE 00°000°S9 SELIT'YS
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000z 00'000°S 6£9¢0°S
%000 000 00°000°0T %000 000 0000001 00000°0T 00008t 00'000°0T 000088
%000 000 00'00T'6T %000 00'00Z'61 00'00Z'6T 000 vy 192'CE 0000005 96°0TY'0F
%000 000 00°00Z°ZtS %9T'4-  00°008°TP- 00°002'Z¥S 00°000°v8S I YOE'ELY 00°000°709 80°£66°ELS
%000 000 00'000°St %00'S¢-  00000°ST- 00°000'St 00°000°09 0t'768°0S 00'000'8S 0L°€86'8S
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00008t~ 000 0T'vEs'T
%000 000 00°000°S %0S'LE-  00°000°E- 00°000°S 000008 8L°ZET'S 000 SY'EET’S
%000 000 000009 %000 000 000009 000009 55'6£8'8 000009 8TYOL'6
%000 000 0000L°C %00°€EL-  00°00E'L- 0000£°C 00°000°0T 89°THL'T 000 E0ELTTT
%000 000 00'005'€8t %0€ €- 0000591~ 00'005'€8Y 00°000°00S 10°L6V'0TY 00°000°0%S TSWLETBY
Aepy yBnouyy
(aseasnaq) |eui4 (eseasnaq) angejual |euiq ANAnoY QLA 128png |e30) Aanoy |g301
/ aseanu| 1202-0202 / aseanu| 120Z-0202 020Z-6102 0Z02Z-610Z 6T0Z-8T02 6T0Z-810C
% 198png T % ~ jadpng 199png Juaied
uosuedwo) 01 1a3png 1ualed 03 jadpng

Z uosuedwo)

Z vospedwo)

AJewiwing JUN0JJY
1oday uosuedwo) 128png

T uosuedwo)

1 vosuedwo)

{N3ILSAS HILYM - 060 ‘Pund |E301

*434SNVHL ONNAYILNI - L€ :dnos9idyAay [el0)

D310Yd dvD WOY4 ¥34SNVYL D00-90¢ZE-060

J18YAIFD3H NYOT ANNSYILNI P8Y-S0ZLE-060
HI4SNVYL ONNFHILNI - LE :dnoimidynay

:3INNIAIY SNOINVTIIDSIW - 9€ :dnouDidyaay |eloL
HY3IH10 - JSIW 000-0059€-060
SONIQTING ALNNOD - SLNIY 000-€029€-060
SONINYYI LSIHILNI 000-00T9€-060
INNIAIY SNOINYTIIISIN - 9€ :dnosodynay

1SIDIAYIS HO4 SIDUVHD - vE :dnosDidyaay |ejoL
3I0YVYHIYNS AQNLS YILVM 000-ZTvvE-060
$11S043a YIWO1SND 000-7TvPE-060
$334 LINYId TYNNNY-43ILYM 000-€TvvE-060
SIDYYHD LV ¥ILVM 000-ZTPPE-060
SdNYOOH-8IYLNOD TVLId¥D 000-TTPPE-060
SIDYYHD YILYM 000-0T¥¥E-060

SIDINYIS HO4 SIDYYHI - vE :dnoagadynay

W3LSAS ¥ILVM - 060 :puny
Jagquinn JunodXy




v jo 1 2bed

WY 0€:T+:0T 0202/21/S

%000 000 00'000°ST %000 000 00'000°ST 00°000°ST 8v°791°0T 00'000°ST LE'ETB'ST
%000 000 00052 %000 000 00052 00052 000 00°0SZ 000
%000 000 00'000T %000 000 00000 00000 TE'669 00°000°T 90'695°T
%000 000 00'000°€ %St'Sy-  00°005°T- 00°000°€ 00'00S'S 66'968'¢€ 00°00S°S 68 6EY
%00°0 000 00°95Y %000 00'95¥ 00'95Y 000 00°'SLS'E 000 000
%000 000 00°000°S %00'0 000 00°000°S 00°000'S S9'6¥9 00°005°T v8'€62'T
%00'0 000 00'000°€ %000 000 00°000°€E 00°000'€ L6'SH9 00°000°€ 8T°S8T'T
%000 000 00°000°S %00'0 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°00S°T %00'0 000 00°00S°T 00°00S'T 000 00'005°T 088t
%00°0 000 00°000'ST %00'0 000 00000°ST 00°000°ST ETPIT'E 00°000°S YT TLEOT
%000 000 00°000°SY %81'8T-  00°000°0T- 00°000°SY 00°000'SS I8 ISE'ET 00'000°SS $9°500'LY
%000 000 0000021 %000 000 00°000°LT 00°000°LT 6’ TTT'ET 00°000°0T S9ELTE
%00°0 000 00°000°ST %000 000 00°000°ST 00'000°5T 06'£901T 00°000°S2 79'856'%C
%000 000 00°000°ST %000 000 00°000°ST 00'000°ST or'TOY'T- 00000'ST 6L'988°C
%00'0 000 00°000'T %000 00°000°T 00'000'T 000 08'678 000 000
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°S- 000 00°000°S 00090°€ 00'005°S 00°0ZLT
%000 000 00005t %000 000 00'00S‘t 00°00S't 69°20L"F 00005t a1°0Ssy
%000 000 00°00€'T %0002y  00°0SOT 0000€°T 00'0S2 L6'622 00°0S2 0S'+ST
%00°0 000 00'00Y'E %IT°1S 00°0ST'T 00°00v'E 000S2'T 0LvL6 00°000T TTZEST
%IELT  00°06%'ST 00'8E8'BTT %186 00°LEE'8 00°8VE‘E6 00°110°'S8 SS'TLE'68 0070188 SEI8LT8
%00'0 00'TTLLT 00TTL LT %000 000 000 000 ST'819°0¢ 000 76'98S'EL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 St'SiY 000 LVTE9
%000 000 00PET'T %07 v 0098 00'vET'T 00'8+¥0°C 88'¥81'C 00't60°C SE'ESTT
%68t 00122 00 €VYT'Et %6011 00'ST9’S 00'¥9t'SY 00'6v8°6€ 69'TS8°0C 00°S€T9€ 84'199'T¢
%000 000 00298°L %99°91 00°€TT'T 00'798°L 00'6EL9 STy 00°T0€L 69't9v'E
%000 000 00'888'LE %91’V 00°€TS'T 00'888°LE 00'SLE9E €000 TY 00°08T'LE P EBT6E
%000 000 00°629°LYT %ST'V 00°LL8'S 00°679°LYT 00°ZSLTYT 29'865'EST 00°8L8'VLY 69°918°8ST
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 8T VSE'T 000 SE'ST8T
%000 000 00629°LYT %ST'¥ 00°£L8'S 00'6Z9°LtT 00°T5L°THT P YT CsT 00'8L8'VLT PETEOGST
A y3noayy
(aseasnaq) euly (eseasdaq) aAnejual |euly Apanoy QLA 128png |e30L Ananoy |eyoL
/ @seanu) 1202-0202 / @seasu| 1202-0202 020Z-6102 020Z-6102 610Z-8102 6102-8T02
% 129png T % ~iedpng 129png jualed
uosuedwo) o} j28png jualed 03 128png

zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

Alewwng Junoddy
1oday uosuedwo) 123png

IDNVNILNIVIN INILSAS
S3J1LON 2Nand

S3yL

135310 B SV
JYVYMLI0S H3LNdWOD
INIWGIND3 Y3LNdWOD
IDNVYNILNIVW OLNV
ONINIVYL

S3SV3IT ANV SIN3Y
SYlvd3d

$3ddNS ONILYY3d0
SIVOINZHD

SN
JONVNILNIVIA LNINGIND3
SNOILdI¥DS8NS 8 S3Nd
I3AVHEL

INOHd313L

$311ddNS 321440
39V1S0d

000-6¥0€£5-060-060
000-8¥0£5-060-060
000-T¥0ES-060-060
000-0v0€5-060-060
000-FE0ES-060-060
D00-££0£5-060-060
000-0£0€5-060-060
000-620£5-060-060
000-ZZ0€5-060-060
000-HZ0E5-060-060
000-€20¢€5-060-060
000-CZ0E5-060-060
000-9T0£5-060-060
000-¥T0ES-060-060
000-€T0E5-060-060
000-Z10€5-060-060
000-TT0EG-060-060
000-0T0E5-060-060

$3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYE3dO - 0€S Tdnoisadydxg

AdYIQISBNS SNI 3341134
ALIYND3S IVIDOS
JYVOIQ3N

JONVUNSNI HLTV3H
10vd

S¥3d

:1143N38 IDNIYS - 025 (Tdnounidydx3 |e3o)

000-910¢5-060-060
000-¥10C5-060-060
000-€T0¢5-060-060

000-¢T025-060-060
000-TT0¢5-060-060
000-0T0Z5-060-060

S1143IN38 IDNIYS - 075 ;TdnciDidydx3

INILEINO
SIOVM 8 SIYVIVS

:3SNIAXI 1D3YIA AYVIVS - 016 (Tdnosnidydx3 |e3ol

000-TTOTS-060-060
000-0T0T5-060-060

3ISNIAX3 1D3YIA AYVIVS - 0T ‘Tdnoinidydx3
W3ILSAS HILVM - 060 3uawiedaq

JaquinpN Junoddy




b 0 7 3beg

WY 0€:1#:0T 0Z02/21/S

H9L'b

08'€99°0€

08'9vv'vL9

%98°9T-  00°L0SOET- 00°€8LEV9 00°062°vLL ¥9°0TZ'€2S 00°S¥9'T06'C  90°566°'ST9
%9L'Y 08'€99°0¢ 08'9tv'vL9 %98°9T-  00°L0S'0ET- 00°€E8LEY9 00°062°vLL v9°0TZ'ELS 00°'SYI'T06'T  90°S66'ST9
%9t'vL-  00°00Z°TE- 00°00L°0T %PL9ST  00°085'ST 00°006'TY 00°0ZE9T 68 V8L'6L 00°000°St 8L°0£9°E-
%000 000 000 %00°0 000 000 000 689659, 000 000
%9v'vL-  00°00Z'TE- 0000401 %¥L9ST  00°08S'ST 00°006'Tt 000ZE9T 00°88T°E 00°000'st 8L°0€9°¢-
%000 08°ELE°0F 08'ELE°OV %00°00T- 05vTT0t- 000 0svZZ'ov 00°0 05 PTTIETT 000
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 00'000'9ZT'T 000
%00°0 0€'L08'8Z 0£°L08'8T %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%00°0 05'995°TT 05'995°TT %00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000
%0070 000 000 %00°00T- 0S+ZZ'Ot- 000 05 vzZ'ov 000 05'vZZ'0T 000
%00°0 000 000 %00°00T- 0S'ZET6ET- 000 0S'ZET'6ET 000 0S'ZET'6ET 96°L6E°Z0T
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°0TT- 000 00°000°0TT 000 00'000°0TT 96'L6E'T0T
%000 000 000 %00'00T- 0S'TET'62- 000 0S'2ET62 000 0S'TET'6T 000
%00°0 000 00°000'ZET %L6'8- 00°000°€T- 00°000Z€T 00°000°StT 95°£9t'96 00°000°9€T £8°90b'STT
%000 000 00°000°L %00°'S9-  00°000°€T- 00°000°L 00°000°0Z SP'589 000001 TULLY
%00°0 000 00°000'SY %000 000 00°000'St 00°000°St 00186t 00°000'st vSZS9TY
%000 000 0000008 %00°0 000 00°000°08 0000008 T1'108°0S 00°000°06 8TLLT'TU
%SLT- 007000t~ 00'906vZT %L 0T 0095122 00°906822 00'0SL°902 T0'L86'E0T 00'005°L8T T0'E6TT9T
%00°00T- 00°000°T- 000 %000 00'000°T 000001 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°00S°T %000 000 00'005'2 00°00S°C €9'9E1'Z 00°00SC 000596
%00°0 000 00°0009 %000 000 00°0009 0070009 ¥0'926°01 00°0009 LT'9ZE'S
%00°'0 000 00°000°ST %00°0 000 00000°ST 00000°ST SE6SLTT 00°000°ST 66'920°6T
%000 000 00000Z %0070 000 000007 0070007 0S'65E°T 00000 0S0¥0°T
%000 000 0000022 %000 00'000°£2 00°000°LZ 000 000 000 000
%00°00T- 00°000°¢- 000 %000 00'000°¢ 00°000°€ 000 00'SE 000 000

Ae ySnouyy
(aseaudaq) leuly (eseasaq) angejua) |euty Aianoy aia 1@2dpng |gj01.  AjIARdy (E0)
/ @seainu; 1202-0202 / @seanu) 1202-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0Z02-610Z 6T0Z-8T0Z 610Z-8T02
% @dpng 1T %, 1adpng 133png 1ualed
uosuedwo) oy 123png jualed 0y 123png
Z uosuedwo) Z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

‘le3o) poday
“W3LSAS HILYM - 060 Juawnedaq |eyo)

‘0v9 - 0t9 :Tdnoinydydx3 [ejo)
dIM 3TN S-AVILNO TVLIdYD
AVILNO 1V LIdvD

09 - 09 :Tdnoigidydxg

*SIDHUNOS ONIDNYNI4 HIHLO - 046 ‘Tdnoigidydxg jerog
318VAVd-3DIAY3S 1930 P8Y-P0ELS-060-060
60-T6 SINIT ¥ILYM vasN 691-20¢L5060-060
OT-T6 SHNVLYILYM Yasn 891-20¢5-060-060
¥asn 31dION1Yd ¥8P-T0TZ5-060-060

$3DYNOS ONIDNVYNIA HIHLO - 045 :Tdnosgidydx3

'SNOINVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosoidydx3 [elop
NOILYID3dd3a 000-05595-060-060
¥asN 3SN3dX3 1SIYILNI ¥8v-00195-060-060
SNOINVTIAISIA - 095 :Tdnosnidydxy

"INIWNYINOD TvHINIO - 0vs :Tdnoioidydx3 [e10)

SANN43Y 11S043a 000-ZT¥¥5-060-060
SHILIN H3ILVYM
3ISYHIUNd 431VYM 000-¥0r¥S-060-06

ANIWNYINAOD TWHINID - 0vS :Tdnosgidydxy

*S3SNIdXI TYNOILYYIJO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3 je3op
SIUNLXIA B FUNLINYNA 000-2Z0€5-060-060

SI9 0LT-0Z0€5-060-060

S3DIAYIS TYNOISSIH0Hd 000-0Z0€5-060-060
$334 8v1 000-650€5-060-060

SLIWY3d 000-850£5-060-060

SINIW3IFHOV INIVIN
FINVNILNIVIN 50718

000-6S0€5-060-060
000-Z50£5-060-060

J3quINN N0y

woday uosuedwo) 129png



Sewer



G Jo 7 abed

Wd £5:10:5 0Z0Z/11/5

23r0dd d¥2 WOYH ¥334SNVHL

%000 000 00°005'tSY %LL VT 00°005'8S 00°005°vSt 00°000'96€ 60°SST'StY 00°000'S8E 06'T8E'L0L
%00°0 000 000 %000 000 000 00°0 000 000 00°Z8S'€9C
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 00285°€9¢
%000 00°0 00°000'89 %000 00'000'89 00°000'89 000 v EIBETT 00°000°0T £8°6V6'9Y
%000 000 0000089 %000 00'000'89 00°000'89 000 vy EIR'ETT 00°000°0T £8°6¥6'9F
%000 000 00°005"98€ %0t"T- 00°005°6- 00°005'98€ 00°000°96E S9TVETEE 00°000°SLE L0'0S8°96€
%000 000 000 %00'0 000 000 000 9€'801 000 000
%000 000 00°000°ZT %000 000 00°000ZT 00°000°ZT ETBET'ET 00'000°0T 60°671°LT
%000 000 00°000°SZT %¥0°S 00°000°9 00'000°52T 00°000°6TT 8EPII VLT 00000°STT 85159811
%000 000 00°000°S %000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S ov'vIZ'9 00°000's 9.'958'9
%000 000 00°000'0T %000 000 00°000'0T 00°000°0T 000 000 00'0029T
%000 000 00°00S'¥ET %0T'9- 00°005'ST- 00°00S'PET 00°000°05¢ 8€'997'L8T 00°000'S¥Z ¥9°C10'8€C
Aeyy y3noayy
(aseasaq) |euly (sseanaq) angeua) |eutd Auagoy alA jedpng el Ajanoy elop
/ @seanu| 120Z-020¢ / @seanu| 1202-0Z0T 020Z-6T07 0Z0Z-6102 610Z-810T 6102Z-8T0Z
% “jedpng 1 % 139png 123png Juased
uosiedwo) 0} 128png juased 0} 1e8png
zuosuedwo) 7 uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

‘HIM3S 3AIANIG/VINIDYHIA - OET :pund [E30]
:¥34SNVHL ONNJYILNI - LE :dnosoidyaay je30L
000-90ZZ€-0¢t1
Y34SNVHL ANNAYILINI - £§ :dnosmidynay
:3NNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnosDidynay |e3oL
SONINYY3I 1S3H3LNI 000-00T9€-0¢1
INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISI - 9§ :dnoDidynay

:$371AY3S YO SIDYVYHD - vE :dnosidynay [e3o)

NOILYZIYLIdVD ¥3M3S 000-8TvvEOET
T1IH a109 000-9T+HE-OET

NIVEAVd VASN - ¥3IM3S D00 60vE OEL
SIDYYHI 31V HIM3S 000-80FvvE-OET
SdNYOOH ¥IM3s 000-Z0vvE-OET
SIDYVHD ¥IM3S 000-90FvE-OET

$3DIAY3S HO4 SIDUVHD - vE :dnoiniduaay
¥IM3S IAIANIA/VINIDYIA - OET :pund
Jaquinn Junoly

joday uosiedwo) 123png



t 40 1 abed

WY £LT:E¥:0T 0202/21/S

%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 00'BEL'E 000 005901
%000 000 00'000°8 %000 000 00'000°8 00°000°8 00°£L9°S 00°000°0T SE'6YT'9
%000 000 00°00SC %000 000 000057 00°005°T 00°0SZ 00005 00'€8ZCT
%00°0 000 00°000°ST %000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 000 TTv8'y 000 080T
%00°0 000 0000S'T %000 000051 00°00S'T 000 0ZT'8L6T 000 000
%000 000 00°000°€E %000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00'9s¥ %000 00'9sP 00'9SY 000 000 000 000
%0070 000 000 %000 000 000 000 86°L8ET 000 000
%00°0 000 00°00S %000 000 00005 00°00S 15°66¥% 00°00S Y9'S8y
%00°0 000 00°000°E %000 00'000°€ 00°000'€ 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00'000°TT %000 000 00°000TT 00°000°TT S6°'€66°S 00°000°1T $9'909°8
%000 000 00000°L %EEES-  00°000°8- 00°000°L 00°000°ST 9y TES'L 00000TT $1Z0ETT
%000 000 0000092 %000 000 00°000'97 0070009 95'ST6TT 00°0000€ 06'E€£T'ST
%000 000 00000°01T %0000 00°00SL 00°000°0T 00°005°T 000 00°005T CTLEL
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 08°SE 000 000
%000 000 00'00ST %000 000 00°00ST 00°00ST v96vZT 00°00S°T 8t'OEY'T
%000 000 00°00€°T %0007y 00°0S0'T 00'00€T 00°0ST $9'971 00°0sC Y49
%000 000 00°00v'E %00°00T 00°00L'T 00°00¢'€ 00'00L°T 0L'¥LE 007005'T SEETP'T
%669 00°9LT'S 00°€8L08 %STTT 00 1VZ'8 00°L0S'SL 00'99Z°L9 £0°L97°EE 00°STT'S9 86'TT9°SE
%000 0008SL 000€S"L %000 000 000 000 69°709'S 000 66'LT9'E
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 veE'SIY 000 18°LLY
%000 000 00'86Z‘T %06°L 00°S6 0086Z'T 00°€0Z'T 85'SE6 00092°1 TT6STT
%IT°S- 00'+52'T- 00'vv8TY %BLPT 00°£49°S 00860t 00 TZY 8¢ SL'S8LL 00°065°SE Tv'987°0T
%000 000 00'TE6E %S9'9T 00'19S 00°'TE6'E 00°0LE'E TIS'TE9T 00TE6'E LY'19T
%000 000 00°081°9C %98°L 008061 00°081'9T 00'ZLT'VT 91°968'9T 00'EEE YT LT0T8'6T
%00°0 000 00°'STL'68 %v8'L 0025’9 00°'STL68 00'T6T'E8 10°215°99 00°7TT06 v9°L8LT8
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 91'96 000 vLBELT
%000 000 00'STL'68 %b8'L 00'¥759 00'STL'68 00'161°€8 S8°0T¥'99 00'TT106 06'8v0°18
Aew ysnoayy
(aseainaq) |euiy (aseasnaq) angejuad)l |euld Aianoy ala 128png |e30L AlAnay B30l
/ @seanu| T170Z-0202 / @seainu| 1202-020¢ 020Z-610¢ 0Z02-610C 6T0Z-810C 6102-8102
% 199png 1 % 128png 129png Juaied
uosuedwo) 0 128png juased 0 188png

Z uosuedwo)

7 uosuedwo)

1 vospedwo)

Alewwing Junoddy
1oday uosuiedwo) 183png

1 uvosuedwo)

S3VIAISS |BUOISS3J0)d
FEEER-AA

S1INY3d
FONVNILINIVIN INILSAS
S3dlL

135310 3 SVO
JYVMLI0S ¥3LNdINOD
IN3IWGIND3I ¥3LNdWOD
FDONVNILNIVIN OLNY
ONINIVYL

$3MddNS ONILYY3d0
SIVOIWEHD

S3LLALLN
IDNVNILNIVIA LNIWCIND3I
SNOLLJI¥DSENS B S3Nd
3INOH4313L

S31ddNs 321340
39v.1S0d

00C-0Z0ES-0ET-0ET
000-690€5-0ET-0EL
000-850€5-0ET-0ET
000-6v0€S-0ET-0ET
D00 TYOES-OET-0EL
000-0v0ES0ET-0ET

-¥E0ES-0ET-0ET
O00-EE0ES-OEL-OET
000-0€0€S-0ET-0ET

000-620€5-0ET-0¢t1

000-ZZ0ES0ET-OET
000-9T0ES-0ET-0EL
000-PT0E5-0ET-0ET
000-CT0ES0EL-0ET

000-0TOES-0ET-OET

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOLLYHIO - 0£S :Tdnosnidudxa

A¥YIQISENS SNI 334113
ALI¥YNI3S TVIDOS
JYVIIQ3IN

IDNVHNSNI HLTV3H
10vd

Sd3d

JNILY3NO
SIOVM B SIIVIVS

:51143N38 IONIYS - 0ZS :TdnoaDidydx3 [eroy

000-TT0ZS0EL-0ET
000-010¢G0ET-0LL
S114IN38 3ONIY4 - 075 ‘Tdnosnydudxy

:3SN3dX3 173¥10 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 |e30)

000-TTOTS-0tT-0t1
000-0TOTS-0EL-OET

ISN3IdX3 103410 AYYIYS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
¥IM3S IAINIQ/VINIDHIA - 0ET uawisedag

J3quINy JUNoNY




¥ 40 7 3beg

WY LT:€%:0T 020Z/21/S

%8L°T 00°2€9°6 00°0L£'0SS %6702 9T'620°EPT- 00'8ELOPS 9T'£9.L'€89 26°055°L0 00°2LY'069 0T°Z09°015'e-
%8LT 00°Z€9'6 00°0L£°0SS %T6°02- 9T°620°EVI- 00°'8EL0VS 9T°£9L°€89 267055201 00°LLY'069 0T'Z09°01S'¢-
%00°0 000 00'000°ZT %00°0L- 00°000°82- 00°000ZT 00°000°0t 0S'€ESL6TT 00°000°0% IV°E9T
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 0S'ESLBTT 000 T96TY LE
%000 000 00°000°ZT %00°0L- 0000082 00°000°ZT 00°000°0t 000 00°000°0% ST'9STLE-
%L1 00°9SE‘Y 00°9TT'SST %0070 910~ 00'098°05¢ 91°098°05¢ 80°0Ev'STT 007000152 00'6vT'vL6'E-
%000 00'95€y 00°9SEY %000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00't68'8TT %000 000 00'+68°8TT 00'v68°8TT 00'LYY'6S 00000611 000
%000 000 00'996°T€T %000 910~ 00996 'TET 91'996'TET 80°€86'S9 00°000°ZET 00'6YTvL6'E-
%00°0 000 00°0 %00°00T- 00°000°0ST- 000 00°0000ST 000 00°000°0ST TLL89'0L2
%000 000 000 %00°00T- 00°000°0ST- 000 00°000°0ST 000 00°000°0ST 10°794'stT
%000 000 000 %000 000 000 000 000 000 04'SL8'¥TT
%00°0 000 00°0009T %I8°€Z-  00000°S- 000009T 00°000'TZ veL8S'E 00°000°02 v6'6¢9'tT
%000 000 00°000'TT %000 000 00'000TT 00000TT 00'+8Z 00°000°0T £9°99T9
%000 000 00°000°s %00°0S-  00°000°S- 00°000°s 00°0000T PTE0E’E 00°000°0T LTEBY'S
%00°0 000 00°95996 %8T'SE 00'902°SZ 00'95996 00°0SY'TL 90°966'8S 00°0ST'vL LT'S6L6S
%000 000 00°00SC %000 000 000052 007005 0S'€9L°T 00°00S°C 000
Aeyy y3Snouyy
(aseasnaq) leuty (aseaiaq) angejua) |euy Amgovaia  3e8png el Auagoy [eop
[ @seanu 120Z-0Z02 / @seasnu) 120Z-0202 0Z0Z-6102 0Z0Z-6102 6T0Z-8T0Z 6T0Z-8102
% 199png T % 1adpng 1a8png aseq
uosuedwo) o3 128png juaied 03 123png
zuosuedwo)  z uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

|ejo woday
*¥3IM3S IAIAIGQ/VINIDHIA - 0€T :uawnedaq [elo)

09 - 0t9 :Tdnoigidydx3 |10y
LTOZ ¥I¥d3Y D1Ld3S HO
AVILNO WLIdYD

SPT-9L0V9-0EL-0ET
000-0TO¥9-0ET-0ET
0t9 - 09 :Tdnounydydxy
*$32¥N0S ONIINVYNIA ¥IHLO - 045 Tdnouoidydxy |30y
Z1-76 LNY1d TIIH 109 vasn
NOISNV4X3 LNV1d ¥IM3S 0ST-C0ZLSOEL-0EL
£0T6 0034 3INITY3IM3S vasn GET-C0ZLSOEL0¢ET
S32UNOS ONIINYNIA HIHLO - 045 :Tdnosnidydx]

:SNOINYTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnos9ydydx] (e10)
NOILYID3Yd3a 000-05595-0E1-0E T
ISNIdX3 LSIHILNI 000-00T95-0ET-0% T
SNO3INYTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnoinidydxg

{INIWNYIN0D TYHINID - 0vs :Tdnosnadydx] jelog
T1IH @109 000-9TFvS-0ET-0eT
S3IDNAYIS ALIILN 84S 000-90v¥S-0ct-0ct
ANIWNYINO0D TWHINID - 0pS :Tdnoumydydxy

*SISNIAXI TYNOLLYYICO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3 [e3on
SI9 LZ-0/0ES-0ET-0ET
Jaquinp junolay

1oday vosuedwo) 128png



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05-19-2020 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: ‘Ashley Mead
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications arc normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requcsted to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: Scc attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
__ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

W@ cad Department Name: Community Development
-ounty - ager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
[SY —

Agenda Item No. e



Storey County Community Bebelopment

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office May 10, 2020
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Fr: Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the May 19, 2020 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:

A. Dispatch Health — Professional / 85 Kirkman Ave ~ Reno, NV

B. Global Industrial Systems Inc. — Out of County / 3403 Ridgecrest Dr. ~ Reno, NV
C. GNOVA Ventures LLC- Out of County / 3403 Ridgecrest Dr. ~ Reno, NV

D. Mitchell Labs — Out of County / 7707 Bequette Ave. / Pico Rivera, CA

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



